
Democratic Service
Swyddfa’r Cyngor

CAERNARFON
Gwynedd
LL55 1SH

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Meeting

JOINT PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE

Date and Time

2.00 pm, FRIDAY, 16TH NOVEMBER, 2018

 * A meeting of the Joint Local Development Plan Panel will follow this meeting*

Location

Ystafell Glyder Fawr, Council Offices, Penrallt, 

Caernarfon, Gwynedd. LL55 1BN

Contact Point

Nia Haf Davies
01286 679890

niahafdavies@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED Thursday, 8 November 2018)

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/


JOINT PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP

Gwynedd
Councillors

John Brynmor Hughes,
Berwyn Parry Jones, Dafydd Meurig, Gareth A Roberts, 

John Pughe Roberts,
Paul Rowlinson, Owain Williams

Isle of Anglesey
Councillors

Richard Dew, John Griffith,
Kenneth P Hughes, Richard O. Jones, Bryan Owen,

Nicola Roberts, Robin Williams



A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence

2.  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

To receive any declaration of personal interest.

3.  URGENT BUSINESS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman 
for consideration.

4.  MINUTES 4 - 7

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the meeting of this 
committee held 26.10.2018 be signed as a true record.

5.  SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND 
CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – 
REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT

8 - 167

To submit the Planning Policy Manager’s report

6.  SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING – CONSULTATION DRAFT

168 - 250

To submit a report from the Planning Policy Team Leader



1 

 

  

JOINT LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Joint Planning Policy Committee 

2.00pm, 26 October 2018 

Meeting Room 1, Llangefni  

 

Present: Cyngor Sir Ynys Môn 

 
Cllr. Richard Owen Jones (Temporary Chair)  
Cllr. John Griffith  
Cllr. Kenneth P. Hughes  
Cllr. Robin Wyn Williams  
 

 

 Cyngor Gwynedd 

 Cllr.  John Brynmor Hughes 

Cllr. Berwyn Parry Jones 

Cllr.  Owain Williams  
Cllr.  Gareth A. Roberts 

 

 

 Officers:  
 Nia Haf Davies 

Gareth Jones 

Dewi Francis Jones 

Robyn Jones 

Linda Lee 

Manager – JPPU  
Senior Manager, Planning and Public Protection Service (GC) 
Chief Planning Officer (CSYM) 
Senior Solicitor (CSYM) 
Senior Planning Officer – JPPU 

Apologies: 
 
Cllr.  Richard Dew (CSYM) 
Cllr.  Dafydd Meurig (CG) 
Cllr.  Bryan Owen (CSYM) 
Cllr.  John Pughe Roberts (CG) 
Cllr. Nicola Roberts (CSYM) 
 

Robyn Jones (Senior Solicitor, CSYM) explained that it was necessary to elect a chair for the 
meeting as Cllr. Richard Dew and Cllr. Dafydd Meurig were unable to attend.   Cllr. Richard O. Jones 
was elected as Chair for the meeting.    

Cllr. Gareth A. Roberts (CG) was welcomed as a new member of the Joint Planning Policy 
Committee.    

  

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies as noted above.  
 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



2 

 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

 None to note 

 
3. URGENT ITEMS 

 No urgent items were received. 
 
4. MINUTES  
 The minutes of the Committee held on 21 September 2018 were accepted as a true record.

  
 
5. SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MIX OF HOUSING - FINAL DRAFFT 

  

A presentation was given by Nia Haf Davies with information about the public consultation 
on the Guidance and highlighting the observations received, officers' response to those 
observations and the amendments to the Guidance as a result of the public consultation.   
No observations received during the public consultation entailed a significant change to 
the draft Guidance.  The copy of the Guidance in Appendix 2 included the required 
amendments as a result of the consultation.   Following its adoption the Guidance will be a 
material planning consideration. 
 
Nia explained that the Guidance fell into the category of plans and programmes that would 
contribute to the decision making process on planning applications. It was resolved to go 
through the screening process to determine if the guidance should be subject to a Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA) in accordance with European Directive 2001/42/EC and 
the Environmental Assessment of Associated Plans and subject to an Appropriate 
Assessment under the Habitats Regulations 2004.   As the Guidance supported policies that 
had been subject to ASS and that the Plan was assessed under the Habitats Regulations, 
the conclusion was that the Guidance did not need to be subject to further work.  This 
screening assessment was confirmed by the specific environmental bodies.  A screening 
report will be published.  
 
The Committee was asked to adopt the Guidance. 
 
Matters raised:  

 Paragraph 4.5 - that the median housing price was lower than the price of affordable 
housing in Llanengan.  

 Paragraph 1.6 - reference was made to a comment received from a Local Housing 
Campaign Committee - how was it possible for the Authorities to allow developments 
that do not provide affordable housing as part of the development?  

 
Response: 

 To note the point and the comment was factually correct.   The purpose of the table 
was to give an overview of the situation at a County level. It indicated that 
affordability, namely the difference between housing prices and income, and drew 
attention to the importance of promoting affordable housing in the plan area.   

 This section of the Guidance states clearly that support for these types of 
developments will only be exceptions.  The Plan's affordable housing policies are clear 
that having affordable housing is the starting point and evidence will be required from 
the developers in the form of a viability assessment to justify another method of 
developing sites.  The alternative method could mean receiving a financial contribution 
from developers.  Reference was made to the Affordable Housing Guidance that was 

Page 5



3 

 

being prepared, which will give more details about expectations in terms of providing 
evidence.  The role of this Guidance is to give advice regarding the expectations 
associated with having a mix of housing - type, size and standard.  

 
Decision: 

It was resolved to adopt the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Mix of Housing.  
 
6. SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE (SPG):  TOURIST ATTRACTIONS AND 

ACCOMMODATION - CONSULTATION REPORT 

  

A presentation was given by Linda Lee highlighting the observations received during the 
public consultation period for this draft SPG. A table was presented that was part of the 
consultation report (Appendix 1) stating this comments together with a response and the 
Officers' recommendation. 

 
It was noted that the observations had highlighted the need for minor amendments and 
two more significant amendments to the SPG namely:  

 

 How should an 'excess' of holiday accommodation in an area be defined?  It was noted 
that some responses asked for a specific figure or percentage.  The situation differs 
across the Plan’s area and therefore it is not possible to give one figure as a threshold 
that would be relevant to everywhere within the Plan's area.  It was suggested that the 
best way forward would be to highlight the specific considerations to establish those 
circumstances when there is sufficient serviced or self-serviced holiday 
accommodation in an area and where adding to them would be problematic.    

 More information and guidance was required in the SPG regarding how to deal with 
applications for change of use of hotels to residential use.  A Policy in the JLDP 
protected hotels, however, it was necessary to provide further information for this.   It 
was suggested that the best way forward would be to include a new section in the SPG 
to explain the evidence that would have to be submitted to prove that the hotel was 
no longer viable.  

 
Support for the proposed responses was requested and the right to conduct a public 
consultation regarding the two amendments described above and in row 1 and 2 of the 
public consultation report.   
 
Matters raised:  

 When dealing with planning applications for self-service holiday accommodation 
would all types of holiday accommodation be included, including holiday homes, in the 
equation to assess if there is an excess in the area?   

 There were two different opinions about the need or otherwise to try and retain 
hotels:  (i) In the Victorian age going on holiday was very popular but due to changes in 
visitors' aspirations, frequency of holidays and holidays in this country, staying in a 
hotel was not as popular and many hotels were closing.  It was difficult to think how 
this could be prevented;  (ii) Some visitors still like to stay in good quality hotels.  

 
Response:  

 To note the comment that there are several types of accommodation in the Plan area 
for visitors, - holiday homes (when their owners come to stay at different times of the 
year); holiday accommodation (when their owners let them to different visitors at 
times of the year or throughout the year); hotels; caravans and similar types of places 

Page 6



4 

 

to stay.  Policy TWR 2: Holiday Accommodation, in JLDP only deals with serviced and 
self-serviced accommodation. Other policies exist within the Plan to control the 
location of types of accommodation that require planning permission, namely the 
policies that deal with caravans and alternative holiday accommodation, in order to 
avoid harm to communities.  Policy TWR 2 controls the impact of approving self-
serviced accommodation in communities.  When a planning application is submitted to 
provide a new hotel or when planning permission is required to create a self-service 
accommodation in an existing building currently used as a dwelling, Policy TWR 2 does 
not allow the loss of existing housing stock to serviced and self-serviced 
accommodation.  In the same manner, the Policy does not support a proposal situated 
in a mainly residential area, or causes substantial harm to the area's residential 
character.  By requesting a business plan the aim of Policy TWR 2 is to ensure that the 
proposal creates a holiday accommodation business that is likely to be viable in the 
local market, not to promote businesses that would only be let out fairly occasionally.   
In terms of holiday homes the planning system has no control over these types of 
houses as planning permission is not required to use the house as a second home by 
the owner.  A house used occasionally by the owner as somewhere to come on holiday 
is within the same Use Class, therefore, planning permission is not required.   In the 
same manner, if people want to let their houses out as self-serviced holiday 
accommodation they will continue to be in a house Use Class in planning terms.   The 
huge growth in the popularity of holiday accommodation marketing companies such as 
Airbnb has made it very difficult to keep track of all the self-serviced holiday 
accommodation locations in areas. A change in legislation is required to get to grips 
with the issue. i.e. change the Use Class Notice. Some authorities are now lobbying for 
this due to the increase in Airbnb.  Both Gwynedd Council and Pembrokeshire County 
Council wrote to the Minister in around 2016 to draw attention to this matter.   

 Note the observations.  The proposed amendment to the SPG will explain what type of 
evidence will have to be presented to justify the conversion of a hotel to another use.   

 
Decision: 

To accept the recommendation to support the recommendations regarding comments 
received on the draft consultation and to authorise the Joint Planning Policy Unit to 
conduct a further public consultation in relation to the two significant amendments.  
 

END OF THE MEETING 

 
 

Page 7



 1 

ITEM 5 
  

MEETING Joint Planning Policy Committee 

DATE 16 November 2018 

NAME Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and 
creating distinctive and sustainable communities – revised 
consultation draft 

 

PURPOSE Present the Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable 
communities – revised consultation draft and associated 
documents in order to gain support to undertake a public 
consultation about the Guidance 

 

RECOMMENDATION That the Committee: 

1. authorises officers to make minor editorial amendments 
to the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and 
creating distinctive and sustainable communities – revised 
consultation draft for public consultation 

2. approves the Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable 
communities – revised consultation draft for public 
consultation 
 

AUTHOR Planning Policy Manager, Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint 
Planning Policy Unit  

 

  
1.       Background 
  
1.1 The Joint Planning Policy Committee made the following decision during its meeting on the 26 

April 2018: 
 

“Authorise relevant officers to commission external multidisciplinary experts to undertake a 
critical evaluation of the Guidance, specifically Section 2 of this Guidance.”  

 
1.2 This report presents: 

 
i. The report of the external specialists commissioned to undertake the critical evaluation 

(Appendix 1); 
ii. A report from the Chairman of the Communities Scrutiny Working Group and a response 

(Appendix 2); 
iii. Revised consultation draft of the Guidance, which incorporates the amendments 

required to respond to the recommendations made by the external specialists 
(Appendix 3); 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



 2 

iv. Public consultation plan in order to draw the Committee’s attention to the purpose of 
public consultation and the usual arrangements to undertake public consultation about 
guidance (Appendix 4).  
 

2. Requirements of the Critical Evaluation 
 
2.1 The brief asked the successful consultants to offer expert guidance, which would assist the 

Council to complete the final consultation draft of the Guidance in order to ensure its robustness 
to be presented to the Joint Planning Policy Committee for consultation public. 

 
2.2 In order to be able to offer that guidance, the successful consultants would need to provide 

specialist input from a competent language planner and a competent land use planning 
consultant. In doing so, the critical evaluation of the Guidance would be undertaken by a 
multidisciplinary team, within the context of land-use planning. 

 
3. The appointed experts 
 
3.1 Owain Wyn from ‘BURUM’ and Dr. Kathryn Jones from ‘Cwmni Iaith’ were appointed to undertake 

the work.  
 
3.2 Owain Wyn is the Director of the Advisory Services BURUM. BURUM has provided a planning and 

regeneration service since 1998. In terms of the land use planning element BURUM has 
undertaken work for a range of public, private and community clients including Welsh 
Government, Anglesey and Gwynedd Councils, Cynefin Group, GISDA and a number of developers 
and private clients. He has completed language impact assessment and eight community and 
linguistic statements on behalf of clients in accordance with the current Guidance on the Welsh 
language. Whilst working with Cwmni Iaith he: (i) contributed to produce a report on a 
Framework and Guidance regarding Assessing and Management of Risk and Benefits to the Welsh 
language for Major Developments and Major Infrastructure Developments, which was 
commissioned from the Welsh Government; and he is (ii)  providing expertise and expert advice 
on the Welsh language and culture in relation to Major Projects to the Isle of Anglesey County 
Council at present.  

 
3.3 Dr. Kathryn Jones is a Managing Director of Cwmni Iaith Ltd. She is linguistic sociologist, and has 

been lecturing and is responsible for modules of Sociology of language, language policy and 
planning (LPP) at the Universities of Lancaster and Bangor and the University of Wales Trinity 
Saint David. She has over twenty years’ experience of delivering and leading on LPP projects 
significant, which has influenced public policy about the Welsh language in various fields. Among 
these, she has undertaken linguistic assessments of cultural and socio-economic developments. 
As noted above, she has worked with Owain Wyn on the development of a Framework and 
Guidance regarding Assessing and Management of Risk and Benefits to the Welsh language for 
Major Developments and Major Infrastructure Developments for the Welsh Government; and is 
actively providing expertise and expert advice on the Welsh language and culture for Major 
Projects to the Isle of Anglesey County Council at present. 

 
4. The critical evaluation 
 

Page 9



 3 

4.1 The consultants were required to read the draft consultation Guidance and present comments 
about it in a concise report. In accordance with the discussion during the Joint Planning Policy 
Committee on the 26 April 2018, the requirements were as follows:  

 
i. Summarise and evaluate the advice and guidance given in section 2 (and any relevant 

Appendix) regarding the application of Policy PS 1 in the Plan during the pre-application 
and planning application stages. 

ii. Evaluate section 2 of the Guidance (and any relevant Appendix) in a balanced fashion, 
which will identify its strengths and weaknesses. It is not the purpose of the critical 
evaluation to only highlight negative aspects.  

iii. Evaluate section 2 of the Guidance (and any relevant Appendix) and evaluate its success, 
in light of its purpose, which is to provide guidance for  applying Policy PS 1 (primarily) 
to applicants (and those who advise them) who intend to submit development for 
planning permission, and those who have to make a decision about the proposed 
development. 

iv. Demonstrates that the consultant has at least asked and tackled the following 
questions: 

a  What is the aim of the Guidance? Has the objective been achieved?  

b  Planning Services are eager for applicants to be advised by a competent 
person. Is the description of a competent person sound? Is the role of 
the competent person clear?  

c  The Guidance refers the applicant and the competent person who will 
advise him/her about sources of information - are there other sources?  

ch  What is the structure of Section 2 of the Guide? Is it effective?  

d  Is the screening process described in Appendix 5 effective?  

dd  Is the methodology in Appendix 7 for undertaking an assessment that 
will lead to a Welsh Language Statement effective?  

e  Is the methodology contained in Appendix 8 for an assessment that will 
lead to the Welsh Language Impact Assessment report effective?  

f  Suggest changes when needed to improve the soundness of the 
Guidance.  

 
 
4.2 Appendix 1 to this report includes an overview report prepared by Owain Wyn and Dr. Kathryn 

Jones after they had completed their assessment of the Guidance. 
 
4.3 Their report includes 7 recommendation, which means making some changes to various parts of 

the Guidance. Broadly, the changes will mean: 
 

i. Re-structuring the Guidance into three sections instead of two, which means moving text 
out of section 2; 

ii. Re- arrangement of some paragraphs in section 2; 
iii. Including additional text and deleting some text, e.g. to explain the relationship between 

linguistic assessments and the wider family of methods to deal with uncertainty and 
assessing and managing risk, providing the national context, refer to the Welsh 
Government’s strategy;  

Page 10



 4 

iv. To broaden and strengthen the considerations and the questions posed to the applicant in 
preparing a statement; 

v. Change the order of steps in the methodology for the preparation of the Impact Assessment 
Report, re-emphasising the need for engagement and consultation activities during the pre-
application stage, and including a scoring approach for different questions.  

 
4.4 The consultants presented detailed amendments emanating from the recommendations in the 

consultation draft Guidance, using the ‘track changes’ method to do so.  
 
5. Comments from the Communities Scrutiny Working Group – Planning and the Welsh language 

(Gwynedd Council) 
 
5.1 The process of preparing the Guidance includes considering comments and recommendations 

from the Communities Scrutiny Committee and/or Communities Scrutiny Working Group – 
Planning and the Welsh language (Gwynedd Council). A copy of report about the critical 
evaluation and a copy of the revised consultation draft Guidance were sent to the Communities 
Scrutiny Working Group on the 19 October 2018. Appendix 2 contains a copy of the report from 
the Working Group. Part of the report includes a list of the main issues raised by contributors to 
the informal engagement held in June 2016. To remind this Committee, the purpose of that 
engagement was to seek the views about the two Supplementary Planning Guidance that had 
been adopted to support policies in the old development plans. A series of questions were asked 
to try to get feedback from consultees. The Working Group recommends that a response should 
be provided to those issues. The copy of the Working Group’s report in Appendix 2 gives a brief 
response to the issues/questions. 

 
5.2 The Working Group draws attention to the fact that no guidance has been sought from experts in 

the fields of research and analysis or engagement and consultation. Paragraph 1.1 above records 
the Committee's decision. It does not include the need to obtain views from external parties the 
identified matters. 

 
6. Proposed response to the Critical Evaluation 
 
6.1 It is considered that the Guidance would benefit from accepting the recommendations, and 

therefore the changes that would be required in order to implement the recommendations.  
 
6.2 The revised consultation draft Guidance included in Appendix 2 incorporates all the detailed 

changes that were shown by the consultants via ‘track changes’.  
 
7. Next steps and timetable 
 
7.1 The next table sets out the next steps and an indicative timetable for carrying out the actions. 

Actions include undertaking a public consultation on the consultation draft guidance. Public 
consultation involves applying a standard approach, similar to the statutory approach used to 
prepare local development plan. In broad terms the method is as follows: identification of specific 
and general consultees; contacting specific and general consultees; the publication of the draft 
guidance for consultation on the website and in public libraries; publishing details of the 
consultation, including details of the different ways of submitting comments. More details are 
available in the consultation plan in Appendix 4. 

Page 11



 5 

 
7.2 The final timetable will depend on factors like the number and nature of the comments received 

during the public consultation period. 
 

Table 1: next steps and an indicative timetable 
  

Date Action 
 

December 2018 – January 2019 (7 weeks’ 
period instead of the usual 6 weeks due 
to Christmas) 

Public consultation about the revised consultation draft 
Guidance 

22 March 2019  Joint Local Development Plan Panel 

4 April 2019 & 9 April 2019 Communities Scrutiny Committee (Gwynedd) & 
Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 
(Anglesey) 

May 2019 Joint Planning Policy Committee 

 
8. Recommendation 
 
8.1  That the Committee: 
 

1. authorises officers to make minor editorial amendments to the Supplementary Planning 
Guidance: Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable communities – revised 
consultation draft for public consultation 
 
2. approves the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and creating distinctive and 
sustainable communities – revised consultation draft (Appendix 3) for public consultation 

 
APPENDIX: 
 
Appendix 1: Overview report of the critical evaluation 
Appendix 2: Communities Scrutiny Working Group – Planning and the Welsh language report and a 
response 
Appendix 3: Revised Draft Consultation Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and creating 
distinctive and sustainable communities 
Appendix 4: Consultation Plan.  
 

Page 12



                                                                  
Gwasanaethau Ymgynghorol  

Owain Wyn  

Consultancy Services 

  

10A Stryd y Plas, Caernarfon, Gwynedd LL55 1RR      

Tel:  (0)1286 662906/(0)7971 288021 post@burum.cymru    www.burum.cymru 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

"SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE:  

MAINTAINING AND CREATING 
DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES DRAFT MARCH 2018 " 

  
CRITICAL EVALUATION 

 
 

 

 

October 2018 
 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



“SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES” EVALUATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

"SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE:  

MAINTAINING AND CREATING 
DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES DRAFT MARCH 2018 " 

  
CRITICAL EVALUATION 

 

 

 

 

AUTHORS 

   

Dr Kathryn Jones, BA, MA (Sociology of Language), Ph.D. (Language Policy and Planning) Iaith Cyf. 

  

Owain Wyn, B.Sc (Econ), M.Sc (Planning), MBA, MRTPI, BURUM 

    

Acknowledgment 

  

This work was commissioned by the Gwynedd and Anglesey Councils’ Joint Planning Policy 

Committee through their Joint Planning Policy Unit.   

  

The authors would like to note their thanks to the Committee and the Unit for their primary and 

innovative work drafting the draft SPG and special thanks to Mrs. Nia Haf Davies, Unit Manager, 

for her advice and support and for her comments and valuable and constructive feedback.

Page 14



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

1 

 

 

 "SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

1. The Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Planning Policy Committee has authorised the relevant 

Senior Officers on behalf of the two Authorities' Planning Services to commission external 

experts to undertake a critical evaluation of the above Supplementary Planning Guidance in 

its current draft form before It is published for public consultation. 

 

2. In short, the purpose of the work is to produce a summary report that will:  
 

“i. Summarise and evaluate the advice and guidance given in Section 2 (and any 

relevant Appendix) regarding the application of Policy PS 1 of the Plan during the pre 

and post submission of planning applications; 

ii. Analyse Section 2 of the Guidance (and any relevant Appendix) in a balanced way, 

which will identify its strengths and weaknesses. It is not the purpose of the critical 

evaluation to highlight negative attitudes only;   

iii. Look at Section 2 of the Guidance (and any relevant Appendix) and evaluate its 

success, in the light of its purpose, which is to provide guidance on the use of Policy 

PS 1 (principally) for applicants (and those who advise them) who intend to submit a 

development for planning permission and those who have to decide on the proposed 

development. 

iv. Demonstrate that the consultant has at least asked and addressed the following 
questions:  

a What is the objective of the Guidance? Has the objective been achieved? 

b. Is the description of a competent person robust? Is the role of the competent 

person clear?  

c. The Guidance refers the applicant and the competent person who will advise 

him/her as to sources of information - are there other sources?  

ch. What is the structure of Section 2 of the Guidance?  Is it effective? 

d. Is the screening given in Appendix 5 effective? 

dd. Is the methodology in Appendix 7 for undertaking an assessment that will lead 

to a Welsh Language Statement effective? 

e Is the methodology in Appendix 8 for undertaking an assessment that will lead 

to a Welsh Language Impact Assessment report effective?  

f Suggest changes when needed to improve the soundness of the Guidance”. 

Page 15



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

2 

 

 

3. An evaluation of the connection between Sections 1 and 2 of the Guidance was also 

requested at the initial meeting, to ensure it flowed effectively. 

Methodology 

4. We believe that the key question of the evaluation is whether the objectives of the draft SPG 

will be met.  In addressing this question, we considered that using a variation of the criteria 

used by planning inspectors to prove the soundness of a local development plan would be 

useful and appropriate. 

5. The criteria used to assess the soundness of a local development plan are: 

 Is the LDP consistent with other plans? 

 Is the LDP suited to the area in the face of the evidence? 

 Will the LDP achieve? 

 

6. By modifying them to an extent, we used the following key questions to guide our lines of 

enquiry and evaluation and to contextualise the more specific questions asked in the brief: 

 Is the draft SPG consistent with Policy PS1 (and national policy)? 

 Is the draft SPG suited to the objectives and purpose of Policy PS1 in the face of the 

evidence? 

 Is the draft SPG likely to be effective and possible to implement? 

7. These then provide an evaluation framework for the more specific questions: 

The Body of the Supplementary Planning Guidance 

 Does the connection between Section 1 and 2 flow effectively? 

 Is the structure of Section 2 effective? 

The Appendices 

 Is the screening procedure given in Appendix 5 effective? 

 Is the methodology in Appendix 7 for undertaking an assessment that will lead to a 

Welsh Language Statement effective? 

 Is the methodology in Appendix 8 for undertaking an assessment that will lead to a 

Welsh Language Impact Assessment report effective?   

 Is the description of a competent person robust? Is the role of the competent person 

clear?  

 Is the list of information sources complete? 

Page 16



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

3 

 

 

8. Both of us (Owain Wyn and Dr. Kathryn Jones) contributed to the work as a whole. Owain 

Wyn focussed on the body of the draft Guidance, ensuring that the advice given in the main 

document is fit for purpose and follows the requirements of the act, policies and practices of 

land use planning. Dr Kathryn Jones subsequently focussed on the relevant Appendices and 

evaluated the tools used to measure the impact of language, the definition of relevant skills 

or experience to undertake likely impact assessments, the methods of gathering evidence to 

support these, and mitigation measures. We were both involved in editing and ensuring that 

the final report complemented the brief in full, that it was legible and gave clear guidance. 

9. The detailed suggestions for the SPG have been made on the original text (the "draft SPG") 

using the ‘Track Changes’ tool to identify the recommended changes or additions.  This is to 

make it easier for the reader to identify these changes and for the translator to build on the 

original work. 

  

10. During the process, Mrs Nia Haf Davies, the project commissioner, was consulted regularly 

and we would like to thank her for her advice and support through the project. 

 

Structure and Content of the Draft CCA ("the Draft")  

11. The present Draft includes the following: 

 

 General Information about the nature, purpose and status of Supplementary Planning 

Guidance; 

 Introduction to the Draft - context, purpose and structure of the specific SPG; 

 Section 1 

a. Part A is a broad description of what is meant by distinctive and sustainable 

communities; 

b. Part B describes how certain types of sustainable development contribute to the 

maintenance and creation of distinctive and sustainable communities; 

c. Part C - issues to be considered and additional information necessary to support a 

planning application so that it may be validated; 

d. Part Ch - what can be built instead. 

 Section 2  

e. The criteria used by the Planning Authorities when assessing the evidence presented 

about the likely impact of specific proposals on the Welsh language and when 

making decisions on applications against the requirements of Policy PS1. 

 Appendices include additional information that offers context and sources of 

information that may be useful in preparing evidence. 

 

Page 17



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

4 

 

 

Context and General Comments 

Context 

12. In assessing whether the draft SPG is fit for purpose, the guidance and good practice for the 

preparation of Supplementary Planning Guidance were examined. 

13. The current Planning Policy Wales (PCC)1 describes key aspects of drawing up a Local 

Development Plan. These relate to the Local Development Plan Form and Content in Section 

2 and give the context and the reasons why Supplementary Planning Guidance is required: 

 The (LDP) should not be long, complex, ambiguous or too detailed, or a collection of 

policies to deal with all situations; 

 The plan should include policies to achieve the outcomes, support and identify site 

allocations/ development areas, define where restrictions apply and identify the general 

criteria for considering planning applications for the development and use of land and 

buildings, ideally through use generic policies rather than repetition; 

 Policies should be different to a concise rational justification, but should be supported 

by such a justification; 

 

14. Section 2.3 of the PCC gives guidance on Supplementary Planning Guidance (CCA) - when to 

use it, their status and what to include and what does not include (our highlights): 

 “2.3.1 LDPs should contain sufficient policies and proposals to provide the basis for 

deciding planning applications while avoiding excessive detail. They should not repeat 

national planning policy. Selective use of supplementary planning guidance (SPG) is a 

means of setting out more detailed thematic or site-specific guidance on the way in 

which the policies of an LDP are to be interpreted and applied in particular 

circumstances or areas. 

 

 2.3.2 The LDP should not delegate the criteria for decisions on planning applications to 

SPG which should only contain guidance and advice. Nor should SPG be used to avoid 

subjecting policies and proposals to public scrutiny and independent examination in 

accordance with statutory procedures. 

 

 2.3.3 SPG does not form part of the development plan but it must be consistent with 

the plan and   with national policy. It must derive from and be clearly cross referenced 

to a generic LDP policy, specific policies for places, and/or – in the case of a masterplan 

or site brief – a plan allocation. SPG cannot be linked to national policy alone; there 

must be an LDP policy or policy criterion that provides the development plan ‘hook’, 

                                                           
1 Welsh Government (November 2016) Planning Policy Wales 9th Edition 

Page 18



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

5 

 

 

whilst the reasoned justification provides clarification of the related national policy. 

The LDP should note which policies are supplemented by SPG. 

 

 2.3.4 Only the policies in the development plan have special status under section 38(6) 

of the 2004 Act in deciding planning applications, but SPG may be taken into account as 

a material consideration. In making decisions on matters that come before it, the 

Welsh Government and the Planning Inspectorate will give substantial weight to 

approved SPG which derives from and is consistent with the development plan, and 

has been the subject of consultation. 

 

 2.3.5 Even though SPG is non-statutory and does not require a Sustainability Appraisal 

(SA), the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Regulations may apply to some 

types of SPG – for example some site briefs/master-plans/place plans. Where screening 

indicates that SEA applies and there are likely to be significant environmental effects, 

the local planning authority will need to ensure it has met the requirements of the SEA 

Regulations.” 

 

15. In its Glossary, the Handbook on Local Development Plans2 includes a definition of CCA as: 

 

 “supporting information in relation to LDP policies. The SPG does not form part of the 

LDP and is not subject to independent examination but must be consistent with the 

National Planning and Planning Policy.” 

 

General Comments 

16. As stated later in the report, impact assessments are related to a wider family of techniques 

devised to address uncertainty and the likelihood of an incident affecting a "receptor" - 

whether it is wildlife, property, person, organisation or language.  Those techniques, like all 

other disciplines, have their own vocabulary or language. Where relevant, individual 

descriptions were amended through the draft SPG to reflect that vocabulary.    

An Assessment of the General Information presented on the nature, purpose and status of 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 

17. Overall, the General Information that includes explanation of purpose, policy context and 

status of the SPG is clear, and uses language that is fit for purpose.    

18. The Planning Act Wales 2015, within the context of the five ways of working in the Welfare 

of Future Generation Act, strengthens measures to ensure public participation in the 

                                                           
2 Welsh Government (2015) Local Development Plans Manual (Second Edition) 

Page 19



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

6 

 

 

planning system.  We therefore consider that it is appropriate for the SPG to reflect that by 

strengthening the reference to the targeted audience: 

Recommendation 1  

Adapt the description of the external target audiences (see 'Purpose' page 1) to make clear who 

the SPG is aimed at, as follows:                                                                                                                                      

assist the public  applicants and their agents in preparing the planning proposals and lead them 

in discussions with officers before submitting planning applications; 

help members of the public and other interested stakeholders to understand the requirements 

and expectations of the relevant policy and help them to make meaningful comments and input 

into the decision-making process. 

Section 1  

19. This Section contains the following four sections. 

 Part A is a broad description of what is meant by distinctive and sustainable 

communities; 

 Part B describes how certain types of sustainable development contribute to the 

maintenance and creation of distinctive and sustainable communities; 

 Part C - issues to be considered and additional information necessary to support a 

planning application so that it may be validated; 

 Part Ch - what can be built instead. 

20. Although the content of the four parts individually is clear, the purpose of the narrative is 

broadly split into two.  Sections A and B describe the principles, purpose and requirements 

of Policies PS5 and PS6 and the relationship of wider sustainable development to the main 

focus of the Guidance, which is to explain the requirements of PS1. Parts C and Ch are then 

more of a guidance for the target audiences (predominantly applicants and other 

stakeholders) on how to take these wider sustainable development requirements into 

account when preparing and responding to pre-application consultations and planning 

applications that are relevant to Policy PS1. 

 

21. Other stakeholders (for example, candidates or their agents and those who assess and make 

decisions) on other planning applications (i.e. the vast majority of planning applications) will 

not be likely to seek guidance regarding this specific SPG.  They will not, therefore, be likely 

to turn to this specific Guidance for the guidance given in Parts C and Ch.   

 

22. As the main purpose of the SPG is to give guidance on PS1, we recommend that it would be 

more logical in terms of document flow to create a new Section 3, and move Parts C and Ch 

there. 

Page 20



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

7 

 

 

23. This will also help ensure that the connection between Section 2 and the content of Section 

1 and Section 3 (the new "Ch" and "D" Parts) flows effectively. 

Recommendation 2 

Amend the structure of the SPG into three sections and modify the Introduction (page 4) 

as follows: 

SECTION 1 (Parts A- B) - what is meant by distinctive and sustainable communities and how 
certain types of development can contribute to maintaining or creating distinctive and 
sustainable communities 
 
SECTION 2 (Part C) – how to use Policy PS 1 The Welsh language and the Welsh culture and 
present evidence to support the development: 
 
SECTION 3 (Parts CH and D) - explain to the candidate how to present evidence in favour of 
the development against the wider requirements of sustainable development and to better 
understand the sustainable merits of different types of development. 
 

 

Section 2  

24. Section 2 begins by describing the legislative and policy context, outlining the previous 

experiences of carrying out effective assessments of the likely impact on the Welsh language 

and culture and the difficulties experienced in doing so.   It then goes on to describe the 

issues to be considered when carrying out an assessment and when a Language Statement 

needs to be made, and when to make a Language Assessment. 

 

25. This content is generally acceptable in scope, as far as it goes. However, in our opinion, it 

would benefit from the following changes. 

26. Firstly, it would benefit from the inclusion of a narrative that explains how language 

assessments belong to a wider family of methods of dealing with uncertainty and risk 

assessment and management.   

27. The International Organisation for Standardisation is a worldwide federation of standards 

organisations. The ISO adopted ISO 31000 in 20093 which lays down principles and guidance 

on how to carry out exercises to identify and regulate risk. The Introduction to the ISO guide 

includes the following description: 

                                                           
3 ISO (2009)  ISO 31000:2009(en) Risk management — Principles and guidelines 

 

Page 21



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

8 

 

 

“Organizations of all types and sizes face internal and external factors and influences 
that make it uncertain whether and when they will achieve their objectives. The 
effect this uncertainty has on an organization's objectives is “risk”. 
 
All activities of an organization involve risk. Organizations manage risk by identifying 
it, analysing it and then evaluating whether the risk should be modified by risk 
treatment in order to satisfy their risk criteria. Throughout this process, they 
communicate and consult with stakeholders and monitor and review the risk and the 
controls that are modifying the risk in order to ensure that no further risk treatment 
is required. This International Standard describes this systematic and logical process 
in detail. 
 
While all organizations manage risk to some degree, this International Standard 
establishes a number of principles that need to be satisfied to make risk 
management effective. This International Standard recommends that organizations 
develop, implement and continuously improve a framework whose purpose is to 
integrate the process for managing risk into the organization's overall governance, 
strategy and planning, management, reporting processes, policies, values and 
culture. 
 
Risk management can be applied to an entire organization, at its many areas and 
levels, at any time, as well as to specific functions, projects and activities.”4 

   

28. While the ISO guidance is primarily aimed at organisations, we believe the same principles 

and guidance are relevant to identifying and managing environmental, economic, social and 

cultural risk. It therefore includes likely impact assessments on language as well as 

identifying and managing risk to a business or organisation. 

 

Recommendation 3 

Include text in Section 2 (see page 13) to explain the principles, frameworks and 

assessment processes of likely effects to recognise the relationship and context of likely 

impact assessments on language for the wider family of impact assessments. 

 

29. Secondly, although the narrative explains when to use a Language Statement and when to 

use a Language Assessment, it does not define what is different in both tools.   

30. In our view, the main difference is not the result of the identification, assessment and risk-

handling process (this is broadly similar) but is derived from the planning status of the 

proposed proposal or development.   

                                                           
4 Op. Cit. 

Page 22



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

9 

 

 

31. Criterion 2 of Policy PS1 describes proposed "major" developments that are subject to a 

statutory pre-application consultation procedure under the requirements of the Planning 

Act 2015.  Before submitting a planning application for major development, the applicant is 

required under the Development Control Procedure (Wales) Order to: 

 

 Publish the draft application; 

 Consult with the community and specialist consultants; 

 Write a report on the pre-application consultation made.5 

32. As a minimum, the Procedure defines the "community" and " specialist consultants" 

requirements. However, Development Control Manual6 encourages “candidates to consider 

publicity and broader notices so that the candidate can promote the development and 

respond to public concerns”.   

33. In our view, although it is not a statutory requirement, it is reasonable and proper for the 

councils to give strong leadership and expectation for candidates to make assessments as 

part of the Pre-Application process.    

34. Following this method of preparing a Language Impact Assessment would also be consistent 

with the third principle of the ISO, namely: 

“activities to communicate and consult with stakeholders throughout the process”. 

35. Thirdly, in terms of the issues to be considered, we believe it is important for the reader to 

be aware of the thrust of public policy, nationally and locally, in terms of increasing the 

number who can speak and use Welsh.  

36. The Welsh Government has an ambition to ensure a million people speak and use Welsh by 

2050 and it expects everyone to play their part in realising this ambition.  The Government 

has also announced projections and trajectories of one possible way to reach the target by 

20507. 

37. Although these trajectories are only available for Wales as a whole, in due course more 

detailed projections will probably be available to identify the contribution of each county 

towards the effort.   

                                                           
5 Welsh Government (2016) Town and Country Planning (Development Control Procedure) (Wales) 
(Amendment) Order 2016 

6 Welsh Government (2016) Development Control Handbook, section 6.4.24 
7 Welsh Government (2018 ) Technical report: The projection and trajectory of the number of Welsh speakers aged three 

and over, 2011-2050 

Page 23



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

10 

 

 

38. Both Councils also have measures within their Language Strategies to increase the number 
of speakers within the two Counties, and they recognise the role that developments in the 
fields of employment and accommodation can play to achieve those targets. 

39. It is likely that these targets will feed into reviews of the Joint Local Development Plan and 
become a target or baseline for the plan to aim for.  

40. Therefore, it would be reasonable to expect developers to respond to these challenges 

positively by identifying how they could contribute to meeting these targets, and that the 

SPG highlights this. 

Recommendation 4   
 
Amend the content of Section 2 to include the following:  

 amend the associated diagrams (Diagrams 3,4 and 5) to reflect that. (See page 14 
onwards); 

 amend text to explain Stage 2 (Preparation of Statement, Assessment or Supporting 
Evidence) (see page 17); 

 amend the 'Issues to Consider' section to include guidance on strategies in relation to the 
Welsh language (see page 18); 

 Include a sentence or paragraph to explain the contents of Diagrams 8 and 9 (see page 25 
onwards).  

 

 

Section 3 (New)  
 

41. Finally, sections Ch and D tailor the guidance given in the Draft SPG to what is relevant to 

different types of development and in different places. Due to the nature of the text, the 

tables and the description given in these two sections are fairly broad and complex. As such, 

it is easy for the applicant and other stakeholders to become confused when considering 

what is relevant and useful to the proposed development in question. In our view, the 

Section would benefit from a simple table that summarises and identifies which parts of the 

Section are relevant. 

 

Recommendation 5 
 
Add (Table 5) which summarises the guidance and sets out clearly which parts of the information 
is relevant or not to a different type of development. (see page 42) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

11 

 

 

The Appendices 
 

42. Minor additions and or amendments are suggested for Appendices 1,2, 3 and 5. No 
suggestions were made for any changes to Appendix 4.   The main recommendations relate 
to appendices 6, 7 and 8. 

 
Appendix 6 Possible mitigation and improvement measures - Welsh language 

43. A number of suggestions have been made to strengthen mitigation and enhancement 
activities by tailoring those activities to what is appropriate and acceptable according to the 
type and scale of the development (see Appendix 6) 

 
Appendix 7 Methodology for preparing a Statement 
 
44. A number of suggestions have been made to expand and strengthen the consideration and 

questions that the applicant is asked to consider when preparing the statement.   This 
includes a description of a Framework or Risk/Benefits Matrix for them to consider using to 
evaluate the likely effects on the resilience of the Welsh language. (see Appendix 7) 

 
Appendix 8 Methodology for preparing an Impact Assessment Report 
 
45. As engagement and consultation activities are a key part of preparing an Impact Assessment 

Report, we suggest that the need for this should be reinforced in the more detailed advice. 
We include the description of the Framework or Risk Matrix mentioned in paragraph 43 
above, and asking the candidate to score different questions according to the perception of 
the pre-application consultation process. 
 

46. We consider it appropriate to ask the applicant to give priority first to consider the likely 
impact the development will have on the resilience of the Welsh language before expanding 
the consideration to include wider sustainability aspects. We therefore recommend that 
Parts 1 and 2 of the process be changed to that effect. (see Appendix 8) 

 

Recommendation 6 
 
Adopt the suggested changes to the Appendices in paragraphs 42 to 46 and in the text to the 
relevant appendices. 
 

 

General 

47. As there are a number of diagrams, figures tables and a map in the document, it is suggested 

that the numbering of the pages and the addition of a Contents page would help the reader 

to navigate the SPG. 

 

Page 25



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

12 

 

 

Recommendation 7  
 
Number the pages within the SPG and include a Contents Page at the beginning of the document. 
 

 
Summary of Findings 
 

48. We were asked to evaluate whether the Guidance would be likely to meet its purposes and 
provide guidance to those stakeholders involved in the preparation, assessment and 
determination of relevant planning applications.  
 

49. Our findings have identified several strengths in the original draft. We also identified areas 
where we believe that it would be possible to strengthen its fitness for purpose. 
 

50. We therefore offer seven recommendations and suggestions for modifications to the 
structure and content of the draft comments to try to address this.   

 
 
 
The Recommendations 
 
 

Recommendation 1  

Adapt the description of the external target audiences to make clear who the SPG is aimed at, 

as follows:                                                                                                                                      

assist the public candidates and their agents in preparing the planning proposals and lead 

them in discussions with officers before submitting planning applications; 

help members of the public and other interested stakeholders to understand the requirements 

and expectations of the relevant policy and help them to make meaningful comments and 

input into the decision-making process. 

Recommendation 2 

Amend the structure of the SPG into three sections and modify the Introduction (page 4) as 

follows: 

SECTION 1 (Parts A- B) - what is meant by distinctive and sustainable communities and how 

certain types of development can contribute to maintaining or creating distinctive and 

sustainable communities  

SECTION 2 (Part C) - how to use Policy PS 1 The Welsh language and the Welsh culture and 

present evidence to support the development: 

Page 26



"SPG: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES" DRAFT 

MARCH 2018 - EVALUATION 

 

13 

 

 

SECTION 3 (Parts CH and D) - explain to the candidate how to present evidence in favour of the 

development against the wider requirements of sustainable development and to better 

understand the sustainable merits of different types of development. 

Recommendation 3 

Include text in Section 2 to explain the principles, frameworks and assessment processes of 

likely effects to recognise the relationship and context of likely impact assessments on 

language for the wider family of impact assessments. 

Recommendation 4   
 
Amend the content of Section 2 to include the following:  

 amend the associated diagrams (Diagrams 3,4 and 5) to reflect that. (See page 14 
onwards); 

 amend text to explain Stage 2 (Preparation of Statement, Assessment or Supporting 
Evidence) (see page 17); 

 amend the 'Issues to Consider' section to include guidance on strategies in relation to the 
Welsh language (see page 18); 

 Include a sentence or paragraph to explain the contents of Diagrams 8 and 9 (see page 25 
onwards).  

 
 
Recommendation 5   
 
Add (Table 5) which summarises the guidance and simply sets out which parts of the 

information is relevant or not to a different type of development. 

Recommendation 6  
 
Adopt the suggested changes to the Appendices in paragraphs 41 to 45 and in the text to the 
relevant appendices. 
 

Recommendation 7  
 

Number the pages within the SPG and include a Contents Page at the beginning of the 

document. 

 
 
 
Owain Wyn, BURUM Consultancy Services  
Dr. Kathryn Jones, Iaith Cyf. 
 
October 2018 

Page 27



ITEM 5 APPENDIX 2  

Meeting Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Planning Policy Committee 

  

Date 16 November 2018 

  

Subject 
  

Gwynedd Council Scrutiny Enquiry Working Group Report -  
Planning and the Welsh Language 

  

  

 It is noted that you have received a critical appraisal from linguistic planning specialists dealing with major developments. 

 It is noted that you have not received guidance from experts in the fields of research and analysis or engagement and consultation. 

 Members of the Working Group wish to draw your attention once again to the recommendations that were presented to you in 

March 2018. We still believe they are purposeful and need to be addressed by you. 

 By now, you are probably in a better position to answer the questions raised by members of the public following your Engagement 

work in 2016. 

 The Working Group presented a Summary to the Joint Planning Panel in March 2018 of the responses from the 2016 Engagement to 

assist you (copy enclosed - Appendix 1). 

 Members of the Working Group strongly suggest that Members of the Joint Planning Policy Committee take account of the following 

main issues raised by Participants to the Engagement held in June 2016 and which you considered in March 2018 to reassure 

yourselves that you have fully addressed these issues before starting a further Consultation with the public.  

 It is recommended that you answer the questions in columns C and CH concisely and clearly.  

  

  

National Principles for Public Engagement in Wales 

  

Principle 9 - People are informed of the impact of their contribution 

  

Timely feedback is given to all the participants about their views and the discussions and actions that have been taken as a result, the 

method and form of feedback should take into account the preferences of the participants. 

P
age 28



A B C CH 

  Issue that needs to be addressed 
  

How is it addressed in the revised 
SPG or if it is not addressed, a 
brief explanation why? 

Specific pages and points in the 
SPG (e.g. paragraph number) 
  

  Does the current SPG address the priorities for the Welsh 
language in terms of the use of land or buildings? If not, what 
alternative issues do you suggest? 

    

1 Strengthening the Priorities in terms of protecting the Welsh 
language 
  

 The role of SPGs is to provide 
advice to expand on policies in 
the Local Development Plan, in 
order to assist in the Plan’s 
implementation. Policy PS 5 
(criterion 4) and Policy PS 1 set 
out the need for new 
development to contribute to 
safeguarding, supporting and 
promoting the use of Welsh.  

The SPG as a whole, and in 
particular section 2 

2 Please indicate if the SPG is a suitable tool to do this or not. 
  

 See response to 1 above  The SPG as a whole, and in 
particular section 2 

3 How the SPG protects Welsh-speaking communities 
  

 See response to 1 above. The 
process of preparing the Plan and 
its policies has ensured that the 
effect on the Welsh language has 
been appropriately considered, 
and that the Plan, via a variety of 
policies (including Policy PS 5 and 
Policy PS 1) provide the 
framework to safeguard and 
promote the language. 

The SPG as a whole, and in 
particular section 2 

  Does the current SPG address issues that should not be 
included within the SPG? If so, please provide details of these 
issues. 

    

4 There is a need to distinguish between industrial and 
residential developments and small and large developments 

 The methodology for 
undertaking an assessment to be 

 Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

P
age 29



submitted either as a Welsh 
Language Statement and a report 
about a Welsh Language Impact 
assessment identifies the factors 
linked to a variety of 
developments that reach the 
thresholds set in Policy PS 1, 
which will require consideration  

5 The current SPG is not effective in considering impact on the 
Welsh language 

 Disagree with this statement 
within the context of the revised 
SPG 

The SPG as a whole, and in 
particular section 2 

6 Is the current SPG clear enough about what type of 
development will need to have Welsh language information? 

    

7 The current guidance is vague   Disagree with this statement 
within the context of the revised 
SPG 

 The SPG as a whole, and in 
particular section 2 

8 The thresholds are open-ended and need to identify types of 
developments that should be subject to assessment. 

 Criteria 1 and 2 of Policy PS 1, 
not the Guidance, provide the 
thresholds for identifying what 
type of development requires an 
assessment. The Guidance 
provides advice to expand on 
these thresholds. 

 Diagram 5 

        

  The SPG contains a number of questions to assist applicants 
to present a Linguistic and Community Statement. Are the 
questions clear enough? Should additional questions be 
asked? If you think there is a need to change, please suggest 
how the questions can be changed and/or what type of 
questions need to be asked? 

   

9 Include an example of a positive and negative Language 
Assessment and Language Statement.  
  

 No it doesn’t. The circumstances 
relating to individual 
developments will differ. The 
provision of examples would not 

Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

P
age 30



add value. The Guidance focuses 
on providing clear methodologies 
to undertake the assessments. 

10 Identify clearly the significance of a negative Assessment or 
Statement. 
  

 It does Diagram 11 
Criterion 3 in Policy PS 1 

11 Include examples of how development can achieve the 
following for the Welsh language:  
Safeguarding, Promoting, Strengthening 
  

No it doesn’t. The Guidance 
focuses on providing clear 
methodologies to undertake the 
assessments, which identify the 
factors that will be important to 
consider in order to safeguard, 
promote or strengthen. The 
Guidance also identifies possible 
mitigation and enhancement 
measures. 

 Appendix 6, Appendix 7, 
Appendix 8 

12 Please indicate where the revised SPG asks questions about 
definite relevant facts 
  

 It does  Appendix 5, Appendix 7, 
Appendix 8 

13 That the Applicant be expected to submit an Assessment 
designed and evaluated by independent language planning 
specialists. 
  

 It does Diagram 6, Diagram 7, Diagram 
9, Appendix 7, Appendix 8 

14 It is the Applicant's responsibility to fund this and it is the 
Council’s responsibility to organise it. 
  

 It does Diagram 11 

15 Where has the revised SPG reduced and/or combined 
questions? 

 The Guidance provides new 
methodologies 

Appendix 7, Appendix 8 

16 Is the development likely to lead to an increase or decrease in 
the population that could affect the balance of Welsh / English 
speakers positively or negatively? 

  
  
 It will not be possible for 
assessments to give an absolute 
answer to the questions listed in 

  
  
  
 Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 
  

17 Could the development lead to an absolute or proportional 
reduction in the number of Welsh speakers? 

P
age 31



18 How could the development affect the use of the Welsh 
language in the community? 

rows 16 – 46. It is important to 
remember that even with 
comprehensive information it 
would not be easy to measure 
the positive and negative impact 
because the planning system can 
not predict or manage personal 
qualities (such as the ability to 
speak Welsh in the future or the 
dynamics of the use thereof). The 
system also cannot discriminate 
on the basis of linguistic ability of 
applicants for planning 
permission or linguistic ability of 
individuals that will occupy or use 
properties. It is noted also that 
some of the questions derive 
from the methodology used in 
the current guidance. There is the 
preparation of the new Guidance 
does not propose to replicate 
them as our understanding of the 
field in a more mature and we 
have learnt from the experiences 
of checking past assessments. 
The revised Guidance focuses on 
identification methodology and 
scoring matrix to carry out 
assessments will identify the 
considerations which will help to 
identify who will be affected 
(positive and negative) by the 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

19 Is the development likely to result in an increase in inward or 
outward migration? 

20 How will this affect the number of Welsh speakers? 

21 Would any change be permanent or temporary? 

22 Is the Development likely to lead to a change in age structure 
in the community area? 

23 Is Development likely to have an impact on the quality of life 
of local people? 

24 Could the Development have an impact on the health and 
amenities of the community? 

25 Could it increase the risk of crime or violence in the 
community? 

26 Is the Development likely to have a detrimental impact on 
local businesses and local jobs? 

27 Is there any potential that the development could lead to the 
closure of local Welsh speaking businesses 

28 Could the development create or threaten local jobs? 

29 Is the Development likely to lead to greater economic diversity 
in the community (or wider area)? 

30 Is there potential for the development to increase the 
migration of non-Welsh speakers due to economic diversity? 

31 Is the development likely to have an impact on wages/ pay 
levels and/or house prices? 

32 Could the development increase / reduce salary levels due to 
increased competition? 

33 Could the development force local Welsh speakers to leave 
the community because of housing prices, or prevent them 
from returning? 

34 Is the Development likely to have an impact on local 
construction and service provision? 

P
age 32



35 Could the Development threaten or safeguard local Welsh-
medium schools and/or healthcare facilities? 

development, what type of 
change is likely, how likely is the 
change, the degree of risk, what 
can be done to deal to change 
the likelihood and risk – by either 
embedding mitigation measures 
in the development or by 
managing the development via a 
planning condition or a Section 
106 agreement, and by drawing 
attention to measure that the 
applicant can use voluntarily. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   
  

36 Could the Development threaten or protect shops, post 
offices, banks, local pubs in Welsh-speaking communities? 

37 Is there a potential for the Development to lead to social 
tension, serious conflicts or divisions within the Welsh-
speaking community? 

38 Could the Development have a significant disproportionate 
impact on different parts of the community? 

39 Could it undermine the traditional values of specific parts of 
the community? 

40 Is there any potential that the Development will lead to 
changes in Welsh traditions and culture? 

41 Could the development force local members of local voluntary 
groups/ activities/ youth out of the area due to unemployment 
/ high house prices? 

42 Whether the Development is likely to have an impact on the 
use of the Welsh language in the community for the following 
reasons: 

43 Welsh speakers form a smaller proportion of the population? 

44 Language change in specific social networks? 

45 Lack of Welsh-medium services as a result of the development 
- Education, Childcare etc.,  

46 Is Development likely to increase the use of Welsh in the 
community? 

        

  Is the current SPG clear enough about obtaining input from 
local language initiatives and language planners to assist 
applicants to formulate the proposal that will be the subject 
of a planning application? 

    

47 Please explain clearly the input of Mentrau Iaith and Language 
Planning Specialists. 

 The Guidance states that the 
competent individual’s role will 
be to apply the methodology and 

Diagram 6 and Diagram 7, 
Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

P
age 33



advise the applicant. When the 
competent person engages with 
the Menter Iaith it can provide 
information that the competent 
person requires to complete the 
assessment. 

48 It should not be a matter of supporting the applicant, but an 
issue of evaluating the situation. 

 The Guidance states that the 
competent person’s role will be 
to apply the methodology and 
advise the applicant. 

 Diagram 6 and Diagram 7, 
Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

49 Will you explain clearly what is a 'local language initiative'?  The Guidance doesn’t refer to 
local language enterprises 

Not relevant 

50 Does Hunaniaith have sufficient resources and expertise? This isn’t a matter for the 
Guidance 

Not relevant 

51 Developers need to be encouraged to hold discussions with 
local language organisations / initiatives. 

It does Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

52 Use measures and develop new ones to evaluate the position 
of Welsh as a living community language. 

 It does  Appendix 2, Appendix 7 and 
Appendix 8 

53 Strong central guidance needs to be produced.  It does  The SPG as a whole, and in 
particular section 2 

        

  Is the current SPG clear enough about what type of planning 
conditions or planning commitments can be made to ensure 
appropriate mitigation measures, compensation, and/or 
improvement measures related to development proposals to 
maintain or strengthen the Welsh language, and how the 
Councils can proceed to get planning conditions or 
commitments? 

    

54 The new SPG should provide examples of suitable mitigation 
and/or strengthening measures for different types of 
development. 

 It does Appendix 6 

55 The new SPG should include examples of standard conditions / 
planning implications. 

It does Appendix 6  

56 There is a real need for stronger measures It does Appendix 6  

P
age 34



57 Examples of various types of development should be included.  Not relevant Not relevant 

58 Planning conditions for residential development should 
include a condition for a gradual development over five years. 

It does Appendix 6  

59 There should be strong central guidance. It does Appendix 6  

        

  Do you have any other comments about the content of the 
current SPG? 

    

60 The scoring system needs to be improved. It does Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

61 The guidance should consider wider areas than just the village 
or town where the Development takes place, up to Arfon level, 
Meirion, Dwyfor. 

It does Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

62 This should be in the context of what has happened in that 
(wide) area within the last 5 years at least. 

It does Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

63 The conditions regarding use of the Welsh language on signs 
and so on should be strengthened; and also prevent the 
changing of old Welsh names into English. 

 Criterion 4 of Policy PS 1 sets out 
requirements for Bilingual 
Signage Scheme. Criterion 5 of 
Policy PS 1 encourages the use of 
Welsh names on properties and 
streets, although setting names 
for property and streets is not a 
land use planning issue. The role 
of the CCA is to provide guidance 
to expand on policies in the local 
development plan, to assist in the 
implementation of the Plan. 

 C.29 and C.30 

64 Consideration should be given to who fills the gap (empty 
house) as Welsh-speaking local people buy new houses. 

 It does Stage 8 

65 The key importance of Gwynedd as the main Welsh language 
stronghold should be identified at the beginning of the new 
SPG and the need for specific policies to protect its unique 
features and to ensure a sustainable future for the language. 

 It does  Table 2 Section 2 

66 The objectives of relevant strategies to strengthen the 
language should be noted in the new SPG, including: 

 It does 
  

  
 C.18 – C.24 

P
age 35



67 Gwynedd Language Strategy 2014-2017 which aims to achieve 
a 5% increase in the percentage of population able to speak 
Welsh by 2021. 

  
  
  

  
  
  

68 The Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan 
which aims to increase the number of communities with 70% 
of their population able to speak Welsh. 

69 The Welsh Government which aims to increase the number of 
Welsh speakers by a million by 2050 

70 Technical Advice Note 20 based on the language provisions of 
the Planning (Wales) Act 2015 

71 The need for each proposed development to be evaluated 
according to its compatibility with the above objectives. It 
should be ensured therefore that all the developments in 
question either contribute positively to the realisation of the 
objectives or, at least, that it would not in any way obstruct 
the efforts to achieve them. 

As far as it is possible to do so 
within the remit of the planning 
system, applying the 
methodologies provided to 
undertake the assessments will 
provide a means to come to a 
conclusion about the effects of 
development that reach the 
thresholds set out in Policy PS 1 
on the Welsh language in 
communities. 

 Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

72 In terms of the specific questions on the form, we cannot, in 
our opinion, respond meaningfully to them in the review of 
the current Supplementary Planning Guidance - Planning and 
the Welsh language, without knowing the extent to which the 
guidance has succeeded since it became operational in 2009. 

 This isn’t a matter for the revised 
Guidance 

Not relevant 

73 Before proceeding, a linguistic assessment of the 
developments from 2009 to date should be carried out, to 
determine if the current version of the guidance has 
contributed to safeguarding, promoting and reinforcing the 
Welsh language. 

 This isn’t a matter for the revised 
Guidance 

Not relevant 

74 Stop using Community and Linguistic Statement, and require 
developers to provide a Linguistic Impact Assessment in the 
cases where a Statement is required at present. 

 An SPG’s role is to provide 
guidance to expand on policies in 
the Local Development Plan, in 

Not relevant 

P
age 36



order to assist in its 
implementation. Policy PS 1 sets 
out the need to undertake 
assessments and to submit them 
either as a Welsh Language 
Statement or a report about the 
Welsh Language Impact 
Assessment. 

75 Make it a requirement for a Linguistic Impact Assessment to 
be produced by those with knowledge and understanding of 
the field. 

It does Diagram 6, Diagram 7, Diagram 
9, Appendix 7 and Appendix 8 

76 Make it a requirement for the Planning Authority to ensure 
that the Linguistic Impact Assessment is evaluated by those 
with knowledge and understanding of the field. 

 It does Diagram 11 

77 That consultation with community councils, language 
initiatives and language organizations is a key part of a 
Linguistic Impact Assessment. 

 It does Diagram 4, appendix 7 and 
Appendix 8 

  

1 
  

P
age 37



Appendix 1 Planning and the Welsh Language - June 2016 Engagement - Summary 

  Contributor Comments Summary of the Panel 1 February 2018 Summary of the Working Group 13 
March 2018 

1 Does the current SPG address the priorities 
for the Welsh language in terms of the use of 
land or buildings? If not, what other issues do 
you suggest? 
  

It was suggested that the guidance 
should reflect the priorities for the Welsh 
language presented in national and local 
Welsh language strategies. In particular, 
the six key areas - family, children and 
young people, the community, 
workplace, Welsh language services and 

infrastructure should be considered. It 
was suggested that sensitive areas 
should be identified in accordance with 
the guidance set out in the prevailing 
and revised TAN 20 

The need to strengthen the priorities in 
terms of protecting the Welsh language 
was noted, together with concerns that 
the Guidance was an inappropriate tool 
to achieve this. 
  
  
  
  

1a I take it that there is priority for Welsh because 
this is a guidance for the Welsh language? 

1b Yes, but there is a real need to strengthen any 
priorities that protect the Welsh language 

1c Yes. 

1ch As the Welsh language is in a Guidance, and 
not in a Policy, the language will only be a 
consideration. It will be marginal only for 
developments, and less important than bats 
and similar. If the language was considered a 
priority, it would be the forefront i.e. the MAIN 
ISSUE. 

1d Not sure 

  

  Contributor Comments Summary 1 February 2018 Suggestion for an Alternative Summary 

2 Does the current SPG address issues that 
should not be included within the SPG? If so, 
please provide details of these issues. 
  

The majority of respondents considered 
that the guidance should distinguish 
between the types of development and 
that questions should be formed 
accordingly. 

The need to distinguish between 
industrial and residential developments 
was noted; and small and large 
developments. 

 
Concern was noted that the current SPG 
was not effective in considering impact 
on the Welsh language. 

2a It may be an idea to distinguish between some 
types of development and treat them a little 
differently - e.g. The set of questions (see 
below) for industrial development (something 

P
age 38



that would create jobs) should be different to 
questions about a housing estate, for example 

  
  
  
  
  

2b No, as far as can be seen 

2c Yes. 

2ch It is difficult for this Guidance, which deals with 
all types of land use, to apply to all types of 
development. Consideration should be given 
to having one for residential developments, 
and another for all other types of development 
but divided into two parts - large and small 
developments. 

2d Not necessarily - in the past there has been a 
naive reluctance to keep planning as if it did 
not have anything to do with language etc. 

  

  Contributor Comments Summary 1 February 2018 Suggestion for an Alternative Summary 

3 Is the current SPG clear enough about what 
type of developments will need to have 
Welsh language information?  

On the whole, respondents agreed that 
the current guidance is vague and does 
not give developers clarity about what 
developments need to have a Welsh 

Language Impact Assessment. The 
thresholds were considered to be open-
ended and that it was necessary to 
identify the types of developments that 
should be subject to assessment. 

Respondents, on the whole, agreed that 
the current guidance is vague and does 
not give developers clarity about what 
developments need a Welsh Language 
Impact Assessment. The thresholds were 
considered to be open-ended and that it 
was necessary to identify the types of 
developments that should be subject to 
assessment. 
  
There is no meaningful linguistic 
planning context for the Guidance or 
clear and useful details. 

3a The current SPG does not clearly indicate what 
developments require a Welsh Language 
Impact Assessment that needs to be submitted 
as part of an application, in particular the 
thresholds in relation to 'Developments / 
Other Schemes'. The thresholds are open-
ended and do not give clarity to developers at 
an early stage. The new SPG should provide 
clear thresholds about which developments 
need to include a Welsh Language Statement 
and a Welsh Language Impact Assessment, 
reflecting the approach that individual 
planning applications should include a Welsh 

P
age 39



Language Impact Assessment within national 
planning policy guidance. 

3b There is a need to change, and be clearer and 
unambiguous (as I indicated in the answer 
above) 

3c Yes, after the additions 

3ch Yes 

3d The Guidance is very vague at the moment. In 
paragraph A, the first paragraph under 
'Community and Linguistic Statement', it is 
stated '... for the types of development listed 
in paragraph 17'. Turning back to paragraph 
17, there is no list in this paragraph. As it is, 
the direction is misleading and flawed. The 
developments in question need to be listed 
simply and unambiguously. 

3dd The sociological journey of the language needs 
to be understood (see census data) and show 
how the visible trends are slowed down/ 
suspended by implementing the plan. This 
does not appear to happen – there is a 
tendency to just move on as if there was no 
problem/ hope for the best. 

  

  Contributor Comments Summary 1 February 2018 Suggestion for an Alternative Summary 

4 The SPG contains a number of questions to 
assist applicants to present a Linguistic and 
Community Statement. Are the questions 
clear enough? Should additional questions be 
asked? If you think there is a need to change, 
please suggest how the questions can be 
changed and/or what type of questions need 
to be asked? 

Two respondents felt that the questions 
in the current guidance were clear 
enough. 
  
Others noted that the guidance, as it 
was, was too simplistic and therefore 
applicants answered questions without 
sufficient evidence. 

Two respondents felt that the questions 
in the current guidance were clear 
enough. 
  
The rest felt that the questions were not 
clear enough and as required, offered 
suggestions:  
  

P
age 40



4a If the SPG being developed is going to include 
questions to assist the applicants to undertake 
a Welsh Language Statement, the questions 
should be reviewed to reflect the latest 
priorities in terms of the Welsh language as 
set out in relevant national and local 
strategies referred to in our answer to 
question 1. 
  
The questions should also be more specific in 
terms of requesting details of how the 
development will seek to safeguard, promote 
and strengthen the Welsh language and 
culture. 
  
The Guidance should also make it clear that 
not every development needs to respond to 
each question, only those that apply to the 
proposal. 
  
When considering tourism developments, it 
may be appropriate to include an element 
that encourages the assessor to identify ways 
in which the tourist developments use the 
area's heritage and culture. 

  
Questions should be specific when 
asking for details of how development 
will proceed to protect the language. 
  
It was also noted that some of the 
questions did not apply to all types of 
development and that assessments 
should be carried out independently and 
not by the applicant, in order to ensure 
transparency. 

The questions need to reflect the latest 
priorities locally and nationally in terms of 
the Welsh language. 
  
Questions should ask how the 
development will secure the following for 
the Welsh language: 

 
- Safeguarding 
- Promotion 
- Strengthening 

  
It should be noted clearly if a statement 
needs to be made for the development or 
not. 
  
Clear guidance should be given in terms 
of tourism developments. 
  
The questions are too simplistic resulting 
in superficial solutions without sound 
evidence. 
  
The applicant or his/her agent should not 
compile the assessment. The assessment 
should be drawn up by independent 
language planning experts. This should be 
funded by the applicant and organised by 
the Council. 
  
  
  
  

4b The questions used are simplistic and lead the 
applicant to say yes or no as a matter of 
opinion - with little evidence as a basis for the 
answers. 
  
It is not reasonable for the applicant to make 
the assessment in the first place. Language 
planning specialists should be involved in the 
process and not lay people. 

P
age 41



  
The questions should be asking for relevant 
definite facts. Need more discussion on this. 

4c The questions are sufficiently clear and 
sufficient. 

4ch Yes 

4d The Statement should not be made by the 
applicant. Instead the Statement should be 
made by an independent and competent 
person who is a recognised specialist in 
language planning for each application. 

4dd Applicants for housing developments are not 
linguistic experts. And if such applicants want 
to achieve their aim, then they will find the 
desired answer. Applicants should pay for the 
Council to have an independent person to 
evaluate. 

    

    

  

  Contributor Comments Summary 1 February 2018 Suggestion for an Alternative Summary 

5 Undertaking a Linguistic Impact Assessment 
means editing a number of questions. Are the 
questions clear enough? Should additional 
questions be asked? Should questions be 
removed? If you think there is a need to 
change, will you explain your point of view 
and suggest how questions can be changed 
and/or what sort of questions need to be 
asked? 

In general, it was agreed that the 
assessment questions in the guidance 
were too simplistic and did not apply to 
all types of development. Consideration 
should be given to streamlining the 
process by reducing the overall number 
of questions and attempting to combine 
some existing questions, where 
appropriate. 

Two respondents felt that the questions 
in the current guidance were clear 
enough. 
  
Three respondents thought that the 
questions were too superficial and 
simplistic. 
  
Three respondents considered that there 
was a lack of credibility to the 
Assessment as the applicant or his/her 

5a The current SPG provides 18 questions. Not all 
questions apply to all types of development and 

P
age 42



this makes the assessment process laborious, 
unnecessary and not user friendly. 
  
Consideration should be given to reducing the 
number of questions and trying to combine, 
where appropriate, some of the existing 
questions. 
  
Here are some suggestions: 
  
1 1 Is the development likely to result in an 
increase or decrease in the population that 
could affect the balance of Welsh / English 
speakers positively or negatively? 

- Could the development lead to an 
absolute or proportional reduction in the 
number of Welsh speakers? How could 
the development affect the use of the 
Welsh language in the community? 

  
2 Is the development likely to result in an 
increase in inward or outward migration? 

- How will this affect the number of Welsh 
speakers?  
- Would any change be permanent or 
temporary? 

  
3 Is the Development likely to lead to a change 
in age structure in the community area? 

- Would specific age groups be likely to 
move in or leave the area? 
- Could traditional social networks break 
down? 

  

agent was expected to answer the 
questions themselves. 
  
The rest felt that the questions were not 
clear enough and time consuming and 
not user friendly;  
  
As required, a number of suggestions 
were offered:  
  
Consider reducing the number of 
questions and combine where 
appropriate. 
  
Ask questions about definite relevant 
facts. 
  
The Applicant should submit an 
Assessment that has been drawn up and 
evaluated by independent language 
planning specialists. 
  
This should be funded by the applicant 
and organised by the Council. 
  
  
The current SPG provides 18 questions. 
Not all questions apply to all types of 
development and this makes the 
assessment process laborious, 
unnecessary and not user friendly. 
  
Consideration should be given to 
reducing the number of questions and 

P
age 43



4 Is the development likely to have an impact 
on the quality of life of local people? 

- Could the development have an impact on 
the health and amenities of the 
community? 
- Could it increase the risk of crime or 
violence in the community? 

  
5 Is the development likely to have a 
detrimental impact on local businesses and 
local jobs? 

- Is there any potential that the 
development could lead to the closure of 
local Welsh speaking businesses? 
- Could the development create or threaten 
local jobs? 

  
6 Is the development likely to lead to greater 
economic diversity in the community (or wider 
area)? 

- Is there potential for the development to 
increase the migration of non-Welsh 
speakers due to economic diversity? 

  
7 Is the development likely to have an impact 
on wages/ pay levels and/or house prices? 

- Could the development increase / reduce 
salary levels due to increased 
competition? Could the development 
force local Welsh speakers to leave the 
community because of housing prices, or 
prevent them from returning? 
  

trying to combine, where appropriate, 
some of the existing questions. 
  
Here are some suggestions: 
  
1 Is the development likely to result in 
an increase or decrease in the 
population that could affect the balance 
of Welsh / English speakers positively or 
negatively? 
- Could the development lead to an 
absolute or proportional reduction in the 
number of Welsh speakers? How could 
the development affect the use of the 
Welsh language in the community? 
  
2 Is the development likely to result in 
an increase in inward or outward 
migration? 
- How will this affect the number of 
Welsh speakers?  
- Would any change be permanent or 
temporary? 
  
3 Is the Development likely to lead to a 
change in age structure in the 
community area? 
- Would specific age groups be likely to 
move in or leave the area? 
- Could traditional social networks break 
down? 
  

P
age 44



8 Is the development likely to have an impact 
on local construction and service provision? 

- Could the development threaten or 
safeguard local Welsh-medium schools 
and/or healthcare facilities? 
- Could the development threaten or 
safeguard shopping / post offices / banks / 
local pubs in Welsh-speaking 
communities, or force some sections of 
the population out of the area? 

  
9 Is there potential for the development to lead 
to social tension, serious conflicts or divisions 
within the (Welsh language) community? 

- Could the development have a 
substantial disproportionate impact on 
different parts of the community? 
- Could it undermine the traditional 
values of specific parts of the 
community? 

  
10 Is there any potential that the development 
will lead to changes in Welsh traditions / 
culture? 

- Could the development force local 
members of local voluntary groups / 
activities / youth out of the area due to 
unemployment / high house prices? 

  
11 Is the development likely to have an impact 
on the use of the Welsh language in the 
community? 

4 Is the development likely to have an 
impact on the quality of life of local 
people? 
- Could the development have an impact 
on the health and amenities of the 
community? 
- Could it increase the risk of crime or 
violence in the community? 
  
5 Is the development likely to have a 
detrimental impact on local businesses 
and local jobs? 
- Is there any potential that the 
development could lead to the closure of 
local Welsh speaking businesses? 
- Could the development create or 
threaten local jobs? 
  
6 Is the development likely to lead to 
greater economic diversity in the 
community (or wider area)? 
- Is there potential for the development 
to increase the migration of non-Welsh 
speakers due to economic diversity? 
  
7 Is the development likely to have an 
impact on wages/ pay levels and/or 
house prices? 
- Could the development increase / 
reduce salary levels due to increased 
competition? Could the development 
force local Welsh speakers to leave the 

P
age 45



- Is the development likely to lead to 
less use of the Welsh language in the 
community? Reasons for this: 
- Welsh speakers form a smaller 
proportion of the population; 
- Language change in specific social 
networks; 
- Lack of Welsh-medium services as a 
result of the development; 
- Education; 
- Childcare etc. 
- Is the development likely to lead to 
increased use of Welsh in the 
community? 

community because of housing prices, or 
prevent them from returning? 
  
8 Is the development likely to have an 
impact on local construction and service 
provision? 
- Could the development threaten or 
safeguard local Welsh-medium schools 
and/or healthcare facilities? 
- Could the development threaten or 
safeguard shopping / post offices / banks 
/ local pubs in Welsh-speaking 
communities, or force some sections of 
the population out of the area? 
  
9 Is there potential for the development 
to lead to social tension, serious conflicts 
or divisions within the (Welsh language) 
community? 
- Could the development have a 
substantial disproportionate impact on 
different parts of the community? 
- Could it undermine the traditional 
values of specific parts of the 
community? 
  
10 Is there any potential that the 
development will lead to changes in 
Welsh traditions / culture? 
- Could the development force local 
members of local voluntary groups/ 
activities/ youth out of the area due to 
unemployment / high house prices? 
  

5b A similar answer to question 4. The questions 
are superficial and simplistic that gives the 
applicant the opportunity to provide an opinion 
rather than a fact. This in turn leads to a report 
which is biased, and therefore worthless. 

5c The questions are adequately clear and 
sufficient 

5ch Yes 

5d Repeat 4. 

    

P
age 46



11 Is the development likely to have an 
impact on the use of the Welsh language 
in the community? 
- Is the development likely to lead to less 
use of the Welsh language in the 
community? Reasons for this: 
- Welsh speakers form a smaller 
proportion of the population; 
- Language change in specific social 
networks; 
- Lack of Welsh-medium services as a 
result of the development; 
- Education; 
- Childcare etc. 
- Is the development likely to lead to 
increased use of Welsh in the 
community? 

 

  Contributor Comments Summary 1 February 2018 Suggestion for an Alternative Summary 

6 Is the current SPG clear enough about 
obtaining input from local language initiatives 
and language planners to assist applicants to 
formulate the proposal that will be the 
subject of a planning application? If you think 
there is a need to change, will you explain 
your point of view and suggest how it can be 
improved? 

Although two respondents considered 
that the guidance was clear in this 
regard, other respondents felt that there 
was a lack of guidance on how Mentrau 
Iaith can help develop mitigation / 
improvement measures, and that 
consultation with community and 
Mentrau Iaith cohorts should be an 
integral part of the language impact 
assessment process. 

Two respondents thought the current 
guidance was clear in this regard. 
  
The rest noted that the current guidance 
was unclear in terms of input from 

- Mentrau Iaith 
- Language Planning Specialists 

  
It should not be a matter of supporting 
the applicant, but an issue of evaluating 
the situation. 
  

6a No - the current SPG is flawed in terms of 
giving guidance on how local language 
enterprises can contribute to the development 
of mitigation measures and/or strengthening 
the Language Statement and the Language 
Assessment. 

P
age 47



  
The SPG should encourage developers to hold 
discussions with local language organisations 
such as Mentrau Iaith in order to understand 
current good practice that may affect 
mitigation or strengthening measures. 

It was noted in the responses that there 
was some confusion as to what a 'local 
language initiative' is.  
  
Lack of resources and expertise in 
Hunaniaith. 
  
The following suggestions were made: 
  
Encouraging developers to discuss with 
local language organisations / initiatives. 
  
Use measures and develop new ones to 
evaluate the position of Welsh as a living 
community language. 
  
Produce robust central guidance. 

6b It should not be a matter of assisting the 
applicant, but rather a matter of evaluating 
and assessing the situation. 
  
This could be improved by using measures and 
developing new ones to evaluate the situation 
in order to try to keep percentage of Welsh 
speakers within some areas, that would mean 
that the language is a living language in those 
areas. 
  
This is a major debate, and justice cannot be 
done to it within a few comments like these. 
  
It is a discussion that emerges every now and 
again, and there is a need to air it again soon 
or there will be no Welsh-speaking 
communities left to preserve. 

6c What local language initiatives are there e.g. in 
the Dwyfor area? 
  
We oppose the word 'assist' in the question as 
it gives the impression that the language 
planners are part of the developer's team, 
rather than being independent experts. 

6ch Yes 

6d Yes 

P
age 48



6dd Two (?) working for Hunaniaith - I do not know 
whether they have sufficient resources and 
expertise to provide a significant input, 
besides stating the obvious. 
  
There should be more robust central guidance 
- not something casual 

    

  

  Contributor Comments Summary 1 February 2018 Suggestion for an Alternative Summary 

7 Is the current SPG clear enough about what 
type of planning conditions or planning 
commitments can be made to ensure 
appropriate mitigation measures, 
compensation, and/or improvement 
measures related to development proposals 
to maintain or strengthen the Welsh 
language, and how the Councils can proceed 
to get planning conditions or commitments? 

Respondents generally agreed that there 
was not enough information in the 
guidance on how planning obligations 
should be drawn up, to ensure that the 
mitigation / improvement measures 
offered were implemented. 
  
Examples of various types of 
development should be included. 
  
In particular, it was proposed that 
planning conditions for residential 
development should include a condition 
for a gradual development over five 
years. 

One respondent considered that the 
current guidance was clear in this regard 
and one stated 'To some extent'. 
  
The rest noted that there was not 
enough information in the guidance on 
how planning obligations should be 
drawn up, to ensure that the mitigation 
and strengthening measures proposed 
were considered by the developer and 
implemented. 
  
The following suggestions were made: 
  
The new SPG should provide examples of 
suitable mitigation and/or strengthening 
measures for different types of 
development 
  
The new SPG should include examples of 
standard conditions / planning 
implications 
  

7a The current SPG is flawed in terms of 
suggested guidance regarding mitigation 
measures that may be relevant to different 
types of development. 
  
The new SPG should provide examples of 
suitable mitigation and/or strengthening 
measures for different types of development. 
  
No information is provided about how 
planning implications in relation to the Welsh 
language will be formulated to ensure that 
mitigation measures and/or proposed 
strengthening measures are implemented as 
part of the planning permission. 

P
age 49



  
Examples of standard conditions / planning 
implications should be included as part of the 
new SPG to ensure that developers are aware 
of what is expected of them at an early stage 
in the planning process. This will help to 
improve the viability of plans in the early 
stages. 
  

There is a real need for stronger 
measures. 
  
Examples of various types of 
development should be included. 
  
In particular, it was proposed that 
planning conditions for residential 
development should include a condition 
for a gradual development over five 
years. 
  
There should be strong central guidance. 

7b As part of the discussion referred to above, it is 
necessary for the requirements to be at a 
higher level than a Supplementary Guidance 
and we should keep up the pressure for this. 

7c Planning conditions for residential 
development (that is why we say in answer 2 
that different Guidance is necessary for the 
different types of development) should include 
a condition that the development should take 
place incrementally (e.g. up to 20%) over a 
period of 5 years.  
  
This would help to mitigate any negative 
impact on the language. 

7ch Yes, to some extent, but from reading the 
Independent Assessment of the Linguistic 
Impact of the LDP by Hanfod, there is a real 
need for stronger measures. 

7d Yes 

7dd There should be strong central guidance. 

  

  Contributor Comments Summary 1 February 2018 Suggestion for an Alternative Summary 

8 Do you have any other comments about the 
content of the current SPG? If so, we would 

Here are other comments made: Comments: 

P
age 50



appreciate it if you could make the comments 
as clear and concise as possible, referring to 
relevant parts of the document (e.g. 
paragraph number) 

 The importance of the Welsh 
language in Gwynedd should be 
clearly outlined. 

 Consideration should be given to 
the effectiveness of the SPG 
scoring system. The scoring 
system can appear too simplistic. 

 The cumulative impact of 
developments on the Welsh 
language should be considered 
as part of the assessment 
process. 

 As part of the process, the 
impact of development on the 
Welsh language in areas should 
be assessed further from a 
specific development site. 

 Linguistic Statements should be 
replaced by Linguistic Impact 
Assessments as Linguistic 
Statements are not effective. 

  
Attention was given to the above in 
preparing the draft new Supplementary 
Planning Guidance. 

The current methodology does give 
some guidance to the proposer. 
  
The scoring system is too simplistic 
  
The SPG considers very limited 
boundaries in terms of space and time. 
  
It must be remembered that 
developments often affect the whole or 
most of the county. 
  
External developers do not have any 
sympathy with the language. 
  
Councillors supported the principle that 
a balance should be struck between the 
need for development and a desire to 
protect the local way of life and the 
Welsh language.  
  
The need for developers to consult with 
local communities is welcomed.  
  
The Councillors considered that the 
balance indicated in the guidance was 
fair and reasonable. 
  
Since 2011, 75 Community and Linguistic 
Statements have been introduced by 
developers to support their planning 
applications, and none of the statements 
concluded that the development in 

8a Consideration should be given to the 
effectiveness of the scoring system in the SPG.  
  
The methodology is currently leading the 
proposer to identify mitigation measures 
where an adverse effect is identified and 
encourages the identification of strengthening 
measures where beneficial effects can be 
identified.  
  
The scoring system could be considered too 
simplistic. 
  

8b When considering AREAS, the guidance should 
consider wider AREAS than just the village or 
town where the development takes place. 
  
Also, this should be in the context of what has 
happened in that (wide) area within the last 
five years, 
  
The SPG is currently within very limited 
boundaries in terms of space and time. 

8c The Guidance often mentions the 
development area, and that is usually defined 
as an area very close to the development. 
  
It must be remembered that developments 
often affect the whole or most of the county. 
  

P
age 51



Therefore, not every development should be 
considered a small island in itself. 
  
Any development should be made in the 
context of other recent developments made in 
an area (the size of Dwyfor, Arfon or 
Meirionnydd) i.e. the cumulative 
consideration. 
  
The 'recent' in this case should be at least 5 
years - the last five years.  
  
Without taking this into account, we will only 
be adding a problem on top of another 
problem. 
  

question would have a negative impact 
on the Welsh language 
  
However, linguistic impact assessments 
by the language consultancy Hanfod on 
some of these developments come to a 
completely different conclusion, that 
they would be likely to harm the 
situation of the Welsh language. 
  
The evidence shows that the Statement 
is insufficient and does not carry out its 
work appropriately. 
  
  
Suggestions to improve: 
  
Improve scoring system 
  
The guidance should consider areas that 
are wider than just the village or town 
where the development takes place, up 
to Arfon level, Meirion, Dwyfor. 
  
  
This should be in the context of what has 
happened in that (wide) area within the 
last 5 years. 
  
The conditions regarding use of the 
Welsh language on signs and so on 
should be strengthened; and also 
prevent the changing of old Welsh 
names into English. 

8ch The only additional comment that the Council 
has is that the importance of the Welsh 
language in Gwynedd, especially this 
community, needs to be emphasised given the 
latest developments in Abersoch, which will be 
second homes for buyers from over the border 
due to their high prices that are beyond local 
residents. 
  
External developers do not have any sympathy 
with the language. 

8d The conditions regarding use of the Welsh 
language on signs and so on should be 
strengthened; and also prevent the changing 
of old Welsh names into English. 

8dd Given that there is considerable mobility 
within Gwynedd, the boundaries of existing 
community councils are too small to measure 

P
age 52



the impact, and impact should be measured in 
depth not by the move of one family to a 
house, without looking at who fills the gap 
after them somewhere else etc. 

  
Consideration should be given to who 
fills the gap (empty house) as Welsh-
speaking local people buy new houses. 
  
The key importance of Gwynedd as the 
main Welsh language stronghold should 
be identified at the beginning of the new 
SPG and the need for specific policies to 
protect its unique features and to ensure 
a sustainable future for the language. 
  
The objectives of relevant strategies to 
strengthen the language should be noted 
in the new SPG, including 

- Gwynedd Language Strategy 
2014-2017 which aims to 
achieve a 5% increase in the 
percentage of population able to 
speak Welsh by 2021. 
- The Gwynedd and Anglesey 
Joint Local Development Plan 
which aims to increase the 
number of communities with 
70% of their population able to 
speak Welsh. 
- The Welsh Government which 
aims to increase the number of 
Welsh speakers by a million by 
2050. 
- Welsh Technical Advice Note 
20 based on the language 
provisions of the Planning 
(Wales) Act 2015. 

8e Councillors supported the principle that a 
balance should be struck between the need 
for development and a desire to protect the 
local way of life and the Welsh language. The 
need for developers to consult with local 
communities is welcomed. The Councillors 
considered that the balance indicated in the 
guidance was fair and reasonable. 

8f We appreciate the opportunity to participate 
in the review of the Supplementary Planning 
Guidance - Planning and the Welsh Language, 
and we trust that our comments will 
contribute to its strengthening and thereby 
make it more effective in its objective of 
safeguarding the Welsh language. 
  
We would like to initially note what we believe 
that the new Supplementary Planning 
Guidance should be emphasised at the outset, 
namely: 

 The key importance of Gwynedd as 
the main Welsh language stronghold 
and the need for specific policies to 
protect its unique features and to 
ensure a sustainable future for the 
language. 

 Objectives of relevant strategies to 
strengthen the language, including 
- Gwynedd Language Strategy 2014-
2017 which aims to achieve a 5% 

P
age 53



increase in the percentage of 
population able to speak Welsh by 
2021. 
- The Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint 
Local Development Plan which aims to 
increase the number of communities 
with 70% of their population able to 
speak Welsh. 
- The Welsh Government which aims 
to increase the number of Welsh 
speakers by a million by 2050. 
- Welsh Technical Advice Note 20 
based on the language provisions of 
the Planning (Wales) Act 2015. 

 The need for each proposed 
development to be evaluated 
according to its compatibility with the 
above objectives. It should be ensured 
therefore that all the developments in 
question either contribute positively 
to the realisation of the objectives or, 
at least, that it would not in any way 
obstruct the efforts to achieve them. 

  
In terms of the specific questions on the form, 
we cannot, in our opinion, respond 
meaningfully to them in the review of the 
current Supplementary Planning Guidance - 
Planning and the Welsh language, without 
knowing the extent to which the guidance has 
succeeded since it became operational in 
2009. It cannot be reviewed without carrying 
out a language assessment of developments 
from 2009 to the present, in order to ascertain 

  
The need for each proposed 
development to be evaluated according 
to its compatibility with the above 
objectives. It should be ensured 
therefore that all the developments in 
question either contribute positively to 
the realisation of the objectives or, at 
least, that it would not in any way 
obstruct the efforts to achieve them. 
  
In terms of the specific questions on the 
form, we cannot, in our opinion, respond 
meaningfully to them in the review of 
the current Supplementary Planning 
Guidance - Planning and the Welsh 
language, without knowing the extent to 
which the guidance has succeeded since 
it became operational in 2009.  
  
Before proceeding, a linguistic 
assessment of the developments from 
2009 to date should be carried out, to 
determine if the current version of the 
guidance has contributed to 
safeguarding, promoting and reinforcing 
the Welsh language.  
  
Stop using a Community and Linguistic 
Statement, and require developers to 
provide a Linguistic Impact Assessment 
in the cases where a Statement is 
required at present.  
  

P
age 54



whether the current version of the guidance 
has contributed to safeguarding, promoting 
and reinforcing the Welsh language. Such an 
assessment should have been carried out 
before reviewing the Guidance. 
  
Since 2011, 75 Community and Linguistic 
Statements have been introduced by 
developers to support their planning 
applications, and none of the statements 
concluded that the development in question 
would have a negative impact on the Welsh 
language. These statements were appraised by 
the Planning Authority, all of which were 
approved. We specifically refer to two 
proposed developments, namely the planning 
application to build 69 houses at Coetmor (a 
neighbourhood of around 140 houses), 
Bethesda, and the planning application to 
build 366 houses at Pen-y-ffridd, 
Penrhosgarnedd, Bangor. In both cases, the 
Community and Linguistic Statement was of 
the opinion that Welsh would not be harmed, 
and the applications were approved by the 
Planning Authority. However, linguistic impact 
assessments by the language consultancy 
Hanfod on some of these developments come 
to a completely different conclusion, that they 
would be likely to harm the situation of the 
Welsh language. 
  
It is clear that such a situation is totally 
unsatisfactory, and that fundamental changes 

Make it a requirement for a Linguistic 
Impact Assessment to be produced by 
those with knowledge and 
understanding of the field. 
  
Make it a requirement for the Planning 
Authority to ensure that the Linguistic 
Impact Assessment is evaluated by those 
with knowledge and understanding of 
the field. 
  
That consultation with community 
councils, language initiatives and 
language organizations is a key part of a 
Linguistic Impact Assessment. 

P
age 55



should be made to the current Guidance. We 
recommend the following changes: 
  
1 Stop using a Community and Linguistic 
Statement, and require developers to provide 
a Linguistic Impact Assessment in the cases 
where a Statement is required at present. The 
evidence referred to above shows that the 
Statement is insufficient and does not carry 
out its work appropriately. 
  
2 Make it a requirement for a Linguistic Impact 
Assessment to be produced by those with 
knowledge and understanding of the field. 
  
3 Make it a requirement for the Planning 
Authority to ensure that the Linguistic Impact 
Assessment is evaluated by those with 
knowledge and understanding of the field. 
  
4 That consultation with community councils, 
language initiatives and language 
organizations is a key part of a Linguistic 
Impact Assessment. 
  

  

  

P
age 56



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING 
DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES 

REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 October 
2018 

ITEM 5  APPENDIX 3 

Page 57



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

CONTENTS PAGE 

HEADING DESCRIPTION PAGE 

Prelude Background information 1 

 Introduction 3 

Section 1 What is meant by distinctive and sustainable 
communities 

6 

Section 2 How to satisfy the requirements of Policy PS 1 11 

Section 3 How to satisfy the requirements of Policies PS 
5 and PS 6 

30 

 

Appendices 

APPENDIX NAME 

1  Policy PS 5, Policy PS 6 and Policy PS 1 

2  Useful sources of data and information about the Welsh language 

3  List of useful documents 

4  List of useful contacts 

5  Screening process 

6  Possible mitigation and improvement measures - Welsh language 

7  Methodology for preparing a Welsh Language Statement 

8  Methodology for preparing a Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

 

List of diagrams  

Diagram  1 The seven wellbeing aims 

Diagram 2 Essential elements of distinctive and sustainable communities 

Diagram 3 Flow chart: process to formulate a proposed development, its assessment 
and make a decision about it 

Diagram 4 Screening process for a proposed development and form an initial view 

Diagram 5 How to select which type of likely impact on the Welsh language 

Diagram 6 Preparing a Welsh Language Statement 

Diagram 7 Preparing a Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

Diagram 8 Examples of scenarios when a Welsh Language Impact Assessment will be 
required 

Diagram 9 How to select a competent person to advise you about a Welsh Language 
Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

Diagram 10 Identifying measures to avoid or mitigate, prepare a strategy and submit a 
planning application 

Diagram 11 The assessment and decision making process for a planning application 

 

List of tables  

Table  1 Planning policy considerations relating to specific types of development 

Table 2 Matters to be considered and additional information required to assess 
the sustainability characteristics of development from a Welsh language 
perspective 

Table 3 Matters to be considered and additional information required to assess 
the sustainability characteristics of development  

Table 4 Growth level per category of settlements in the Settlement Hierarchy 

Page 58



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

Table  5 Summary of additional requirements for the wider context  

   

List of maps  

Map 1 Settlement Hierarchy and the role of individual settlements 
 

  

Page 59



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Purpose 

 

The Purpose of this Guidance is to:  

• assist applicants and their agents in preparing planning applications and in guiding them in 
discussions with officers before submitting planning applications;  

• assist members of the public and other interested stakeholders to understand the relevant 

policy expectations and to help them to prepare meaningful comments and input into the 

decision making process; 

• assist officers to assess planning applications, and officers and councillors to make decisions 
about planning applications, and  

• help Planning Inspectors make decisions on appeals. 

 

The general aim is to improve the quality of new developments and facilitate a consistent and 
transparent way of making decisions. 

 

The Policy Context 

Local Development Plan 

Under planning legislation, the planning policies for every area are contained within the 'development 

plan'. The Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan was adopted on 31 July 2017. It relates 

to the Gwynedd and Anglesey Planning Authority area. It doesn’t include the Snowdonia National Park. 

The Plan provides wide-ranging policies along with allocations for the main land uses, such as housing, 

employment and retail. It will help shape the future of the Plan area physically and environmentally, 

and will also influence it economically, socially, culturally and linguistically. The Plan, therefore, 

attempts to:  

• guide the Local Planning Authorities to make rational and consistent decisions on planning 

applications by providing a policy framework that is consistent with national policy; and 

• guide developments to suitable areas during the period up to 2026. 

The need for Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Although the Plan contains policies that enable the Local Planning Authority to make consistent and 

transparent decisions when it considers development applications, it cannot provide all the detailed 

advice required by officers and prospective applicants to steer proposals locally. In order to provide 

this detailed advice, the Councils are preparing a range of Supplementary Planning Guidances (SPGs) 

to support the Plan. These will provide more detailed guidances on a variety of topics and matters to 

help interpret and implement the Plan's policies and proposals. 

The Status of Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance may be considered to be material planning considerations during 
the process of assessing and determining planning applications. Welsh Government and the Planning 
Inspectorate will place considerable weight on supplementary planning guidance that stem from, and 

Page 60



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

are consistent with, a development plan. The SPG’s purpose does not include introducing any new 
planning policies and it does not form part of a local development plan.  
 
In accordance with Welsh Government advice, the SPG has been the subject of a public consultation 
and a resolution to adopt by the Joint Planning Policy Committee on behalf of the Councils. A draft 
version of this SPG was approved for public consultation on date by Committee name. The 
supplementary planning guidance was the subject of a public consultation exercise between date. The 
x observations presented to the Councils were considered and, where appropriate, appropriate 
changes have been included in the final draft approved by the Joint Planning Policy Committee on date 
to be used as a material consideration when assessing and determining planning applications and 
appeals. A summary of the observations and the Councils' response are given in Appendix or location 
of a Committee report.   
 

(Once it has been adopted) This document should, therefore, be given substantial weight as a 

material planning consideration. 

 

Page 61



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES 

1 Introduction 

Definitions 

1.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on public bodies 

(including Welsh Ministers) to carry out sustainable development.  The Act sets seven 

well-being aims to help ensure that all public bodies work toward the same vision with 

respect to a sustainable Wales: 

Diagram 1:  The seven well-being goals 

 

 

1.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act clearly defines sustainable development in 

Wales: 

A definition of sustainable development in Wales 

"Sustainable development" is the process of improving economic, social, environmental and 
cultural well-being in Wales by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development 
principle, aimed at achieving well-being goals. 

Taking action in accordance with the sustainable development principle means a body must take 

action in a way which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising 

the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 

 

1.3 The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 introduced a statutory purpose for the planning system in 
Wales - any statutory body that has a planning function must adhere to those functions in 
accordance with sustainable development principles as stated in the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. In the Gwynedd and Anglesey Local Planning Authority area, this duty 

Page 62



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

is partly addressed through the inclusion of policies in the Joint Local Development Plan (Local 
Development Plan). 
 
The Purpose and Structure of these Guidances 
 
1.4 The aim of Policies PS 1, PS 5 and PS 6 is to integrate ‘sustainable development’ into the 
development process, in order to maintain and create distinctive and sustainable communities. The 
main purpose of this Supplementary Planning Guidance (along with other Supplementary Planning 
Guidances) is to help applicants for planning permission to understand relevant policies that integrate 
'sustainable development' into the development process, in order to maintain and create distinctive 
and sustainable communities. This will ensure that legislative and policy requirements are met and 
that best practice standards are achieved. It provides a standardised methodology that all applicants 
should follow. This Guidance expand on the main principles noted in the relevant policies of the Local 
Development Plan. It should be used in conjunction with expert assessments of the details of each 
specific case (where the assessments are necessary).  
 
1.5 This SPG consists of three main Sections and a series of Appendices: 
 
 
SECTION 1 (Parts A and B) – this section gives a general description of what is meant by distinctive and 
sustainable communities and how specific types of development contribute to maintaining and 
creating distinctive and sustainable communities.  
 
Part A - Sustainable Development - Distinctive and Sustainable Communities - a short description of 
what is meant by a distinctive and sustainable community; 
Part B - Specific types of developments and their contribution to sustaining or creating distinctive and 
sustainable communities 
 
 
 
SECTION 2 (Part C) – this section provides guidance on how to use Policy PS 1 The Welsh language and 
Culture and present evidence to support development: 
 
The first parts of the SPG highlight the relevance of the Welsh language to a number of developments 
that are necessary to maintain and create distinctive and sustainable communities.  
 
The second Section of the SPG provides information on the detailed requirements of the Local 
Planning Authority about the way Policy PS 1 of the Local Development Plan will be implemented. It 
shows how Welsh language considerations are expected to be incorporated into every relevant 
development. It includes requirements about how to record the way the relevant development would 
benefit the Welsh language through a Welsh Language Statement or a Report about a Welsh Language 
Impact Assessment. The need for a Statement or a report about an Assessment will depend on the 
type and location of the proposed development. As well as drawing attention to policy and 
supplementary planning guidance requirements this Section draws attention to good practice, e.g. 
measures to enhance benefits or mitigate effects that can be incorporated into the development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

 
SECTION 3 (Parts CH and D) – this section provides guidance to the applicant in terms of how 
supporting evidence should be provided having regard to the wider considerations associated with 
sustainable development. It is also a means to help the applicant to better understand the distinctive 
and sustainable qualities of different types of development.   
 
Part Ch – matters to be considered and the additional information required to support a planning 
application – description of the information required to validate an application and additional 
information required in order to demonstrate how the proposed development aligns with relevant 
policies in the Local Development Plan; 
Part D – What can be built in different locations – brief description of the Settlement Strategy and the 
Local Development Plan’s Settlement Hierarchy to promote a sustainable pattern of development 
 
 
1.6 Appendices 1 - 8 contain information or refers to useful information: 
 
 

Page 64



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 1 

What is meant by Distinctive 

and Sustainable Communities 

 

Page 65



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

SECTION 1 
 

Part A:  Sustainable Development - distinctive and sustainable communities  
 

A.1 The various policies within the Local Development Plan have an important role to play in 
maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable urban and rural communities. They help ensure 
that appropriate developments take place in the right place at the right time. They do this by making 
sufficient land available to provide homes and employment opportunities for local people; thus, 
helping to sustain urban and rural services. At the same time, they provide a framework to respond 
to the challenges that arise in the wake of climate change, for example, by including the need to 
produce renewable energy. They also protect and improve the natural and historic landscape and 
safeguard the countryside and open areas. Collectively, they support living and working communities 
to be economically, socially, culturally, linguistically and environmentally sustainable. The next 
diagram provides a simple illustration of the elements that are necessary for distinctive and 
sustainable communities. 

 
Diagram 2: Essential elements for a distinctive and sustainable community  

 

 

A distinctive and sustainable 
community

Social and cultural 
activities- that protect 

and promote the culture, 
heritage, and Welsh 

language; that are vibrant; 
that are amicable; and  

inclusive

Services – a range of 
suitable public, private, 
and voluntary services 

where the Welsh language 
can thrive

Housing - different types 
to support a variety of 

local households (size, age 
and income) where the 

Welsh language is passed 
on

Work - a thriving and 
varied local economy that 

creates situations to 
protect, promote and 
strengthen the Welsh 

language

Environment - a design of 
a high quality, natural 

environment sustainable 
places in which to live

Transport and 
connectivity- connect 

people with jobs, schools, 
health services and other 

services and facilities, that 
are important places for 

the Welsh language

Page 66



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

 
 
A.2 The various policies within the Local Development Plan promote development that balance 
and integrate social, economic, environmental and linguistic factors in order to meet the needs of 
residents now and in future; e.g. Strategic Policy PS 5, which provides the principles of sustainable 
development; Strategic Policy PS 6, which provides the framework for considering mitigating 
measures of climate change and adapting to them (see Appendix 1).   
 
A3 With respect to the Welsh language, a sustainable development involves the promotion of 
situations in communities that are important cornerstones of linguistic planning, such as passing on 
the Welsh language in the home (or the socialisation of Welsh in the family), and providing and 
replicating the necessary social context to use the Welsh language as part of the normal fabric of 
society.  
 
Part B:  Specific types of developments and their contribution to maintaining or creating distinctive 
and sustainable communities 
 
B.1 Diagram 2 above (paragraph A.1) shows that a number of different developments are needed 
to provide different opportunities that will help maintain and create distinctive and sustainable 
communities. This part succinctly describes how different types of developments can contribute to 
this. In so doing, it identifies the main planning policies that are relevant to the developments. 
Individual policies in the Local Development Plan’s Written Statement are available to read on both 
Authority’s websites (www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/ldp & www.anglesey.gov.uk ) 
 

Table 1 - planning policy considerations for specific types of development 
 

Type of 

Development 

 

How the development helps maintain or create distinctive and 

sustainable communities 

Housing  Communities need residents from different backgrounds, ages, and who 

live in different types of houses, if they are to be places where people 

desire to live in the long-term. On the contrary, not doing so could lead 

to a community in which the population declines in the long-term, and 

one that could lose its unique local nature and its connections to cultural 

heritage; 

 consideration needs to be given to the way in which the needs of different 

households can be met now and in future (Policy TAI 8); 

 developments resulting in an increase in the number of new homes are 

expected to contribute to 'affordable housing' when viable to do so 

(Policy TAI 15 and Policy TAI 16); 

 housing developments that add to the existing housing stock in Centres 

and Villages identified in Policy TAI 5 must be local market housing and 

affordable housing, if Policy TAI 15 is a material consideration;  

 having a sufficient number of local houses for a mix of households is more 

likely to mean a viable use of facilities and services in the settlement or in 

a nearby settlement, which can be important places for the Welsh 

language; 

Page 67

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Anglesey-and-Gwynedd-Joint-Local-Development-Plan-Written-Statement.pdf
http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/ldp
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

Type of 

Development 

 

How the development helps maintain or create distinctive and 

sustainable communities 

Housing 

 

 

 

 the land use planning system cannot anticipate or manage the personal 

characteristics of new home owners e.g. the ability to speak Welsh, to 

what degree the Welsh language is passed on through the family, etc. 

Nevertheless, providing enough houses locally of an appropriate scale 

and size and for a mix of households is important. This it is an important 

factor in the viability of the Welsh language - it is an important place to 

pass on the Welsh language from one generation to another; and in the 

community, it is important in retaining individuals who use the language, 

and in generating new Welsh speakers (Policy TAI 8, Policy PS 1, Policy TAI 

1 - TAI 6). 

 

Employment 

developments 

(including tourism 

and retail) 

 developments that support jobs in the area of the Plan are crucial in 

fostering the economic and social well-being of our local communities 

(Policy PS 13); 

 specific sites are protected and designated in order to support various 

jobs (Policy CYF 1), and a development could be supported on sites that 

are not protected or designated on if enablement policies based on 

certain criteria (Policy CYF 4 and Policy CYF 6) are complied with; 

 developments that require a location in the countryside are likely to be 

approved if they support industries that are in keeping with the site and 

local area (Policy PS 13, Policy CYF 6, Policy TWR1 - Policy TWR 5); 

 retail and commercial developments will be supported in places where 

they maintain and improve the vitality and viability of existing 

settlements, especially in the centre, and respect the amenity of their 

neighbours (Policies MAN 1 - MAN 6); 

 living-working units will be supported in principle (Policy PS 13); 

 places of work are one of the important linguistic places where the aim is 

to encourage and enable the use of the Welsh language in the workplace 

and when interacting with customers, the public, and other workers in 

the workplace (Policy PS1, Policy ISA1).  

 

Community 

facilities and 

services 

 new community facilities and services will be supported and existing ones 

protected unless a proposal for an alternative development complies 

with policy requirements based on criteria (Policy ISA 2 - Policy ISA 5); 

 they are important linguistic places - schools (places to use and learn the 

language), and shops, pubs, public transport, halls or other places - to 

hold community activities (places to promote and use the Welsh 

language). 

 

Page 68



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

Type of 

Development 

 

How the development helps maintain or create distinctive and 

sustainable communities 

Telecommunication 

and information 

infrastructure 

 proposals for telecommunication and information infrastructure, 

designed and located to respect the landscape and any special features 

and to avoid substantial radio interference, are acceptable (Policy PS 3). 

 developments that include modern telecommunications and information 

infrastructure will be supported (Policy PCYFF 3). 

 

Renewable energy  renewable energy developments provide an alternative low carbon 

option to traditional carbon emitting sources of energy; they help avoid 

cases of climate change and possibly provides a new source of income for 

communities; 

 renewable energy developments that respect the special features of the 

area of the Plan will be supported (Policy ADN 1 - ADN 3 & Policy PCYFF 

5). 

 
 
B2 This Section has highlighted the importance of Welsh to maintain and create distinctive and 
sustainable communities. The Section has referred to Policy PS 5 and Policy PS 1 in the Local 
Development Plan. Policy PS 5 sets out the need to safeguard, support and promote the use of the 
Welsh language as one of the sustainable development criteria. Policy PS 1 provides specific measures 
to support the Welsh language. The next Section of the Supplementary Planning Guidance focuses on 
providing guidance and advice on how to use Policy PS 1 of the Local Development Plan. 
  

Page 69



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 2 
HOW TO MEET THE 

REQUIREMENTS OF POLICY PS 

1 

 

  

Page 70



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

SECTION 2 

 

Part C Guidance about the requirements of the Act, national policy and Policy PS 1 about assessing 

the likely effect of a proposal on the Welsh language and Welsh culture, and principles, 

frameworks and risk assessment processes 

 

C.1 Policy PS 1: The Welsh Language and Culture, promotes and supports the use of the language. 

It is underpinned by Policy PS 5 Sustainable Development (criterion 4). A copy of these Policies is found 

in Appendix 1 of this SPG. In accordance with Policy PS 1 of the Plan, information must be gathered 

and received about certain types of developments in order to reach a conclusion about the impact of 

the proposed development, e.g. are there any benefits to the language, does the proposal need to be 

amended, is there a risk to the well-being of the Welsh language and can the impact be mitigated in a 

way that mitigates risk, and how can the situation in the community be monitored. 

 

C.2 Section 31 of the Planning (Wales) Act 2015 revises section 70 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 by adding the following clause: “any considerations relating to the use of the Welsh 

language, so far as material to the application.” This means that there is a duty, when determining a 

planning application, to include considerations in relation to the Welsh language, where relevant to 

that application. 

 

C.3 Paragraph 4.13.5 of Planning Policy Wales (edition 9, 2016) "Considerations relating to the use 

of the Welsh language may be taken into account by decision makers so far as they are material to 

applications for planning permission." 

 

C.4 The Joint Local Development Plan Sustainability Assessment (influenced by information from 
the iterative Language Impact Assessment) has considered the impacts of the plan's strategy and 
policies on the viability of the Welsh language. The Joint Local Development Plan's strategy and 
policies are based on a rational understanding of the possible implications for the Welsh language. 
They contribute to the creation of a social climate and conditions that facilitate the use of the Welsh 
language. 
 
C.5 Different types of developments necessary to maintain and create distinctive and sustainable 
communities take place to varying degrees. Matters requiring attention and, as such, the information 
necessary to reach a logical decision, will also vary.  
 
C.6 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 
(the DMPWO) provides a Standardised Application Form for planning applications in Wales and 
defines a 'valid' application. In order to register applications as 'valid', applicants must provide all 
information noted in the Standardised Application Form, e.g. plans, diagrams and certificates and any 
additional supplementary assessments. A local planning authority can refuse an application if the 
appropriate information is not provided. 
 
C.7 In addition to the information required to validate applications, the Gwynedd and Anglesey 
County Council Planning Authority, as with every Local Planning Authority in Wales, will require 
additional supplementary inspections and reports in accordance with the policy requirements of the 
Local Development Plan. 
 
 

Page 71



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

Principles, Frameworks and Processes to Assess Likely Effect 
 
C.8  When the Welsh language is a material planning consideration, determining whether a 
development has a positive or negative impact and determining the scale of the impact on the 
linguistic character of an area is highly complex. Even with all the information, it would not be easy to 
measure it as the planning system cannot anticipate or manage personal attributes (such as the ability 
to speak Welsh in the future or the dynamics of its use). The system also discriminate against a 
planning application on the grounds of an applicant's linguistic ability and the linguistic ability of the 
individuals who will occupy or use a property.  
 
C.9 Assessing the likely impact on the Welsh language shares similar principles, frameworks and 
processes to those seen in other areas where there is a need to assess and address likely impacts.  For 
example, in planning terms environmental impact assessments and sustainability assessments are 
well- established. 
 

C.10  The International Organization for Standardisation – ISO has published the International 
Standard 31000 on Risk Management.1  Although in terms of risk (or likely negative impact) described 
in the Standard, the same framework, principles and processes are appropriate to maximise benefits 
as well.  Therefore, they are appropriate for assessments similar to Welsh language impact 
assessments.  ISO 31000 provides principles and guidelines for generic use across all institutions and 
identify the following features of risk management/maximise opportunities effectively: 

 an initial element of describing and establishing the context; 

 components of the identification, analysis, assessment, and risk or opportunities; and 

 activities to communicate and consult with stakeholders throughout the process. 

C.11 It also encourages assessors to follow the following process: 
 

Step 1-preparing for the Likely Impact Assessment, including defining the problem or issue 
correctly and designing the assessment; 

Step 2 – carrying out the assessment of the likely impact; 

Step 3 - Identify and evaluate viable options and selecting ' Preferred ' Strategy to maximise 
the benefits, or face and/or address risk; 

Step 4- preparing and proposing an action plan within the selected preferred strategy. 

 
C12  Diagram 3 gives a picture of the process of preparing a proposed development before it is 
submitted to the Planning Authority, their assessment by the Planning Authority and decision-making. 
It focuses on incorporating considerations about the vitality of the Welsh language in the relevant 
development.   In the context of an assessment of the likely impact on the Welsh language the ISO 
measures described in paragraph steps 1 – 4 C11 translates to Diagram 3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                           
1 International Organization for Standarization  (2009) Risk Management Principles and Guidelines. 

Page 72



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

Diagram 3 Flow chart: formulating a development, its assessment and decision making 
 
 

 
 
 
Stage 1: Screening the development and form an initial view 
 
C.13 Diagram 4 explains the screening of the proposed development and initial judgements. In 

accordance with the principle of communication and consultation with stakeholders throughout the 

process, it emphasises the need to engage and consult with the planning service and other 

stakeholders during the pre- planning application stage. 

Stage A) Screening the 
proposed development/ 
formulating initial views

Stage B1 or B2) Prepare a 
Statement or Assessment, 

when required

Stage C) Identifying 
measures to avoid/ 

mitigate, when required

Stage Ch) Submit a 
planning application

Stage D) Assess the 
planning application

Stage Dd) Decision making Stage E) Monitor

Page 73



STAGE A) PRE-APPLICATION PERIOD: SCREEN THE DEVELOPMENT AND FORMULATE A PRELIMINARY VIEW 

You should establish if there is a need 

to submit a Language Statement or re-

port for a Language Impact Assess-

ment— see diagram 5 and Appendix 5. 

If one or the other is required look at 

Appendix 7 and Appendix 8. 

The pre-application advice service 

offered by the Planning Service should 

be used before submitting a planning 

application — see Appendix 4 — useful 

contact details  

Statutory pre-application public con-

sultation must take place if the devel-

opment reaches the statutory thresh-

old given in the Act.  Take a look at 

the Government's manual to see what 

type of development need to be sub-

ject to this statutory consultation. 

When Policy PS 1 asks for a Language 

Statement or report for a Language 

Impact Assessment the applicant is 

expected to publish the first draft of 

the work during the statutory pre- 

application public consultation period 

for the relevant stakeholders’ atten-

tion so that they are able to make rep-

resentations to the applicant. 

Engage and consult during the pre-application period 

When there is no need to submit Lan-

guage Statement or report Language Im-

pact Assessment, the applicant is ex-

pected to record how the development 

will contribute positively to the viability of 

the Welsh language in a Planning State-

ment and/or a Design and Access State-

ment — see Appendix 5 for good practice 

ideas. 

See Appendix 6 for ideas on 

improvement or mitigation 

measures to address the im-

pact of development  

Diagram 4 

When no statutory public consulta-

tion is required before submitting a 

planning application, applicant s are 

expected to engage with relevant 

stakeholders and record the infor-

mation in documents submitted 

with the planning application  

The pre- application period should be used to familiarise 

yourself with the information about the community/area of 

influence to gain an understanding of how the proposed 

development will contribute positively to the viability of the 

language. Take a look at Appendix 2 — data sources and 

useful information about the Welsh language.  

P
age 74

http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/171121pre-application-community-consultation-best-practice-guidance-for-developers-en.pdf


POLICY PS 1 REQUIREMENTS 

Is the proposal for a retail, industrial or commercial use? 
Is the proposal for a residential development which adds 

to the existing housing stock?  

 Y
e

s 

 Y
e

s 

Criterion 1a) - does the 

floor area of a building 

exceed 1,000 sq. m. 

and/or will the pro-

posal employ more 

than 50 employees? 

Criterion 2 - is the de-

velopment for a large 

scale employment use 

on an unexpected 

windfall site which 

would lead to a signifi-

cant flow of work-

ers? Look at Diagram 

7. 

Criterion 2 - is 

the develop-

ment for a large 

scale residential 

use on an unex-

pected windfall 

site? Look at 

Diagram 7. 

Criterion 1b) – will 

the residential devel-

opment alone or 

cumulatively provide 

more than the indic-

ative housing provi-

sion set out in Policy 

TAI 1 — 6?  In the 

case of one addition-

al house, where the 

applicant is the de-

veloper, contact the 

Planning Service for 

advice) 

No 

 Y
e

s 

 Y
e

s 

  

Consider the require-

ments of criteria 3 and 

4 of Policy PS 1, other 

relevant parts of this 

Guidance, e.g. Appen-

dix 5, and other rele-

vant Policies and Guid-

ance. 

       Y
e

s 

 Y
e

s 

Consideration needs to 

be given to how the 

development will have 

an impact on the 

Welsh language in the 

community and record 

your findings, including 

any improvement or 

mitigation measures, 

in a Language State-

ment— in accordance 

with the methodology  

given in Appendix 7 of 

this Guidance  

Consideration needs to be given to how the de-

velopment will have an impact on the Welsh 

language in the community and record your find-

ings, including any improvement or mitigation 

measures, in a Language Statement— in accord-

ance with the methodology given in Appendix 7 

of this Guidance  

Consideration needs to 

be given to how the de-

velopment will have an 

impact on the Welsh 

language in the area and 

record your findings, 

including any improve-

ment or mitigation 

measures, in a Welsh 

Language Impact As-

sessment— in accord-

ance with the methodol-

ogy given in Appendix 8 

of this Guidance  

Criterion 1 c) – is 

the development 

for 5 or more hous-

ing units on allocat-

ed or windfall sites 

within develop-

ment boundaries 

that do not address 

the evidence of 

need and demand 

for housing record-

ed in a Housing 

Market Assess-

ment, on the Hous-

ing Register, Tai 

Teg Register, Local 

Housing Survey?   

 Y
e

s 

Consideration needs to be 

given to how the develop-

ment will have an impact 

on the Welsh language in 

the area and record your 

findings, including any 

improvement or mitiga-

tion measures, in a Welsh 

Language Impact Assess-

ment— in accordance 

with the methodology 

given in Appendix 8 of this 

Guidance 

No 

Diagram 5

No No 

        

No 

P
age 75



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND SUSTAINING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

C.15 When a Language Statement or report about a Language Impact Assessment isn’t required,  

by including evidence in a Planning Statement or an additional part of a Design and Access Statement, 

and by following Policy requirements and requirements set out in this Guidance unnecessary delays 

during the decision making process will be avoided. The lack of sufficient relevant information to be 

able to come to a conclusion about the impact of the development will be a reason to refuse a planning 

application. 

Stage 2 Preparing a Statement, Assessment or Supporting Evidence  
 
Which Method should be used and When 
  
C.16 Policy PS 1 (1) a (2) refers to the circumstances where there will be a need for a “Welsh 
Language Statement (WLS)” and a “Welsh Language Impact Assessment Report” (WLIA). In the above 
context both tools or methodology follow similar processes.  The main difference is that WLIA will be 
required “when the proposed development is on an unexpected windfall site for large-scale housing 
development or the development of large scale employment which would see a significant flow of 
workforce."    The main characteristic of this category of developments is that they must follow the 
statutory pre-application consultation process. In accordance with ISO guidelines on managing risk 
/opportunities effectively (see C.6 above) applicants for such developments are expected to 
"undertake activities to communicate and consult with stakeholders throughout the process".    There 
will be a difference also in the level of evidence of consideration given to the likely impacts associated 
with a Language Statement compared a Language Assessment.  Appendix 7 and 8 highlight the 
differences further. 
 
C.17 Applicants that do not have to undertake a statutory pre-application consultation are 
encouraged to ask for advice before submitting a planning application to commence early discussions 
with the Development Management Units within the relevant planning authority to discuss what 
policies are relevant to their proposal and the need or not for a statement language or Language 
Impact Assessment. 
 
Matters to be considered 
 

C.18 Diagram 2 in part A of this SPG illustrates how a distinctive and sustainable community will 

look. In the diagram and the B (and Section 3 Ch – D), it is evident that a number of different 

development can contribute to creating circumstances in which the viability of the Welsh language in 

communities is positively influenced. They contribute by creating, protecting or strengthening 

infrastructure to maintain or create places that generate circumstances that are favourable to 

maintaining Welsh medium and bilingual networks, transfer the Welsh language from one generation 

to another within the home and the community, and by generating new 'speakers'. 

C.19 The Welsh Government's ambition is to "see a million people being be able to enjoy talking 

and using Welsh by 2050.  The Government acknowledges that "there is no doubt that this is a 

challenging ambition" "if we are to realise the situation where Welsh is an integral element of all 

aspects of everyday life ... the whole nation needs to be part of the journey.  Everyone has a role to 

play, and we want everyone to contribute to achieving our ambition. "   It is important for applicants 

to understand therefore that there is an expectation for developments over the Plan period to 

contribute positively towards the sustainability and viability of the Welsh language and not only avoid 

contributing to a reduction in the proportion of the population that can speak the Welsh language. 

Page 76



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND SUSTAINING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

C.20 The Priority of Gwynedd’s Promotion Plan (2018 – 2023) for the first part of the Plan period, 
leading to the next Census in 2021, will be “to increase the opportunities for using the Welsh 
Language, to increase the confidence of those who don’t consider themselves Welsh speakers, and 
also to look at opportunities that will help us keep young people in their communities” In doing so, 
one aim is to see the Welsh language given prominence in economic, housing and planning schemes 
locally in order to ensure that any schemes and developments contribute in a positive way towards 
the efforts to safeguard the Welsh language in our communities.” 
 
C.21 The Isle of Anglesey County Council Welsh Language Strategy (2016 - 2012) sets a vision to restore 
the percentage of Welsh speakers to the 2001 Census level. It includes three Priority Themes – 
Education, the Workplace, Welsh services and infrastructure and the community. In terms of 
communities it sets a target to “maintain the wards where 70% of the population speak Welsh and to 
increase the percentage in the other wards.” 
 

C.22 The easiest way to avoid negative effects or promote positive effects is to prepare thorough 

evidence to support the planning application for a particular development. Identifying the 

characteristics of the community and the factors that influence the places that are important to the 

viability of the language early on, offer the best opportunity for ensuring that the Welsh language is a 

consideration when developing the proposal. It is crucial that applicants ensure they have all the 

necessary information about the community, and information about planning policy.  

C.23 Applications for large unexpected development would also benefit from undertaking activities 

to communicate and consult with stakeholders early on in the process. Doing so from the outset will 

reduce the risk of delay in making decisions or in making a recommendation for refusing a planning 

application on the grounds of insufficient relevant information or objections by communities during 

the application's consultation period, on the grounds that there is insufficient information about the 

proposed development. 

C.24 Table 2 sets out the main factors to be considered and the additional information required to 

assess the sustainability credentials of a development from a Welsh language perspective. Appendix 

2 identifies acknowledged sources about the Welsh language in communities in the Plan's area.  

Applicants are encouraged to become familiar with the information about the community / area of 

influence, ensuring that they look for the most up-to-date acknowledged information available when 

they prepare their planning application.

Page 77



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND SUSTAINING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Table 2 - matters to consider and necessary additional information for assessing the characteristics of 
sustainable development from a Welsh language perspective 
 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

The Welsh 

language 

The importance of the Welsh language as part of 

the social and cultural character of the Plan's area 

is obvious. In a national context, the Plan's area 

contains the highest proportion of Welsh speakers 

in Wales (65.4% in Gwynedd and 57.2% in 

Anglesey, according to the 2011 Census). However, 

the Plan acknowledges that these figures show a 

fall in the number of Welsh speakers since the 2001 

Census, when figures were 69% and 60% 

respectively. This fall is particularly notable as it 

brings the percentage of Welsh speakers further 

below the 70% mark. This is the figure that the 

Welsh Government Welsh Language Strategy 

acknowledges is required in order for the Welsh 

language to function as the community's everyday 

language. The percentage of Welsh speakers varies 

greatly across the Plan's area, with 87.8% recorded 

in one ward and 18.6% in another. The decline has 

impacted areas with a higher and lower proportion 

of Welsh speakers. In terms of current trends and 

the state of the Welsh language, a statistical record 

from different Censuses and various sources are 

found in Topic Paper 10A and 10B, and from other 

sources (see Appendix 1).   

 

The Isle of Anglesey County Council Welsh 

Language Strategy (2016 - 2012) sets a vision to 

increase the number of Welsh speakers, and for the 

percentage to rise to at least 60.1% as it was in 

2001 (see the link in Appendix 2). Gwynedd's Welsh 

Language Strategy (2013 - 2017) (see link in 

Appendix 2) sets a quantitative target to  ensure an 

increase of 5% in the percentage of the Welsh-

speaking population in Gwynedd by 2021. 

 

Developments should not harm the social, 

linguistic and cultural characteristics of the 

communities. A combination of Policies could be 

relevant, for example: 

 

Screening Process, Welsh 

Language Statement, or a 

Welsh Language Impact 

Assessment. 

 

The Screening Process takes 

place during the pre- 

application stage. When a 

Language Statement or a 

Welsh Language Impact 

Assessment report is not 

required, the screening 

process will highlight the 

opportunities for applicants 

to confirm, e.g. through a 

Planning Statement, that the 

proposed development is 

consistent with the aim of 

and Policy requirements of 

the Plan for the Welsh 

language.  

 

A Welsh Language 

Statement will be necessary 

to obtain more information 

about a development that 

meets the thresholds in 

criterion 1, a - c Policy PS 1. 

See Diagram 6 and Appendix 

7 for more information. 

 

In accordance with criterion 

2 of Policy PS 1, a large 

unexpected windfall 

development not identified 

or anticipated in the Joint 

Local Development Plan will 

require a Language Impact 

Assessment. See Diagram 8 

for a definition of 'large 

Page 78



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND SUSTAINING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

Policy PS 1 The Welsh Language and Culture, 

Policy TAI 8 An Appropriate Mix of Housing,  

Policy TAI 15 Threshold of Affordable Housing and 

their Distribution,  

Policy TAI 16 Exception sites,  

Policy CYF 3 Ancillary uses on employment sites, 

Policy CYF 4 New large single user industrial or 

business enterprise on sites which are not 

safeguarded or allocated for employment 

purposes,  

Policy ISA 2 Community Facilities. 

 

More information about the requirements of the 

Authorities can be obtained during the formal 

planning process or during the pre application 

stage in part 3 D of this SPG.  

 

Appendix 3 includes links to documents that give 

status to Welsh language considerations (e.g. Well-

being Act 2015, Planning Act (Wales) 2015, Welsh 

language Measure (Wales) 2011) At a national 

level, Wales Planning Policy (2016), Technical 

Advice Note 20 (2017), Technical Advice Note 6 

(2010) advise on giving consideration to the Welsh 

language when planning a development. 

unexpected windfall 

development'. It will identify 

the relevant matters that 

need to be considered when 

planning relevant 

developments. It will show 

that negative impacts have 

been avoided from the 

outset or if there are any 

negative impacts, it will 

identify measures to 

safeguard, promote and 

improve the situation. See 

Diagram 7 of this SPG, as well 

as Appendix 8 for further 

information.  

 

Welsh language Statement 

C.25 Diagram 5 above explains the circumstances when a Welsh Language Statement will be 

required with an application. Diagram 6 overleaf explains its purpose, how to prepare it and who 

should be used to prepare a Statement. Appendix 7 goes on to provide more detail about how to 

prepare a Statement. Diagram 9 provides advice about how to select a competent individual.  

Page 79



STAGE B1) PREPARING A WELSH LANGUAGE STATEMENT, 

WHEN REQUIRED 

Purpose? 

Preparing a Welsh Language Statement to accompany an application presents a number of benefits, particularly as a tool for demon-
strating and communicating that sufficient consideration has been given to the language during the process of formulating the proposal. 
It is a process where information about likely effects of a proposed development  is collected, collated and assessed by a competent per-
son. The applicant will consider the the information as part of the work to prepare the application. It is required to show if development 
is going to contribute to create social climate and conditions that facilitate the use of the Welsh language in the local community. It 
allows the Authority to see whether the proposal meets the Plan’s objectives and policies. It will assist the applicant, then the Authority, 
to determine what measures are required (embedded and/or managed by a planning condition or 106 Agreement) to eliminate or 
reduce the effects or to enhance a positive impact. It will also allow the Authority to decide whether the development would have such a 
negative impact on the language and the community that would justify a refusal of the application  

How? 

Appendix 7 to this Guidance sets out the Authority's requirements for the basic level of information required in a Language Statem-

ent  

All proposed development are different to each other and therefore will be considered on its own merits. The scope and range of work 

for the Statement depends on what kind of development is, its scale, character and location of the site, % Welsh speakers, and the type 

of services and facilities currently provided in Welsh for the community.  

Appendix 2 refers to recognised sources of information about the Welsh language at the time of preparing this Guidance in order to 

give the context.    

It is important to engage and consult with the local community even if there is no statutory requirement to do so.  

Who? 
Consideration should be given to appointing an competent person to collect and analyse information to be recorded in the Language 

Statement. The need for the support of a competent person will depend on the size and type of the development. The applicant is res-

ponsible for paying for the work for the Welsh Language Statement. When it is decided to appoint a competent person, their role will be 

to ensure adherence to the Methodology set out in Appendix 7 and advise the applicant accordingly. See Diagram 9 in the Plan for a 

description of a competent person 

Diagram 6 

P
age 80



PURPOSE? The purpose of the Assessment is to establish the likely impact of the proposed development on communities in general, and on the Welsh language more specifically 

and, if appropriate, identify measures that will either mitigate negative effects, or protect/enhance/spread positive effects. It will help ensure the linguistic implications 

of a relevant proposed development are fully explored before planning decisions are made. It is a process where information about the likely effects of proposed devel-

opment is collected, collated, and assessed by a competent person who will advise the applicant. The applicant shall give due consideration to the information as part 

of the work to formulate the development. It is a process where information about the proposed development’s likely effects are collected, colated and assessed by a 

competent person, who will advise the applicant. The applicant will consider the informaton as part of the work to formulate the application.   

WHEN? 

The planning application has to relate to a combination of two factors, namely that the site is an unexpected windfall one and that the development is for large scale 

housing development or one which creates significant job opportunities (which include retail and commercial). See examples of scenarios on the next page   

Unexpected windfall site — this is 

assessed by looking at the Plan’s 

strategy and policies and the eviden-

ce to support the strategy and polic-

ies, e.g. its location relative to the 

development boundary, the status of 

the site in Plan’s policies, Urban 

Capacity considerations, when the 

site became available, whether or not 

it complies with relevant Plan polic-

ies.  

Major housing development — for the purpose of criter-

ion 2 Policy PS 1, it is a development that would mean 

having 10 or more housing units in a sub-regional Centre 

or Urban Service Centre, and means having 5 or more 

housing units in a Local Service Centre or village.  The 

capacity of the site will be considered to determine 

whether the threshold has been reached, e.g. whether it 

would be possible to build more than the intended num-

ber of housing on site which would mean exceeding the 

threshold; and/or is the site only of a site, which, taken 

as a whole, would exceed the threshold  

Large scale employment development that requir-

es a significant flow of workforce: 

i) Requires 10 or more workers; and 

ii) That the jobs must be marketed beyond the 

recognised travel to work area in order to 

attract the workforce that have the relevant 

skills for the new jobs. Please get in touch with 

the Department responsible for the devel-

opment of the area's economy for information 

— see contact details in Appendix 4  

HOW AND WHO? 

Appendix 8 sets out the Authority’s detailed expectations about how to go about undertaking a Language Impact Assessment and the expectations about the 

content of the report. In contrast to cases when it is necessary to undertake work associated with the preparation of a Language Statement, the applicant is 

expected to have a competent person to undertake a Language Impact Assessment — see Diagram 9 in the Guidance for a description of a competent person. 

The role of the competent person will be to undertake the assessment work in accordance with the Language Impact Assessment methodology and advise the 

applicant in accordance with the conclusions of the assessment. The applicant will be responsible for paying for the work. 
Diagram 7 

Welsh Language Impact Assessment Report 

C.26 Diagram 7 draws attention to when a Language Impact Assessment Reprot will be required with a planning application with an overview of its purpose. More detail is provided in 
Appendix 8  

P
age 81



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

C27 Diagram 8 provides examples of circumstances when work to prepare a Welsh Language 
Impact Assessment will be required. 
 
Diagram 8 examples of scenarios when a welsh language impact assessment would be required 
 

 
Scenario 1 - the site is within the development boundary of an Urban Service Centre, e.g. 
Caernarfon, Llangefni. As it is not a housing allocation, it is a windfall site. When the Plan was 
prepared it was not a windfall site available for development, and developing it would result in 
more housing units on windfall sites than was anticipated at the time of preparing the Plan. The 
site is, therefore, an unexpected windfall site. The development is for 15 units. Based on this 
information, a combination of the circumstances referred to in criterion 2 of Policy PS 1 is seen. 
Consequently, a Welsh Language Impact Assessment is required. 

 
 

 
Scenario 2 - the site is outside the development boundaries. It has not been safeguarded or 
allocated for employment. The development falls into Class B1 Use. It is, therefore, an 
unexpected windfall site. It is expected that 15 workers will be employed. Having consulted with 
the Economy and Community Department (Gwynedd Council) / Economic Development Service 
within the Regulatory and Economic Development Department (Anglesey County Council), it is 
anticipated that workers will move into the Plan's area or will travel from outside the Plan's area 
to jobs because of a shortage of skills locally or there is an insufficient supply of local workers 
who have the skills. Consequently, a Welsh Language Impact Assessment is required. 
 

 
C.28 Before a competent individual is appointed, the applicant is expected to make enquires about 
their abilities and experience. Diagram 9 helps you to select a competent individual to provide advice 
and guidance to an applicant 

 
Diagram 9: How to choose a competent person to advise and guide you with a Welsh Language 
Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

 
 

Membership of relevant 
professional body

Use consultants with an 
accredited Language Planning 

qualification, or a qualification, 
experience or training in 

research in linguistic planning, 
and a Town and Country 

Planning qualification.

Depending on the type, size 
and complexity of the proposal, 

you should consider using a 
multidisciplinary team of 

consultants

Previous Experience. - ask for: 
recent examples of work, 

including preparing a Welsh 
Language Statement or a 

report about a Welsh Language 
Impact Assessment; a 

reference list, so that you can 
check the standard of work.

Information about the local 
area - consultants with local 

information will be in a better 
position to assess the 

implications of a proposed 
development within the local 

context.

Page 82



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Other considerations included in Policy PS 1 
 
C. 29  Signs and advertisements - Signs have a clear visible effect on the character of the area, 
including its linguistic character. They also provide an opportunity to promote the area’s unique 
culture, which is significant in terms of the identity of different communities and the tourism industry.     
In the case of signs and advertisements that are subject to planning control, criterion 5 of Policy PS 1 
promotes the provision of bilingual signage in public places that are part of the development. The 
Authorities recognise that some organisations and companies have strong brands and images already 
in use outside of Wales. If that brand and/or logo is one that depends on words (rather than an image) 
and it is not part of the identity of the organisation or company, the Authorities are keen to discuss 
the possibility of adjusting the brand to reflect its location in the Plan area. All organisations and 
companies will be able to ensure that all other signs and advertisements are bilingual. The Welsh 
language Commissioner's Office has published a "Guide to bilingual design", which contains references 
to the design of bilingual signs (see Appendix 3). 
 
C.30 Place names – criterion 6 of Policy PS 1 encourages developers to use Welsh place names for 
developments, new house and street names in order to strengthen the linguistic character of 
communities. Both Councils encourage developers to retain old Welsh place names. Using a new name 
that derives from historical, geographical or local links to the area would be a good idea. If the existing 
name is an original one or has been the name of the property for a number of years, particularly if it 
is a Welsh one, the Council will ask the applicant for the new name to reconsider, even if the proposed 
new name is a Welsh one. However, the final decision lies with the owner. The Welsh language 
Commissioner’s Office has published “Guidance to standardise Welsh place names” (see Appendix 3).
  
Steps 3, 4 and 5: Identifying measures to mitigate/ avoid, preparing a strategy and presenting a 

planning application (see Diagram 3) 

C.31 Diagram 10 describes the process of identifying measures to mitigate/ avoid, preparing a 

strategy and presenting a planning application 

Page 83



STAGE C) IDENTIFY MEASURES TO AVOID/ MITIGATE IF REQUIRED 

Proposals should demonstrate how early consideration has been given to potential impacts 
on communities and the Welsh language. Careful consideration should be given to the neg-
ative and positive impacts of the development on places that are important to be able to 
transfer the Language and places that are important to create opportunities to use and learn 
Welsh. The Welsh Language Statement and the report about the Welsh Language Impact As-
sessment will record the considerations and steps taken to address them  

If potential negative impacts are identified, the folowing 

steps should be taken, in order of preference 

a) Avoid negative impacts; and/ or 

b) Reduce the impacts when they cannot be avoid-
ed; and/ or 

c) Mitigate impacts that cannot be reduced. 

If significant adverse effects cannot be adequately miti-
gated, the Language Statement and the report about 
the Welsh Language Impact Assessment will have to 
present persuasive justification to the Authority for 
moving forward with the planning application  

If potential positive impacts are identified, 
when possible, steps should be taken to en-
sure wider benefits of the development.  

Appendix 6 lists examples of activities that can be used to avoid, reduce or mitigate adverse effects or 

strengthening/spread positive impacts or benefits of any development. The relevance of the activity will 

depend on the type, scale and location of the proposed development. It is expected that the competent per-

son who advices the applicant will contact the relevant Menter Iaith and/or officicers with responsibility for 

promoting the Welsh language to discuss the measures, as well as discussing the matter with the planning off-

icer. 

STAGE CH) PRESENT A PLANNING APPLICATION 

By the time the planning application that is ready to be submitted, it must be ensured that Stage A has 

been completed and, depending on the result of this stage, planning applications for development which 

is relevant to the Welsh language include the following:  

i. Information about how the development is beneficial to the community and the language is part of 

a Planning Statement or a part of a Design and Access Statement; or 

 ii.  Language Statement; or  

iii.  Report on the Language Impact Assessment.  

Diagram 10 

Page 84



STAGE D) ASSESS THE PLANNING APPLICATION THAT IS SUPPORTED BY A LANGUAGE 

STATEMENT OR REPORT ON A LANGUAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

WHO? 

 

Planning Officer 

HOW? 

Step 1) seeks advice and guidance from a competent officer (s) within the Authority. The relevant compe-

tent officer will:  

 Use the Screening process to determine whether the proposed development requires a Welsh 

Language Statement or a report about the Welsh Language Impact Assessment; 

 Verify the Welsh Language Statement and the report about the Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

against the requirements of the relevant methodology set out in Appendix 7 and 8, as appropriate; 

 Draw the Planning Officer’s attention to any gaps in information included in the Welsh Language 

Statement and the report about the Welsh Language Impact Assessment ; 

 Where relevant, advise the Planning Officer about any mitigation measures ore potential improvem-

ent measures; 

 Advise the Planning Officer about the proposed Development’s Welsh language credentials  

Diagram 11 

P
age 85



Stage 2) when the competent officer raises relevant issues, the Planning Officer will inform the applicant and ask for additional relevant infor-

mation  

Step 3) when there is a dispute between the planning officer and the applicant regarding evidence, depending on the scale of the conflict, the 

planning officer (in consultation with the competent officer within the Council) will employ an external competent person to check the evi-

dence which is the subject of the dispute. The cost of the additional verification process will be paid for by the applicant, not the authority;  

Step 4) The Planning Officer will seek the competent officer’s guidance and advice about the external competent officer’s conclusions and then 

discuss the matter with the applicant; 

Step 5) The Planning Officer will consider the information received in steps 1—4  before completing the delegated report or Committe Report. 

HOW? 

STAGE D) MAKING THE DECISION—APPROVE OR REFUSE 

WHO? 

Planning Committee or Chief Planning 

Officer 

WHICH CONSIDERATIONS? 

i. Conformity with policies in the Local Development Plan, unless material planning consideratiosn indicate otherwise; 

ii. Planning considerations can include the views of the public. Local opposition or support in itself is not a basis to ref-

use or give planning consent, unless it is based on planning reasons; 

iii. Which planning conditions and/ or Section 106 Agreement obligations (i.e. suitable planning mechanisms) - see Ap-

pendix 6; 

iv. Would it cause substantial harm to the character and language balance in the community, which cannot be avoided 

or mitigated in a satisfactory manner through the use of appropriate planning mechanisms.  Bydd The determination 

of whether there is a risk of significant harm is a matter of fact and degree and this will be decided on the merits of 

individual cases based on the analysis of compelling evidence  

P
age 86



What is ‘significant impact’? 

Risk assessment principles are used to consider robust evidence to make the decision: 

P
age 87



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Step 8 Monitoring (see Diagram 3) 
 
C.33 The implementation of the policies of the Local Development Plan and submission of a Welsh 

Language Statement or a report about a Welsh Language Impact Assessment will be monitored and 

reported on in the Local Development Plan's Annual Monitoring Report. 

 

C.34 Here are the relevant indicators: 

 Indicator D1: % Welsh speakers in 2021 in Anglesey and Gwynedd;  

 Indicator D2: Approve planning applications where Welsh language mitigating measures are 

required; Indicator  

 D3: The number of planning applications with a Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh 

Language Impact Assessment  

 

C.35 Further information about the indicators can be found in Chapter 7 of the Joint Local 

Development Plan). As noted in the Monitoring Framework, the Planning Service, along with other 

relevant Services within the Councils and partner organisations (i.e. Hunaniaith and Menter Iaith Môn) 

will collaborate to monitor the Local Development Plan. 

 

C.36 Where relevant, and in order to gather more information to analyse trends among Welsh 

speakers in the Plan's area, the Councils will undertake Research work at appropriate times during 

the Plan period. The statistical/ qualitative work, for example, will include: 

 gathering data from the buyers of new houses in order to, for example, discover, where they 

lived before buying the new house, type of employment, opportunities to speak Welsh at 

work;  

 contact local businesses or organisations to collect information that isn’t confidential about 

the number of people employed on a full/ part time basis; number of people that are able to 

speak Welsh; where new jobs are advertised.  

C.37 This should help in discovering whether there is a correlation between new developments 

and the change (positive/negative) in the proportion of Welsh speakers in the community in order to 

provide evidence to review the policy in due course. 

 

  

Page 88

http://www.mentrauiaith.cymru/?lang=en


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 3 

How to satisfy the 

requirements of Strategic 

Policy PS 5 and PS 6 

 

  

Page 89



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

SECTION 3  

Guidance about information requirements about the wider context 

Part Ch Matters to consider and necessary additional information to support a planning application 
 
Ch.1 Different types of developments necessary to maintain and create distinctive and sustainable 
communities take place to varying degrees. Matters requiring attention and, as such, the information 
necessary to reach a logical decision, will also vary.  
 
Ch.2 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012 
(the DMPWO) provides a Standardised Application Form for planning applications in Wales and 
defines a 'valid' application. In order to register applications as 'valid', applicants must provide all 
information noted in the Standardised Application Form, e.g. plans, diagrams and certificates and any 
additional supplementary assessments. A local planning authority can refuse an application if the 
appropriate information is not provided. 
 
Ch.3 In addition to the information required to validate applications, the Gwynedd and Anglesey 
County Council Planning Authority, as with every Local Planning Authority in Wales, will require 
additional supplementary inspections and reports in accordance with the policy requirements of the 
Local Development Plan.  
 
Ch.4 The next table gives guidance on matters that require consideration when aiming to improve 
the sustainable characteristics of the development. The table also highlights the different possible 
types of necessary additional supplementary inspections and reports (depending on the type of 
development and/or its location) to show how the proposed development can reach the best practice 
category. Some have been identified as part of the validation requirements referred to above and 
others are requirements associated with individual policies within the Local Development Plan. 
 

Page 90



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Table 3 – Matters to be considered and additional information required to assess the sustainability credentials of development 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

Landscape 

 

 

Landscapes and seascapes are intrinsic parts of the special features 

of the Plan's area, contributing to their character and general 

sense of place.  Sustainable developments are ones that protect 

and improve the character of the landscape and seascape of the 

Plan's area, along with the quality of the views of Snowdonia 

National Park, and which have been designed, located, scaled and 

landscaped to support and improve the key characteristics of the 

landscape, public views and open spaces. The Landscape Strategy 

provides information about the characteristics of the landscape 

according to the Landscape Character Area, whilst the Landscape 

Sensitivity and Capacity Assessment deals with the possible impact 

different types of developments would have on the landscape. 

Seascape Assessments (local and regional) identify the 

characteristics of seascapes around the Plan's area. Attention must 

also be paid to the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

Management Plan and the relevant Statement of Value and 

Significance. Information about sourcing these documents can be 

found in Appendix 3. 

 

Landscape and Visual Assessment 

 

The results of an assessment with a specific aim of ensuring 

that all possible impacts of change and development on the 

landscape and on views and visual amenities are considered 

when making decisions on planning applications.  

 

Landscaping Scheme 

 

A plan that contains details of new hard and soft landscaping in 

order to show how a development can be satisfactorily 

integrated into the nearby area. 

Wildlife and 

geology 

'Wildlife' or 'biodiversity', geology and geomorphology of an area 

is responsible for many of the unique views, aromas and sounds of 

the countryside. Protecting and improving them is therefore 

crucial to protect the special features that define the area. 

Sustainable developments are those that protect and improve 

wildlife, geology and geomorphology. Attention will have to be 

Biodiversity Survey and Report 

 

The results of any necessary ecological inspections and 

recommendations for avoiding, reducing and rectifying any 

harmful impacts of a development. See Technical Advice Note 5 

and Supplementary Planning Guidance Good practice in 

P
age 91



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

paid, for example, to the Local Biodiversity Implementation Plan, 

and statements of value of relevant Wildlife Sites. Information 

about sourcing these documents can be found in Appendix 3. 

 

protecting biodiversity when planning and developing (to be 

published). 

 

Trees survey   

 

A survey of the trees that are endangered as a result of the 

development and a report outlining the recommendations for 

avoiding and reducing detrimental impacts and improving the 

tree provision. 

 

Heritage Cultural Heritage is an important element of the features and 

character of the Plan's area. Conserving it maintains these 

characteristics, and the advantages that these characteristics bring 

residents and visitors to the area. Sustainable developments 

protect and improve archaeological, architectural, historical, 

and/or cultural assets, and promotes the area's folklore, art, 

literature and music. The setting and significant scenery of 

designated cultural heritage assets, including scheduled ancient 

monuments, listed buildings and conservation areas, are as 

important as the asset itself. Attention will have to be paid, for 

example, to Conservation Area Character Evaluations, World 

Heritage Sites Management Plans. Information on sourcing these 

documents can be found in Appendix 3. 

 

Heritage Impact Assessment 

 

'Heritage Impact Assessments in Wales' (CADW) highlights what 

should be included in a 'Heritage Impact Statement' - see 

Appendix 3. See also Technical Advice Note 24 The Historic 

Landscape, Heritage Impact Assessments in Wales (CADW), and 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Heritage Assets (to be 

published). 

 

Pollution and 

waste control 

Managing waste and pollution produced as a result of a 

development helps safeguard the area from the negative effects 

of pollution, it improves environmental and public health which, in 

Noise Assessment 

 

P
age 92



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

turn, benefit the area's economy. Pollution comes in many forms, 

and it follows a number of pathways. Sustainable developments 

consider all relevant sources, pathways and consignees of 

pollution and waste. Sustainable developments also respect 

quality of life, the protection and improvement of health, and the 

amenities of residents and wildlife. Where possible, construction 

work and carrying out developments should be designed to reduce 

the amount of waste generated and should help reuse and recycle 

waste materials. Good practice guidances on managing building 

waste are available from Construction Excellence Wales, see 

Appendix 3.  

 

A report on the effects of noise generated by construction work 

and in carrying out the proposed development. See Technical 

Advice Note 11 Noise (1997). 

 

Air quality assessment 

 

The assessment should compare the current situation with the 

likely situation following the development’s completion 

(including other proposed development), and determine the 

changes in air quality anticipated. 

 

Transport Transport links in the area and for the area provide access to 

essential facilities and services and work, and also facilitates 

opportunities for people to enjoy the special characteristics of the 

area. There is a good network of footpaths and cycle paths in the 

area for residents and visitors, which encourage people to be 

active; public buses and trains reduce the number of private 

vehicles on the roads and reduce congestion, noise pollution and 

carbon emissions. Sustainable developments reduce the need for 

travel by locating them close to essential facilities and services. 

Locating developments in places that are close to footpaths, cycle 

paths and public transport reduces the need for travelling in a 

private vehicle. In some rural, more secluded communities, people 

have little choice but to travel in a private car. 

 

Transport assessment 

 

Characteristics of the existing transport network to and from the 

site, possible impacts from the development during the 

construction and implementation phase, and methods of 

mitigating any detrimental impacts / promoting positive 

impacts, such as sustainable transport methods. See Technical 

Advice Note 18 Transport. 

 

P
age 93



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

Sustainable 

design and 

construction 

and climate 

change 

An important element of planning for sustainable development is 

to reduce the contribution the area makes to cases of climate 

change by reducing carbon emissions. In order for a development 

to be genuinely sustainable, it must be designed and built with the 

aim of tackling the threat deriving from climate change. 

Development proposals in the area can help achieve this aim by 

avoiding areas at risk of flooding now, or that are anticipated to be 

at risk in future, and by building sustainable drainage systems 

(SUDS), and by connecting and improving the green infrastructure 

network in the area to help wildlife and help it adapt to a changing 

climate. Information about sourcing these documents can be 

found in Appendix 3. 

 

Design and Access Statement 

 

An explanation of the principles and design concepts applied to 

specific aspects of the proposal, including sum, setting, scale, 

landscaping, and appearance of the development. See Technical 

Advice Note 12 Design (2016). 

 

Flood Consequence Assessment 

 

The details of the size and likelihood of flooding on the site, 

along with any direct and indirect impacts farther downstream. 

See Technical Advice Note 15 Development and Flood Risk 

(2004). 

 

Environmental Statement 

 

The results of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) 

required for proposals that are likely to have a substantial 

environmental impact. 

 

Water Conserving Statement 

 

A statement that refers to the preventive measures and water 

conserving measures that could be taken and which were 

considered at the beginning of the process of developing 

proposals, which ones were selected and the way they would be 

included in the proposed development. 

P
age 94



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

 

Energy Statement 

 

A statement that refers to the energy efficiency measures 

considered as part of the proposal and how they will be 

implemented. The Statement should be submitted on its own or as 

part of a Design and Access Statement. 

 

Housing mix 

and viability 

An important element of maintaining and creating distinctive and 

sustainable communities is to meet the needs of different 

households in the area's communities, now and in future.  

An Affordable Housing Statement 

 

Supporting information about matters involving affordable 

housing provision on the site and away from the site, including: 

 

 number of units (market and affordable); 

 number of bedrooms; 

 location of the different market and affordable units; 

 affordable homes tenure (for rent, part ownership, 

intermediate affordable homes); 

 pro forma viability information; 

 the details of any Housing Association or other 

registered provider who is a partner in the 

development; 

 106 Section draft agreement templates.  

 

See SPG Affordable Housing (to be published). 

 

Housing Statement 

P
age 95



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

 

Supporting evidence to confirm how the development 

addresses the local demand and need for market housing and 

affordable housing; commitment in terms of the provision of 

affordable housing (percentage, size, type and tenure mix); and 

any other supporting information to justify departure from 

Policy requirements. In accordance with sustainable 

development principles the Housing Statement should also 

confirm the final mix of market housing and the arrangements 

to integrate market and affordable housing, subject to 

agreement about reserved matters. 

 

See the SPG Housing Mix (to be published) 

Local services 

and local 

facilities 

Technical Advice Note 4, Retail and commercial development 

(2016) states that every application for a retail development with 

a gross floor surface area of over 2,500 square metres, should be 

supported by an impact assessment that provides evidence about 

the choice of site, economic impacts and other impacts, access and 

environmental impacts.  Policy MAN 3 notes the possibility that 

assessments will also be required for some smaller developments, 

since a development that is smaller than the national threshold 

could have a substantially detrimental impact on the area's town 

centres. 

 

As well as maintaining town centres, retaining a local service or a 

community facility is important in maintaining and creating 

distinctive and sustainable communities.  Policy MAN 4 and Policy 

Retail Impact Assessment 

 

Report on the impact of the development on retail services in 

the local area.  

 

Marketing Statement 

 

The required evidence could include details of use and previous 

accounts, and details of campaigns, with the aim of finding a 

new owner to take on the existing use. 

 

Evidence of marketing will also have to be submitted in order to 

show that every effort has been made to ensure suitable 

P
age 96



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Subject 

 

Matters to be considered Additional information 

ISA 2 provide the exceptional circumstances in which losing these 

services and facilities could be considered.  

 

commercial building in the case of a proposal for re-use, to 

convert rural buildings for residential use. 

 

See SPG change of use of community facilities and services, 

employment sites and retail units (to be published) 

 

 

P
age 97



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Part D:  Where can development take place? 
 
Settlement Strategy 
 
D.1  The location of the development is also important to ensure a sustainable development. The 
Local Development Plan contains a Settlement Strategy (towns / centres and villages), which includes 
a spatial pattern that attempts to balance social, cultural, economic and environmental needs 
(Chapter 5, paragraph 5.7 of the Plan). The spatial distribution of housing growth is closely associated 
with employment areas in the Plan, which has strategic significance. 
 
D.2 Map 1 shows the location of settlements within the Local Development Plan area and 
identifies their role within the Settlements Hierarchy. 
 

 
 
D.3 See Appendix 4 of the Local Development Plan to see to which category individual settlements 
belong. The table below also refers to the housing tenure that will be promoted under the relevant 
policies. Unless specific restrictions have been identified in individual settlements, the bigger or more 
significant a settlement is in terms of its jobs and services, the greater the range and scale of 
developments supported within.  
 
D.4 The table below briefly describes the housing growth level expected in the three main layers 
of the Settlements Tree, namely: 

Page 98



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

 Sub-regional Centre and Urban Service Centres; 

 Local Service Centres; 

 Service, Local, Coastal and Rural Villages and Clusters 
 
Table 4 - Level of growth per settlement category in the Settlement Hierarchy 
 

Settlement 

category 

% housing 

growth 

(Policy PS 

17) 

Type of Development 

Sub-regional 

Centre 

 

53% 

• Policy TAI 1, Policy TAI 8 and Policy TAI 15 - Mix of new homes, 

in terms of type and tenure (open market housing and 

affordable houses), on designated or windfall sites (which 

includes converting suitable buildings and rural exception 

sites). 

• Policy PS 15, Policy MAN 1 and Policy MAN 3 - Retail and 

commercial developments (including shops, eateries, banks), 

with the emphasis on protecting and strengthening 

designated town centres in the first place. 

• Policy TWR 1 and Policy TWR 2 - Ancillary tourism 

developments, including serviced accommodation and self-

catering, and visitor attractions / facilities. 

• Policies ISA 1 - 2 and Policies ISA 4 - 5 - Community services 

and facilities, including public transport hubs, libraries. 

• Policy CYF 1 - Other developments that provide employment 

to support the economy, focusing initially on protected or 

designated business and industrial sites. 

 

Urban Service 

Centre 

 

Local Service 

Centre 

 

22% 

• Policy TAI 2, Policy TAI 5 and Policy TAI 8 and Policy TAI 15 - 

Mix of new homes - in terms of type and tenure (open market 

housing and affordable housing in every Local Centre, except 

for those named in Policy TAI 5 that require local market 

housing and affordable houses) on allocated or windfall sites 

(which includes converting suitable buildings and rural 

exception sites). 

• Policy PS 15, Policy MAN 1 and Policy MAN 3 - Retail and 

commercial developments (including shops, eateries, banks), 

with the emphasis on protecting and strengthening 

designated town centres in the first place. 

• Policy TWR 1 and Policy TWR 2 - Ancillary tourism 

developments, including serviced accommodation and self-

catering, and visitor attractions / facilities. 

• Policies ISA 1 - 2 and Policies ISA 4 - 5 - Community services 

and facilities, including public transport hubs, libraries. 

Page 99



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Settlement 

category 

% housing 

growth 

(Policy PS 

17) 

Type of Development 

• Policy CYF 1 - Other developments that provide employment 

to support the economy, focusing initially on protected or 

designated business and industrial sites. 

 

 

25% 

• Policy TAI 3, Policy TAI 5 and Policy TAI 8 and Policy TAI 15 - 

Mixture of new homes, - in terms of type and tenure (open 

market housing and affordable housing in every Service 

Village, except for those named in Policy TAI 5 that require 

local market housing and affordable housing) on designated 

or windfall sites (which includes converting suitable buildings 

and rural exception sites). 

• Policy MAN 4 and Policy MAN 5 - Safeguarding shops and pubs 

in villages and facilitate greater provision. 

• Policy TWR 1 and Policy TWR 2 - Ancillary tourism 

developments, including serviced accommodation and self-

catering, and visitor attractions / facilities. 

• Policies ISA 1 - 2 and Policies ISA 4 - 5 - Community services 

and facilities. 

• Policy CYF 6 - New business or industrial enterprises on an 

appropriate scale and in an appropriate location or in a 

suitable building. 

 

Local / Coastal / 

Rural Villages 

 Policy TAI 4, Policy TAI 5 and Policy TAI 8 and Policy TAI 15 - 

Mix of new homes, in terms of type and tenure (open market 

housing and affordable housing in every Village, except for 

those named in Policy TAI 5 that require local market housing 

and affordable housing) on small windfall sites (which includes 

converting suitable buildings and rural exception sites). There 

are no housing designations in the Villages. 

 Policy MAN 4 and Policy MAN 5 - Protecting shops and pubs in 

villages and facilitate greater provision. 

 Policy TWR 1 and Policy TWR 2 - Ancillary tourism 

developments, including serviced accommodation and self-

catering, and visitor attractions / facilities. 

 Policies ISA 1 - 2 and Policies ISA 4 - 5 - Community services 

and facilities. 

 Policy CYF 6 - New business or industrial enterprises on an 

appropriate scale and in an appropriate location or in a 

suitable building. 

 

Page 100



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Settlement 

category 

% housing 

growth 

(Policy PS 

17) 

Type of Development 

Clusters  Policy TAI 6 - a mixture of different types of affordable housing 

only, on small windfall sites (including converting suitable 

buildings). There are no housing designations in the Clusters. 

 Policies ISA 1 - 2 and Policies ISA 4 - 5 - Community services 

and facilities. 

 Policy CYF 6 - New business or industrial enterprises on an 

appropriate scale and in an appropriate location or in a 

suitable building. 

 

The Countryside  Policies PCYFF 1 - PCYFF 2 and Policies TAI 7 - new houses that 

enable rural enterprise workers (e.g. farms) to live close to 

their workplace, and affordable housing through converting 

suitable buildings if the building's use is not economically 

viable. 

 Policy TWR 1 and Policy TWR 2 - Ancillary tourism 

developments, including serviced accommodation and self-

catering, and visitor attractions / facilities. 

 Policy TWR 3 and Policy TWR 5 - Caravan, chalet and 

alternative camping accommodation sites for visitors 

 Policy CYF 6 - New business or industrial enterprises on an 

appropriate scale and in an appropriate location or in a 

suitable building. 

 

 

D.5 Table 5 overleaf summarises the relevant information requirements in relation to the wider 

context. 

Page 101



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

Table 5 summary of the relevant information requirements in relation to the wider context. 

 

Yr
 ia

it
h 

a 
di

w
yl

lia
nt

 C
ym

ra
eg

/T
he

 

W
el

sh
 L

an
gu

ag
e 

an
d 

Cu
lt

ur
e

Ti
rw

ed
d/

 L
an

ds
ca

pe

B
yw

yd
 G

w
yl

lt
 a

 D
ae

ar
eg

/ 
W

ild
lif

e 

an
d 

G
eo

lo
gy

Tr
ef

ta
da

et
h/

 H
er

it
ag

e

R
he

ol
i L

ly
gr

ed
d 

a 
G

w
as

tr
af

f/
  W

as
te

 

an
d 

Co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t

Cl
ud

ia
nt

/ 
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

D
yl

un
ia

d/
  D

es
ig

n

Cy
m

ys
ge

dd
 a

 H
yf

yw
dr

a 
Ta

i/
  H

ou
si

ng
 

M
ix

 a
nd

 V
ia

bi
lit

y

G
w

as
an

ae
th

au
 a

 C
hy

fl
eu

st
er

au
 

Ll
eo

l/
  L

oc
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s

Ca
no

lf
an

 Is
-r

an
ba

rt
ho

l/
  S

ub
-

R
eg

io
na

l C
en

tr
e 

Ca
no

lf
an

na
u 

G
w

as
an

ae
th

 T
re

fo
l/

  

U
rb

an
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
tr

es

Ca
no

lf
an

na
u 

G
w

as
an

ae
th

 

Ll
eo

l/
Lo

ca
l S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
tr

es

Pe
nt

re
fi

 G
w

as
an

ae
th

/ 
Se

rv
ic

e 

V
ill

ag
es

Pe
nt

re
fi

 L
le

ol
/A

rf
or

di
ro

l/
  L

oc
al

 

Co
as

ta
l V

ill
ag

es

Cl
ys

ty
ra

u 
/C

lu
st

er
s

Ce
fn

gw
la

d/
 C

ou
nt

ry
si

de

TAI 10+

5 I 9

2 I  4

1

Dei lydd Tŷ

CYFLOGAETH Mawr

Bach

Newid Defnydd

CYFLEUSTERAU A GWASANAETHU CYMUNED

IS ADEILEDD TELATHREBU

YNNI ADNEWYDDADWY

Allwedd/Key

              Yn bendant/defini tely 

              O bos ibl/poss ible

PWNC MATH O ANHEDDLE

MATH O DDATBLYGIAD /TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT

P
age 102



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

APPENDICES 
 
 

APPENDIX NAME 

1  Policy PS 1, Policy PS 5 and Policy PS 6 

2  Useful sources of data and information about the Welsh language 

3  List of useful documents 

4  List of useful contacts 

5  Screening process 

6  Possible mitigation and improvement measures - Welsh language 

7  Methodology for preparing a Welsh Language Statement 

8  Methodology for preparing a Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

 
 

 

Page 103



Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable 
communities – revised consultation draft - Appendix 1: Policy PS 5, Policy PS 6 and Policy PS 1 

 

Here is a copy of Policy PS 1, Policy PS 5 and Policy PS 6 of the Local Development Plan adopted on 

31st July 2017 

STRATEGIC POLICY PS 1: WELSH LANGUAGE AND CULTURE 

The Councils will promote and support the use of the Welsh language in the Plan area. This 

will be achieved by:  

 

1. Requiring a Welsh Language Statement, which will protect, promote and enhance 

the Welsh language, where the proposed development falls within one of the 

following categories:   

a. Retail, industrial or commercial development employing more than 50 

employees and/or with an area of 1,000 sq. m. or more; or 

b. Residential development which will individually or cumulatively provide more 

than the indicative housing provision set out for the settlement in Policies TAI 

1 – TAI 6; or 

c. Residential development of 5 or more housing units on allocated or windfall 

sites within development boundaries that doesn’t address evidence of need 

and demand for housing recorded in a Housing Market Assessments and other 

relevant local sources of evidence. 

2.  Requiring a Welsh Language Impact Assessment, which will set out how the 

proposed development will protect, promote and enhance the Welsh Language, 

where the proposed development is on an unexpected windfall site for a large scale 

housing development or large scale employment development that would lead to a 

significant workforce flow;  

3.  Refusing proposals which would cause significant harm to the character and language 

balance of a community that cannot be avoided or suitably mitigated by appropriate 

planning mechanisms; 

4. Requiring a bilingual Signage Scheme to deal with all operational signage in the 

public domain that are proposed in a planning application by public bodies and by 

commercial and business companies; 

5. Expect that Welsh names are used for new developments, house and street names.  
 

Explanation: 

6.1.6 It is intended that all of the measures outlined in the paragraphs that precede this Policy will 

support communities and the Welsh language. The Plan's key objectives demonstrate a 

commitment to the promotion of balanced, sustainable and distinctive communities. This 

means that the Plan includes policy tools to allow local communities to change and grow 

sustainably and to address the needs of all members of society. There are a number of 

strategic and detailed policies that will provide an explanation about how development 

proposals will be managed. On the whole the Sustainability Assessment (that was informed 

by the Language Impact Assessment) takes a positive view of the Plan's policies and 

proposals on the basis that the development takes place on an appropriate scale and in 

appropriate places, and includes measures to promote the positive impacts and measures to 

mitigate negative impacts.  

 

Page 104



Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable 
communities – revised consultation draft - Appendix 1: Policy PS 5, Policy PS 6 and Policy PS 1 

6.1.7 As can be seen in criteria 1 and 2 in Policy PS 1, in order to make an informed judgment at a 

planning application stage, information will be sought in relation to applications where 

development, if permitted, would come forward at a rate or scale different to that envisaged 

at the Plan preparation stage. Policy PS 1 reinforces other relevant policies in the Plan, which 

provide details on the assumptions made, e.g. the level of housing growth per settlement 

(Policies TAI 1 – TAI 6); that housing development will provide an appropriate choice of 

market housing and affordable housing (Policy TAI 8). If there is uncertainty, pre-application 

planning advice should be sought from the Local Planning Authority as to whether a 

Statement or an Assessment should be provided. Having signs in Welsh and English, and 

Welsh place and property names are a clear indication of the character of the area, including 

its linguistic character. A ‘Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable communities’ 

Supplementary Planning Guidance and a ‘Type And Mix Of Housing’ Supplementary Planning 

Guidance will be published to provide further guidance on the matter.  They will explain the 

type and location of developments that are likely to be acceptable in the Plan area, and will 

explain the relevant planning considerations. The ‘Creating and Maintaining Distinctive and 

Sustainable Communities’ SPG will describe what is expected to be included in a Signage Plan 

to promote bilingual signs, e.g. public information signs, advertisements, display 

advertisements. The statement or report on the Assessment will allow the developer to 

explain the application in more detail and to consider the possible positive and negative 

effects on the community and its linguistic balance. The SPGs, for example, will look for 

evidence that the proposal has been discussed with Community, City and Town Councils and 

local community groups to obtain information and ask for their opinion, and that 

consideration has been given to surveys about the local housing market, and/ or the labour 

market. In addition, they will refer the applicant to such assistance as is available from the 

Office of Language Commissioner about designing bilingual signage and marketing material 

and the advice that is available to the private sector by the Welsh Government/Business 

Wales regarding bilingualism. 
 

STRATEGIC POLICY PS 5:  SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

Development will be supported where it is demonstrated that they are consistent with the 

principles of sustainable development. All proposals should: 

 

1. Alleviate the causes of climate change and adapting to those impacts that are 

unavoidable in accordance with Strategic Policy PS 6; 

2. Give priority to effective use of land and infrastructure, prioritizing wherever 

possible the reuse of previously developed land and buildings within the 

development boundaries of Sub Regional Centre, Urban and Local Service Centres, 

Villages or in the most appropriate places outside them in accordance with Strategic 

Policy PS 17, PS 13 and PS 14; 

3. Promote greater self-containment of Centres and Villages by contributing to 

balanced communities that are supported by sufficient services; cultural, arts, 

sporting and entertainment activities; a varied range of employment opportunities; 

physical and social infrastructure; and a choice of modes of travel; 

4. Protect, support and promote the use of the Welsh language in accordance with 

Strategic Policy PS 1; 

Page 105



Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable 
communities – revised consultation draft - Appendix 1: Policy PS 5, Policy PS 6 and Policy PS 1 

5. Preserve and enhance the quality of the built and historic environment assets 

(including their setting), improving the understanding, appreciation of their social 

and economic contribution and sustainable use of them in accordance with Strategic 

Policy PS 20; 

6. Protect and improve the quality of the natural environment, its landscapes and 

biodiversity assets, including understanding and appreciating them for the social 

and economic contribution they make in accordance with Strategic Policy PS 19; 

7. Reduce the effect on local resources, avoiding pollution and incorporating 

sustainable building principles in order to contribute to energy conservation and 

efficiency; using renewable energy; reducing / recycling waste; using materials from 

sustainable sources; and protecting soil quality; 

8. Reduce the amount of water used and wasted; reducing the effect on water 

resources and quality; managing flood risk and maximizing use of sustainable 

drainage schemes; and progressing the objectives of the Western Wales River Basin 

Water Management Plan. 

 

Proposals should also where appropriate: 

 

9. Meet the needs of the local population throughout their lifetime in terms of their 

quality, types of tenure and affordability of housing units in accordance with 

Strategic Policy PS 16; 

10. Promote a varied and responsive local economy that encourages investment and 

that will support Centres, Villages and rural areas in accordance with Strategic Policy 

PS 13; 

11. Support the local economy and businesses by providing opportunities for lifelong 

learning and skills development in accordance with Strategic Policy PS 13; 

12. Reduce the need to travel by private transport and encourage the opportunities for 

all users to travel when required as often as possible by means of alternative modes, 

placing particular emphasis on walking, cycling and using public transport in 

accordance with Strategic Policy PS 4; 

13. Promote high standards of design that make a positive contribution to the local area, 

accessible places, that can respond to future requirements and that reduce crime, 

antisocial behaviour and the fear of crime in accordance with Policy PCYFF 3. 

 

STRATEGIC POLICY PS 6: ALLEVIATING AND ADAPTING TO THE EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE 

 

In order to alleviate the effects of climate change, proposals will only be permitted 

where it is demonstrated that they have fully taken account of and responded to the 

following: 

 

Page 106



Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and creating distinctive and sustainable 
communities – revised consultation draft - Appendix 1: Policy PS 5, Policy PS 6 and Policy PS 1 

1. The energy hierarchy: 

i. Reducing energy demand; 

ii. Energy efficiency; 

iii. Using low or zero carbon energy technologies wherever practical, viable and 

consistent with the need to engage and involve communities; protect visual 

amenities, the natural, built and historic environment and the landscape. 

2. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions, help to reduce waste and encourage travel 

other than by car. 

 

In order to adapt to the effects of climate change, proposals will only be permitted where 

it is demonstrated with appropriate evidence that they have fully taken account of and 

responded to the following: 

 

3. Implementing sustainable water management measures in line with the objectives 

in the Western  Wales River Basin Management Plan; 

4. Locating away from flood risk areas, and aim to reduce the overall risk of flooding 

within the Plan area and areas outside it, taking account of a 100 years and 75 years 

of flood risk in terms of the lifetime of residential and non-residential development, 

respectively, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that there is no risk or that the 

risk can be managed; 

5. Be able to withstand the effects of climate change as much as possible because of 

its high standards of sustainable design, location, layout and sustainable building 

methods (in line with Policy PCYFF 3); 

6. Safeguarding the best and most versatile agricultural land, promoting allotments, 

support opportunities for local food production and farming in order to reduce the 

area’s contribution to food miles;  

7. Ensuring that the ability of landscapes, environments and species to adapt to the 

harmful effects of climate change is not affected, and that compensatory 

environments are provided if necessary;  

8. Aim for the highest possible standard in terms of water efficiency and implement 

other measures to withstand drought, maintain the flow of water and maintain or 

improve the quality of water, including using sustainable drainage systems (in line 

with Policy PCYFF 6).  

 

 

Page 107



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT – Appendix 2 – useful sources of 
information 

i 
 

 

Here is a list of recognised sources of data and information that will give a picture of communities, 
and in particular the Welsh language. These are the recognised sources at the time of preparing the 
Guidance. Applicants will be expected to use the information in the latest editions of the sources as 
well as any other relevant recognised sources available at the time of preparing the planning 
application. 

1) The Census of the Population is the key source of information about the number of people 
who can speak Welsh.  The Census includes everyone in Wales.  Census estimates describe 
the features of areas down to very small geographical units, and they are used to understand 
similar characteristics and the differences in the population locally, regionally and nationally.  

o http://llyw.cymru/statistics-and-research/census-population-welsh-
language/?skip=1&lang=en  

 
The Census also provides information about Welsh language ability among three- and four-
year old children.  This measure has been used, together with data on Welsh speaking adults 
in the households where those children reside, to infer rates of intergenerational transmission 
of Welsh (where one or more of the adults responsible for rearing the child/ children are able 
to speak Welsh).  The Census data shows that there is a strong relationship between children’s 
ability to speak Welsh in early years (i.e. three to four years of age) and their parents’/ carers’ 
ability to speak Welsh.  Transmission data is available at a level below local authority level (the 
level of combined wards and wider middle layer output areas).  Although it is not possible to 
identify individuals from the data, the numbers in some areas are very small so care should be 
taken when analysing any differences between areas based on those small numbers. 
 

Data analysis of the 2011 Census is avilable on the Welsh language Commissioner's website 
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/Cymraeg/Polisi,%20ymchwil%20a%20data/Pages/Dadans
oddiad-Cyfrifiad%202011.aspx. Research sources and research reports are available in the official 
statistics section of the Welsh language Commissioner on the Commissioner's website that may be of 
use in gathering evidence for the use of Welsh in communities: 
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/Cymraeg/Polisi,%20ymchwil%20a%20data/Ystadegau%20
Swyddogol%20Comisiynydd%20y%20Gymraeg/Pages/Ystadegau-Swyddogol-Comisiynydd-y-
Gymraeg-.aspx 
Dylai ymgeiswyr hefyd wirio gwefan Statiaith.com sy’n ffynhonnell gynhwysfawr o ddata am y 
Gymraeg. Ceir yma driniaethau o ddata’r Cyfrifiad ynghyd â data o ffynonellau eraill amrywiol. Mae’r 
gwefan yn cynnwys nifer o fapiau rhyngweithiol sy’n eich galluogi i edrych ar ddata ar gyfer lefelau 
daearyddol gwahanol. Ceir data ychwanegol am batrymau trosglwyddo iaith mewn gwahanol rannau 
o Gymru: https://statiaith.com/blog/cyfrifiad-2011/trosglwyddor-gymraeg/dadansoddi-trosglwyddo-
2011/. Ceir hefyd ddadansoddiadau amgen o ddata’r Cyfrifiad megis mapiau o ddosbarthiad siaradwyr  
o’r Gymraeg yn ystod oriau gwaith: https://statiaith.com/blog/cyfrifiad-2011/mapiau-am-y-gymraeg-
o-gyfrifiad-2011/cyfrifiad-2011-poblogaeth-diwrnod-gwaith/ 

 
The next Census will be held in 2021.  The Office for National Statistics is currently investigating 
the possibility of moving to a census based on administrative data after 2021.  

o https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/censustransformationprogramme/administrativ
edatacensusproject  
 

2) Information about the number of Welsh speakers can also be found from the National 
Survey for Wales.  The National Survey for Wales is a survey of households, of about 
12,000 people per year across the whole of Wales.  The results are used by the Welsh 

Page 108

http://llyw.cymru/statistics-and-research/census-population-welsh-language/?skip=1&lang=en
http://llyw.cymru/statistics-and-research/census-population-welsh-language/?skip=1&lang=en
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/Cymraeg/Polisi,%20ymchwil%20a%20data/Pages/Dadansoddiad-Cyfrifiad%202011.aspx
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/Cymraeg/Polisi,%20ymchwil%20a%20data/Pages/Dadansoddiad-Cyfrifiad%202011.aspx
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/Cymraeg/Polisi,%20ymchwil%20a%20data/Ystadegau%20Swyddogol%20Comisiynydd%20y%20Gymraeg/Pages/Ystadegau-Swyddogol-Comisiynydd-y-Gymraeg-.aspx
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/Cymraeg/Polisi,%20ymchwil%20a%20data/Ystadegau%20Swyddogol%20Comisiynydd%20y%20Gymraeg/Pages/Ystadegau-Swyddogol-Comisiynydd-y-Gymraeg-.aspx
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/Cymraeg/Polisi,%20ymchwil%20a%20data/Ystadegau%20Swyddogol%20Comisiynydd%20y%20Gymraeg/Pages/Ystadegau-Swyddogol-Comisiynydd-y-Gymraeg-.aspx
https://statiaith.com/blog/cyfrifiad-2011/trosglwyddor-gymraeg/dadansoddi-trosglwyddo-2011/
https://statiaith.com/blog/cyfrifiad-2011/trosglwyddor-gymraeg/dadansoddi-trosglwyddo-2011/
https://statiaith.com/blog/cyfrifiad-2011/mapiau-am-y-gymraeg-o-gyfrifiad-2011/cyfrifiad-2011-poblogaeth-diwrnod-gwaith/
https://statiaith.com/blog/cyfrifiad-2011/mapiau-am-y-gymraeg-o-gyfrifiad-2011/cyfrifiad-2011-poblogaeth-diwrnod-gwaith/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/censustransformationprogramme/administrativedatacensusproject
https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/censustransformationprogramme/administrativedatacensusproject


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT – Appendix 2 – useful sources of 
information 

ii 
 

Government to help make Wales a better place to live.  Information is gathered about the 
population’s Welsh language abilities, as well as their fluency and frequency of use of 
Welsh.  Data from the National Survey for Wales is used for national indicators for the Well-
being of Future Generations Act.  

o http://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/national-survey/?skip=1&lang=en  
 

The Welsh Government's strategy 2050: million Welsh speakers includes useful data and 
information at national level. 
 
See in particular: technical report: Projection and trajectory in the number of Welsh 
speakers aged three and over, 2011-2050 
 
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170725-technical-report-projection-and-
trajectory-for-the-number-of-welsh-speakers-cy.pdf 
 

3) The Annual Population Survey also gathers information about respondents’ ability to 
speak Welsh and how often they speak it.  

o https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Welsh-Language  
Historically, estimates of household surveys about Welsh language ability were considered 
to be higher than those produced by the Census. The differences in the ways that these 
surveys and the Census have been conducted are likely to have affected the results.  The 
Census gave everyone a questionnaire to complete themselves, and the National Survey 
for Wales used face-to-face interviews with one individual aged 16 years or over.  The 
Annual Population Survey uses some face-to-face interviews and some telephone 
interviews with adults aged 16 years and over.  It may be that people are more willing to 
say that they speak Welsh in surveys led by an interviewer. 
 

4) More detailed information about fluency among Welsh speakers, and their use of the 
Welsh language in a variety of settings, is available in the Language Use Surveys of 2004–
06 and 2013–15.  This survey is not intended to provide new estimates of the number of 
people who speak Welsh in Wales.  Rather, it provides information about adults and young 
people who speak Welsh, how well they can speak it, how often, where, when, and with 
whom they use it.  

o http://llyw.cymru/statistics-and-research/Welsh-language-use-
survey/?skip=1&lang=en  
 

5) There is not much administrative data available about the Welsh language, apart from 
education data.  Data is available for children within the statutory education system via the 
Pupil Level Annual School Census (PLASC).  The PLASC gathers information about fluency 
in the Welsh language, speaking Welsh at home, studying Welsh and Welsh-medium 
education. 

o http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/schooldata/ims/dataco
llections/pupillevelannualschoolcensus/?skip=1&lang=en  
 

6) Data is also available about further education learners from Lifelong Learning Wales 
Record (LLWR).  The LLWR gathers information about fluency in the Welsh language, the 
highest qualification level in Welsh at the start of the learning programme, and learning 
activities in the medium of Welsh. 

o http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/learningproviders/datacollection/?ski
p=1&lang=en  
 

Page 109

http://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/national-survey/?skip=1&lang=en
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170725-technical-report-projection-and-trajectory-for-the-number-of-welsh-speakers-cy.pdf
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170725-technical-report-projection-and-trajectory-for-the-number-of-welsh-speakers-cy.pdf
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Welsh-Language
http://llyw.cymru/statistics-and-research/Welsh-language-use-survey/?skip=1&lang=en
http://llyw.cymru/statistics-and-research/Welsh-language-use-survey/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/schooldata/ims/datacollections/pupillevelannualschoolcensus/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/schooldata/ims/datacollections/pupillevelannualschoolcensus/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/learningproviders/datacollection/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/learningproviders/datacollection/?skip=1&lang=en


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT – Appendix 2 – useful sources of 
information 

iii 
 

7) Some Welsh for Adults data has also been published on the StatsCymru website.  The data 
shows numbers and registrations of Welsh for Adults learners by provider and academic 
year. 

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-
Training/Further-Education-and-Work-Based-Learning/Learners/Further-
Education/welshforadults-learners-enrolments 

 

8) Anglesey Welsh Language Strategy – It was prepared under the name of the Anglesey 
Language Forum. For this first strategy, the forum agreed to focus on three themes, 
namely: children, young people and the family; the workforce, Welsh language services 
and infrastructure; and the community. It provides a picture of the situation in Anglesey 
and identifies a series of priority areas to work on during the strategy period (2016 – 2021) 

 
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/b/t/r/Welsh-Language-Strategy-2016-2021.pdf  

 

9) Gwynedd Welsh Language Strategy – provides a clear picture of the linguistic position in 
Gwynedd based on a detailed analysis of the results of the 2011 Census. Thorough research 
was also carried out into the good work that has been happening in the county’s communities, 
schools and workplaces, along with the work undertaken with partners and various sectors 
since the publication of the 2010-2013 Gwynedd Language Strategy. It identifies a number of 
strategic priorities to work on during the strategy period (2014 – 2018).  

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-
policies/Gwynedd-language-strategy.pdf  

 
10) The Welsh Language Commissioner’s Office – support and advice to organisations wishing 

to make use of the Welsh language on a voluntary basis, using Cynllun Hybu'r Gymraeg - 
the Welsh Language Promotion Plan - for the benefit of businesses and organisations, and 
their customers and clients. The website is full of information about the advantages, 
examples of good practice, and the experiences of businesses and charities of using the 
Welsh language. There is practical advice in our various guidelines, and evidence and 
research showing the value of the Welsh language, as well as a calendar of events and 
sessions where you can learn more. 
 http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/hybu/en/home/Pages/home.aspx  
 

11) The Welsh Language Commissioner’s Office – Bilingual Design Guide 
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/English/Publications%20List/CYG1754%20Canl
law%20Dylunio%20ENGLISH.pdf  

12) Language profile – areas and population – Gwynedd – statistical information from the 
2011 Census https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Key-statistics-and-
data/Language-area-profiles.aspx 

13) Anglesey Language Profile - statistical information from the 2011 Census and other 
sources https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-
and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/PT.021-
Topic-Paper-10B-Anglesey-Language-Profile.pdf  

Page 110

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Further-Education-and-Work-Based-Learning/Learners/Further-Education/welshforadults-learners-enrolments
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Further-Education-and-Work-Based-Learning/Learners/Further-Education/welshforadults-learners-enrolments
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Further-Education-and-Work-Based-Learning/Learners/Further-Education/welshforadults-learners-enrolments
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/b/t/r/Welsh-Language-Strategy-2016-2021.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Gwynedd-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Gwynedd-language-strategy.pdf
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/hybu/en/home/Pages/home.aspx
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/English/Publications%20List/CYG1754%20Canllaw%20Dylunio%20ENGLISH.pdf
http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/English/Publications%20List/CYG1754%20Canllaw%20Dylunio%20ENGLISH.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Key-statistics-and-data/Language-area-profiles.aspx
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Key-statistics-and-data/Language-area-profiles.aspx
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/PT.021-Topic-Paper-10B-Anglesey-Language-Profile.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/PT.021-Topic-Paper-10B-Anglesey-Language-Profile.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/PT.021-Topic-Paper-10B-Anglesey-Language-Profile.pdf


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUDIANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES - Appendix 3: Schedule of useful 
documents – consultation draft 

Here is a list of useful documents. The list is not comprehensive. Applicants will be expected to refer to the most recent editions of the documents as well 

as any other relevant recognised sources available at the time of preparing the planning application. 

Gwynedd Welsh Language Strategy: 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---
Council/Strategies-and-policies/Gwynedd-language-
strategy.pdf   
 

Anglesey Welsh Language Strategy: 
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/b/t/r/Welsh-
Language-Strategy-2016-2021.pdf  

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en  
 

Planning Act (Wales) 2015 
 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/4/contents/enacted  
 

Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 
 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/1/contents/enacted  
 

Welsh 2050: a million speakers 
 
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170711-welsh-language-strategy-cy.pdf 
 
 
Cymraeg 2050: miliwn o siaradwyr Rhaglen Waith 2017 - 21 
 
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170711-cymraeg-2050-work-programme-cym-v2.pdf 
 
Adroddiad technegol: Amcanestyniad a thaflwybr nifer y siaradwyr Cymraeg tair oed a throsodd, 2011-2050 
 
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170725-technical-report-projection-and-trajectory-for-the-number-of-welsh-
speakers-cy.pdf 

P
age 111

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Gwynedd-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Gwynedd-language-strategy.pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Gwynedd-language-strategy.pdf
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/b/t/r/Welsh-Language-Strategy-2016-2021.pdf
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/Journals/b/t/r/Welsh-Language-Strategy-2016-2021.pdf
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/4/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2011/1/contents/enacted
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170711-welsh-language-strategy-cy.pdf
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170725-technical-report-projection-and-trajectory-for-the-number-of-welsh-speakers-cy.pdf
https://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170725-technical-report-projection-and-trajectory-for-the-number-of-welsh-speakers-cy.pdf


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUDIANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES - Appendix 3: Schedule of useful 
documents – consultation draft 

 

Planning Policy Wales (2016) – Chapter 4 
 
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161117ppw-chapter-4-en.pdf  
 

Technical Advice Note 20 Planning and the Welsh language 
 
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/171012-technical-advice-note-20-planning-and-the-welsh-language-en.pdf  
 

Technical Advice Note 6 
 
http://gov.wales/topics/planning/policy/tans/tan6/?lang=en   
 

Llyn AONB Management Plan 
 
http://www.ahne-llyn-aonb.org/1/en-GB/Home  

Anglesey AONB Management Plan 
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/planning-and-
waste/countryside/areas-of-outstanding-natural-beauty-
aonbs/  

Statement of Value – Landscape Conservation Areas – Anglesey and Gwynedd Local Planning Authority area 
 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-
planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Review-of-SLAs-in-Gwynedd-and-Anglesey-(DC.008).pdf  
 

Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study – Anglesey and Gwynedd Local Planning Authority area & Snowdonia National 
Park 
 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-
planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Landscape-Sensitivity-and-Capacity-Assessment-(DC.020).pdf   
 

Gwynedd Landscape Strategy 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---
Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-
planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Gwynedd-
Landscape-Strategy-Update-2012-(DC.010).pdf  

Anglesey Landscape Strategy 
 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents--
-Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-

P
age 112

http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161117ppw-chapter-4-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/171012-technical-advice-note-20-planning-and-the-welsh-language-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/topics/planning/policy/tans/tan6/?lang=en
http://www.ahne-llyn-aonb.org/1/en-GB/Home
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/planning-and-waste/countryside/areas-of-outstanding-natural-beauty-aonbs/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/planning-and-waste/countryside/areas-of-outstanding-natural-beauty-aonbs/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/planning-and-waste/countryside/areas-of-outstanding-natural-beauty-aonbs/
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Review-of-SLAs-in-Gwynedd-and-Anglesey-(DC.008).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Review-of-SLAs-in-Gwynedd-and-Anglesey-(DC.008).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Landscape-Sensitivity-and-Capacity-Assessment-(DC.020).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Landscape-Sensitivity-and-Capacity-Assessment-(DC.020).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Gwynedd-Landscape-Strategy-Update-2012-(DC.010).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Gwynedd-Landscape-Strategy-Update-2012-(DC.010).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Gwynedd-Landscape-Strategy-Update-2012-(DC.010).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Gwynedd-Landscape-Strategy-Update-2012-(DC.010).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Angesey-Landscape-Strategy---Update-2011-(DC.011).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Angesey-Landscape-Strategy---Update-2011-(DC.011).pdf


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUDIANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES - Appendix 3: Schedule of useful 
documents – consultation draft 

planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Angesey-
Landscape-Strategy---Update-2011-(DC.011).pdf   
 

Gwynedd Biodiversity Action Plan 
 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/cy/Cyngor/Strategaethau-
a-pholis%C3%AFau/Cynllunio-ac-amgylchedd/Natur-
Gwynedd---Cynllun-Gweithredu-Bioamrywiaeth.aspx  
 

Anglesey Biodiversity Action Plan 
 
http://www.ynysmon.gov.uk/cynllunio-a-gwastraff/cefn-
gwlad/bioamrywiaeth-a-chadwraeth/bywyd-gwyllt-ynys-
mn?redirect=false  

King Edward 1 Castle and Town Walls World Heritage Management Plan  
 
http://cadw.gov.wales/historicenvironment/protection/worldheritage/cstlsedward1/?lang=en  
 

Construction Excellence Wales 
 
http://www.cewales.org.uk/   
 

Historic Heritage Gwynedd 
 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Residents/Planning-
and-building-control/Conservation-Areas.aspx  
 

Anglesey Historic Heritage  
 
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/planning-and-waste/built-
environment-coastal-and-landscape/   

 

P
age 113

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Angesey-Landscape-Strategy---Update-2011-(DC.011).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Supporting-documents/Angesey-Landscape-Strategy---Update-2011-(DC.011).pdf
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/cy/Cyngor/Strategaethau-a-pholis%C3%AFau/Cynllunio-ac-amgylchedd/Natur-Gwynedd---Cynllun-Gweithredu-Bioamrywiaeth.aspx
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/cy/Cyngor/Strategaethau-a-pholis%C3%AFau/Cynllunio-ac-amgylchedd/Natur-Gwynedd---Cynllun-Gweithredu-Bioamrywiaeth.aspx
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/cy/Cyngor/Strategaethau-a-pholis%C3%AFau/Cynllunio-ac-amgylchedd/Natur-Gwynedd---Cynllun-Gweithredu-Bioamrywiaeth.aspx
http://www.ynysmon.gov.uk/cynllunio-a-gwastraff/cefn-gwlad/bioamrywiaeth-a-chadwraeth/bywyd-gwyllt-ynys-mn?redirect=false
http://www.ynysmon.gov.uk/cynllunio-a-gwastraff/cefn-gwlad/bioamrywiaeth-a-chadwraeth/bywyd-gwyllt-ynys-mn?redirect=false
http://www.ynysmon.gov.uk/cynllunio-a-gwastraff/cefn-gwlad/bioamrywiaeth-a-chadwraeth/bywyd-gwyllt-ynys-mn?redirect=false
http://cadw.gov.wales/historicenvironment/protection/worldheritage/cstlsedward1/?lang=en
http://www.cewales.org.uk/
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Residents/Planning-and-building-control/Conservation-Areas.aspx
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Residents/Planning-and-building-control/Conservation-Areas.aspx
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/planning-and-waste/built-environment-coastal-and-landscape/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/planning-and-waste/built-environment-coastal-and-landscape/


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAITAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 4: Useful contact details 

Contact details: 
 
Development Management 
[First point of contact for all planning applications and for advice before submitting a planning 

application] 

Anglesey: 

Planning Service 

Anglesey County Council  

Council Offices  

Llangefni 

Ynys Môn 

LL77 7TW 

planning@anglesey.gov.uk   

Gwynedd: 

Planning Service, 

Council Offices, 

Emankment Road, 

Pwllheli,  

Gwynedd, 

LL53 5AA  

planning@gwynedd.llyw.cymru  

 

Planning policy  
[for inquiries about the local development plan, supplementary planning guidance and other matters 
associated with planning policy] 
 
Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Planning Policy Unit, 
1st Floor Bangor City Council Offices 
Ffordd Gwynedd 
Bangor 
LL57 1DT 
planningpolicy@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 
 
Welsh Language 
 
Welsh language services 
Corporate Support Department 
Gwynedd Council 
Swyddfa'r Cyngor 
Stryd y Jêl 
Caernarfon 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 
 
 

Page 114

mailto:planning@anglesey.gov.uk
mailto:planning@gwynedd.llyw.cymru
mailto:planningpolicy@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAITAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 4: Useful contact details 

 
Policy and Strategy Unit 
Cyngor Sir Ynys Môn 
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor 
Llangefni 
Ynys Môn 
LL77 7TW 
 
Hunaniaith 
Gwynedd Council Headquarters  
Stryd y Jêl, 
Caernarfon, 
Gwynedd, 
LL54 5LL 
hunaniaith@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 
 
Menter Iaith Môn 
Menter Môn Cyf,  

Llangefni Town Hall,  

Bulkeley Square,  

Llangefni,  

Ynys Môn  

LL77 7LR 

iaith@mentermon.com  

 
Welsh Language Commissioner  
Siambrau'r Farchnad  
5–7 Heol Eglwys Fair  
Caerdydd  
CF10 1AT 
 
post@comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru  
 
Community Councils (Gwynedd Council area) 
 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/cy/Cyngor/Cynghorwyr-a-phwyllgorau/Cynghorau-
Cymuned/Etholiadau-Cynghorau-Tref-Cymuned-Gwynedd-2017.aspx  
 
Community Councils (Anglesey area) 
 
http://www.ynysmon.gov.uk/cyngor-a-democratiaeth/cynghorautref-a-chymuned/  
 
Yr Urdd 
 
eryl@urdd.cymru 
 
 

Page 115

mailto:hunaniaith@gwynedd.llyw.cymru
mailto:iaith@mentermon.com
mailto:post@comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/cy/Cyngor/Cynghorwyr-a-phwyllgorau/Cynghorau-Cymuned/Etholiadau-Cynghorau-Tref-Cymuned-Gwynedd-2017.aspx
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/cy/Cyngor/Cynghorwyr-a-phwyllgorau/Cynghorau-Cymuned/Etholiadau-Cynghorau-Tref-Cymuned-Gwynedd-2017.aspx
http://www.ynysmon.gov.uk/cyngor-a-democratiaeth/cynghorautref-a-chymuned/
mailto:eryl@urdd.cymru


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAITAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 4: Useful contact details 

 
Mudiad Meithrin 
Movement of national Welsh-medium childcare with nurseries across Wales. 
 
post@meithrin.co.uk 
 
Merched y Wawr 
Society for women to socialise in Welsh in the local community 
 
To view information about contact details of branches in Anglesey and Gwynedd you look at: 
 
http://merchedywawr.cymru/  
 
Main office: swyddfa@merchedywawr.cymru 
 
 
Young Farmers’ Club 
 
An opportunity for young people in rural communities to socialise with each other and with others 
throughout Wales and beyond. 
 
Anglesey Branch 
ynys.mon@yfc-wales.org.uk 
 

Eryri Branch 

eryri@yfc-wales.org.uk 

Meirionnydd Branch 

meirionnydd@yfc-wales.org.uk 

Page 116

mailto:post@meithrin.co.uk
http://merchedywawr.cymru/
mailto:swyddfa@merchedywawr.cymru
mailto:ynys.mon@yfc-wales.org.uk
mailto:eryri@yfc-wales.org.uk
mailto:meirionnydd@yfc-wales.org.uk


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 5 Screening process 

 

A) What type of development? 

A1) Is the development for retail, Commercial or 
industrial use  (e.g. Use Class A1, A2, A3, B1, B2, 
B8, C1, C2, D1, D2, sui generis) 
 

Yes (go to B below) No (go to A2 below) 

A2) Does the development add to the existing 
housing stock (Use Class C3, C4) 
 

Yes (go to C below) No (go to A3 below) 

A3) Does the development involve the loss of 
a community facility, e.g. village hall, school, 
place of worship, pub  

 

Yes (go to Dd below) No (no further 
assessment of the 

Welsh language 
required) 

   

B) Retail, Commercial or Industrial Use 
 

B1)Criteria 1a Policy PS 1 – does the development 
employ more than 50 workers and/ or covers 1,00 
sq m or more floor area? 

 

Yes (go to diagram 6 in 
part C and Appendix 7 
of the SPG to see how 

to prepare a Welsh 
Language Statement 
and Appendix 6 for a 
schedule of potential 

mitigation/ 
improvement 

measures). 
 

No (go to Ch below) 

C) Housing development 

C1) Criterion 1b Policy PS 1 – will the development 
solely or in combination mean that the total 
number of housing units exceeds the indicative 
figure provided in Appendix 5 of the Plan1? 
 

Yes (go to diagram 6 in 
part C and Appendix 7 
of the SPG to see how 

to prepare a Welsh 
Language Statement 
and Appendix 6 for a 
schedule of potential 

mitigation/ 
improvement 

measures). 

No (go to C 2 below) 
 
 

C2) Criterion 1c Policy PS 1 – if the development is 
for 5 or more housing units, does the development 
address the need for specific types of dwellings 
(e.g. in terms of number of bedrooms) set out in a 
Housing Local Needs Assessment (County), in a 
local housing needs study (community/ town 
council or other relevant area) Housing Register, 
Tai Teg Register (look at Appendix 3 of the SPG for 
information about these sources)   
   

Yes (go to D below) 
 

No (go to diagram 6 
and Appendix 7 of 

the SPG to see how 
to prepare a Welsh 

Language Statement 
and Appendix 6 for a 

schedule of 
potential 

mitigation/ 
improvement 

measures). 

   

                                                           
1 Contact the Joint Planning Policy Unit to obtain information about the current situation 

Page 117



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 5 Screening process 

 

Ch) Retail, Commercial or industrial development that does not require a Welsh Language 
Statement (see B1 above) or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment (see criterion 2 Policy PS 1 and 
Diagrams 5 & 7 of this SPG). See also the advisory note at the end of this Appendix.  
Ch1) Will the Welsh language be visible on the 
development site? 
 
Poor practice 
Signs and advertisements in public places within 
the development subject of planning rules are not 
bilingual. 
 
Good practice 
The proposal includes signage scheme for signs 
and advertisements (subject to planning rules) in 
public places, which will mean they are bilingual - 
see Appendix 3 for a link to part of the Welsh 
language Commissioner Office website which 
provides guidance for bilingual design. 
 

Yes – present a 
Signage Plan in 

accordance with Policy 
PS 1 and therefore no 
further assessment is 
required in terms of 

this element of Policy 
PS 1 

 

No – state in an 
appropriate part of 

the Planning 
Statement or an 

additional part of 
the Design and 

Access Statement 
why the proposal 

departs from Policy 
PS 1. 

 

Ch2) Is there sufficient information with the 
planning application about the jobs available in 
the business or organisation to be able to consider 
its impact on the local area? 
 
Poor practice 
 
The application is speculative without any 
evidence to show how the business or 
organisation will have a positive effect on the local 
area.  
 
Good practice 
 
There is information in the planning statement 
which sets out the number of full-time and/or part 
time workers and what sort of skills needed, which 
compares well with information about the local 
labour market, or measures are proposed to 
maximise the positive impact to foster economic 
variability in the local area, e.g. supporting local 
skills training initiatives in order to ensure that 
relevant skills available locally in the future. 
 

Yes – present 
sufficient information 

in a Planning 
Statement (e.g. 

number and type of 
jobs, skills, 

comparison with the 
local market)  

No – state in an 
appropriate part of 

the Planning 
Statement why it 
isn’t possible to 

provide information 
about the number 
and types of jobs.  

Ch3) If the proposed development involves an 
alternative use of a site/ plot safeguarded in Policy 
CYF 1, is the proposal consistent with Policy CYF 5? 
  

Yes – please provide 
relevant information 

with the planning 
application, e.g. as 

part of the planning 
statement (see the 

explanation to Policy 
CYF 5) 

No - state in 
relevant part of the 
planning statement 
why the proposal 
diverges from the 

Policy CYF 5. 

Page 118



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 5 Screening process 

 

 

D) A housing development that does not require Language Statement (see B1 and B2 above) nor 
a Language Impact Assessment (see criterion 2 Policy PS 1 and Diagrams 5 & 7 of this SPG) 
D1) If the size of the development meets with the 
affordable housing thresholds set out in Policy TAI 
15, does it provide the required number of on site 
affordable housing site or make a financial 
contribution to the delivery of affordable housing 
on another site? 
 
Poor practice 
 
Development does not meet the affordable 
housing target and no viability evidence was 
provided to justify this shortfall. 
 
Good practice 
 
The development has reached the affordable 
housing target laid down, or, where they cannot 
reach the target, it has been supported by 
evidence detailed viability, either detailing how 
the proposal provides a maximum contribution of 
affordable housing, or detailing why it cannot 
provide any affordable housing. 
 

Yes – the 
development policy is 
consistent with Policy 
TAI 15 and does not 

therefore need further 
assessment in relation 
to the Welsh language 

No – the 
information in the 
affordable housing 

viability study 
justifies the 
alternative 

approach, including 
how the proposed 
development will 

maintain or create a 
distinctive and 

sustainable 
community. 

 

D2) If the development is for between 2 – 4 of 
housing units (which is less than the threshold in 
criterion 1 c of Policy PS 1) on a site within the 
development boundary of a Centre or Village, will 
the development provide homes for first time 
buyers (houses or flats), family homes, homes for 
older persons. 
 
Poor practice 
 
The housing (type, size and tenure) does not 
reflect the existing and proposed requirements in 
the area. 
 
Good practice 
 
The housing (type, size and tenure) is appropriate 
for identified needs within the community that 
already exists in the area, but also addresses the 
anticipated demographic trends in the area. 
 

Yes – the 
development is 

consistent with the 
Policy TAI 8 and does 
not therefore need 

further assessment in 
relation to the Welsh 

language. 

Yes – please provide 
information to 

demonstrate how 
the development is 

consistent with 
Policy TAI 8 in the 

plan 

D3) If applicable, does the development provide 
support to provide additional school places and/or 
additional resources in language immersion unit? 
 

Yes - please provide 
relevant information 

with the planning 
application (look at 

No – please provide 
information to 

demonstrate how 
the development is 

Page 119



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 5 Screening process 

 

Poor practice 
 
No evidence to show how he would expected 
increase in the number of children is addressed. 
 
Good practice 
 
Evidence was presented to show agreement with 
the education authority that there is sufficient 
capacity in the relevant school (s) and/or the 
relevant language immersion unit to cope with the 
expected increase in the number of children in the 
light of the development or impact can be suitably 
mitigated by on site provision and/or 
contributions. 
 

Planning Obligations 
SPG and the 
Educational 

Contributions SPG to 
see the relevant 

formula). 

consistent with 
Policy ISA 1 

 

D4) Does the rate of development consider and 
respond well to the availability of social and 
physical infrastructure in order to ensure the 
capacity of the local community to cope with the 
change (Policy ISA 1). 
 
Poor practice 
 
No evidence to show what consideration has been 
given to the impact of the proposed building rate 
on the social fabric. 
 
Good practice 
 
Evidence is presented to show a commitment, 
where applicable, to develop gradually to ensure 
that not all development occurs at the same time 
to assist in the assimilation of new residents in the 
existing community and facilitate the coherence 
of the community.  
 

Yes – please provide 
relevant information 

with the planning 
application, e.g. a 

phased development 
programme (if 

applicable). 

No – please provide 
information to 
support your 

method of achieving 
the proposed 
development. 

D5) If applicable, does the design of the proposal 
take account of the views of each relevant part of 
the local community, and this can be adequately 
demonstrated through the development of the 
design? 
 
Poor practice 
 
The design does not consider the views of the local 
community and has not met with any of the 
expectations of the local authority in terms of 
engagement. 
 
Good practice 

Yes – please provide 
relevant information 

with the planning 
application, e.g. as 

part of the planning 
statement, part of a 
design and access 

statement, part of the 
statement about 

engagement. 

No – please provide 
information to 
support your 

method of achieving 
the proposed 
development. 

Page 120



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 5 Screening process 

 

 
The development’s design has taken into account 
the views of the local community. The 
engagement undertaken is in compliance with the 
expectations of the local authority. 
 

Dd Development that involves the loss of a community facility, e.g. village hall, school, place of 
worship, pub 

Dd1) Does the community facility play a role to 
maintain identity and sustainability of the 
community? 
 
Poor practice 
 
There is no other similar community facility in the 
settlement or in another reasonably accessible 
settlement. 
 
Good practice 
 
There is a similar community facility in the 
settlement or in another reasonably accessible 
settlement or the proposed development includes 
appropriate mitigation measures. 
 

Yes – please provide 
relevant information 

with the planning 
application, e.g. as 

part of the planning 
statement, part of a 
design and access 

statement, part of the 
statement about 

engagement. 

No – no further 
assessment required 

in terms of the 
Welsh language. 

 

Advisory note to businesses: 

The Welsh language Commissioner's Office has information on its website about the benefits of the 

Welsh language, examples of good practice and experiences of businesses and charities to use the 

Welsh language. Reference is also made to the practical assistance that is available in the form of 

various guidelines on how to use evidence and research about the Welsh language to demonstrate 

the value of the language. Through the Commissioner’s Office on line calendar, you can also find out 

about useful events and training sessions. There is a questionnaire as part of the package information 

to do a self- assessment of the business from the perspective of the Welsh in the business. 

http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/hybu/en/home/Pages/home.aspx  

Page 121

http://www.comisiynyddygymraeg.cymru/hybu/en/home/Pages/home.aspx


SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 6 Activities to mitigate or enhance 
linguistic effects of development 

 
1) The purpose of the screening process during the pre-application stage is to see if the proposed 

development reaches the thresholds in the criteria 1 and 2 in Policy PS 1 Policy, and to motivate 
an applicant with a development that doesn’t reach those thresholds to consider measures which 
could be embedded in the development. 
 

2) The role of the Welsh language statement (see diagram 6 and Appendix 7) is to provide 
information about a proposed development that meets criterion 1 a-c in Policy PS 1. Depending 
on the conclusions of the Statement it may be necessary to identify measures to be put in place 
to ensure that the development meets the requirements of relevant policies in the Plan, including 
Policy PS 1.  

 

3) If a proposed development reaches criterion 2 of Policy PS 1, a report about the Welsh Language 
Impact Assessment will be required to present the context and clarify what safeguards will be put 
in place to help protect, promote and improve the situation of the language, giving consideration 
to the proposed development and the local community (see diagram 7 and Appendix 8). 

 

4) When a Statement or an Assessment is required, undertaking the assessment as soon as possible 
whilst preparing the planning application, engaging with stakeholders whilst doing so, will help 
to identify the opportunities to reduce risk or maximise benefits via possible mitigation actions. 

 
Schedule of possible activities 
 
5) The next schedule contains examples of possible activities to mitigate the effects of linguistic 

development as well as enhancement measures to ensure wider benefits of development that 
could be included in planning applications. This list is not exhaustive, and should therefore be 
used as a guide rather than a complete, comprehensive list of requirements. It should be noted 
that mitigation or enhancement measures can be applied to proposed developments on sites 
which have been allocated in the Plan as well as those that have not been allocated (namely, (i) 
some windfall sites where consideration was given to their contribution at the time of preparing 
the Plan, and (ii) those windfall sites described as unexpected – see diagram 7 and Appendix 8 in 
part D of the SPG). 

 
6) It will be essential that there is a direct link between what is being sought in the measure and 

the planning permission. It will be important to ensure that what is being requested is 
reasonable in relation to the size and nature of the proposal, it does not make the development 
unviable, and does not relate to the identity or personal characteristics of the land user. Some 
proposals, such as development comprising of an adequate affordable housing supply, will 
include embedded mitigation planted and so there would be no need for further measures. 

 

7) Applicants are expected to liaise with competent officers within the Authorities ( e.g. planning 

officers, language development officers, housing officers and education officers) and/or with 

the Mentrau Iaith as soon as possible during the process of preparing a planning application to 

discuss mitigation and enhancement measures. 

 

  

Page 122



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 6 Activities to mitigate or enhance 
linguistic effects of development 

 
Table A: Schedule of examples of possible activities 

 

HOUSING 

i.  That the number of houses to be provided are built a little at a time, by considering 
the Plan’s housing trajectory in Appendix 10 of the Plan; 
 

ii.  Provides the type of housing (including affordable housing) which accords with the 
conclusions of local housing needs studies, housing register, Tai Teg register, the 
Welsh Government's latest household projections, or other appropriate source of 
information about local housing market needs (see Policy TAI 8 and supplementary 
planning guidance: a mix of housing and Policy Tai 15 and supplementary planning 
guidance: affordable housing); 
 

iii.  Provide affordable housing for local needs which are compatible with the Plan’s 
requirements (see Policy TAI 15 and policy TAI 16 and supplementary planning 
guidance: affordable housing); 
 

iv.  Provide local market housing which are compatible with the Plan’s requirements 
(Polisi TAI 5) and Supplementary Planning Guidance Local Market Housing; 
 

v.  Agreements with registered local landlords to provide for those on the local housing 
register (see supplementary planning guidance: affordable housing); 
 

vi.  Name street /developments by taking into account local linguistic heritage (see Policy 
PS1 and part D.?? of the supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating 
a distinctive and sustainable communities); 
 

vii.  Support and fund activities where parents can have the opportunity to hear the 
language with their children, e.g. Cylch Ti a Fi and Welsh for Children provision (see 
Policy ISA 1 and Supplementary Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 

viii.  Support and fund school places or immersion centre (see Policy ISA 1 and 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 

ix.  Support and fund informal activities where small children (pre- school) and school 
children have the opportunity to use the Welsh language (including as learners), e.g. 
football training, youth clubs, school holiday clubs (see Policy ISA 1 and 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 

 

EMPLOYMENT 
 

x.  Name developments by taking into account local linguistic heritage (see Policy PS1 
and part D.16 of the supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating a 
distinctive and sustainable communities); 
 
 

xi.  Provide bilingual signage in public places (see Policy PS1 and part D.15 of the 
supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating a distinctive and 
sustainable communities); 

Page 123



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 6 Activities to mitigate or enhance 
linguistic effects of development 

 

 

xii.  Supporting and funding employment initiatives and local skills training (see Policy ISA 
1 and Supplementary Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 

xiii.  Supporting and funding community facilities/ groups and cultural and language 
initiatives/projects in the local area to encourage employees to use the language 
(including as learners) within their communities (see Policy ISA 1 and Supplementary 
Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 

xiv.  Support and fund courses that introduce the language and language lessons to 
members of staff, e.g. short courses targeted to the needs of the employer and the 
workers (see Policy ISA 1 and Supplementary Planning Guidance: Planning 
Obligations). 

xv.  Support and fund language awareness training courses for staff in order to raise 
awareness of the context of the language and nature of a bilingual society in 
Gwynedd and Anglesey (see ISA Policy 1 and supplementary planning guidance: 
planning obligations); 

xvi.  Provision of information to raise a prospective employee’s awareness of the Welsh, 
the bilingual nature of communities in Gwynedd and Anglesey Council and education 
policy in the recruitment and induction of new staff (see ISA Policy 1 and 
supplementary planning guidance: planning obligations); 

xvii.  Adopting a voluntary or statutory language policy/plan that explains how the 
employer will ensure that the Welsh language is treated less favourably than the 
English (see ISA Policy 1 and supplementary planning guidance: planning obligations); 

 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND SERVICES 
 

i.  Name developments by taking into account local linguistic heritage (see Policy PS1 
and part D.16 of the supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating a 
distinctive and sustainable communities); 
 

ii.  Provide bilingual signage in public places (see Policy PS1 and part D.15 of the 
supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating a distinctive and 
sustainable communities); 
 

iii.  Supporting and funding employment initiatives and local skills training (see Policy ISA 
1 and Supplementary Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 
 

iv.  Supporting and funding community facilities/ groups and cultural and language 
initiatives/projects in the local area to encourage employees to use the language 
(including as learners) within their communities (see Policy ISA 1 and Supplementary 
Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 

v.  Support and fund courses that introduce the language and language lessons to 
members of staff, e.g. short courses targeted to the needs of the employer and the 
workers (see Policy ISA 1 and Supplementary Planning Guidance: Planning 
Obligations). 

vi.  Support and fund language awareness training courses for staff in order to raise 
awareness of the context of the language and nature of a bilingual society in 

Page 124



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 6 Activities to mitigate or enhance 
linguistic effects of development 

 

Gwynedd and Anglesey (see ISA Policy 1 and supplementary planning guidance: 
planning obligations); 

vii.  Provision of information to raise a prospective employee’s awareness of the Welsh, 
the bilingual nature of communities in Gwynedd and Anglesey Council and education 
policy in the recruitment and induction of new staff (see ISA Policy 1 and 
supplementary planning guidance: planning obligations); 

viii.  Adopting a voluntary or statutory language policy/plan that explains how the 
employer will ensure that the Welsh language is treated less favourably than the 
English (see ISA Policy 1 and supplementary planning guidance: planning obligations); 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

i.  Name developments by taking into account local linguistic heritage (see Policy PS1 
and part D.16 of the supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating a 
distinctive and sustainable communities); 
 

ii.  Provide bilingual signage in public places (see Policy PS1 and part D.15 of the 
supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating a distinctive and 
sustainable communities); 
 

iii.  Supporting and funding community facilities/ groups and cultural and language 
initiatives/projects in the local area to encourage employees to use the language 
(including as learners) within their communities (see Policy ISA 1 and Supplementary 
Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 

iv.  Adopting a voluntary or statutory language policy/plan that explains how the 
employer will ensure that the Welsh language is treated less favourably than the 
English (see ISA Policy 1 and supplementary planning guidance: planning obligations); 
 

 

RENEWABLE ENERGY 
 

i.  Name developments by taking into account local linguistic heritage (see Policy PS1 
and part D.16 of the supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating a 
distinctive and sustainable communities); 
 

ii.  Provide bilingual signage in public places (see Policy PS1 and part D.15 of the 
supplementary planning guidance: maintaining and creating a distinctive and 
sustainable communities); 
 

iii.  Supporting and funding employment initiatives and local skills training (see Policy ISA 
1 and Supplementary Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations 
 

iv.  Supporting and funding community facilities/ groups and cultural and language 
initiatives/projects in the local area to encourage employees to use the language 
(including as learners) within their communities (see Policy ISA 1 and Supplementary 
Planning Guidance: Planning Obligations); 
 

Page 125



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAIN AND CREATE DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE 
COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 6 Activities to mitigate or enhance 
linguistic effects of development 

 

v.  Adopting a voluntary or statutory language policy/plan that explains how the 
employer will ensure that the Welsh language is treated less favourably than the 
English (see ISA Policy 1 and supplementary planning guidance: planning obligations); 
 

 
8) The consent must include the measures either through planning conditions or by Section 106 

obligations. Like all other conditions or commitment they will have to be necessary to make 
the development acceptable from the perspective of planning and be directly related to the 
development in order to comply with the regulations/law relating to the subject (see 
Appendix 3 which provides references to relevant documents). It is important to note that 
commuted sums cannot be ensured through a planning condition and would need to be 
ensured through a Section 106 agreement. 
 

9) Based on the conclusions of the Language Statement and the report on the Welsh language 
Impact Assessment and the type of development, and bearing in mind the planning 
requirements described in paragraph 7 above, the following example of a planning condition 
could be used: 

 Any development should not start until a scheme to mitigate the effects of the 
development on the Welsh language has been submitted and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The mitigation scheme includes a, b, c, etc., and includes a 
timetable for the implementation of the mitigation measures. Mitigation measures 
should be implemented as approved within the timeframe (-s) set out in the mitigation 
scheme. 

 
10) Please also note the Authorities may raise a Community Infrastructure Levy on new 

developments in order to pay for the infrastructure that is necessary for growth, such as 
improving roads and parks/open space or provide new health services. The rates would be 
charged on new developments and it depends on the size and nature of the new development. 
The Authorities will prepare research regarding the matter and explore links between community 
infrastructure and the Welsh language and how new developments could contribute to this. 
Gwynedd and Anglesey Language Strategies along with the Local Well-being Plans will be relevant 
in order to take account of any relevant projects that can be funded. 

Page 126



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 
When will a Language Statement be required? 

1 Diagrams 5 and 6 have set out the requirements in relation to when a Welsh Language 

Statement will be required. 

2. As a reminder, applicants will be required to complete a Welsh Language Statement to cover 
certain types of development in line with Policy PS 1 – the Welsh language and culture. A copy 
of the complete Policy is included in Appendix 1 to this Supplementary Planning Guidance. For 
ease of reference, here are the criteria that provide the threshold to prepare a Welsh 
Language Statement: 

 

Requiring a Welsh Language Statement, which will protect, promote and enhance the 

Welsh language, where the proposed development falls within one of the following 

categories:   

a. Retail, industrial or commercial development employing  more than 50 

employees and/or with an area of 1,000 sq. m. or more; or 

b. Residential development which will individually or cumulatively provide more 

than the indicative housing provision set out for the settlement in Policies TAI 

1 – TAI 6; or 

c. Residential development of 5 or more housing units on allocated or windfall 

sites within development boundaries that doesn’t address evidence of need 

and demand for housing recorded in a Housing Market Assessments and other 

relevant local sources of evidence. 
 
3. Preparing a Welsh Language Statement to accompany an application presents a number of 

benefits, particularly as a tool for demonstrating and communicating that sufficient 

consideration has been given to the language during the process of formulating the proposal. It 

is required to show if development is going to contribute to create social climate and conditions 

that facilitate the use of the Welsh language in the local community. It allows the Authority to 

see whether the proposal meets the Plan’s objectives and policies. It will assist the applicant, 

then the Authority, to determine what measures are required (embedded and/or managed by 

a planning condition or 106 Agreement) to eliminate or reduce the negative effects or to 

enhance a positive impact. It will also allow the Authority to decide whether the development 

would have such a negative impact on the language and the community that would justify a 

refusal of the application.   

 

4. If the development is ‘large’ under category a. above (i.e. a business development with a 

floorspsace of 1,000 sq m or more) or under category b or c above (i.e. providing 10 or more 

houses), in terms of the Town and Country Planning Regulations (Development Management 

Order) (Wales) (Amended) 2016 (see diagram 4 in the Supplementary Planning Guidance), you 

will be required to undertake a statutory Pre- Application Consultation. You will be required to 

submit a Statement of Public Consultation with the planning application, which will include 

information about the engagement, the views of those who did respond and changes you have 

made to the development, if it is relevant to do so, following consideration of the views 

received. When a Pre- Application Consultation, the applicant will be expected to prepare the 

Page 127



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 
Welsh Language Statement as part of the draft proposal for pre- application consultation and 

the Welsh Language Statement should be referred as part of the Statement of Public 

Consultation.  

 

5. If the development is a residential development where category b applies, the applicant is asked 

to contact the Planning Authority for further guidance regarding what type of Welsh Language 

Statement is required.  

 

The purpose of the Welsh Language Statement 

 

6. The purpose of the Statement is to establish the likely impact of the proposed development on 

communities in general, and on the language more specifically and, if appropriate, to identify 

measures that will either mitigate negative impacts or protect/improve/disseminate positive 

effects. It will help to ensure that the linguistic implications of relevant proposed development 

are fully understood before making a decision on the planning application. The scale and 

duration of the effects (positive and negative) depends on the nature and type of development 

and the relationship between it and the community. The Statement is a structured process that 

allows the language to be taken into account in the consideration of proposals for change. They 

should include the information, the analysis and the results of the Language Statement in 

structured report 

 

7. The methodology described in this Appendix follows three steps. This is the methodology that 

will have be followed for undertaking the Statement. It is a process where information about 

the likely effects of proposed development are collected, collated, assessed and taken into 

account by the applicant, as part of the work to draw up the proposal. The results of applying 

the methodology will also be checked by qualified officers within the Authority prior to the 

decion maker makes a decision whether to give permission or not. 

 

8. The level of detail required should be commensurate with the scale of development. The 

applicant should consider employing a competent person to assist him to carry out the work. 

See Diagram 8 in the Supplementary Planning Guidance for help regarding what is considered 

to be a competent person. The need for assistance from a competent person will depend on 

the size and type of development. 

 
Who should prepare the assessment for the Welsh Language Statement? 
 

9. Applicants will be expected to employ a competent person or a group of consultants, which will 
include an eligible individual to undertake the work. Doing so will ensure completeness and 
quality of the Statement and the report about it. The Statement is expected to outline the 
relevant expertise of the competent person, his or her experience and qualifications, of 
sufficient detail to show that this is true. Diagram 8 in section 2 of the Supplementary Planning 
Guidance describes a ' competent person ' from the perspective of the language, which includes 
individuals with accredited language planning qualification, or a qualification, experience or 

Page 128



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 
training in research related to linguistic planning matters, and town and country planning 
qualification. The applicant is responsible for paying for the work associated with the 
preparation of the Statement. 

 
The methodology – process and assessment 
 

10. The following flowchart summarises the methodology to be used to undertake work associated 
with preparing a Language Statement. A detailed description of the methodology is provided in 
the paragraphs and tables that follow the flowchart. 

 

 

 
Figure 7.1: the methodology to be used to prepare a Welsh Language Statement 
 

11. The Language Statement must be completed by including the information for steps 1 – 
2 below and then discuss the key issues listed in step 3 onwards (as appropriate), giving 
as much written evidence as possible.  
 

12. The issues that are relevant to land-use planning considerations relating to zones that 
are important to be able to transfer the Language at home and zones that are important 
to create and maintain social opportunities to use and learn Welsh. It can also contain 
information about any other matter you believe is necessary. 

 
  

• What is the community's poulation, household and housing 
profile?

• What is the local infrastructure (facilities and services)?

• Engage with the local community and others

STEP 1: COLLECT, 
RECORD AND ANALYSE 
INFORMATION ABOUT 

THE COMMUNITY

• What is the relevant policy context?

STEP 2: COLLECT, 
RECORD AND ANALYSE 
POLICY REQUIREMENTS

• What are the proposed development's characteristics?

• Consider and discuss the key matters, referring to evidence in 
Step 1 and 2, as appropriate

STEP 3: APPLY THE 
INFORMATION IN STEP 

1 AND 2

Page 129



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 
The Methodology to prepare a Welsh Language Statement 
 
13. It will be necessary to follow this Methodology in order to consider and demonstrate how the 

proposed development can have a positive or positive impact on the local community and the 
local area. 

 
 
STEP 1: COLLECT, RECORD AND ANALYSE INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMMUNITY 
 
Population, household and housing profile  

 
14. Local demographic nature (e.g. birth, death, migration patterns and percentages, age, income, 

deprivation) of the settlement and Community Council/city/town area where the application 
site is located must be considered in order to understand how the proposed development could 
affect the community, including changes over time and cumulative effects. The number and 
ages of Welsh speakers at the planning application stage and in the past are critical factors. We 
must not only look at the number and percentage of speakers in the area generally, but also, 
for example, the age profile of speakers, in order to understand what type of impact the 
development might have on the linguistic composition of the area. You should also analyse data 
about language transfer patterns in the home within the local community. Depending on the 
type of development being considered, an understanding of the nature of the labour market 
and the nature of the local housing market may be required. How will your development affect 
these markets? Will it, for example, offer employment opportunities that have not been 
available in the area before? The population, household and housing profile will help to show 
why the development is required and who is likely to be negatively affected by/ benefit from 
the development. Appendix 2 & 3 of the Supplementary Planning Guidance provide links to 
various sources of data/ information. The data and information is available for different spatial 
areas, e.g. ward, Community Council, Local Authority and the whole of Wales 

 
15. You must provide a brief statement about your understanding of these issues in the Welsh 

Language Statement. 
 

Local infrastructure profile (facilities and services) 
 
16. The availability of facilities available locally to the public, - shops, surgeries and other public 

services, community centres, halls, schools, etc. must be considered. Which of these facilities 
offer services or activities in Welsh and how will your development enhance the provision in 
these facilities? Please give a brief summary of the situation in your Language Statement. Topic 
Paper 5, which was prepared to support the preparation of the Local Development Plan is one 
source of information about the availability of facilities and services per settlement. This can be 
viewed online in the Local Development Plan Examination library. Your local information about 
the settlement will provide the most current information about the settlement or you should 
get in touch with the Community or Town Council, who will have information that is only 
available locally. 

 
17. You must provide a brief statement about your understanding of these issues in the Welsh 

Language Statement. 
 

 

Page 130



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 
Engagement with the local community and others  

 
18. Show how you have consulting and engaged with the local community about your proposal. 

This may include consultation with neighbours, community and voluntary groups, specific 
groups, the Community Council or services within the Council with relevant information about 
the settlement where the development is located. The scale of engagement will depend on the 
type and scale of development in mind. If the development is not classed as being ‘large’ 
according to the Order referred to above, you should include a short statement about the steps 
and methods of engagement as part of the Welsh Language Statement. Consulting and engaging 
provides you with an opportunity to share your initial proposal with the local community and 
explain to them before submitting a planning application to gain support locally if possible. The 
success of the planning application is not solely reliant on support from the local community. 

 
 
STEP 2: COLLECT, RECORD AND ANALYSE POLICY REQUIREMENTS 
 
The policy background 

 
19. The day -to -day context of daily lives in communities is influenced by public policies, whether 

at a county, regional, national or International level. When drawing up proposed development 
it is essential to be aware of which land use planning policies in the local development plan and 
which supplementary planning guidance are relevant to the development. In addition, it would 
be useful to be aware of what other public policies promote positive intentions in favour of the 
Welsh language. Appendix 3 contains examples of useful policy documents available when the 
guidance was prepared. You will need to verify if there are more recent policy developments 
when the statement is prepared. 

 
20. You must provide a brief statement about your understanding of these issues in the Welsh 

Language Statement. 
 

 
STEP 3: APPLYING THE INFORMATION COLLECTED IN STEP 1 & 2 

 
Characteristics of the proposed development  

 
21. Please describe the application and why you think it is consistent with national and local policies 

and impacts positively on the Welsh language in the community/local area. If there are any 
negative impacts likely, these should be stated. The starting point will be to clearly demonstrate 
that the application is consistent with the local development plan. You should do this not only 
by listing relevant objectives and policies in the Plan but also by including full justification for 
the proposal and how it will contribute positively to the implementation of the Plan, by 
reference to the key issues below. If any likely negative effects are identified, these should be 
set out and mitigation or compensatory measures should be suggested 

 
 

  

Page 131



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 
Key issues to be considered 

 
22. The rest of the Language Statement should tackle the key issues shown in the table below, 

whilst referring to your interpretation of the information gathered about the community and 
local area (referred to above) and your information about the planning application. The key 
issues are linked to the places that are important to be able to transfer the Language at home 
and places that are important to maintain and create social opportunities to use and learn 
Welsh. 

 

LANGUAGE AND POPULATION MOVEMENT (this matter is relevant to Housing developments 
and Employment developments) 
 

Explain, with full evidence, how the development is likely to affect the population in contributing 
or affecting the linguistic composition. You should cover the following: 
 

 How will the development ensure opportunities for local people to stay in their communities? 

 Is it likely that the development will attract people to the community? If there is, how many are 
expected? How many and what percentage are likely to be Welsh speakers? 

 Is there a likelihood that local people will migrate from the community as a result of the 
development? 

 Balance between Welsh speakers (including learners) and individuals that do not have any 
Welsh language skills 

 Is the development likely to lead to a change in the age structure within the population: more 
or less children, young people, middle- age people, elderly? 

 Is the change likely to be a permanent one or a temporary one? 

 

VISUAL ELEMENTS (this matter is relevant to Housing developments and Employment 
developments) 
 

Explain, with full evidence, how the development is likely to affect the Language visibility in the 
area, in terms of promoting the area’s distinctive culture. You should cover the following: 
 

 Whether the development will increase the visibility of the language? 

 Corporate image and branding - signs and advertisements on the site that are within the 
planning remit, e.g. advertising/marketing sign for a new housing site, signs and advertisements 
to customers in public places on employment sites 

 The name of the site or development –will it retain an old Welsh name or will any new name be 
derived from historic, geographical or local ties to the area, if practical 

 

QUALITY OF LIFE INCLUDING COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE (you should tackle the following 
where applicable according to size and type of development) 
 

Explain, with full evidence, how the development affects Infrastructure in the community 
(facilities and services). You should cover the following: 
 

 Is there a sufficient supply of child care and pre- school places in the locality? 

Page 132



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 

 Is there sufficient capacity in schools in the locality? Is the development likely to require more 
school places or is the provision already sufficient? Is there sufficient resources to ensure that 
the schools are able to carry on to accomplish their role of producing fluent Welsh speakers?  

 The balance between non-Welsh speakers and Welsh speaking pupils in the school 

 Will the development increase the demand for Welsh immersion support for newcomers? 

 Will the development increase the demand on local facilities and services? 

 The extent to which the development will have a positive or negative impact on existing 
facilities or services? 

 To what degree will the development create new opportunities to promote the Welsh 
language in local facilities and services such as halls, shops, and so on? 

 

NEW HOUSING 
 

Explain, with full evidence, how the development is likely to affect the Housing market. You 
should tackle the following: 
 

 The expected market price for the housing and how does this compare with local household 
income 

 Affordable housing provision and how that compares with policy requirements 

 Expected or proposed development rate of development 

 Housing mix and how that compares with policy requirements, county or local surveys, or other 
sources of information 

 Number of houses and how that compares with the demand for housing and the supply of 
housing set out in the Plan and granted consent since the Plan’s adoption 

 The possible cumulative impact that the development could have, taking account of any other 
relevant recent development in the local area 

 

EMPLOYMENT 
 

Explain, with full evidence, how the development is likely to affect the Economy in the local 
area. You should tackle the following: 
 

 How will the development contribute to current employment opportunities in the area, e.g. will 
it foster economic variability in the local area or not? 

 Number of full and/ or part time jobs 

 Skills which are necessary for the business or organisation and how that compares with the 
labour skills of local people (within the travel to work area) 

 Salaries that will be offered and how that compares with average wages in the area 

 The labour skills of local people (within the travel to work area) and how likely it is according to 
the above assessment the posts will be filled from among the local population 

 Is it likely that you will need to search outside the local area for employees, e.g. to obtain 
specialist skills 

 What type of Welsh language skills are essential and desirable for the jobs that will be created 
by the development? These will need to be defined as part of the development’s Welsh language 
Plan (voluntary or statutory). 

 Welsh Language skills that will be necessary for the workers and their dependants to integrate 
into the local community 

Page 133



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 

 The possible cumulative impact that the development could have, taking account of any other 
relevant recent development in the local area 

 

SUMMARISE YOUR FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 
 

Summarise your findings including the likely significant effects (positive and/ or negative)  

Record your conclusions, including discussions with the Mentrau Iaith or others regarding possible 
mitigation or enhancement measures 

 

MITIGATION AND ENHANCEMENT MEASURES 
 

What activities are necessary to eliminate or reduce any adverse effects caused by the development 
or facilitate dissemination of any benefits.  
 
Take a look at Appendix 6 in the Supplementary Planning Guidance for potential activities. You will 
need to prepare a Welsh language Mitigation and a Benefits Enhancement Strategy, including an 
action plan that notes how and when the activities be delivered, i.e. that the measures can be 
realised. A plan to monitor the various actions set out in the Strategy will also be required. 
 
Record your conclusions, including discussion with the Mentrau Iaith or others about the possible 
activities. 
  

  
23. In accordance with good practice relating to balancing the effects of development, use a Risk 

Matrix – see example on Figure 7.2 – to identify possible effects and the probability of those 
effects on the vitality of the Welsh language in the community and locality. 

 
Figure 7.2: example Risk Matrix 
 

  
 
 
 

Ardal Sylweddol bositif
Ansylweddol 

bositif

Ansylweddol 

negyddol
Sylweddol negyddol

Holl siaradwyr yn yr 

Ardal Ddethol

Cynnydd 2.5 pwynt 

canran  a throsodd  

mewn siaradwyr na’r 

rhagamcan(busnes fel 

arfer)

Cynnydd llai na 2.5 

pwynt canran  mewn 

siaradwyr na’r 

rhagamcan(busnes 

fel arfer)

Lleihâd llai na 2.5 

pwynt canran mewn 

siaradwyr na’r 

rhagamcan(busnes fel 

arfer)

Lleihâd 2.5 pwynt 

canran a thosodd 

mewn siaradwyr na’r 

rhagamcan(busnes fel 

arfer)

2 1 -1 -2

Siawns Amledd Tebygolrwydd Sylweddol Bychan Bychan Sylweddol

Gellir disgwyl iddo ddigwydd 

mewn bron y cyfan  o 

ddatblygiadau cyffelyb

Tystiolaeth gadarn iddo ddigwydd 

mewn o leiaf 8 gwaith allan o 10 

yn yr 20 mlynedd diwethaf
4 Bron yn sicr 8 4 -4 -8

Gellir disgwyl iddo ddigwydd 

mewn y mwyafrif o 

ddatblygiadau cyffelyb

Tystiolaeth gadarn iddo ddigwydd 

mewn o 5 - 7  gwaith allan o 10 yn 

yr 20 mlynedd diwethaf
3 Tebyg 6 3 -3 -6

Gellir disgwyl iddo ddigwydd 

mewn lleiafrif o ddatblygiadau 

cyffelyb

Tystiolaeth gadarn iddo ddigwydd 

mewn o leiaf 2- 4  gwaith allan o 

10 yn yr 20 mlynedd diwethaf
2 Posibl 4 2 -2 -4

Gellir  disgwyl iddo ddigwydd 

mewn nifer fechan iawn  o 

ddatblygiadau cyffelyb

Tystiolaeth gadarn iddo ddigwydd 

llai na 2 waith allan o 10 yn yr 20 

mlynedd diwethaf
1 Annhebyg 2 1 -1 -2

EFFAITH 20 MLYNEDD

TE
B

YG
O

LR
W

YD
D

Page 134



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTIANING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 7: Methodology to 

prepare a Welsh Language Statement 

 
What happens after the Statement is submitted? 
 
24. See Diagram 9 in this Supplementary Planning Guidance. The Planning Officer dealing with the 

planning application will consider the evidence presented. In doing so he/ she will consult with 
a competent officer (-s) within the Council. Before coming to a conclusion and make a 
recommendation about the planning application he/ she will consider the evidence of the 
competent officer (-s) and relevant evidence obtained from external parties, e.g. community 
and town councils. The Planning Officer may ask the applicant for clarification or for more 
details to ensure that the Statement is correct and complete before making a recommendation 
on the application for planning permission. The Planning Officer will discuss any additional 
evidence received from the applicant with competent officer (-s) within the Council. 

 
25. Where there is dispute between the Planning Officer and the applicant about the evidence in 

the Language Statement, the Officer will appoint a qualified external consultant to consider the 
evidence that is the subject of the dispute. The applicant will be notified of the intention to 
employ an external consultant before appointing one. The applicant will be responsible for costs 
associated with employing a consultant. 

 

Page 135



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
When will a Welsh Language Impact Assessment be required? 
 

1. An applicant will be required to assess the likely impact of a proposed development and produce 
a Welsh Language Impact Assessment report if the development meets criterion 2 in Policy PS 1 
- Welsh Language and Culture (see also - Appendix 1). For convenience, this is the criterion that 
gives the threshold for the need to prepare a report on the Welsh Language Impact Assessment: 

 
Requiring a Welsh Language Impact Assessment, which will set out how the proposed 
development will protect, promote and enhance the Welsh Language, where the proposed 
development is on an unexpected windfall site for a large- scale housing development or large 
scale employment development that would lead to a significant workforce flow 
 

2. Diagram 8 in Section 2 of the Supplementary Planning Guidance describes what is meant by the 
terms ‘unexpected windfall site’, ‘large-scale housing development’ and ‘large-scale employment 
development which would mean a significant flow of workforce’. For convenience, table 8.1 re-
iterates these descriptions: 

 
Table 8.1: Definition of key terms 

 
unexpected windfall site – this is assessed by looking at the Plan's strategy and policies and the 
evidence to support the strategy and policies, e.g. its location compared to the development 
boundary, the status of the site in the Plan's policies, Urban Capacity Assessment considerations, 
when the site became available, compliance or not with relevant policies. 
 
 
large scale housing development - a development that would involve having 10 or more housing 
units at the Sub-Regional Centre and the Urban Service Centres, and having 5 or more housing 
units in Local Service Centres, Service Villages, Local/ Rural / Coastal Villages. The site’s capacity 
will be considered to determine if the threshold has been exceeded, e.g. would it be possible to 
build more than the intended number of houses that would then exceed the threshold; and/ or 
does the site form part of a site, which when taken in its entirety, would exceed the threshold. 

 
 
Large scale employment development which would mean a significant flow of workforce  
 
(i) needs more than 10 or more employees1, and  
(ii) the jobs have to be marketed beyond the recognised Travel to Work Area to get the 

relevant skills to ensure a suitable workforce for the jobs. Contact the Economy and 

Community Department (Gwynedd Council) or the Economic Development Service 

within the Regulatory and Economic Development Department (Isle of Anglesey County 

Council) to get a snapshot of key data, labour market information, etc. – see contact 

details in Appendix 4  

                                                           
1 Only about 11% of businesses in the Plan area employ more than 10 emploees 

Page 136



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
3. So, put simply, the site’s development was not foreseen at the Local Development Plan 

formulation stage, and that the development is large-scale. As a result, the proposal was not 

subject to a Sustainability Assessment (which includes a Strategic Environmental Assessment), 

that was influenced by a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. On this premise, Policy PS 1 of the 

Plan requires a Welsh Language Impact Assessment of the proposed development. This approach 

is consistent with national planning policy and guidance (see paragraph 3.2.2). Applicants should 

liaise with the Development Management Unit in the pre-application period stage if there is 

uncertainty about the need for a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. 

Purpose of the Assessment 

4. The purpose of the Assessment is to establish the likely impact of the proposed development on 

communities in general, and on the Welsh language more specifically and, if appropriate, identify 

measures that will either mitigate negative effects, or protect/enhance/spread positive effects. 

It will help ensure the linguistic implications of a relevant proposed development are fully 

explored before planning decisions are made. The scale and period of effects (positive and 

negative) will depend on the nature and type of the development, and its relationship with the 

community. The Assessment is a structured process that enables the Welsh language to be taken 

into account when considering proposals for change. The results of the Welsh language Impact 

Assessment should be set out in a structured report. 

 

5. The Methodology given in this Appendix is in three parts. This is the methodology that must be 

followed for undertaking the Assessment. It is a process where information about the likely 

effects of a proposed development is collected, collated, assessed and taken into account by the 

applicant, as part of the work of formulating the proposal. The methodology It will also be 

checked by competent officers within the Authority before the decision maker decides whether 

or not to grant consent.  

 

Who should prepare the Assessment? 

 

6. Due to the location and scale of the proposed development, an applicant is expected to employ 

a qualified person or group of consultants who will include a qualified person to carry out the 

work. Doing so will ensure the completeness and quality of the Assessment and its report. The 

report on the Assessment is expected to include a statement outlining their relevant expertise, 

qualifications or experience, sufficiently to show that this is true. Diagram 8 in Section 2 of the 

Supplementary Planning Guidance describes a 'competent person' from the Welsh language 

perspective. 

 

7. As referred to in Section 2 of the SPG engagement and undertaking a series of activities before 

submitting a planning application is a key part of preparing applications that require a Language 

Impact Assessment Report. It is expected that key stakeholders will play a full part in steps A – C 

described below.  

 

Page 137



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
The methodology – process and assessment 

 

8. As noted in paragraph 4 above, the preparation of the Local Development Plan was subject to 

Sustainability Assessment processes, which included a Strategic Environmental Assessment. 

From the Welsh language’s perspective, the Sustainability Assessment was influenced by the 

Welsh Language Impact Assessment. Similar to work associated with undertaking a Sustainability 

Assessment, Strategic Environmental Assessment, Environmental Impact Assessment of 

individual projects, there are 3 main stages to follow in the process of undertaking a Welsh 

Language Impact Assessment of the relevant proposed development (diagram 8.1): 

 

 

9. Engagement and consultation is a key part of the process described above. 

 

STAGE A1) SCOPING PERIOD (IDENTIFYING THE CONTEXT) - IDENTIFYING RELEVANT 

BASELINE INFORMATION 

 

10. It is important that the Welsh Language Impact Assessment process, like any other 

assessment, starts early to enable the applicant and his/her advisers to identify the 

appropriate issues and analyse them as they prepare the details of the proposed 

development. Broadly speaking, the scoping work will include the following, and these should 

be recorded: 

 

 Description of the proposed development; 

A) Scoping period -
identify context, 

including identifying 
and assessing the 
relevant baseline 

information

B) carry out the assessment, 
including an assessment of the 

effects by the correlated subject 
to try and foresee the effects of 
the proposed development after 

it has been implemented

C) where appropriate, 
identify 

mitigation/protection/
improvement/  

dssimenate measures 
and prepare a strategy 

with an action plan.

Page 138



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 Definition of the area that the large development on an unexpected windfall site could 

influence directly or indirectly. The extent of the area will depend on its type of 

development, its scale and location; 

 Document the current 'state' of the specified communities/area, and in particular the 

Welsh language, which forms part of the baseline to base an assessment upon it; 

 Document assumptions/projections for the specified communities/area, in order to 

seek a picture of the direction of change (rather than definite figures) predicted in this 

identified area based on trends, without the intervention of the development; 

 Document the objectives of the Local Development Plan and the relevant policies, and 

document the objectives of the Language Strategy, Local Wellbeing Plan, and the 

Council's Plan. 

Data sources for the scoping work 

 

11. Appendix 2 of this Supplementary Planning Guidance contains information on a number of 

current recognised relevant data sources for the Welsh language. Data/information will be 

updated fairly regularly and there is a possibility that additional sources will emerge. 

Therefore, when gathering information about the area of influence at the time of preparation 

for the development, there should be a thorough inquiry into the existence of latest data as 

well as additional data that may only be available at a local level about the Welsh language 

and the wider communities. Local stakeholders, such as Community and Town Councils, have 

data and information that will only be available locally, especially information on 

infrastructure (facilities and services) within settlements and their role in promoting the 

Welsh language.  

 

Identifying the area of influence 

 

12. Identifying the area that the unforeseen proposed development might influence is important. 

The area of influence is unlikely to respect the development boundaries of settlements, or 

perhaps individual wards. Depending on the scale and type of development, the area of 

influence can include the Travel to Work Area and/or the Housing Market Area. Early 

discussions with the Planning Authority and other stakeholders, such as other services within 

the Councils and Mentrau Iaith, will be beneficial to the task of establishing and analysing the 

evidence and conducting the assessment. As, for example, in the case of retail impact studies 

or employment studies, a map will be required in the report together with a record of the 

reasons for choosing the area of influence. A record of discussion with appropriate 

stakeholders should be included. The map should record the number and percentage of all 

Welsh language speakers at a community and ward level. 

Profile of the population now and in the future 

13. When considering the information that should be collected in the context of the Welsh 

language, it is recommended that the numbers and percentage of the Welsh speaking 

Page 139



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
population (including learners) are used, dividing those speakers by age group, in order to 

understand what the impact of development might be on the linguistic composition of the 

area over a period of time. The language of children younger than three years old is not 

recorded in the Census. Other sources can provide the information to establish a baseline and 

complete assumptions, namely Mudiad Meithrin data and Flying Start data. Data about 

language transmission in the home within the locality should also be analysed. Understanding 

the situation of the language in the different age groups gives a picture of the viability of the 

language now, and also offers a picture of the language in the area over the next decades if 

current trends continue and if the development did not happen. How does the proposed 

development contribute to or impacts on projections of change necessary to maintain or 

increase the number and percentages of Welsh speakers in the area affected. This stage offers 

an opportunity to identify future issues in the area, and by carrying out the assessment, how 

the proposed development can affect them (positive or negative). 

14. The impact of a proposed development in area of influence where the use of Welsh is not such 

a prominent feature in the community can be different from the effect in an area where there 

is a higher percentage of Welsh speakers, and where the daily use of Welsh is more prominent. 

This analysis must be recorded. 

Profile of the infrastructure in the influence area (facilities and services for public use) 

15. When considering the information that should be gathered in the context of the wider 

communities, the availability of local facilities for public use must be understood - shops, 

surgeries and other public services, and community centres, halls, schools, etc. When engaging 

with relevant stakeholders, a picture can be obtained of which of these facilities offer services 

or activities in Welsh. If the information is not available, an applicant is expected to take steps 

to fill the gap. Appendix 3 includes a reference to the 'Local Action’ tool that can help identify 

relevant facilities and services and a method of collecting the information. 

Engagement at the scoping stage 

16. There is no obligation on the applicant to consult anyone regarding the information to be 

included in a Linguistic Impact Assessment report. However, there are good practical reasons 

to do so. Firstly, it conforms to one of the ISO 31000 principles, which is “activities to 

communicate and consult with stakeholders throughout the process.” Secondly, identifying the 

characteristics of the community and the factors that influence the places (domains) that are 

important to the viability of the language at an early stage offers the best opportunity to ensure 

that Welsh is a consideration in the development of the proposal. Diagram 5 in the Guidance 

sets out the expectations in terms of engagement and consultation during the pre-application 

period. Engagement and consultation includes neighbours, community and voluntary groups, 

specific groups and community councils. The Planning Authority/Councils will often have useful 

local and specialist information and will be able to provide preliminary advice about the area of 

influence and those aspects of the proposal that are likely to be of particular concern to the 

Planning Authority. The timing of such informal discussions is at the discretion of the applicant; 

Page 140



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
but, in general, it will be extremely beneficial for these to happen as soon as the applicant is in 

a position to provide enough information to form the basis for discussion. It will be an 

opportunity for specific officers to draw the applicant’s attention (and/or those who will advise 

him/her) regarding any gaps in information he/she has collected. The applicant may request 

that any preliminary information currently provided be treated confidentially by the planning 

authority. Both Authorities offer a pre-application advice service.  Appendix 4 of the 

Supplementary Planning Guidance contains key stakeholder addresses. 

17. Table 8.2 below provides a template to record the required information 

Table 8.2: Template to record discussion with stakeholders 

Consult and engage in the activities required to address the identified benefits and risks 
 

Which local groups/ 
organisations/ 
officers were 
consulted 

Details of feedback received 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 

STAGE A2) SCOPING PERIOD (IDENTIFYING THE CONTEXT) –  ANALYSING THE INFORMATION 

18. The purpose of this part of the scoping period is to analyse the information gathered during 

Stage A1 in order to identify key issues about the community and the Welsh language. This 

will help to obtain an initial picture of the potential impacts associated with the development. 

The conclusions must be recorded in the Report on the Welsh Language Impact Assessment. 

 

 

 

Page 141



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
 

STAGE B) CARRY OUT OR MAKE THE ASSESSMENT 

19. As with the Environmental Impact Assessment process, the process of carrying out the Welsh 

Language Impact Assessment needs to consider and record the following, referring to the 

background information and analysis above (i.e. Stage A1 & Stage A2): 

 

i. who (e.g. a particular age group)/ what (e.g. local school) is likely to be affected; 

ii. type of effect (i.e. positive, negative, neutral, direct, indirect); 

iii. likelihood of the effect occurring (i.e. firm, uncertain, can be reversed, cannot be 

reversed); 

iv. potential cumulative effects. 

 

20. This part of the methodology is in two parts: 

 

 
 

 

 

Part 1: complete the Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

 

21. In order to assess the proposed development against the Sustainability Assessment Objective 

relevant to the Welsh language, the relevant parts of the Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

matrix shown in table 8.3 below should be completed. You will need to consider the inter- 

relationship between the factors, e.g. the Welsh language population and the housing market 

and the area’s economy. The template must be used in your report on the Assessment. If a 

positive or negative impact is identified, it will be necessary to consider if any positive effect 

Part 1 - complete 
the Welsh 
language impact 
assessment matrix 
(table 8.3 below) 
to inform question 
3 of the 
sustainability 
matrix

Part 2 - complete 
the sustainability 
matrix - table 8.4 
below

Page 142



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
can be improved, or how you will control negative effects. Those activities must be recorded 

in Stage C below. 

 

22. The sample risk/ benefits matrix in Figure 8.1 can be used to identify the risk and the likelihood 

of the effects. 

Page 143



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
Figure 8.1: Sample Risk/ Benefits Matrix 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Ardal Sylweddol bositif
Ansylweddol 

bositif

Ansylweddol 

negyddol
Sylweddol negyddol

Holl siaradwyr yn yr 

Ardal Ddethol

Cynnydd 2.5 pwynt 

canran  a throsodd  

mewn siaradwyr na’r 

rhagamcan(busnes fel 

arfer)

Cynnydd llai na 2.5 

pwynt canran  mewn 

siaradwyr na’r 

rhagamcan(busnes 

fel arfer)

Lleihâd llai na 2.5 

pwynt canran mewn 

siaradwyr na’r 

rhagamcan(busnes fel 

arfer)

Lleihâd 2.5 pwynt 

canran a thosodd 

mewn siaradwyr na’r 

rhagamcan(busnes fel 

arfer)

2 1 -1 -2

Siawns Amledd Tebygolrwydd Sylweddol Bychan Bychan Sylweddol

Gellir disgwyl iddo ddigwydd 

mewn bron y cyfan  o 

ddatblygiadau cyffelyb

Tystiolaeth gadarn iddo ddigwydd 

mewn o leiaf 8 gwaith allan o 10 

yn yr 20 mlynedd diwethaf
4 Bron yn sicr 8 4 -4 -8

Gellir disgwyl iddo ddigwydd 

mewn y mwyafrif o 

ddatblygiadau cyffelyb

Tystiolaeth gadarn iddo ddigwydd 

mewn o 5 - 7  gwaith allan o 10 yn 

yr 20 mlynedd diwethaf
3 Tebyg 6 3 -3 -6

Gellir disgwyl iddo ddigwydd 

mewn lleiafrif o ddatblygiadau 

cyffelyb

Tystiolaeth gadarn iddo ddigwydd 

mewn o leiaf 2- 4  gwaith allan o 

10 yn yr 20 mlynedd diwethaf
2 Posibl 4 2 -2 -4

Gellir  disgwyl iddo ddigwydd 

mewn nifer fechan iawn  o 

ddatblygiadau cyffelyb

Tystiolaeth gadarn iddo ddigwydd 

llai na 2 waith allan o 10 yn yr 20 

mlynedd diwethaf
1 Annhebyg 2 1 -1 -2

EFFAITH 20 MLYNEDD

TE
B

YG
O

LR
W

YD
D

P
age 144



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
Table 8.3: Welsh language impact assessment Matrix  

 

LANGUAGE AND MOBILITY OF POPULATION (this issue is 
common to Housing development and Employment 
development) 
 

Score Comments 

Explain, with full evidence, whether the development is 
likely to result in a change in the composition of the 
population in the area now and in the future, and in 
particular in terms of contributing or affecting the 
linguistic constitution. You should mention the following: 
 

Effect (E) 
 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Likelihood 
(T) 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Composite 
score  
 
0 - -8 to +8 

 

 How is the development going to ensure 
opportunities for people to stay in their 
community? 

    

 Is there a likelihood that the development will 
attract additional people to the community? If it 
will, how many are expected? Where will they 
come from? How many and what percentage are 
likely to be Welsh speakers? 

    

 Is there a likelihood that local people will migrate 
from the community as a result of the 
development? 

    

 Is the development likely to result in a change in 
the age structure of the community: more or 
fewer children, young people, middle-aged 
people, older people? 

    

 Is there a likelihood that there will be a change in 
the balance between Welsh speakers (including 
learners) and individuals with no ability in Welsh? 

    

P
age 145



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 Is the change likely to be permanent or 
temporary? 

    

Record your analysis with evidence, noting who will be 
affected (e.g. a specific age group); what kind of effect; 
likelihood of the effect to occur; and potential cumulative 
effect. You can use the sample risk matrix in Figure 8.1 to 
record the effect and the likelihood of the effect. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Use a separate page if more space is needed.......... 

    

Composite score     

What is the benefit? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What is the risk? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

P
age 146



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 
Please go to Step C to show 
how you will ensure the 
benefit, and if possible, 
spread the benefit 

 
Please go to Step C to show 
how you will manage the 
risk (get rid of it or reduce it 
to an acceptable level) 

     

VISUAL ELEMENTS (this issue is common to Housing 
development and Employment development) 
 

Score Comments 

Explain, with evidence, how the development will affect 
the Language Visibility in the area, in terms of promoting 
the unique culture of the area.  
 

Effect (E) 
 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Likelihood 
(T) 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Composite 
score  
 
0 - -8 to +8 

 

 Will the development increase visibility of the 
language?  

    

 Corporate image and branding - signs and 
advertisements on the site that are under the 
control of planning, e.g. advertising signs/ 
marketing of new housing site, signs and 
advertisements to customers in public places on an 
employment site 

    

 Site name or development – will it keep an old 
Welsh name or will any new name be derived from 
historical, geographical or local links to the area, if 
practicable 

    

Record your analysis with evidence, noting who will be 
affected (e.g. a specific age group); what kind of effect; 
likelihood of the effect to occur; and potential cumulative 
effect. The sample risk matrix in Figure 8.1 could be used 
for the identification of the impact and probability of the 
effect. 

    

P
age 147



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Use a separate page if more space is needed.......... 

Composite score     

What is the benefit? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please go to Step C to show 
how you will ensure the 
benefit, and if possible, 
spread the benefit 

What is the risk? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please go to Step C to show 
how you will manage the 
risk (get rid of it or reduce it 
to an acceptable level) 

    

     

  

P
age 148



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

QUALITY OF LIFE INCLUDING COMMUNITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE (discuss the following by type of 
development) 
 

Score Comments 

Explain, with full evidence, how the development affects 
the community's quality of life (public amenities and 
community facilities and services). 
 

Effect (E) 
 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Likelihood 
(T) 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Composite 
score  
 
0 - -8 to +8 

 

 To what extent does the development affect 
public amenity/ the environment in the area? Will 
the area be more/ less desirable to live in? 

    

 How adequate is the availability of childcare and 
pre-school places in the locality  

    

 How adequate are the number of school places in 
the local area? Would the development be likely 
to call for more places or is there enough space in 
the schools? Are there enough resources so that 
schools can continue to fulfil their role in 
producing fluent Welsh speakers? 

    

 How would the development be likely to affect the 
balance between non-Welsh speaking pupils and 
Welsh speaking pupils at school? Would more 
places be needed in the immersion unit? Are there 
enough resources to provide facilities and 
opportunities so that children from non-Welsh 
speaking homes and those who have learned 
Welsh as a second language can use and improve 
their Welsh and become part of the Welsh 
community?  

    

 Would the development increase demand for local 
facilities and services?  

    

P
age 149



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 To what extent does the development have a 
positive or negative impact on existing facilities or 
services? 

    

 How will the development maintain or create new 
opportunities to promote the Welsh language in 
local facilities and services such as halls, shops, 
and so on? 

    

 Does the development have the potential to have 
a positive or negative impact on the activities of 
different groups that are active in the community 
which were identified in the profiling work, e.g. 
nursery organizations, the Urdd, voluntary 
groups? What is the capacity of local providers to 
cope with the change? 

    

 How could the Welsh community and its 
institutions integrate the development? 

    

Record your analysis with evidence, noting who will be 
affected (e.g. a specific age group); what kind of effect; 
likelihood of the effect to occur; and potential cumulative 
effect. The sample risk matrix in Figure 8.1 could be used 
for the identification of the impact and probability of the 
effect. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

P
age 150



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 
Use a separate page if more space is needed.......... 

Composite score     

What is the benefit? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please go to Step C to show 
how you will ensure the 
benefit, and if possible, 
spread the benefit 

What is the risk? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please go to Step C to show 
how you will manage the 
risk (get rid of it or reduce it 
to an acceptable level) 

    

     

THE HOUSING MARKET 
 

Score Comments 

Explain, with evidence, how the development is likely to 
affect the housing market in the area now and in the 
future, and in particular in terms of contributing or 
affecting the linguistic constitution.  
 

Effect (E) 
 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Likelihood 
(T) 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Composite 
score  
 
0 - -8 to +8 

 

 Expected market price for the houses, and how 
this compares with household income locally. 

    

 Would the development be likely to have a 
positive or negative impact on the average house 
price in the area affected? 

    

P
age 151



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 Affordable housing contribution and how this 
compares with policy requirements 

    

 Expected or proposed rate of development. Would 
it happen slowly? 

    

 Housing mix and how it compares with policy 
requirements, County or local surveys, or other 
sources of information 

    

 Housing numbers and how this compares with the 
demand for housing and the supply of housing 
given in the Plan, and those granted since the 
adoption of the Plan  

    

 Increased potential impact the development could 
have, taking into account any other relevant 
recent developments in the local area 

    

 Would the development increase the demand for 
private rented housing, which would mean less 
stock available to local households? 

    

Record your analysis with evidence, noting who will be 
affected (e.g. a specific age group); what kind of effect; 
likelihood of the effect to occur; and potential cumulative 
effect. The sample risk matrix in Figure 8.1 could be used 
for the identification of the impact and probability of the 
effect. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

P
age 152



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Use a separate page if more space is needed.......... 

Composite score     

What is the benefit? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Go to Stage C to show how 
you will ensure the benefit, 
and if possible, spread the 
benefit 

What is the risk? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Go to Stage C to show how 
you will manage the risk 
(get rid of it or reduce it to 
an acceptable level) 

    

     

ECONOMIC FACTORS 
 

Score Comments 

Explain, with evidence, how the development affects the 
economics of the local area.  
 

Effect (E) 
 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Likelihood 
(T) 
 
1, 2, 3 or 4 

Composite 
score  
 
0 - -8 to +8 

 

 How does the development contribute to existing 
employment opportunities in the area? 

    

P
age 153



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

 Does it promote economic diversity in the local 
area, i.e. creating jobs that are not available 
locally? 

    

 Number of full and/or part-time jobs     

 Skills that are necessary for the business or 
organization and how this compares with local 
people's labour skills (within the Travel to Work 
area) 

    

 Salaries that will be offered and how these 
compare with average salaries in the area  

    

 Labour skills of local people (within the Travel to 
Work area) and the likelihood according to the 
above assessment that the jobs will be filled from 
among the local population 

    

 Is it likely to have to search outside the local area 
for employees, e.g. for specialist skills 

    

 Will a front-line service be provided to the public?     

 Which language skills are essential and desirable 
for the jobs created by the development. These 
will need to be defined as part of the 
development’s Welsh language plan (voluntary or 
statutory)  

    

 Language skills that will be necessary to integrate 
into the local community, i.e. what language 
would be necessary for different types of jobs 

    

 Increased potential impact the development could 
have, taking into account any other relevant 
recent developments in the local area 

    

 Is the development likely to have a positive impact 
on current local businesses, e.g. by offering 

    

P
age 154



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

business opportunities to supply the requirements 
of the new business for goods? 

Record your analysis with evidence, noting who will be 
affected (e.g. a specific age group); what kind of effect; 
likelihood of the effect to occur; and potential 
cumulative effect. The sample risk matrix in Figure 8.1 
could be used for the identification of the impact and 
probability of the effect. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Use a separate page if more space is needed.......... 

    

Composite score     

What is the benefit? 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Please go to Step C to 
show how you will 
ensure the benefit, and if 

What is the risk? 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please go to Step C to show 
how you will manage the 
risk (get rid of it or reduce it 
to an acceptable level) 

    

P
age 155



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

possible, spread the 
benefit 

 

 

23. The next list provides a matrix of questions to assess the likely impact of the proposed development in terms of the site. You may have answered some 

of the questions already as part of an Environmental Assessment when one is required to support your application. If you haven’t undertaken an 

environmental assessment, use the matrix in table 8.4 below to record the general assessment of the proposed development on the area of influence. 

Use the symbols in the key (see below) in the 'Assessment' column. The symbols in this column indicate whether the proposed development contributes 

positively towards meeting the Sustainability Assessment Objective: 

 whether it fits with the Sustainability Assessment Objective;  

 whether the proposed development has a neutral effect on the Sustainability Assessment Objective: 

 whether the proposed development is a barrier to achieving the Sustainability Assessment Objective.  

 

24. In the 'Summary' column explain, with evidence, how you reach your conclusion.  

 

25. The response to relevant parts of the Welsh Language Impact Assessment matrix in table 8.2 will have assessed the proposed development against 

the section of the Sustainability Appraisal relevant to the Welsh language. 

 

26. If a positive or negative effect is identified after undertaking a Sustainability Assessment of the site you will need to consider whether any positive 

effect can be enhanced or how you can manage negative effects. The actions should be recorded in Step C below. 

  

P
age 156



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
Site name: 

Area of Influence (map)  

Type of development: 

Sustainability Assessment Objective Assessment Summary 

1. Maintain and enhance biodiversity benefits and connectivity 
(SEA topics: biodiversity, fauna, flora, soil) 
Will the proposed development... 

 Protect the integrity of designated sites (international, 
national and local), and avoid habitats/ fragmented 
species 

 Protect and enhance wildlife habitats on land and at sea 
(including the significant woodland asset found in the 
plan area), and wider biodiversity in rural and urban 
areas 

 Maintain and improve the provision of green 
infrastructure 

 Protect and enhance the designated geological sites and 
the wider diversity ground 

 Maintain and enhance the role of ecological connectivity 
  

e.g.  

++ 

The proposed development will contribute to this Sustainability 

Assessment Objective because .................................... 

2.  Promoting viability, cohesion, and community health and well-
being (SEA topics: human health, population)  
Will the proposed development... 

 Meet the needs of an ageing population 

 Reduce the number of work-age people who are out-
migrating, in order to support communities that are 
balanced in terms of age of the population 

 Improve the provision and access to facilities and services 
to disadvantaged communities and rural areas. 

  

P
age 157



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

Sustainability Assessment Objective Assessment Summary 

 Promote community interaction and social inclusion 

 Get rid of barriers and create opportunities for people to 
lead healthier lives, e.g. promoting exercise (walking, 
cycling) 

 Reduce health inequalities between areas and social 
groups 

 

3.  Preserve, promote and strengthen the Welsh language 
(SEA topic:  cultural heritage) 
Will the proposed development... 

 Protect and enhance the opportunities to promote and 
develop the Welsh language - in order to respond to this 
question, the Welsh language Impact Assessment matrix 
in table 8.3 above should be completed  
 

  

4. Preserve, promote and enhance cultural resources and historic 
heritage assets (SEA topic: cultural heritage) 
Will the proposed development… 

 Ensure that local, historic and archaeological and 
cultural assets (including protection from new 
developments) are protected, and are maximized for 
the benefit of residents and visitors 

 Promote access to the historic environment for 
education and tourism purposes/ economic 
development 
 

  

5. Support economic growth and facilitate a vibrant, diverse 
economy that provides local employment opportunities (SEA 
topic: Population) 

  

P
age 158



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

Sustainability Assessment Objective Assessment Summary 

Will the proposed development... 

 Promote and facilitate investment to local businesses 
across a variety of economic sectors 

 Improve and maximise employment opportunities, 
including in rural areas 

 Support the tourism industry by making environmental 
improvements and improving the infrastructure, and 
helping to improve existing resources and infrastructure 

 Provide access to opportunities for training, education 
and skills development for all sectors in the community 

 Treat the Welsh language less favourably than the 
English language in providing services to the public 

 Create opportunities for workers to use the Welsh 
language in the workplace 

 

6. Provide good quality housing, including affordable housing that 
meets local need (SEA topic: population, human health)  
Will the proposed development... 

 Improve the quality and availability of existing housing 
stock for deprived communities 

 Deliver more affordable and sustainable housing with the 
least possible environmental impact in rural and urban 
areas 

 Introduce adapted housing that addresses the individual 
needs of the communities 

 

  

7. Appreciate, conserve and enhance the rural landscapes and 
townscapes of the plan area (SEA topic: landscape)  
Will the proposed development... 

  

P
age 159



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

Sustainability Assessment Objective Assessment Summary 

 Protect and enhance the special features of the 
landscape in the plan area, including Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty, the coastal/ marine 
landscape and townscape 

 Protect and improve the quality of open spaces that are 
accessible to the public in a rural and built environment 

 Ensure that new developments are appropriately 
integrated and sensitive to the landscape and townscape 
character of the plan area 

 

8. Support and enhance good transport links to support the 
community and the economy (SEA topic: population, human 
health) 
Will the proposed development... 

 Improve accessibility in local areas, by linking transport 
networks (public and non-vehicular transport) with 
service centres 

 Reduce the need for private car travel, by improving the 
public transport infrastructure 

 Prioritise accessibility by having sustainable transport 
options for new developments 

  

  

 

 

 

P
age 160



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 

Key 

++ 

Strong encouragement for the development, 
as it would solve current sustainability 
problem 

+/- 

Potential sustainability issues; mitigation 
and/or negotiation may be possible 

+ 

No sustainability barriers and the 
development is acceptable 

- 

Problematic and unlikely due to known 
sustainability issues; mitigating or negotiating 
difficult and/or expensive 

0 
 

-- 
Absolute restrictions in terms of sustainability 

? 
Neutral   

 

STAGE C) – IDENTIFYING MITIGATION/ PROTECTION/ IMPROVEMENT/ SPREAD MEASURES 

 

27. Every good decision will depend on an effective analysis of options.  Option appraisal is the 

process of identification and selection of the most appropriate risk management strategy within 

the limitations of the situation. Normally, this requires following a process of scoring or 

weighting options on how to reduce the risk to an acceptable level.  As a result, of evaluating 

the options and drawing conclusions you can then proceed to select the ‘preferred strategy’, 

which is the ' best ' strategy for the situation and the one who receives the approval of the 

developer, the stakeholders and partners.  

28. Evaluation requires you to follow some, if not all, of the follow-up action:  

 establish clearly what is the outcome you are trying to achieve;  

 Identify the possible options to achieve that outcome;  

 Clearly established what are the criteria used to evaluate;  

 Select the most appropriate tool to implement each option;  

 Identify the impact of each option;  

 Compare the advantages and disadvantages of each option and reach a conclusion. 

 

29. Usually, the risk management options are one of the following: 

 TERMINATE – get rid of a proportion of the risk where possible; 

 TOLORATE – accept the risk by choosing not to intervene;  

 TRANSFER – sharing or moving elements of the risk by sharing with stakeholders or other 

partners or use technology, new processes or new investment;  

 MITIGATE - modification of the effects of the development by putting developing plans in 

place 

30. You will also need to consider how to TAKE ADVANTAGE of OPPORTUNITIES arising from the 

risk to initiate new opportunities. 

Page 161



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT - Appendix 8: Methodology for the 

preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
31. If a positive or negative impact is identified in Stage B above, it will be necessary to consider if 

any positive effect can be improved upon or show how you will control negative effects. If 

significant negative effects are not acceptable, consideration must be given to whether it is 

possible to take steps to reduce the risk to an acceptable level.  It should be recognised that it is 

not possible, in practice, to eliminate risk entirely.  This will help to choose what options are 

available to be included in a Strategy and an Action Plan. 

32. Figure 8.2 generally sets out what kind of response to consider depending on the composite 

score. 

 

Figure 8.2  Response options 

 

 
 

 

33. Appendix 6 includes a list of possible activities that can be used to ensure positive effects and 

to manage risks of negative effects. Those activities should be recorded in the Assessment 

Report, indicating how and when the activities will be carried out. This is essential to show that 

the measures can be realised. Possible measures should be discussed with the Mentrau Iaith 

and the Planning Officer, who will discuss with relevant officers within the Councils, e.g. 

education officers, economic development officers. 

 

34. Table 8.5 below provides a template to record the necessary information. 

Positif Opsiynau Ymateb Negyddol Opsiynau Ymateb

Sylweddol Tebygol UCHAFU TERFYNU

Sylweddol Annhebygol UCHAFU LLINIARU

Bychan Tebygol UCHAFU LLINIARU

Bychan Annhebygol UCHAFU GODDEF

Page 162



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT 

- Appendix 8: Methodology for the preparation of a Welsh Language Impact Assessment – consultation draft 

 
 

 

What is the Benefit or Risk 
identified in Stage B above? 

Possible activity to control the 
benefit or risk 

What does the activity 
achieve? 

How will the benefit/ 
mitigation be achieved?  

What is the timetable for 
delivery?  

     

     

Table 8.5: recording protection/ improvement/ promotion/ mitigation activities 

 

P
age 163



ITEM 5 APPENDIX 4 

1 
 

Consultation Plan: Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Consultation Title: 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance: Maintaining and 
creating distinctive and 
sustainable communities 

Information/ key dates/ activities 

1. Why do we need a 
consultation (short 
summary, e.g. 
statutory 
requirement, policy 
development, etc)? 

After the adoption of the Joint Local Development Plan a series of supplementary planning guidance on specific topics needs to 
be prepared. The Plan identifies the Supplementary Planning Guidance: maintaining and creating a distinctive and sustainable 
communities as one of the series. The purpose of guidance is to say how the Plan’s policies should be interpreted and applied in 
specific circumstances or in specific areas. Supplementary Planning Guidance do not form part of the Plan but must be consistent 
with the Plan and with national policy. They must be derived from a generic policy in the Plan, specific policies for places, and/or 
designation in the Plan, and clearly cross-reference to those sources. According to the Local Development Plans Manual (2015) 
guidance should be the subject of consultation followed by the necessary changes before their formal adoption. It is likely that 
little weight can be given to guidance that do not meet these criteria in any planning appeal. 
 

2. What are the main 
objectives? 

Ensure that: 

i. the Guidance fulfills its purpose, which is to provide clear advice about how to interpret specific policies in the Plan; 

ii. that relevant stakeholders are aware of the opportunity through Public consultation to view the Guidance in its draft 

form, and to submit written comments about its contents; 

iii. that the respondents are aware of how their responses will be addressed, that their responses could lead to a change 

in the Guidance, and who will make the final decision on the content of the Guidance. 

3. What needs to be 
discovered? 

Does the Guidance: 
i. provide a robust description of a distinctive and sustainable community in the local context?  

ii. identify the full ' family ' of policies that promote development that will contribute to maintaining or creating 
distinctive and sustainable communities? 

iii. provide robust advice about the information that would be needed to support planning applications? 
iv. includes explanation of key considerations in Policy PS 1, e.g. what is meant by unexpected windfall sites, significant 

harm, etc; 

P
age 164



ITEM 5 APPENDIX 4 

2 
 

Consultation Title: 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance: Maintaining and 
creating distinctive and 
sustainable communities 

Information/ key dates/ activities 

v. provide a sound framework to assist an applicant to consider the impact (positive or negative) of a development on the 
viability of the Welsh language in communities in the formulation of proposed development, and to assist competent 
officers to provide advice and guidance to a Planning Officer about a submitted planning application; 

vi. provide sufficient guidance to the applicant and his advisor about where and how to obtain information. 

4. Who will be 
consulted? 

i. Public in general; 
ii. Specific consultation bodies, e.g. community and town councils, Natural Resources Wales, CADW, adjoining planning 

authorities, Welsh Government (Planning Department and Welsh Language Division), Welsh language Commissioner’s 
Office; 

iii. Special interest groups, e.g. Pwyllgor Ymgyrch Tai a Chynllunio Gwynedd a Môn, Council for the Protection of Rural 
Wales, Merched y Wawr; Hunaniaith, Menter Iaith Mon 

iv. Individuals with specific interests, i.e. individuals who submitted comments about Policy PS 1 in the Joint Local 
Development Plan; 

v. Planning consultants that advise applicants applying for planning permission. 

5. When will we 
consult? 

If the Committee supports the proposal at its meeting on 16 November 2018, the aim is to begin the public consultation period 
(7 weeks) during December 2018. 

6. How will we consult? i. Electronic copy of the Guidance on both Council’s website; 
ii. A hard copy of the Guidance in the public libraries and main Council offices in Gwynedd and Anglesey; 

iii. Questionnaire on both Council’s website; 
iv. Editable pdf and word copy on both Council’s website; 
v. A hard copy of the form in the public library and main Council offices in Gwynedd and Anglesey. 

 
Please note that we will not respond directly to the respondents. The public consultation material will set out the intention to 
record the relevant responses and consider them and then to prepare a report on the public consultation which will be 
published on the website of the two Councils at the time of the publication of the Joint Planning Policy Committee's 
programme (see 11 below). 
 

P
age 165



ITEM 5 APPENDIX 4 

3 
 

Consultation Title: 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance: Maintaining and 
creating distinctive and 
sustainable communities 

Information/ key dates/ activities 

7. How will notify about 
the public 
consultation? 

i. Councils’ websites – notice on the front page, consultation page and planning policy page; 
ii. Letter and e-mails to stakeholders referred to above; 

iii. Rhaeadr (Gwynedd Council) & Isle of Anglesey County Council’s intranet page & Monitor; 
iv. Twitter and Facebook pages – both Councils; 
v. Press release. 

 

8. Who will analyse the 
comments? 

The Joint Planning Policy Unit in consultation with relevant planning officers, Welsh language development officers in both 
Councils, and the specialists appointed to assist in the preparation of this Guidance. 

9. How will we respond 
to the comments? 

Preparation of consultation report, which summarises each individual comment received during the public consultation period, 
alongside the Joint Planning Policy Unit’s response, and identification of amendments required to address relevant responses. 

10. Who will receive the 
report on the 
comments and 
response to them and 
when will that 
happen? 

The Joint Local Development Plan Panel and then the Joint Planning Policy Committee will receive a copy of the consultation 
report together with a copy of the revised Guidance (which will incorporate amendments required as a result of an assessment 
of the responses received during the public consultation period). The aim is to do this during March and May 2019, 
respectively. The final timetable will depend on the responses received during the public consultation period, - the number of 
comments, their substance and the need to make amendments. 

11. How will give 
feedback to 
respondents and 
when will that 
happen? 

Councils’ websites – publish the consultation report when the Joint Planning Policy Committee’s agenda and papers are 
published (May 2019 -  date to be confirmed). 
 
Write to those that responded during the public consultation at the adoption stage. 

 

P
age 166



ITEM 5 APPENDIX 4 

4 
 

Consultation Title: 
Supplementary Planning 
Guidance: Maintaining and 
creating distinctive and 
sustainable communities 

Information/ key dates/ activities 

12. Who will evaluate 
this consultation plan 
and when will that 
happen? 

Joint Local Development Plan Panel – 22 March 2018 
Community Scrutiny Working Group (Gwynedd Council) – March 2018 

 

P
age 167



ITEM  

 1

MEETING Joint Planning Policy Committee 
DATE 16 November 2018 
NAME Supplementary Planning Guidance 
PURPOSE Consider the draft consultation Supplementary Planning 

Guidance on Affordable Housing included in Appendix 1 
for a decision to publish it for public consultation  
  

RECOMMENDATION Approve the publication of the Supplementary Planning 
Guidance on Affordable Housing included in Appendix 1 
for public consultation 
  

AUTHOR Team Leader (Housing and Communities) (Policy), 
Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Planning Policy Unit  
  

  
  
1.       Background 
  
1.1 The Planning Authorities have committed to prepare a range of Supplementary Planning Guidance 

to support the Joint Local Development Plan. This report presents a draft consultation version of 
the Affordable Housing Guidance in Appendix 1 and information about next steps and timetable. 

 
2. Purpose of Supplementary Planning Guidance 

2.1 Supplementary planning guidance are prepared in order to provide more detail about specific 
policies in the Joint Local Development Plan. Supplementary Planning Guidance help to ensure 
that policies are better understood, are implemented more effectively and implemented in a 
consistent manner.  

2.2 In preparing the new Guidance it is important to keep in mind that Guidance must be consistent 
with the Joint Local Development Plan and national planning policy. Any Guidance should not 
include new policies. 

2.3 Based on the above, only the Plan's policies and proposals have special status (priority) when 
making decisions on planning applications. However, after they have been adopted, and provided 
they have been subject to public consultation and have been adopted by the Authorities, the 
Guidance will be used as a material consideration in decision-making regarding relevant planning 
applications. 

3 The process so far 
 

3.1 So far, the process of preparing the Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance in 
Appendix 1 has included: 

i. Consideration of existing policies in the Local Development Plan; 
ii. Review of existing supplementary planning guidance about Affordable Housing; 

Page 168

Agenda Item 6



ITEM  

 2

iii. Discussions with a variety of officers, which include development management, housing, 
legal officers, within both Authorities and considered their responses about draft versions 
of the Guidance;  

iv. First draft of the Guidance considered by the Joint Local Development Plan Panel on 17 July 
2018 

v. Consideration was given to comments made by the Joint Local Development Plan Panel 

 
4. Changes incorporated in the Draft Consultation Version of the Affordable Housing 
Supplementary Planning Guidance included in Appendix 1 to this report 
 
4.1 When the first Draft version of the Affordable Housing SPG was presented to the Joint Planning 

Policy Panel a few sections were still to be completed due to ongoing internal discussions and 
the draft copy contained a summary of the content for these sections. Below is a summary of 
these sections, which are now completed within the Draft Consultation SPG included in 
Appendix 1 to this report: 
 Chapter 2 – The National Policy Guidance section has been summarised with the original 

version now contained within Appendix 1 of the SPG; 
 3.7 Rural Enterprise Dwellings – Have outlined, in line with National Policy, circumstances 

whereby such dwellings could become affordable housing. Also outlines a methodology to 
deal with applications for the removal of a rural enterprise dwelling condition to provide an 
open market dwelling. The Guidance sets out a requirement for a commuted sum payment 
towards affordable housing provision where such dwellings do not provide an affordable 
unit when the relevant discount is applied i.e. due to the size of the dwelling; 

 3.8 Extensions to Affordable Housing – Explain that certain permitted development rights 
have been removed (i.e. extensions whereby planning permission is not normally required) 
to ensure that we can ensure they remain as affordable housing. Note that when an 
application is required for a development that would normally be allowed under permitted 
development there will be no planning fee for such applications; 

 7.6 Spending Commuted Sum / Pro-rata Payments – Outlines that all monies raised will be 
retained for affordable housing provision with a preference for spending any monies raised 
in the same area subject to suitable schemes being available; 

 7.8 Exception Sites – Provided clarification over the scale of a proposal and should be 
justified based upon a level of need from the settlement it is located within. It also outlines 
the exceptional circumstances if a proposal serves a wider area and states the scale should 
reflect the need for the area it serves. Justification will be required to show that the 
proposal could not be delivered on a site within the development boundary including an 
assessment of houses for sale in the area. 

 7.9 Controlling Occupancy / Mechanism for Perpetuity – Outlines the use of a condition for 
outline approvals and the use of a planning obligation (Section 106 Agreement) for detailed 
applications or those providing a commuted sum; 

 Appendix 3 – Have included a summary from the Anglesey 2016 and Draft Gwynedd (2018) 
Local Housing Market Assessments (LHMA); 

 Appendix 7 – A list of useful contact details is provided; 
 Appendix 8 – A pro-forma to be used for individuals to show their local connection to justify 

their suitability for an affordable house for local need; 
 Appendix 9 – A Glossary of Terms has been introduced within the SPG. 

Page 169



ITEM  

 3

 
4.2 In addition to the changes described above to fill the above mentioned Gaps, further discussions 

with development management, housing and legal offficers highlighted the need for additional 
changes. These additional changes are summarised below:   
 2.2.1 Draft Gwynedd Housing Strategy 2018-23 – Referred to the emerging Strategy rather 

than the old 2013-17 Strategy. 
 3.3.5 Affordability in relation to purchasing housing – Following further discussions with 

both Council’s Housing Services, the deposit level for calculating the anticipated affordable 
price in the different Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA) will now be based  upon median 
house price in the area rather than based upon the household income; 

 3.9 Removal of Affordable Housing Condition / Agreement – Some older dwellings granted 
planning permission as affordable housing did not restrict their size. This means that at a 
future re- sale stage, even with a discount level, that there is a risk that they would not 
provide affordable dwellings. We have therefore introduced a section that outlines the 
justification required to satisfy the Council that these type of properties do not provide 
affordable dwellings and that a commuted sum for affordable housing provision would be 
sought based on the difference between the discounted level and open market value; 

 4.1 Evidence over the need for Affordable Housing – Additional section in paragraph 4.1.7 
which outlines the matters to be agreed with the Council for undertaking a local survey; 

 5.3 Determining the Affordable Units provided outright / Contribution – An additional 
sentence in paragraph 5.3.3 outlining that the Council seek redacted copies of any sensitive 
information provided; 

 7.2 On-Site provision – An additional sentence in paragraph 7.2.2 stating that any additional 
affordable dwelling provided should reflect the identified need for the locality; 

 Chapter 8 Affordable Housing Eligibility of Occupiers – Have included a table to provide 
greater clarity over the local connection requirements for different type of affordable 
developments in different settlement based upon their categorisation in the settlement 
hierarchy.          

 
4.3 There are additional minor word changes in additional parts of the SPG. All of the changes 

outlined in paragraph 4.1 and paragraph 4.2 above are included within the final version 
contained in Appendix 1 .   

 
  
5. Next steps and timetable 
 
5.1 The next table identifies the next steps and an indicative timetable for carrying out the actions. 

The final timetable will depend on the number of comments received during the public 
consultation period and the issues raised in those observations. A report will be presented to the 
meeting of the Joint Local Development Panel after the end of the public consultation period to 
provide an update, including a final timetable. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



ITEM  

 4

Table 1: next steps and timetable 
  

Actions Indicative timetable 
 

Public consultation 
 

Week beginning 3 December 
2018 – week beginning 21 
January 2019  - seven weeks 
 

Consider the comments and identify required proposed 
changes  
 

January – February 2019 

Public consultation report and revised draft Supplementary 
Planning Guidance: Affordable Housing– Joint Local 
Development Plan Panel   
 

March 2019 

Public consultation report and final draft copy of the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance – Joint Planning Policy 
Committee for adoption 
 

 April 2019 

Publish the adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance and 
the consultation report on the Councils’ websites and apply 
them as material planning consideration. 
 

April 2019 

 
 
6. Recommendation 
 
6.1  That the Joint Planning Policy Committee approves the consultation draft Supplementary Planning 

Guidance on Affordable Housing included in Appendix 1 for public consultation. 
 

Page 171



 

1 
 

CONSULTATION DRAFT  

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING  

GUIDANCE 

 

 

 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

 

 

   

 
 

 

NOVEMBER 2018 
 

ANGLESEY AND GWYNEDD JOINT LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Page 172



 

2 
 

Contents Page 

 

 

Chapter 1 – Introduction 

 

Chapter 2 – Policy Context 

 

Chapter 3 – What is an affordable Dwelling? 

 

Chapter 4 – Need for Affordable Housing 

 

Chapter 5 – Viability 

 

Chapter 6 – Thresholds 

 

Chapter 7 – Preparing Affordable Housing 

 

Chapter 8 – Eligibility 

 

Chapter 9 – Monitoring and Review 

Page 173



 

3 
 

Appendix 1 – National Policy Context 

 

Appendix 2 – Joint Local Development plan – Affordable Housing Policies 

 

Appendix 3 – Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) – Overview 

 

Appendix 4 – Anticipated Price of Intermediate Houses for Sale (2018) 

 

Appendix 5 – Notional Floor Areas 

 

Appendix 6 – Viability pro-Forma 

 

Appendix 7 – Useful Contact Details 

 

Appendix 8 – Supporting Statement Pro-Forma to demonstrate local connection 
occupancy eligibility 

 

Appendix 9 – Glossary of Terms  

Page 174



 

4 
 

 

CHAPTER 1 – INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Purpose 

 
1.1.1 The objective of this guide is to:  

• assist the public and their agents in the preparation of plans and proposals and to 
guide them in discussions with officers before submitting planning applications, 

• assist officers to assess planning applications, and officers and advisors to make 
decisions on planning applications, and  

• to help Planning Inspectors to make decisions on appeals. 
 

1.1.2 The overall aim is to improve the quality of new developments and to facilitate 
consistent and transparent decision making. 

 

1.2 The policy context  

Local Development Plan 

1.2.1 Under planning legislation, the 'development plan' includes planning policies for each 
area. The Gwynedd and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan was adopted on 31 
July 2017. It is relevant to Gwynedd Planning Authority area and the Anglesey Local 
Planning Authority area. 

1.2.2 The Plan provides broad policies as well as designations for the main land uses such 
as housing, employment and retail, and it will help shape the future of the Plan area in 
a physical and environmental way, as well as influencing it in economic, social and 
cultural terms. Therefore, the Plan seeks to: 

• guide the Local Planning Authorities to make rational and consistent decisions on 
planning applications by providing a policy framework that is consistent with national 
policy, and 

• guide development to appropriate locations for the period up until 2026. 

The need for Supplementary Planning Guidance 

1.2.3 Although the Plan contains policies that the Local Planning Authorities can use to 
make consistent and transparent decisions on development proposals, it cannot 
provide all the detailed advice needed by officers and potential applicants to guide 
the proposals locally. In order to provide this detailed advice, the Councils prepare a 
range of Supplementary Planning Guidance to support the Plan by providing more 
detailed guidance on a variety of topics and issues to help interpret and implement 
the policies and proposals in the Plan. 

 
1.2.4 There are a number of different ways in which affordable housing can be provided for 

local people. This SPG only deals with the provision of affordable housing through 
the planning process. This includes dwellings provided through all forms of 
development opportunities i.e. on allocated, windfall and rural exception sites, 
including both new build and adaptation and change of use of existing buildings. The 
Gwynedd Council Housing Strategy (2013-2017) and the Anglesey Council Local 

Page 175



 

5 
 

Housing Strategy (2014-2019) elaborate on the various tools applied in the area to 
provide affordable housing. 

 

1.3 Supplementary Planning Guidance Status 

 
1.3.1 Supplementary Planning Guidance can be considered as a material planning 

consideration in the assessment process and when deciding on planning applications. 
The Welsh Government and the Planning Inspectorate place great emphasis on 
Supplementary Planning Guidance derived from, and consistent with, the development 
plan. The Supplementary Planning Guidance does not present any new policy.  

 
1.3.2 In line with the Welsh Government advice, the Supplementary Planning Guidance has 

been subject to public consultation and a decision by the Joint Planning Policy 
Committee on behalf of the Councils.  The draft of this Supplementary Planning 
Guidance was approved for public consultation on date by the name Committee. The 
Supplementary Planning Guidance has been the subject of a public consultation 
exercise between dates. Consideration was given to x comments submitted to the 
Authorities, and where it was appropriate, appropriate improvements were included in 
the final draft approved by the Joint Planning Policy Committee on date to be used as 
a material consideration in assessing and determining planning applications and 
appeals. Comments are summarised in the Appendix together with the Authorities’ 
response or location of the report to the Committee. 

(After adoption) Considerable emphasis should be given to this document 
therefore as a material planning consideration. 

 
 
 
  

Page 176



 

6 
 

CHAPTER 2 – POLICY CONTEXT 
 
 

2.1 National Policy Guidance 
 
2.1.1 Welsh Government guidance in relation to planning for affordable housing is 

contained in Planning Policy Wales (PPW) (Edition 9, November 2016), Technical 
Advice Note (TAN) 2 ‘Planning and Affordable Housing’ (June 2006) and 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 6 Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities’ (July 
2010). 

 
2.1.2 Below are the key issues in relation to affordable housing that should be 

addressed within a development plan (Further detail regarding these issues is 
contained within Appendix 1 to this SPG): 

 
 Affordable housing is a material planning consideration in preparing a 

development plan (para 9.2.14 PPW). 
 When a development plan policy makes it clear that an element of affordable 

housing or other developer contribution is required then this will be a material 
consideration in determining relevant applications (para 9.3.5 PPW). 

 Affordable housing is housing where there are secure mechanisms in place to 
ensure that it is accessible to those that cannot afford market housing, both on 
first occupation and for subsequent occupiers. It includes: 

o Social rented Accommodation which is that provided by local authorities 
and registered social landlords; and  

o Intermediate housing which is that where prices or rents are above those 
of social rent but below market housing prices or rents. (para 5.2 TAN 2 & 
para 9.2.14 PPW).  

 All other type of housing is referred to as ‘market housing’ (para 5.3 TAN 2) 
 Where an affordable scheme allows for staircasing to full ownership there must 

be secure arrangements in place to ensure recycling of capital receipts to provide 
replacement affordable housing (para 9.2.14 PPW). 

 Development plans must include an authority-wide target for affordable housing 
and identify the expected contributions that the policy approaches identified in the 
development plan will make to meeting this target (para 9.2.16 PPW). 

 Development plan should include either site thresholds, or a combination of 
thresholds and site-specific targets (para 9.2.17 PPW). 

 When setting site-capacity thresholds and site specific targets local planning 
authorities should balance the need for affordable housing against site viability 
(para 10.4 TAN 2). 

 It is important that authorities have an appreciation of the demand for different 
dwelling sizes and types of housing in relation to supply, so that they are well 
informed in negotiating the required appropriate mix of dwellings for new 
developments (para 9.2.15 PPW). 

 The special provision of affordable housing exception sites must be considered to 
help ensure the viability of the local community. These must be for 100% 
affordable housing as rural exception sites on land within or adjoining existing 
rural settlements which would not otherwise be released for market housing. The 
affordable housing provided on such sites should meet the needs of local people 
in perpetuity and count towards the overall level of housing provision (para 9.2.23 
PPW & para 10.13 TAN 2). 

 Exception sites are not appropriate for market housing and should not include 
clauses in planning obligations that would enable lenders of private finance to 
dispose of property on the open market as a last resort if a borrower were to get 

Page 177



 

7 
 

into financial difficulties (para 10.14 TAN 2). However TAN 6 does support 
disposal on the open market when mortgagee is in possession (para 4.2.4 TAN 
6). This position is also supported within the document ‘Securing Mortgage 
Access for Affordable Housing: A good practice note for planning and housing 
practitioners (2013)’ subject to recycling of capital receipts to provide 
replacement affordable housing. To assist individuals to obtain a mortgage on 
exception sites this is the approach advocated within this SPG.  

 There should be an occupancy cascade mechanism to ensure that occupants will 
always be found for affordable housing (para 12.7 TAN 2). 

 Where an appropriate rural enterprise worker cannot be found to occupy a rural 
enterprise dwelling, eligibility should be extended to persons who would be 
eligible for consideration for affordable housing under the local authority’s 
housing policies (para 4.13.4 TAN 6). 

 
 

Copies of these documents can be viewed at: 
 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9, November 2016) - 
https://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161117planning-policy-wales-edition-9-
en.pdf  
Technical Advice Note 2 - https://gov.wales/docs/desh/policy/160609technical-
advice-note-2-en.pdf  
Technical Advice Note 6 - https://gov.wales/docs/desh/policy/100722tan6en.pdf  

 
 
2.2 Local Policy Context 
 
 Draft Gwynedd Housing Strategy 2018-23 
 
2.2.1 The Housing Partnership is in the process of preparing the Gwynedd Housing 

Strategy for the period 2018 to 2023. This will set out the direction for the coming 
years, and will include a range of interventions that will help people to have access 
to housing, improve the quality of existing housing and have the ability to respond 
to society’s needs locally. 

 
2.2.2 Having evaluated the information collated within the Local Housing Market 

Assessment, Gwynedd Councils outlines its vision for the housing sector and 
identifies its strategic priorities and outcomes as follows: 
 Improve the affordability of housing across the social and private sectors within 

Gwynedd. 
 Focus on  sustainable developments which are environmentally conscious and 

compatible with the needs of individual communities  
 Identify interventions which reduce homelessness within Gwynedd with a 

particular emphasis on those in greatest need and by addressing gaps in existing 
provision. 

 Work with local key partners to provide preventative support for vulnerable 
people with varied or complex needs ensuring they have access to the support 
they need.   

 Expand the range of suitable housing options, support and assistance for older 
people and those with care need who wish to remain at home and retain their 
independence.  

 Encourage a more varied supply of new housing. 
. 
 

Page 178



 

8 
 

 Anglesey Council Local Housing Strategy 2014-19 
 
2.2.3 The purpose of the 5 year Housing Strategy is to present a vision of continuous 

improvement for housing and housing related services on the Island and describes 
what the Council want to achieve on Anglesey by 2019. 

 
2.2.4 One Theme within the Strategy is the Development of the right homes for Anglesey’s 

future. It identifies that an inadequate supply of suitable affordable housing 
contributes to young people leaving the area and can restrict economic growth.  

 
2.2.5 There is a commitment to maintain up to date evidence over the level of affordable 

housing needed and that this need for both the short term and long term will be 
linked to developing major economic projects envisioned on the Island. 

 
 Joint Local Development plan (JLDP) 2011-26 (Adopted July 2017) 
 
2.2.6 Policy PS 18 ‘Affordable Housing’ sets a minimum target of 1,572 new affordable 

homes with table 21 outlining the basis for this figure. 
 
2.2.7 Policy TAI 15 ‘Affordable Housing Threshold & Distribution’ outlines the relevant 

thresholds where development will be expected to make an affordable housing 
contribution as well as the percentage of affordable housing sought within the 
housing price areas identified within the Plan area. The Policy also addresses other 
matters to be taken into account, including appropriate tenure mix, integration of 
affordable element, viability assessment circumstances, mechanisms for occupation 
in perpetuity, size, scale and design of the affordable dwelling and local need in 
Local, Rural and Coastal Villages. 

 
2.2.8 Where it is demonstrated that there is a proven local need for affordable housing that 

cannot be delivered within a reasonable timescale on a market site within a 
development boundary, proposals for 100% affordable housing schemes on suitable 
sites immediately adjacent to the development boundaries will be supported under 
Policy TAI 16. 

 
2.2.9 Criterion (1) in Policy TAI 8 ‘Appropriate Housing Mix’ states that proposals should 

contribute to creating sustainable mixed communities by maximising the delivery of 
affordable housing (including for affordable need) across the Plan area in accordance 
with Strategic Policy PS 18. 

 
2.2.10 Policy TAI 6 ‘Housing in Clusters’ only supports affordable housing for local need 

whereby that need has been proven.  
 
2.2.11 A copy of the aforementioned policies is contained within Appendix 2 of this SPG. 

They can also be viewed within Chapter 6.4 of the Written Statement at: 
https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---Council/Strategies-and-
policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-policy/Anglesey-and-Gwynedd-Joint-
Local-Development-Plan-Written-Statement.pdf   

 
  

Page 179



 

9 
 

CHAPTER 3 – WHAT IS AN AFFORDABLE DWELLING 
 
 
3.1 Defining Affordable Housing    
 
3.1.1 This Chapter focusses on three main areas being: 
 

 Type of development considered as affordable housing; 
 The price of affordable housing; and 
 The size, scale and design of affordable housing. 

 
 
3.2 Type of development considered as affordable housing 
 
3.2.1 In line with PPW and TAN 2 (see Appendix 1) the Plan’s policies cover two main 

types of affordable housing where there are secure mechanisms in place to ensure 
that it is accessible to those who cannot afford market housing, both on first 
occupation and for subsequent occupiers. These are: 

 
 

Type of Affordable Housing Description 
Social Rented Housing Provided by local authorities and Registered 

Social Landlords (RSLs), where rent levels 
have regard to the Welsh Government 
guideline rents and benchmark rents. 

Intermediate Housing Where prices or rents are above those of social 
rented housing but below market housing 
prices or rents. This can include equity sharing 
schemes (e.g. Homebuy and other emerging 
intermediate products) and self-build affordable 
housing. 

 
 
3.2.2 Intermediate housing differs from low cost market housing, which are in essence 

affordable ‘by design’. The Welsh Government does not consider low cost market to 
be affordable housing for the purpose of the land use planning system, i.e. TAN 2 
requirements. It is acknowledged that low cost market housing is part of the overall 
housing provision within a housing market. It could provide open market housing 
which is within reach of more of the local population. However, the LPA will need to 
be satisfied that the size and type of any low cost market housing reflects the 
housing requirements in the area and thereby contribute towards creating a balanced 
and sustainable community.    

 
3.2.3 Other types of housing are referred to as ‘open market housing’ which are private 

housing for sale or rent where the price is set on the open market and normally there 
is no mechanism to manage their occupancy. It should be noted that Policy TAI 5 in 
the JLDP introduces Local Market Housing, which is market housing but limited to 
those with a local connection to the specific settlements identified within the Policy. 
See Policy TAI 5 in the Plan and the separate SPG on Local Market Housing. 

 
 
3.3 The price of affordable housing 
 

Page 180



 

10 
 

3.3.1 This section outlines the expected price of social rented and intermediate affordable 
housing to ensure that any affordable housing provided remains affordable in 
perpetuity and provides for the long- term needs of the whole community. TAN 2 
states that affordable housing should meet the needs of eligible households, 
including availability at low enough cost for them to afford, determined with regard to 
local incomes and local house prices.  

 
3.3.2 Affordability in relation to rental levels 
 
3.3.3 Affordable in relation to rented housing means that the householder (including 

spouse or partner) would be paying 25% or less of their gross income on the rent for 
a house of a size appropriate to their needs. Rent in excess of 25% of their gross 
income would be deemed not affordable. (This percentage level is supported by 
paragraph 6.16 of the Welsh Assembly Government’s ‘Local Housing Market 
Assessment Guide’ March 2006 see Appendix 3 for an overview of this document). 

 
3.3.4 The following table outlines the approach in relation to different rented affordable 

accommodation: 
 

Category Approach 
Social rented housing  The rent levels for the affordable housing provided by 

the Council or a Registered Social landlord (RSL) will 
be subject to Welsh Government controls. 

Private Rented housing   This is where the developer proposes to build and 
manage affordable housing to rent without the 
involvement of the Council or an RSL. 

 The affordable rent levels will be determined in 
the context of private rental levels in an area. 

    
 
3.3.5 Affordability in relation to purchasing housing 
 
3.3.6 Guidance within the Welsh Assembly Government’s ‘Local Housing Market 

Assessment Guide’ March 2006 states in paragraph 6.16: 
 

“…A household is considered likely to be able to afford to buy a home that costs 3.5 
times the gross household income for a single earner household, or 2.9 times the 
household income for dual income households…”. 

 
 It further states in paragraph 3.39 in relation to assessing whether households can 

afford shared ownership or shared equity properties: 
 
 “…given that shared ownership products will require both mortgage payments (on the 

part they own) and rental payments (on the landlord’s share). In these cases, rental 
and mortgage payments should together constitute no more than 30% of gross 
income...” 

 
3.3.7 Affordable housing provided as intermediate housing must be at a price that is 

affordable for the area within which the proposal is located. The Councils will use 
median household income multiplied by 3.5 plus 5 or 10% deposit based upon the 
level required by mortgage providers. 

 
3.3.8 Median household income on Ward level is only available for the new 11 Electoral 

Wards on Ynys Môn. Due to the scale of these Wards the Councils have used figures 

Page 181



 

11 
 

based upon the Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA). See Appendix 4 for the table 
showing the latest median household income figures for the LSOA in the Plan area 
(At appropriate times this information will be updated and provided as a factual 
addendum to the SPG). 

 
3.3.9 This figure is then multiplied by 3.5. We have used a 3.5 multiplier for both single 

earner household and dual income households due to the increase in house prices 
since 2006 when the Local Market Housing Assessment Guide was prepared. 

 
3.3.10 Finally an allowance is made for a deposit level provided. The level of deposit is 

based upon 10% of the average price of similar types of dwellings i.e. detached, 
semi-detached, terrace or flats, sold within the locality over the preceding 5 years. 
Five years is used to ensure that there is a sufficient volume of house sales within 
individual settlements. This information can be obtained from estate agents online 
selling sites. A different deposit percentage and period of house sales will be 
considered if the applicant can satisfy the Local Authority that this would be more 
appropriate with a specific application. 

 
3.3.11 The table below shows the calculation from Appendix 4 for the LSOA of Pentir 1 

which forms part of the settlement of Bangor. The Deposit level is based upon 
average prices of dwellings sold over the past 5 years in Bangor from the Zoopla 
website: 

 
 Table 1 : Anticipated Price of Affordable Dwelling in Pentir 1 LSOA 

LSOA / 
Settlement 

Median 
Household 

Income 

3.5 
household 

income 

10% Deposit Level for Different House 
Types (Oct 18) 

Detached Semi-
Detached 

Terraced Flats 

Pentir 1 £35,880 £125,580  
£23,667 

 
£15,960 

 
£12,343 

 
£11,139 

 
 
3.3.12 The figures within this table indicate expected price of intermediate affordable units 

within the individual LSOA where the application is located, and will therefore form 
the starting point for the applicant and any discussions with the local planning 
authority.            

 
 
3,4 The size, scale and design of affordable housing 
 
3.4.1 The size and scale of the affordable housing cannot exceed the type of property 

required to meet the target need. Too large a property may not be affordable for 
other future need in the area. 

 
 Size 
 
3.4.2 Specific need for the number of bedrooms 
 
3.4.3 When the proposal is for a specific need, determination of the number of bedrooms 

required should consider the need to provide separate bedrooms for: 
 Husband/wife or similar partnership; 
 Each person aged 18 or over; 
 Children aged 8 or over of different sex from children of any age; 
 A maximum of two persons per bedroom. 

Page 182



 

12 
 

 
3.4.4 For intermediate housing, dwellings may have one extra bedroom, in addition to the 

existing need. 
 
 Scale 
 
3.4.5 Development Quality Requirement (DQR) Standards 
 
3.4.6 All accommodation built using Social Housing Grant will be required to meet the 

Welsh Government’s Development Quality Requirements (DQR) or the most recent 
Welsh Government standards.   

 
3.4.7 The Council’s preference is that private developers to provide affordable units to 

DQR standards since people on the Councils’ Housing Register will only qualify for 
affordable housing that meets DQR. Additionally, RSLs can only purchase properties 
with a grant that are in line with DQR standards. Therefore providing affordable units 
that are in line with DQR standards could allow flexibility for RSLs to purchase those 
units should the developer fail to find suitably qualified individuals. 

 
3.4.8 Overall Floor Area of Dwelling 
 
3.4.9 Annex D of the Acceptable Cost Guidance (2015) includes a Table that outlines the 

notional floor areas for different types of residential units. This table has been 
reproduced within Appendix 5 of this SPG.  

 
3.4.10 The Notional Floor Areas are provided as guidance on the expected floor areas that 

would be achieved if Development Quality Requirements (DQR) were implemented 
in full for each house or flat type listed. They are not a minimum sizes as the main 
criterion should be that all designs comply with DQR rather than merely achieving a 
notional floor area. House or flat designs that are fully DQR compliant can be 
achieved with floor areas below the notional figures. For dwellings that are not DQR 
compliant we would expect their floor areas to be below the notional figures in 
Appendix 5. 

 
3.4.11 The Acceptable Cost Guidance (2015) provides clarity on how the notional floor 

areas are calculated. It states: 
 

CALCULATION OF NOTIONAL FLOOR AREA (NFA) 
 

1. Notional (or Net) Floor Area is measured to the internal finished surfaces of main 
containing walls on each floor, including private staircases, internal partitions, flues 
and ducts; it excludes external dustbin enclosures or stores, any porch open to the 
air or enclosed. 
2. The measurement of floor area of common access flats excludes the area of the 
communal stairs and circulation space. 
3. The measurement of floor areas of individual ground floor external access flats 
includes the area occupied by the staircase and entrance hall necessary to gain 
access to the first floor flat. The areas of the ground floor and upper floor flats (walk-
up) shall be averaged in order to make comparisons against the notional floor areas 
shown above. 
4. The floor area in rooms where the ceiling height is less than 1.50m is excluded. 

 
 
3.5 Self-Build Affordable Housing Properties 
 

Page 183



 

13 
 

3.5.1 The applicant will have to satisfy the Council of their eligibility for an affordable 
dwelling See Chapter 8 of the SPG for the steps required to demonstrate eligibility. 

 
3.5.2 The number of bedrooms in the property should reflect the needs of the individual, 

see section 3.4.2 above in relation to the number of bedrooms etc. In addition the 
overall floor area should reflect the notional sizes referred to in Section 3.4.8 to 
ensure that the property remains affordable for future occupiers.  

 
3.5.3 The applicant will be required to submit two independent valuations of the open 

market value of the proposed house. This will be based on the plans drawn up for the 
proposed house which should be in accordance with the overall floor area outlined in 
section 3.4.8 above. This valuation needs to be certified by a suitably qualified 
chartered surveyor and should be sent with the application. The financial cost in 
relation to obtaining the valuation will be borne by the applicant. In light of this 
sufficient detail needs to be provided with a proposal to allow for accurate valuations 
of the proposed property. In cases where dispute remain over the open market 
valuation, the services of the District Valuer Service will be sought to resolve such 
disputes with the costs to be borne by the applicant. 

 
 
3.6 Serviced Affordable Plot 
 
3.6.1 Subject to satisfying the need for affordable housing in the locality see Chapter 8 the 

cost of a serviced affordable plot will be evaluated against the overall build cost of the 
dwelling. This is to ensure that the overall cost of the dwelling does not exceed the 
anticipated cost of an affordable dwelling in the location of the application.  

 
 
3.7 Rural Enterprise Dwellings 
  
3.7.1 One of the few circumstances in which new isolated residential development in the 

open countryside may be justified is when accommodation is required to enable rural 
enterprise workers to live at, or close to, their place of work. TAN 6 ‘Planning for 
Sustainable Rural Communities’ outlines the justification required to support 
applications for a Rural Enterprise Dwelling (RED). 

 
3.7.2 After the initial occupier where an appropriate rural enterprise worker cannot be 

found to occupy the rural enterprise dwelling, eligibility should be extended to 
persons who would be eligible for consideration for affordable housing under the 
local authority’s housing policies. This approach is outlined within paragraph 6.4.36 
of the JLDP. 

 
3.7.3 Where planning applications are received to lift existing agricultural occupancy 

conditions or where enforcement action is being taken for non-compliance with the 
condition, the planning authority should consider replacing the existing agricultural 
occupancy condition with the rural enterprise dwelling condition set out in paragraph 
4.13.1 of TAN 6. 

 
3.7.4 Should the size of any existing dwelling with an agricultural occupancy condition 

mean that even at 30% below the open market value they are not considered to 
provide an affordable dwelling the condition can be removed subject to a Section 106 
Agreement for payment of a commuted sum of 30% of the open market value 
towards Affordable Housing provision. The open market value of the property shall 
be provided by the applicant from two qualified chartered surveyors and agreed with 
the Local Planning Authority.   

Page 184



 

14 
 

 
3.7.5 The removal of a Rural Enterprise Dwelling (RED) occupancy condition / legal 

agreement granted under TAN 6 must provide a detailed assessment which clearly 
shows that the condition has clearly outlived its usefulness and that no long term 
need exists for the accommodation. The submitted information must show that the 
property has been actively marketed for sale or rent at an appropriate discounted 
price (30% below open market value) for an eligible rural enterprise worker, or 
dependent, for a continuous period of 12 months. In the event of no eligible rural 
enterprise worker requiring the property for sale or rent it should then be marketed as 
an Affordable Housing for Local Need for a continuous period of 6 months. Marketing 
should include traditional methods via estate agents, websites and also via affordable 
housing facilitators. This Affordable Housing for Local Need (AHLN) marketing can 
run concurrently with the last 6 months of the RED marketing and should take place 
within the previous two years. This marketing should be carried out in conjunction 
with the Council’s Housing Strategy Unit and the local Rural Housing Enabler. 

 
3.7.6 If it can be demonstrated that following the above-mentioned marketing activity and 

assessment, that the property is not required as a RED or AHLN dwelling then the 
condition can be removed, subject to the payment of a commuted sum towards 
AHLN. This will be the difference in value of 30% from the open market value of the 
property. The open market value of the property shall be provided by the applicant 
from two qualified chartered surveyors and agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
3.7.7 In cases where dispute remain over the open market valuation, the services of the 

District Valuer Service will be sought to resolve such disputes with the costs to be 
borne by the applicant. 

 
 
3.8 Extensions to Affordable Housing 
 
3.8.1 Householders are normally allowed to carry out various alterations and/or minor 

building works to their dwelling without needing to obtain planning permission this is 
called permitted development. The type of development permitted without the need 
for planning permission is outlined within the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by subsequent legislation).  

 
3.8.2 To ensure that affordable dwellings are not extended without consideration being 

given to the impact of this on them remaining as affordable units the Council will 
normally place a condition removing Schedule 2 Part 1 Classes A to E of the Town & 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended) from 
any affordable housing granted planning permission. This means that planning 
permission will be required to alter the dwellings. Note, there is no planning 
application fee for applications that only require permission due to the presence of a 
condition restricting permitted development. 

 

3.9 Removal of Affordable Housing Condition / Agreement 
 
3.9.1 There are instances whereby current developed affordable dwellings, due to their 

size, are not considered as providing an affordable unit even at a discounted rate. 
In such circumstances the Council may consider the removal of the condition or a 
variation to the original Section 106 agreement subject to the payment of a 
commuted sum towards the future provision of affordable housing. 

 

Page 185



 

15 
 

3.9.2 The open market value of the property shall be provided by the applicant from two 
qualified chartered surveyors and agreed with the Local Planning Authority. In 
cases where dispute remain over the open market valuation, the services of the 
District Valuer Service will be sought to resolve such disputes with the costs to be 
borne by the applicant.  

 
3.9.3 Whereby the discount level is set out within a condition / planning obligation the 

Council will seek the difference in value from the open market value to the discount 
level as a commuted sum. 

 
3.9.4 In instances whereby the discounted level is not specified the Council will evaluate 

the expected price of an affordable unit in the location of the existing dwelling, as 
per the methodology in Section 3.3 of this SPG, in order to calculate the difference 
between the open market value and the anticipated affordable value. This 
difference will be the commuted sum sought by the Council.  

Page 186



 

16 
 

CHAPTER 4 – THE NEED FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN THE PLAN AREA 
 
 
 
4.1 Evidence over the Need for Affordable Housing 
 
4.1.1 As highlighted in paragraph 9.2.14 of Planning Policy Wales (2016) the Council’s 

Local Housing Market Assessments (LHMA) should provide the evidence to support 
policies to deliver affordable housing through the land use planning system. 

 
4.1.2 A comprehensive housing need assessment is not required more frequently than 

every five years, however, the flexibility of the housing market requires regular 
updates to ensure a robust and valid evidence base. 

 
4.1.3 The evidence provided by the Councils at the examination stage of the JLDP 

satisfied the Inspector that due to the level of need within the Plan area the evidence 
clearly demonstrated that the Plan should seek to maximise the contribution towards 
affordable housing provision.   

 
4.1.4 The Councils maintain a Common Register of those in need of Social Rented 

Accommodation. Additionally both Councils are involved with Tai Teg which is a 
partnership initiative between housing organisations and developers in Anglesey and 
Gwynedd. This is a register of people interested in homeownership who cannot 
currently afford to buy on the open market. In addition the information on the register 
helps the partnership to identify housing need in specific areas, which then allows it 
to plan and develop housing stock in Anglesey and Gwynedd.  

 
4.1.5 Appendix D of the Welsh Government’s LHMA Guide states that village, community 

or neighbourhood surveys are optional additions to the main local housing survey. In 
the context of rural settlements, an additional survey of this type will be the only 
practical way to proceed in order to gauge the potential need for affordable housing. 
This is because in rural areas, affordable housing need can be highly localised and 
although a sample survey will be able to say how many households are in need 
across the whole local authority or within a sub-area of it, it will not be able to identify 
affordable housing needs in a particular village at a planning application stage. 

 
4.1.6 The North West Wales Regional Rural Housing Enabler (RHE) Service operates in 

rural Anglesey and Gwynedd, the role of the Enabler is to: 
 Raise awareness of the shortage of affordable housing for local people in rural 

areas. 
 Gather information regarding the needs for affordable housing within rural 

communities. 
 Empower communities so that they can explore innovative options. 
 Assist communities in forming appropriate partnerships. 
 Offer support to residents in relation to sustainable communities. 
 Work with communities so that they can register the needs of local people. 
 Improve the relationship between voluntary and statutory authorities and 

communities. 
 
4.1.7 Where primary sources (LHMA, Common Housing and Tai Teg register) or 

evidence submitted by the applicant do not identify a need for Affordable housing 
for local need in a rural locality (e.g. because households in need have not chosen 
to register their need or preference for specific settlements) a local survey is the 
preferred option to demonstrate a need for affordable housing. The survey should 

Page 187



 

17 
 

be undertaken by a qualified individual / company / service such as the RHE, with 
the methodology agreed with the Council. Applicants are encouraged to engage 
with the RHE at an early stage, however it should be noted there may be a charge 
for this service. When a Local Survey is required the applicant should agree with 
the Council the following matters: 
 The extent of area that should be subject to the survey; 
 The appropriate methodology for obtaining information e.g. questionnaires, public 

meeting, drop-in session; 
 The content of any publicity materials / questionnaires to be used; 
 An agreed list of local stakeholders to be consulted e.g. Community or Town 

Council, Local Members etc.; 
 An agreed methodology for the analysis and interpretation of any information 

gathered. 
 
 
4.1.8 In all cases the Local Planning Authority will require evidence that the proposed 

affordable provision with a development reflects an appropriate mix in terms of scale, 
tenure, types and sizes of affordable housing being provided meets an identified 
need. The Housing Mix SPG provides additional information, including a pro- forma 
that should be submitted with relevant planning application to record the evidence to 
support a proposal. 

 
4.1.9 The type of affordable housing provision will also have to reflect the settlement’s 

position within the different policies of the JLDP as outlined in the table below: 
 
 Table 2: Type of Affordable Housing Provision 

Category of Settlements (Policy 
Number) 

Type of Affordable Provision 

Sub-Regional Centre (TAI 1) General Affordable housing provision in 
accordance with the definition in TAN 2 
from within the relevant County i.e. 
Anglesey or Gwynedd. 

Urban Service Centres (TAI 1) 
Local Service Centres (TAI 2) 
Service Villages (TAI 3) 
Local, Rural & Coastal Villages (TAI 4) Affordable housing for local need – 

people in need of an affordable house 
who have resided within the Village or 
in the surrounding rural area for a 
continuous period of 5 years or more, 
either immediately before submitting the 
application or in the past. 

Housing in Clusters (TAI 6) Affordable house for local need - people 
in need of an affordable house who 
have resided within the Cluster or in the 
surrounding rural area for a continuous 
period of 5 years or more, either 
immediately before submitting the 
application or in the past.  

Conversion of Traditional Buildings (TAI 
7) 

Affordable house for local need - people 
in need of an affordable house who 
have resided within the surrounding 
rural area for a continuous period of 5 
years or more, either immediately 
before submitting the application or in 
the past. 

     

Page 188



 

18 
 

  
4.1.10 The affordable housing for local need in the smaller settlements is to ensure that 

growth in these settlements will not draw people with no connection to the settlement 
/ area out of Service Centres or Service Villages. This is highlighted within the 
Glossary of Terms for Affordable Housing for Local Need in the JLDP.   

 
4.1.11 Chapter 8 of the SPG outlines the evidence required to satisfy the Local Planning 

Authority (LPA) that an individual is eligible or that there is sufficient need in a locality 
to support the application. 

  

Page 189



 

19 
 

CHAPTER 5 – THE VIABILITY OF PROVIDING AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
 
5.1 Why Assess Viability of a Scheme 
 
5.1.1 The question of the viability of land for housing is central to planning policy.  

Paragraph 9.2.2 of Planning Policy Wales (2016) states “…The level of housing 
provision to be proposed over a plan period must be considered in the context of 
viability and deliverability…”. TAN 2 further states that informed assumptions should 
be made about the levels of finance available for affordable housing and the type of 
affordable housing to be provided.  

 
5.1.2 The courts have further emphasised the importance of robust viability evidence to 

underpin Affordable housing policies in development plans. The Court of Appeal in 
2008 decided in a case brought against Blyth Valley council that: 

 
 “… an informed assessment of the viability of any such percentage figure is a central 

feature of the Planning Policy Statement (PPS3) on affordable housing. It is not 
peripheral, optional or cosmetic. It is patently a crucial requirement of the policy”.   

 
5.1.3 To justify the Threshold and Percentage of Affordable housing sought within the Plan 

area the Councils commissioned an Affordable Housing Viability Study (AHVS). This 
provided the justification over the figures contained within Policy TAI 15, which are 
explained in greater detail within Chapter 6 of this guidance.  

 
5.2 House Price Sub-Areas 
 
5.2.1 The AHVS identified sub-areas based on house prices within the Plan area. This was 

based upon the three years worth of HM Land Registry data for different house types 
(the study was undertaken in 2012 and therefore used data for the period 2009 to 
2011). The sub-areas were based upon post code sectors and were informed by 
discussions in a workshop conducted with the housing industry and other 
stakeholders. 

 
5.2.2 Separate Housing Price Areas with similar selling prices were then grouped together 

and a number of development mix scenarios, based upon typical development mixes 
on a notional one hectare site discussed at the stakeholder workshop, were tested 
for their viability. 

 
5.2.3 The AHVS was updated during the Plan’s Examination to consider changes in the 

market from the original work in 2012 and specifically the impact of costs of providing 
sprinklers (see: https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/Council/Documents---
Council/Strategies-and-policies/Environment-and-planning/Planning-
policy/Examination-Documents/Operating-Points/Session-4-Action-Points-4,-5,-6,-7-
and-9.pdf).       

 
5.2.4 The following table outlines which settlements fall into different house price areas 

and the indicative % affordable housing target that should form the basis for 
proposals: 

 
Table 3: Settlements in the Different House Price Area (which is a copy of Table 22 
included in the Plan) 

Page 190



 

20 
 

House Price Area 

Sub-Regional Centre, Urban & 
Local Service Centres & 

Service Villages 

Local, Rural, Coastal Villages 

Percentage of Affordable Housing Sought: 30% 

Gwynedd High Value Coastal Abersoch 
Llanbedrog, Llangian, 
Mynytho, Sarn Bach 

Rhosneigr Rhosneigr  

Beaumaris Beaumaris Llanddona, Llangoed 

Rural North West Cemaes 
Carreg-lefn, Llanfechell, 
Tregele 

Bridgehead 
Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, Menai 
Bridge 

Llandegfan 

Trearddur & Rhoscolyn No service centre in this area. 
Four Mile Bridge (part), 
Trearddur Bay 

South West Newborough Brynsiencyn, Dwyran 

North East Rural Benllech, Pentraeth Llanbedr-goch, Moelfre 

Larger Coastal Settlements 
Bethel (Gwynedd), Bontnewydd, 
Caernarfon, Criccieth, Pwllheli, 
Porthmadog, Tremadog 

Borth-y-Gest, Caeathro, 
Efailnewydd, Llanystumdwy, 
Morfa Bychan 

Percentage of Affordable Housing Sought: 20% 

Rural Centres Area within the Park Corris  

Mid Rural Gaerwen, Llannerch-y-medd Llanddaniel-fab, Llangaffo 

Northern Coast & South Arfon Bangor, Penygroes 
Llandygai, Llanllyfni, Nantlle, 
Rhiwlas, Talysarn, Tregarth, Y 
Felinheli  

Rural West Bodedern, Gwalchmai, Valley Aberffraw,  Bethel (Anglesey), 
Bryngwran, Caergeiliog, Four 
Mile Bridge (part), 
Llanfachraeth, Llanfaelog, 
Llanfaethlu, Llanfihangel-yn-
Nhywyn, Llangristiolus, 
Llanrhuddlad, Malltraeth, 
Pencaernisiog, 

Percentage of Affordable Housing Sought: 10% 

Llangefni Llangefni Bodffordd, Talwrn  

Page 191



 

21 
 

House Price Area 

Sub-Regional Centre, Urban & 
Local Service Centres & 

Service Villages 

Local, Rural, Coastal Villages 

Llŷn Botwnnog, Chwilog, Nefyn, Y Ffôr 

Aberdaron, Abererch, Clynnog 
Fawr, Dinas (Llanwnda) (part), 
Dinas Dinlle, Edern, 
Garndolbenmaen, 
Llanaelhaearn, Llandwrog, 
Llangybi, Llithfaen, Morfa 
Nefyn, Pentref Uchaf, 
Rhoshirwaun, Sarn Mellteyrn, 
Trefor, Tudweiliog, 

Western Coastal & Rural ArfonR 
Abermaw, Deiniolen, 
Penrhyndeudraeth, Tywyn 

Brynrefail, Carmel, Dinas 
(Llanwnda) (part), Dolydd & 
Maen Coch, Fairbourne, 
Groeslon, Garreg-Llanfrothen, 
Penisarwaun, Rhosgadfan, 
Rhostryfan,  Y Fron  

Holyhead Holyhead  

Amlwch & Hinterland Amlwch Pen-y-Sarn, Rhos-y-bol 

The Mountains 
Bethesda, Llanberis, Llanrug, 
Rachub 

Cwm y Glo, Waunfawr  

Eastern Gwynedd & National 
Park 

Area within the Park  

Blaenau Ffestiniog Blaenau Ffestiniog  

 

 

5.3 Determining the Affordable Housing Units provided outright / Contribution 
 
5.3.1 Criterion 3 (iii) of TAI 15 outlines the approach that will be applied when the applicant 

considers that the proposed provision of affordable housing units within a scheme 
falls below the policy requirements. This could be due to the provision of the 
expected level of affordable units on their own or in combination with other planning 
obligation costs e.g. Educational Contribution, Open Space provision/ contribution. 
See the SPG on ‘Planning Obligations, incorporating developer contributions for a 
range of infrastructure’ for further details on possible planning obligations that could 
be applicable with a proposal. The onus will be on the applicant / developer / 
landowner to show on a viability pro-forma the circumstances justifying a lower 
affordable housing contribution and therefore a lower than expected on site tenure 
mix.  

 

Page 192



 

22 
 

5.3.2 A copy of the viability pro-forma to be used is contained within Appendix 6 of this 
SPG. This needs to be completed and sent to the Local Planning Authority so that 
the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Council’s Housing Services can 
assess the information provided and determine whether this justifies a lower 
affordable housing contribution. The pro-forma requires information about: 

 
 Table 4 – Information Required with Viability Pro-Forma 

Category Information Required 
1. Nature of Developments  Type of units 

 Number of bedrooms 
 Internal floor area m2 
 Number of parking spaces 
 Nature of tenure 
 Projected Open Market & Affordable 

Values 
2. Build Costs   Cost of development per m2 split 

down to: 
o Plot costs (base 

construction) 
o External works costs 
o Infrastructure 

3. Other Development Costs 
3.1 Professional Fees  List the anticipated cost for architect, 

planning consultant, quantity 
surveyor etc. supported with copies 
of the latest estimated cost from the 
relevant companies.  

3.2 Internal Overheads   Costs such as administrative within 
the development company, land 
buyers and planning all non-direct 
site associated costs. 

3.3 Market Finance  The cost of any loans associated 
with the development split between: 

o Finance for the land. 
o Finance of construction. 

3.4 Marketing Fees  The Estate Agents costs of selling 
the completed housing units. 
Supported with copies of quotes 
from Estate Agents for the work. 

3.5 Developer Profit  The profit margin that the developer 
will seek from the proposal. 

3.6 Contractors Profit  Only applies to the affordable 
housing element of a proposal. 

4. Abnormal Costs  A list and justification for any 
abnormal costs associated with the 
development. Supported by relevant 
quotes for any abnormal costs.  

5. Planning Obligation Costs  Any known planning obligation costs 
associated with the developments 
e.g. Education Contribution, Open 
Space Contribution etc. (These 
matters should be identified from 
pre-application discussions).  

Page 193



 

23 
 

Category Information Required 
6. Site Purchase Costs  Actual price paid for a site with 

purchase date or an estimated cost 
of the site. 

 
 
5.3.3 To allow the Local Planning Authority to respond in a timely manner it is important 

the information is provided in the manner stipulated within the Viability Pro-forma. 
Providing information in a different format could have an impact upon the time taken 
to assess the Viability obligations of a scheme. Commercially sensitive information 
will be dealt with confidentially by the Local Planning Authority. Any commercially 
sensitive information should clearly be labelled as such when submitted. For 
commercially sensitive information and any other personal information provided the 
applicant should also provide a redacted version of this information that can be 
placed on the Public Register.   

 
5.3.4 Criterion 3 (iv) of TAI 15 states that following the submission of the Viability Pro-

forma if disagreement still exists between the applicant / developer / landowner and 
the Local Planning Authority then an independent external assessment of the 
scheme will be undertaken at the applicant’s expense.  

 
5.3.5 The number of affordable units provided will reflect the conclusions of this 

assessment. Payment for undertaking an independent assessment should be paid by 
the applicant / developer / landowner prior to commissioning the independent 
external assessment.  

 
5.3.6 In cases of dispute the Local Planning Authority will accept the findings of an 

independent external assessment.  
 
5.3.7 In instances where the applicant / developer / landowner refuses to undertake an 

independent external assessment the Local Planning Authority will refuse the 
application on the grounds that the Viability issue with the application has not been 
proven to the satisfaction of the LPA.  

 
 

  

Page 194



 

24 
 

CHAPTER 6 – THRESHOLDS, DISTRIBUTION & REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
6.1 Thresholds 
 
6.1.1 The following table highlights the threshold figures within Policy TAI 15 when the 

Council will seek an affordable housing provision / contribution for both new build or 
conversion for settlements / areas identified in the settlement hierarchy: 

 
  

CATEGORY OF SETTLEMENT THRESHOLD 

Sub-regional Centre 

2 or more housing units 

 

Urban Service Centres 

Local Service Centres 

Service Villages 

Rural / Coastal Villages 

Local Villages 

Clusters Only sites of 100% affordable housing will be 
supported within clusters. 

Subdivision of Rural 
Dwellings 

2 or more additional units 

Conversion of Traditional 
Buildings in Open 
Countryside 

100% affordable housing (unless the 
residential use is a subordinate element 
associated with a wider scheme for business 
re-use) 

  
 
6.1.2 When the threshold is triggered the Local Planning Authority will require the 

percentage of provision sought against all of the units that are part of the proposal 
other than for the sub-division of rural dwellings where the contribution will be sought 
on two or more of the additional units provided. 

 
6.1.3 Criterion (3) of Policy PCYFF 2 seeks to ensure that proposals should demonstrate 

that it makes the most efficient use of land, including achieving densities of a 
minimum of 30 housing units per hectare for residential development (unless there 
are local circumstances or site constraints that dictate a lower density). 

 

Page 195



 

25 
 

6.1.4 In light of this, the Local Planning Authority will scrutinise proposals that seek to 
provide a lower than average density, in order to determine whether the sites are 
capable of delivering more housing than proposed, and therefore would be: 

 
i. above the site capacity threshold set in Policy TAI 15, and  
ii. capable of delivering a higher level of affordable housing  

 
The applicant will need to demonstrate in a Design and Access Statement, Planning 
Statement, or a similar document at the planning application stage why a lower than 
average density is proposed. 

 
6.2 Percentage of Affordable Housing 
 
6.2.1 The Affordable Housing Viability Study identified different percentage levels that are 

viable for the provision of affordable housing within the different House price Areas. 
As highlighted within Policy TAI 15 these indicative targets are based on the 
provision of social rent tenure, and are as follows: 

 
Percentage of 

Affordable Housing 
Housing Price Areas 

30% Gwynedd High Value Coastal, Rhosneigr, Beaumaris, Rural 
North West, Bridgehead, Trearddur & Rhoscolyn, South 
West, North East Rural, Larger Coastal Settlements  

20% Rural Centres, Mid Rural, Northern Coast and South Arfon, 
Rural West 

10% Llangefni, Llŷn, Western Coastal & Rural Arfon, Holyhead, 
Amlwch & Hinterland, The Mountains, Eastern Gwynedd & 
National Park, Blaenau Ffestiniog. 

   
 

6.2.2 This indicative level of provision should be sought on all proposals that trigger the 
Threshold requirements as highlighted in section 6.1 above. A higher level of 
provision could be provided within proposals that include an alternative tenure mix 
(see criterion 2 of Policy TAI 15).  

 
6.2.3 Where the affordable requirement of a particular scheme falls below a single dwelling 

the Local Planning Authority Area will still initially seek to ensure an affordable unit 
within that development. If the Local Planning Authority Area can be satisfied that it is 
not viable to provide a unit as part of the development then a pro-rata payment will 
be expected rather than no affordable provision on the site. The pro-rata payment for 
the affordable requirement which is below a single affordable unit will use the same 
formula as that set out in section 7.5 of the SPG in relation to Commuted sum 
payments.   

 
  

Page 196



 

26 
 

CHAPTER 7 – DELIVERING AFFORDABLE HOMES 
 
 
7.1 Pre-Application Discussion & Process 

 
7.1.1 In considering a site, the applicant should determine which is the relevant sub 

market area, and thereby the affordable target that the Local Authority will look to 
achieve. The number and type of market and affordable units to be provided on the 
site should be indicated (see Housing Mix SPG for a copy of the relevant pro-forma 
to record the information). Applicants are advised to read the Housing Mix SPG and 
contact the Local Housing Authority and/ or Rural Housing Enablers to obtain 
advice about recognised sources of information regarding local need for affordable 
homes and advice over the tenure split between rented and intermediate affordable 
housing. The Local Housing Authority and the Rural Housing Enabler will advise the 
applicant regarding any charges to obtain detailed information. 

 
7.1.2 Both Authorities provide a planning pre-application advice service although there is 

a standard fee for this (See links to the relevant pages available on-line in Appendix 
7). This will help with outlining any matters that would need to be considered and 
addressed before a planning application is submitted. This advice will include 
reference to other planning obligation requirements that may be required with the 
proposal.  

 
7.1.3 If the intention is to sell the affordable element to a Registered Social Landlord or a 

private management service, you should contact them for an indication of their 
willingness to purchase and the price they will pay.  

 
7.1.4 This should enable you to calculate the viability of the scheme, taking into account 

costs, including required provision of affordable housing units and other planning 
obligations, versus income.  

 
7.1.5 If the development is for a self-build plot or has identified specific individuals for the 

proposal, the eligibility of these individuals should be confirmed in discussions with 
the Local Housing Authority. They should be on the Council’s waiting list for a social 
rented accommodation or be confirmed as satisfying the eligibility requirements 
noted within the Policy and the SPG (see further detail in Chapter 8 of this SPG). 

 
 
7.2 On-Site Provision 
 
7.2.1 A contribution to affordable housing must be provided, on all housing development 

that triggers the relevant threshold requirement in Policy TAI 15. When a 
development triggers the relevant threshold the affordable housing requirement is 
calculated against all of the units on the site other than for the sub-division of rural 
buildings where the contribution will be on all the additional units provided on the 
site. The affordable housing requirement should be provided on the development 
site except in exceptional circumstances where a financial contribution is more 
appropriate. 

 
7.2.2 Where the calculation for affordable housing is applied the proportion of the total 

number of dwellings required to be affordable housing will be rounded to the 
nearest whole number (where half rounds up). If the fraction of an affordable 
dwelling is below 0.5 then a contribution via a commuted sum based on that fraction 
will be required. For example, on a development of 14 new dwellings in a 10% 
House Price Area, the affordable housing provision will equate to 1.4 dwellings. 

Page 197



 

27 
 

Therefore 1 dwelling would need to be on site and a commuted sum worth 0.4 of an 
affordable home would be required. Alternatively, an applicant may wish to provide 
an additional dwelling above the fraction of a unit, which they are required to 
provide. The type of any additional affordable dwelling provided should reflect the 
identified need for affordable provision in the area. The calculation for a Commuted 
Sum is shown in Section 7.5 below. 

 
7.2.3 Where delivery of affordable housing are to be provided on-site by a developer it is 

the preference of the LPA that the homes be transferred to a RSL. In such cases, it 
is essential that the affordable units are up to DQR standards to enable RSLs to 
purchase them. The LPA does acknowledge however that developers may sell 
completed  homes to private rental companies, or manage the units themselves, 
provided that the rent is affordable (benchmark or intermediate rents) and that the 
tenants or occupants are selected from the Common Housing Register or Tai Teg 
Register, and assessed as being in need by the Housing Association.  

 
 
7.3 Integrated 
 
7.3.1 Affordable housing ought to be, as far as possible, indistinguishable from the general mix of 

other houses on a site in terms of style and layout, use of materials, architectural quality and 
detail. The ability to “pepper pot” affordable housing units throughout the development site 
will depend on the scale of the proposal. On compact sites, widespread pepper potting may 
not be feasible. The applicant will need to explain what material circumstances prevail to 
justify why ‘pepper potting’ cannot be achieved. This will assist the Local Planning Authority 
to determine whether Criteria 3(ii) of Policy TAI 15 has been achieved, i.e. that the 
affordable units are fully integrated within a development and indistinguishable from non-
affordable housing. 

 
 
7.4 Off-Site Provision 
 
7.4.1 Off-site provision will only be considered in lieu of on-site provision in exceptional 

circumstances, which will be determined on a site-by-site basis. The alternative site 
should be within the same settlement and the justification could be that the 
alternative site is located closer to the services and facilities within the settlement 
and / or the alternative site would provide a higher level of affordable provision in 
the locality. 

 
7.4.2 In such instances the affordable housing provided should reflect the same quantity 

(unless the justification is for a higher proportion) type and quality as that which 
would have been provided on-site. The onus will be on the developer to set out the 
exceptional circumstances as to why the provision should not be on site and how 
their alternative proposal will address the affordable housing need identified by the 
LPA. 

 
7.4.3 With any off-site provision the LPA will need to be satisfied that the alternative site 

being offered can be developed in a timely manner and any permission will seek to 
ensure that the affordable housing element is developed in line with the open 
market element on the alternative site. Normally a legal agreement will be used to 
ensure this matter is addressed. 

 
 
7.5 Pro-Rata Payment / Commuted Sums 
 

Page 198



 

28 
 

7.5.1 Where the Council is satisfied that it is not viable to provide an affordable unit in 
instances where the requirement is for below a single unit then a pro-rata payment 
will be expected. Also in exceptional circumstances where on-site provision is not 
considered appropriate and off-site units cannot be delivered on an alternative site, 
the Local Planning Authority will require a commuted payment in lieu of on-site 
affordable housing provision. 

 
7.5.2 The pro-rata payment / commuted sum should be of equivalent value to the 

developer contribution if the affordable housing was provided on site.  
 
7.5.3 The high level testing undertaken within the AHVS is based upon a notional one 

hectare site for a series of house price sub markets that have been identified in the 
Plan. This is used as a comparable and practice measure for benchmarking results. 

 
7.5.4 This AHVS identified at 30 dwellings per hectare (Dph) whether 30%, 20% or 10% 

affordable housing provision was viable for the different housing price areas. 
 
7.5.5 The AHVS calculates the Residual Value of a site based on different levels of 

affordable housing provision. The Residual Value is the difference between Gross 
Development Value and total scheme costs. It provides an indication to the 
developer and / or land owner of what should be paid for a site. 

 
7.5.6 The methodology below outlines the commuted sum payment for pro-rata where 

the scheme falls below a single dwelling on the site or in lieu of providing an 
affordable unit(s) on the site: 

 
Step 1: Identify the Relevant percentage of affordable housing sought in the specific 
housing price area (shown in grey in Table 5 in this SPG).  
 
Step 2: Calculate the difference between the Residual Value at the affordable 
housing provision applicable to a housing price area and the Residual Value with no 
affordable housing provision on the site (see Table 5 below). 
Step 3: Divide the figure from Step 2 by the number of affordable units delivered on 
a notional 1 ha site (i.e. 3 affordable units in a 10% House Price Area, 6 in a 20% 
area and 9 in a 30% area). This gives the commuted sum for the provision of a 
single affordable dwelling 
Step 4: Multiply the Relevant % of expected affordable housing provision (this is 
figure from Step 1) by the number of residential units in the proposed scheme. 
Step 5: Multiple the commuted sum required for a single dwelling at this location 
(figure from Step 3) by the proportion or number of units required (figure from Step 
4) 
 
 

Table 5: Copy of Residual Value Figures from Table 2.2 within the Updated Affordable 
Housing Viability Study (Prices in £ millions) 
 
House Price Area 0% 10% 20% 30% 
Gwynedd High Value Coastal, 
Rhosneigr, Beaumaris. 

£3.55 £3.04 £2.53 £2.01 

Rural North West, Bridgehead, 
Trearddur & Rhoscolyn. 

£1.99 £1.61 £1.19 £0.86 

South West, North East Rural, 
Larger Coastal Settlements. 

£1.49 £1.16 £0.84 £0.51 

Page 199



 

29 
 

House Price Area 0% 10% 20% 30% 
Rural Centres, Mid Rural, North 
Coast & South Arfon, Rural 
West. 

£1.05 £0.81 £0.52 £0.23 

Llangefni, Llŷn 
 

£0.75 £0.50 £0.24 -£0.01 

Western Coast & Rural Arfon, 
Holyhead, Amlwch & Hinterland. 

£0.56 £0.26 £0.02 -£0.22 

The Mountains, Eastern 
Gwynedd & National Park, 
Blaenau Ffestiniog 

£0.20 -£0.01 -£0.08 -£0.43 

 
 

 
7.5.7 Below are examples of the calculation for different proposed schemes: 

 
Example 1: Development of 3 housing units in Gwalchmai 
 
Step 1: Gwalchmai is in the Rural West Housing Price Area, which is expected to 
deliver 20% affordable housing. 
Step 2: Residual Value with 20% affordable housing provision for 30 dwellings = 
£0.52m 
Residual Value with 0% affordable housing provision for 30 dwellings = £1.05m 
Difference = £0.53m 
Step 3: This £530,000 represents the requirement to deliver 6 affordable homes 
(20% of 30 units), which is £88,333 per unit (in other words £88,333 is what is 
required in this sub-market to deliver one affordable unit). 
Step 4: For a scheme of 3 units 20% of 2 units = 0.6 of an affordable housing unit.  
Step 5: Therefore the commuted sum that should be sought for this proposals is 
£88,333 x 0.6   = £52,999.     
 
Example 2: Development of 2 housing units in Bethel (Gwynedd)        

  
Step 1: Bethel (Gwynedd) is in the Larger Coastal Settlements Housing Price Area 
which is expected to deliver 30% affordable housing. 
Step 2: Residual Value with 30% affordable housing provision for 30 dwellings = 
£0.51m 
Residual Value with 0% affordable housing provision for 30 dwellings = £1.49m 
Difference = £0.98m 
Step 3: This £980,000 represents the requirement to deliver 9 affordable homes 
(30% of 30 units), which is £108,333 per unit (in other words £108,333 is what is 
required in this sub-market to deliver one affordable unit). 
Step 4: For a scheme of 2 units 30% of 2 units = 0.6 of an affordable housing unit.  
Step 5: Therefore the commuted sum that should be sought for this proposals is 
£108,333 x 0.6  = £65,333. 

 
   
7.5.8 Should the applicant / developer / landowner question the viability of providing this 

commuted sum then, in line with Policy TAI 15, the onus will be on them to clearly 
demonstrate on a viability assessment pro-forma the circumstances justifying a lower 
affordable housing contribution.  

 
7.5.9 Following the submission of such evidence if there is still disagreement between the 

applicant / developer/ landowner and the Local Planning Authority as to the 

Page 200



 

30 
 

affordable housing provision within a scheme, an independent external examination 
of the scheme will be undertaken at the applicant’s expense. The commuted sum will 
reflect the conclusions of this assessment.   

 
 
7.6 Spending Commuted Sum / Pro-Rata Payments 
 
7.6.1 All monies raised through commuted sums and pro-rata payment will be retained for 

affordable housing provision and be managed by each Strategic Housing Authority 
(SHA). 

 
7.6.2 Financial contributions secured will be used for the agreed purposes and may be 

required to be spent within an agreed time period. The Council will be responsible for 
recording how, when and where financial contributions are collected and spent. 

 
7.6.3 With the exception of Unilateral Undertakings, contributions remaining unspent at the 

end of the agreed time period (if specified) will be returned unless alternative 
provision is agreed between the payee (or successor) and the Council. If specifying a 
time period, the Council will generally propose the time period as 5 years, although 
this will be a matter for negotiation. 

 
7.6.4  Examples of how financial contributions may be used by the Council include: 

 To support on-site provision of affordable housing on other developments; 
 To support affordable housing developments developed by an RSL, SHA or 

equivalent on land owned by them, or to support the purchase of land for this 
purpose; 

 To support affordable specialist housing provided by an RSL, SHA or 
equivalent; 

 To support the renewal of existing Council housing stock or to bring back 
empty properties into use as affordable housing; 

 Other measures identified by the SHA aimed at increasing the supply of 
affordable housing in both Isle of Anglesey or Gwynedd. 

 
7.6.5  The Council will look to use financial contributions to meet the affordable housing 

needs within the locality where the development that has made the contribution is 
located. Where it is not possible to use the money within the same settlement, 
usually where there are no suitable schemes available, the following cascade will be 
applied to the use of contributions: 

 
 Within - Gwynedd Planning Area 

a) Settlement, if no suitable schemes available then; 
b) Town/Community Council area, if no suitable schemes available then; 
 
c) Adjoining Town and Community Council areas within Gwynedd, if no suitable 
schemes available then;  
ch) Local Housing Market Area within the Gwynedd, if no suitable schemes 
available then; 
d) Remainder of Gwynedd Council. 
 
Within - Isle of Anglesey 
a) Settlement, if no suitable schemes available then; 
b) Town/Community Council area, if no suitable schemes available then; 
c) Adjoining Town and Community Council areas within Anglesey, if no suitable 
schemes available then;  

Page 201



 

31 
 

ch) Local Housing Market Area within Anglesey, if no suitable schemes available 
then; 
d) Remainder of Anglesey. 

 
 
7.7 Negotiating a Lower Contribution 
 
7.7.1 Whilst the Councils considers that the affordable housing targets and thresholds are 

both realistic and achievable, the council acknowledges that there may be 
exceptional circumstances where a developer considers that the level of affordable 
housing required is not viable. In such instances, the Council will consider, subject 
to a detailed financial appraisal, reduced contributions or the removal of the 
requirement to contribute affordable housing. As set out in Section 5.3 of this SPG 
the applicant will have to provide the Council with evidence in the form of a viability 
pro-forma to justify a lower level of affordable provision than that expected within 
Policy TAI 15.   

 
7.7.2 Where a developer seeks to re-negotiate the level or type of affordable housing 

previously agreed at the time of the original planning application, the developer will 
be required to demonstrate how the circumstances relating to economic viability 
have changed through the submission of an updated financial viability appraisal. 
Updated evidence will also be required in situations where the removal or reduction 
of the required contribution was agreed at the time of the original application, and 
an application is made for renewal of planning permission or to vary planning 
conditions to extend time limits for commencement of the development.  

 
 
7.8 Exception Sites 
 
7.8.1 In line with PPW, TAN 2 and TAN 6, Policy TAI 16 supports the provision of 

affordable housing on exception sites where there is a proven need that cannot 
reasonably be delivered within a reasonable timescale on a market site inside the 
development boundary.  

 
7.8.2  Chapter 4 outlines the sources of housing need that should be considered to prove 

that there is a proven need for the affordable dwellings. For considering the 
reasonable timescale for their delivery, regard should be given to the categorisation 
of large sites, 5 or more units, in the Joint Housing Land Availability Study (JHLAS). 
For small sites in the land bank regard should be given towards the date such sites 
were granted planning permission. In addition, regard should be given to the level of 
identified need within an area and the level of opportunities from allocations, windfall 
sites or the existing land bank within the development boundary. The applicant will 
also need to demonstrate that opportunities available in the existing housing stock 
have been fully considered and discounted.  

 
7.8.3 The exception site needs to be immediately adjacent to the development boundary 

and form a reasonable extension to the settlement. “Immediately adjacent” means 
that the proposed exception site should be in contact with the development boundary 
in the vicinity of the site. In relation to whether or not the proposal would be 
considered as a reasonable extension to the settlement regard will be given towards 
whether the proposal is a rounding off of the built form or whether it would form an 
unacceptable intrusion into the open countryside. The impact of the proposed site on 
the landscape will be an important consideration in judging its suitability. Assessment 
of matters included in Policy PCYFF 2, Policy PCYFF 3 and Policy PCYFF 4 will help 

Page 202



 

32 
 

to determine the site’s suitability for development, and, depending on the site’s 
location, Policies in Section 6.5 of the Plan.    

 
7.8.4 The scale of an exception site should reflect the role of the settlement within the 

settlement hierarchy of the JLDP. In exceptional circumstances where the developer 
can prove to the Local Planning Authority that it is not possible to deliver exceptions 
sites in other settlements within the catchment/vicinity of a settlement then a larger 
scale of development could be supported subject to their being an identified need in 
the other settlements to be served by the proposal. The scale of such a proposal 
should be justified by the level of need identified in all the settlements being served 
by the proposal.   

 
7.8.5 The affordable housing local need to justify an exception site must be based upon an 

identified need from within each settlement the site is located. This is the case for all 
of the settlement hierarchy from the Sub-Regional Centre down to a Village. For the 
exceptional circumstances when the site serves more than one settlement then the 
need will be based upon that identified in each settlement served by the proposal. 

 
7.8.6 The requirement to show that meeting the identified need on market sites within the 

development boundary, within a reasonable timescale, should show why this need 
cannot be delivered on any allocated housing site in the settlement, undeveloped 
parcels of land within the boundary, through the existing land bank or through the 
existing housing stock on sale at the time of the application. The Planning Service 
can provide information in relation to the existing land bank. Regard should also be 
given to a sites position within the latest published Joint Housing Land Availability 
Study (JHLAS). For exception sites that serve a number of settlements then this 
evaluation should be undertaken for all the settlements served by the proposal. 

 
 
7.9 Controlling Occupancy / Mechanism for Perpetuity 
 
7.9.1 Criterion 3(v.) of Policy TAI 15 seeks to ensure that there are suitable mechanisms in 

place to manage the occupation of affordable housing unit(s) upon initial occupation, 
and in perpetuity, to those who can prove a need for an affordable dwelling. This 
approach is in line with National Planning Policy. 

 
7.9.2 Paragraph 5.41 of Welsh Government Circular 016/2014 ‘The Use of planning 

Conditions for Development Management’ states that planning conditions should not 
be used to control matters such as tenure, price or ownership and therefore planning 
obligations are the normal means of achieving affordable housing. However the 
same Circular does contain a standard condition for affordable housing provision 
through an ‘affordable housing scheme’. 

 
7.9.3 In order to comply with the above mentioned Circular, to ensure that affordable 

housing is retained in perpetuity, the Local Planning Authority will apply the following 
approach: 

 
  

Scenario Planning mechanism to control 
occupancy 
 

Detailed planning consent that 
requires an on-site affordable housing 
provision 
 

Section 106 Planning Obligation 

Page 203



 

33 
 

Scenario Planning mechanism to control 
occupancy 
 

Planning consent that requires a 
commuted sum in lieu of any on–site 
provision 
 

Section 106 Planning Obligation 

Outline planning consent that requires 
an on-site affordable housing 
provision 
 

Planning condition similar to the model 
condition set out in WG Circular 
016/2014 to require an ‘Affordable 
Housing Scheme’. The details of the 
Scheme will in turn be subject to a 
Section 106 Agreement. 
 

 
 

7.9.4 Whilst the Section 106 Planning Obligation will be tailored to each individual 
application it will include the following elements: 
 A description of the affordable units; 
 A description of who will be eligible to occupy the units; 
 The location and distribution of affordable housing within the site; 
 The timing of the construction and occupation of the land or affordable housing 

element in relation to the development of the whole site; 
 A price fixing mechanism; 
 Protection mechanism for future re-sales (such as pre-emption rights); 
 A description of the future re-sales cascade procedure. 

 
7.9.5 The future re-sales cascade procedure will vary in accordance with the type of 

settlement / proposal in question, i.e. whether a development is located: 
 On a site within the development boundary of the Sub-Regional Centre, any 

Service Centre or Service Village; 
 On a site within the development boundary of a Village; 
 On a site in a Cluster or for the conversion of Traditional Buildings in the Open 

Countryside; 
 On an Exception site. 

 
7.9.6 A fee will be charged to applicants to meet the legal costs of preparing the Section 

106 Planning Obligation legal documentation. 
 

7.9.7 Should an application be approved subject to the signing of a Section 106 
agreement, the Local Planning Authority expects to be able to issue a decision notice 
relating to that application within 12 months from the date of the resolution to 
approve. The ability to achieve this target will depend on the availability of required 
information from the applicant. Where evidence is provided by the applicant to the 
Council’s satisfaction that the agreement cannot be signed within the prescribed 
period, then a variation on the time limit will be considered on a case by case basis. 
Should this information not be forthcoming, the Local Planning Authority reserves the 
right to refuse the application based on the non-completion of the S106 agreement. 

 
  

Page 204



 

34 
 

CHAPTER 8 – ELIGIBILITY 
 
 
8.1 Affordable Housing – Eligibility of Occupiers 

 
 

8.1.1 The location and type of development can mean different Local Connection 
requirements within different settlement types, the table below explains this: 

 
Table 6: Local connection Evidence based on Location of Development 
Location of the 
proposed Development 

Local Connection Evidence Required for: 
A site within the 
Development Boundary 

An Exception site (i.e. a 
site outside but 
immediately adjacent to 
the development 
boundary) 

Sub-Regional Centre 
(Policy TAI 1) 

5 year connection with the 
Authority of Gwynedd. 

5 year connection with the 
settlement of Bangor (or 
it’s Rural Hinterland). 

Urban Service Centre (TAI 
1) 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Authority where 
the application is located 
i.e. Gwynedd or Anglesey. 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Urban Service 
Centre (or it’s Rural 
Hinterland) where the 
application is located.  

Local Service Centre (TAI 
2) (Including the 3 Centres 
identified within Policy TAI 
5) 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Authority where 
the application is located 
i.e. Gwynedd or Anglesey. 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Local Service 
Centre (or it’s Rural 
Hinterland) where the 
application is located.  

Service Village (TAI 3) 5 year connection with the 
relevant Authority where 
the application is located 
i.e. Gwynedd or Anglesey. 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Service Village (or 
it’s Rural Hinterland) where 
the application is located.  

Local, Coastal or Rural 
Village (TAI 4) (Including 
the 12 Villages identified in 
TAI 5)  

5 year connection with the 
relevant Settlement (or it’s 
Rural Hinterland) where the 
application is located.  

5 year connection with the 
relevant Local, Coastal or 
Rural Village (or it’s Rural 
Hinterland) where the 
application is located.  

Clusters (TAI 6) Since they do not have a development boundary all 
applicants will have to show a 5 year connection with the 
relevant Cluster (or it’s Rural Hinterland) where the 
application is located.    

Conversion of Traditional 
Buildings in the open 
Countryside 

Since they are not located within a development 
boundary all applicants will have to show a 5 year 
connection with the Rural Hinterland around where the 
traditional building is located.    

(see the JLDP Written Statement to identify which settlements fall within which the 
above mentioned Policies) 
 
8.1.2 For the avoidance of doubt the Rural Hinterland surrounding a settlement does 

not include any other settlement identified within Policies TAI 1 to TAI 6 in the 
JLDP.  

Page 205



 

35 
 

 
 
8.2 Demonstrating need – when (a) the applicant is the proposed occupier and/ or 

(b) the initial occupiers are known 
 

8.2.1 Proving the Need for an Affordable Dwelling: 
 

 For Social Rented Accommodation 
o A Registered Social Landlord will use the Social Housing Register to 

determine the eligibility of the properties’ occupiers 
 For Intermediate Accommodation 

o Need to be registered with Tai Teg. 
o Need to of have been subject to an Assessment by Tai Teg that you are 

eligible for an affordable dwelling (there is a cost for this assessment – 
currently £75 which will be borne by the applicant - the following is a link 
to the Tai Teg website where further information is available - 
https://taiteg.org.uk/en/am-i-eligible-to-apply ). 

 
8.2.2 The Council will expect a supporting statement for such applications stating how the 

individual(s) satisfy the relevant local connection requirements. The information 
demonstrating eligibility must be provided using the pro-forma as shown in 
Appendix 8. 

 

8.3 Demonstrating need where Specific Occupiers have not been Identified at the 
planning application stage  

 
8.3.1 Proving the Need for an Affordable Dwelling: 

 
 For Social Rented Accommodation 

o Information from the latest Local Housing Market Assessment over the 
level and type of need identified within the relevant sub-area. 

o Should obtain information from the Council’s Housing Register over the 
level and type of need identified in the area. 

o Information from any Local Survey undertaken within the area, (provided 
the Survey was undertaken within 5 years to the date of the application) 
over the level and type of need identified in the area. 

 For Intermediate Accommodation 
o Information from the latest Local Housing Market Assessment over the 

level and type of need identified within the relevant sub-area. 
o Information from the Tai Teg Register over the level and type of need 

identified within the relevant settlement / area (see Local Connection 
section below for the eligibility of these applications). 

o Information from any Local Survey undertaken within the area, (provided 
the Survey was undertaken within 5 years to the date of the application) 
over the level and type of need identified in the area. 

 
8.3.2 The Section 106 Agreement / condition will control the occupancy of the 

intermediate affordable housing units. The Councils will require supporting evidence 
similar to the evidence required via the pro-forma included in Appendix 8 by 
prospective occupants (in the first instance and in the future) before they occupy 
the properties, in order to demonstrate compliance with Section 106 Agreement. 

 

Page 206



 

36 
 

8.3.3  For Exception Site applications which have been justified as serving a wider area, 
subject to satisfying the requirements of paragraph 7.8.4 above, then the Local 
Connection requirements can be for all the settlements which the Exception site is 
catering for.   

 
8.3.4 When a specific household is identified to occupy an affordable unit provided within 

this category the Council will expect a supporting statement in the form of the pro-
forma as shown in Appendix 8 to be completed. This will enable the Housing 
Service to determine whether the intended occupier satisfies the local connection 
requirement within any Section 106 agreement on the site.   

Page 207



 

37 
 

CHAPTER 9 - MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 
9.1  The implementation of the LDP’s affordable housing policies through developments 

permitted and delivered under the LDP will be monitored annually and reported in the 
LDP’s Annual Monitoring Report (submitted to the Welsh Government by 31st of 
October each year following adoption of the LDP). This process will monitor the 
number of affordable homes built per annum (in accordance with the LDP 
regulations) along with local indicators relating to the percentage, scale, type, and 
tenure of affordable housing permitted. Changes in residual values taking into 
account changes in any inputs, that may affect the viability of housing developments 
will also be monitored (e.g. residential values, build costs, etc). 

 
9.2  Matters affecting affordability and affordable housing need within the LDP area will 

be monitored in conjunction with the monitoring undertaken of the LHMA. The results 
of this monitoring will inform future review of the LDP’s policy requirements relating to 
affordable housing. This SPG will be kept under review and, where necessary, 
updated to take into account changes in any relevant policy, guidance, evidence or 
circumstances, and in response to relevant issues raised with the SPG in practice. 

Page 208



 

38 
 

APPENDIX 1 –National Policy Context 

 
A.1 National Policy Guidance 
 
 Planning Policy Wales (PPW) (Edition 9, November 2016) 
 
A.1.1 Paragraph 9.2.14 of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) (Edition 9, November 2016) states 

that Affordable Housing is a material planning consideration in preparing a 
development plan and outlines what constitutes an affordable dwelling: 

 
 “9.2.14 A community’s need for affordable housing is a material planning 

consideration which must be taken into account in formulating development plan 
policies. Affordable housing for the purposes of the land use planning system is 
housing where there are secure mechanisms in place to ensure that it is accessible 
to those who cannot afford market housing, both on first occupation and for 
subsequent occupiers. However, it is recognised that some schemes may provide for 
staircasing to full ownership. Where this is the case there must be secure 
arrangements in place to ensure the recycling of capital receipts to provide 
replacement affordable housing. Affordable housing includes social rented housing 
owned by local authorities and registered social landlords and intermediate housing 
where prices or rents are above those of social rent but below market housing prices 
or rents. All other types of housing are referred to as ‘market housing’, that is private 
housing for sale or rent where the price is set in the open market and occupation is 
not subject to control by the local planning authority. Local Housing Market 
Assessments provide the evidence base supporting policies to deliver affordable 
housing through the land use planning system.” 

 
A.1.2 Paragraph 9.2.15 states that affordable housing makes an essential contribution to 

community regeneration and social inclusion. For affordable housing it is important 
that authorities have an appreciation of the demand for different dwelling sizes and 
types of housing (i.e. intermediate and social rented) in relation to supply, so that 
they are well informed in negotiating the required appropriate mix of dwellings for 
new developments. 

 
A.1.3 In line with PPW the Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) includes an Plan-wide 

target for affordable housing, incorporates site thresholds, a policy for exception sites 
and states that rural enterprise dwellings can be considered as an affordable 
dwelling. 

 
A.1.4 Paragraph 9.3.5 states that where a development plan policy makes clear an 

element of affordable housing, or other developer contributions, is required then this 
will be a material consideration in determining relevant applications. 

 
 Technical Advice Note (TAN) 2 ‘Planning and Affordable Housing’ (June 2006) 
 
A.1.5 The TAN provides a practical guidance on the role of the planning system in 

delivering affordable housing.  
 
A.1.6 It confirms, in line with paragraph 9.2.14 of PPW that affordable housing is housing 

where there are secure mechanisms in place to ensure that it is accessible to those 
who cannot afford market housing, both on first occupation and for subsequent 
occupiers. It includes: 
 Social rented housing; 
 Intermediate housing. 

Page 209



 

39 
 

 
Social rented housing is that provided by local authorities and registered social 
landlords. Intermediate housing is that where prices or rents are above those of 
social rent but below market housing prices or rents. 

 
A.1.7 All other type of housing is referred to as ‘market housing’ – that is private housing 

for sale or rent where the price is set in the open market and their occupation is not 
normally subject to control by the local planning authority.   

 
A.1.8 Paragraph 10.4 states that when setting site-capacity thresholds and site specific 

targets local planning authorities should balance the need for affordable housing 
against site viability. Paragraph 10.6 states this will be a critical factor in determining 
thresholds, particularly on small sites. 

 
A.1.9 The TAN advocates an occupancy cascade mechanism to ensure that occupants will 

always be found for affordable housing when such housing is vacated. This 
mechanism might set out the geographical areas and / or types of households that 
would be eligible for such housing. The eligibility criteria could initially be restricted to 
local residents, people employed locally or people with local connections who are in 
need of affordable housing. If the housing remained unoccupied after a certain time 
the criteria would gradually widen to ensure that a suitable occupant was found. The 
Glossary of Terms in Annex B in reference to Affordable Housing the first bullet point 
states that affordable housing should “… meet the needs of eligible households, 
including availability at low enough cost for them to afford, determined with regard to 
local incomes and local house prices…” 
 

A.1.10 Paragraph 10.13 states that Rural Exception sites should be small solely for 
affordable housing. Paragraph 10.14 state that such sites are not appropriate for 
market housing and that it is not appropriate to included clauses in planning 
obligations that would enable lenders of private finance to dispose of property on the 
open market as a last resort if a borrower were to get into financial difficulties. (This 
should be read in conjunction with updated guidance in Securing Mortgage 
Access for Affordable Housing: A good practice note for planning and housing 
practitioners (2013) below). 
  

 
 Technical Advice Note (TAN) 6 ‘Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities’ (2010) 
 
A.1.11 Paragraph 4.2.4 in relation to affordable housing states: 
 

“… In the case of unsubsidised affordable housing the initial and resale value of the 
affordable home is capped at an affordable level linked either to a fixed multiple of 
local incomes, or discount from market value. Whilst the price of the affordable home 
covers development costs, prices are well below market values. For this model to 
work planning authorities must ensure that properties constructed are affordable to 
the local community as a whole, not only the initial occupier, and requests to allow 
disposal on the open market (except where the mortgagee is in possession) 
resisted.” 

 
 

Securing Mortgage Access for Affordable Housing: A good practice note for planning 
and housing practitioners (2013) 

 
A.1.12 This guidance note has been prepared by the Welsh Local Government Association 

(WLGA), Welsh Government, the Council of Mortgage Lenders (CML) and the 

Page 210



 

40 
 

Chartered Institute of Housing (CIH) and Community Housing Cymru (CHC) as a 
response to the difficulties being encountered by all parties in providing affordable 
housing in perpetuity. 

 
A.1.13 It is aimed at planning and housing practitioners to assist in the delivery of affordable 

housing. The purpose of the document is to offer examples of good practice for 
planning and housing professionals which can be referred to when considering 
drafting Section 106 agreements for affordable housing. 

 
A.1.14 In the current economic climate lenders are now taking a more cautious view towards 

properties that are subject to certain conditions or restrictions. It would be imprudent 
to believe these views are temporary given the emergent legislation within the 
banking sector which is driving the sector to hold higher levels of capital for certain 
types of lending – this could challenge the economics of providing certain specialist 
mortgage products. Consideration of current market lending practices needs to 
therefore form an integral part of the whole planning process in order to maximise 
mortgage availability for prospective customers. 

 
A.1.15 Suggested template clauses are included in Appendix 2. One example included in 

Appendix 2 refers to Mortgagee in possession procedures. If no exchange of 
contracts has taken place at the affordable price, within a period of 12 weeks (from 
the date that the Mortgagee notifies the Council in accordance with 3.2 above), 
between the Council (or its Nominee) and the Mortgagee, the Mortgagee (or its 
agent) can dispose of the Affordable Dwelling for sale at Open Market Value and to 
any purchaser free from qualifying restrictions but subject to payment (after 
recouping first the mortgage debt and costs) by the Mortgagee in Possession to the 
Council of all the difference between the sale price and the Affordable Price (subject 
to the sale price exceeding the Affordable Price) which sum the Council will use 
towards the provision of affordable dwelling(s) elsewhere in the relevant Gwynedd 
Unitary Development Plan catchment area. 

  

Page 211



 

41 
 

APPENDIX 2 Joint Local Development Plan – Affordable Housing Policies     
 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

 

6.4.96 Context 

 

 Improving affordability is a key objective of national policy  
 National planning policy requires local development plans to set an informed target for 

affordable housing that can be delivered by the planning system and a likely development 
threshold size  

 Local planning authorities should balance the need for affordable housing against site 
viability 

 A key aim of national policy is to create sustainable mixed communities for current and 
future residents 

 Affordability is an issue across the Plan area  
 Evidence suggests that affordable need is greater in coastal villages particularly within 

the AONBs and along the Meirionnydd coast  
 

Introduction 

 

6.4.97   The provision of affordable homes is an objective of the Plan. Providing affordable homes 
is also a priority of the Single Integrated Plan and is a key priority for both Councils. The 
majority of affordable housing that is built in the Plan area has been delivered as part of new 
development. Therefore, planning policies have a central role in helping to deliver low cost 
homes through quotas of affordable dwellings being negotiated and delivered on open 
market housing sites. Applying these policies can also contribute to achieving wider social 
policy goals such as maintaining and strengthening Welsh speaking communities. The 
following Strategic Policy and detailed policies set out the circumstances for securing 
affordable housing, which is supported by the ‘Affordable Housing’ Supplementary Planning 
Guidance.  

 

6.4.98 Affordable Housing is defined in national policy as social rented, affordable rented and 
intermediate housing, provided to eligible households whose needs are not met by the 
market. Social and affordable rented housing is normally rented from a Housing Association 
or the Isle of Anglesey County Council. Intermediate Housing refers to housing which is 
available to buy or to part buy/part rent at below the market price.  Planning mechanisms, 
such as Section 106 Agreements are used to control occupancy and prices.   

 

6.4.99 In 2015 median house price in Anglesey and Gwynedd stood at approximately £156,000 and 
£144,000, respectively. While this is not considered high by national standards, when 
compared to average household income they are considered unaffordable. At entry level the 
problem is more pronounced and many local people, especially younger people, often find 

Page 212



 

42 
 

themselves priced out of the market. Despite the recent economic downturn the issue of 
housing affordability remains a key concern across the Plan area. Additionally over the last 
few decades ‘Right to Buy’ sales and the proliferation of second/ holiday homes have 
significantly reduced the supply of both social sector and market properties, available to 
meet local housing needs.  

 

6.4.100 A key theme of national policy is that local planning authorities can seek the provision of 
affordable housing through the planning system where there is strong evidence of need. In 
order to demonstrate the need for affordable housing within the Plan area, the Councils 
carried out Local Housing Market Assessments (LHMA), Housing Needs Study and an 
Affordable Housing Viability Assessment. 

 

6.4.101 The Anglesey LHMA 2016 and the Gwynedd LHMA 2013 provide a snapshot of the scale of 
affordable housing likely to be required in Anglesey and Gwynedd, i.e. approximately 889 
housing units per annum for 5 years to meet backlog and emerging needs, with an overall 
need of 8,174 for the whole Plan period (these figures are based upon Welsh Government 
methodology which calculates 25% of household income on housing costs). ‘Tai Teg’, an 
affordable housing register, is the main information source for intermediate/ shared equity 
schemes in the Plan area.   

 

6.4.102    It is not expected that the planning system alone will, or should, provide for this shortfall. 
The Plan is just one tool to ensure that the demand for affordable housing is met. The 
importance of the Plan’s role in contributing to meeting affordable housing need is therefore 
recognised.  

 
6.4.103 The affordable housing target figure identified in the Plan is based on the following information:  

 

Table 21: Affordable Housing Provision Target 

 
Component of 

Affordable 
Housing Supply 

Sub 
Regional 
Centre / 
Urban 
Service 
Centres 

Local 
Service 
Centres 

Villages Clusters 
Open 

Countryside 
Total 

A Total 
Completions 
(small and 
large) 01/04/11 
- 31/3/15 

172 60 68 4 2 306 

B Units with 
planning 
permission 01-
04-15  

327 62 106 29 2 526 

C New Housing 
Allocations 

216 85 35 - - 336 

Page 213



 

43 
 

 
Component of 

Affordable 
Housing Supply 

Sub 
Regional 
Centre / 
Urban 
Service 
Centres 

Local 
Service 
Centres 

Villages Clusters 
Open 

Countryside 
Total 

CH Large windfall 
Sites (+5) 11 
years remaining 

75 25 20 12 - 132 

D Small windfall 
sites (-5) 11 
years remaining  

80 38 39 94 21 272 

DD Total Housing 
Provision 

870 270 268 139 25 1,572 

 

6.4.105 As the private sector is by far the largest house builder, it is recognised that the provision of 
affordable housing can affect the profitability and the viability of housing development. The 
Affordable Housing Viability Assessment has been produced to demonstrate the levels at 
which housing development is capable of being delivered profitably while at the same time 
providing an appropriate level of affordable housing and tenure mix.  
 

6.4.106 The results of the Affordable Housing Viability Assessment indicate that in lower market 
areas the land values and house prices make the delivery of affordable housing challenging. 
While, elsewhere in medium and high market areas, land values and house prices suggest 
that development is capable of delivering higher levels of affordable housing without 
adversely affecting the profitability of sites. Furthermore, as market conditions improve, 
sites across the Plan area should be able to accommodate increased levels of affordable 
housing without impacting on profitability. 

 

 
 
STRATEGIC POLICY PS 18:  AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
Development opportunities have been identified to provide a minimum target of 1,572 
new affordable homes.   

 
 

 

POLICY TAI 15:  AFFORDABLE HOUSING THRESHOLD & DISTRIBUTION 
 
The Councils will seek to secure an appropriate level of affordable housing across the 
Plan area by working in partnership with Registered Providers, developers and local 
communities to meet the minimum target presented in Strategic Policy PS 18. 
 
1.  Threshold 

Page 214



 

44 
 

 
Housing development, both new build and conversions, in settlements identified within 
the settlement hierarchy as shown in Strategic Policy PS 17 will be expected to make an 
affordable housing contribution in line with the threshold figures introduced in the table 
below: 
 

CATEGORY OF SETTLEMENT THRESHOLD 

Sub-regional Centre 

2 or more housing units 

 

Urban Service Centres 

Local Service Centres 

Service Villages 

Rural / Coastal Villages 

Local Villages 

Clusters Only sites of 100% affordable housing will be 
supported within clusters. 

Subdivision of Rural 
Dwellings 

2 or more additional units 

Conversion of Traditional 
Buildings in Open 
Countryside 

100% affordable housing (unless the 
residential use is a subordinate element 
associated with a wider scheme for business 
re-use) 

 
2.  Percentage of Affordable Housing  
 
The following percentage of affordable housing provision (based on social rent tenure) 
is expected within the Housing Price Area presented in the table below: 
 

Percentage of 
Affordable Housing 

Housing Price Areas 

30% Gwynedd High Value Coastal, Rhosneigr, Beaumaris, 
Rural North West, Bridgehead, Trearddur & Rhoscolyn, 
South West, North East Rural, Larger Coastal Settlements  

Page 215



 

45 
 

20% Rural Centres, Mid Rural, Northern Coast and South 
Arfon, Rural West 

10% Llangefni, Llŷn, Western Coastal & Rural Arfon, Holyhead, 
Amlwch & Hinterland, The Mountains, Eastern Gwynedd 
& National Park, Blaenau Ffestiniog. 

 
See table in the explanation below in relation to which settlements fall within these 
areas.  
 
A proposal including an alternative affordable tenure mix should yield a higher 
percentage of affordable provision subject to consideration of criteria 3i – 3ix of this 
Policy. 
 

Where the affordable housing requirement of a particular scheme falls below a single 
dwelling on the site, providing an affordable unit within that development will remain 
the priority. However if it is deemed that this is not possible, a pro-rata payment will be 
expected rather than no affordable provision on the site.   

 
3.  Other Matters 
 
i. All developments will be required to achieve an appropriate mix in terms of tenure, 

types and sizes of local need affordable housing, determined by the local housing market 
assessment or any alternative Council or partner assessment. 

ii. Affordable units should be fully integrated within a development and indistinguishable 
from non-affordable housing. 

iii. Where the viability of individual schemes fall short of the policy requirements specified, 
the onus will be on the applicant/ developer / landowner to clearly demonstrate on a 
viability assessment pro-forma the circumstances justifying a lower affordable housing 
contribution or tenure mix. 

iv. Where, following the submission of a viability pro-forma, disagreement remains 
between the applicant / developer / landowner and the Local Planning Authority as to 
the affordable housing provision within a scheme, an independent external assessment 
of the scheme (e.g. by the District Valuers Service) will be undertaken at the applicant’s 
expense.  The number of affordable housing provided will reflect the conclusions of this 
assessment.  

v. That there are suitable mechanisms in place to manage the occupation of the affordable 
housing unit(s) upon initial occupation, and in perpetuity, to those who can prove a need 
for an affordable dwelling.  

vi. If it can be demonstrated that there are no eligible occupiers for rural enterprise 
dwellings then the housing will be occupied by those eligible for consideration for 
affordable housing. 

vii. Extensions and adaptations to affordable housing will be permitted provided that the 
alterations or adaptations allow the house to remain as an affordable dwelling.  

viii. Dwellings are of a size, scale and design compatible with an affordable dwelling. 
ix. Within Local, Rural and Coastal Villages the affordable housing provision should only be 

for affordable housing for local need (as defined in the Glossary of Terms).            
  

Page 216



 

46 
 

 

Explanation: 

 

6.4.106   The viability study together with an analysis of historic applications has identified the 
relevant threshold levels where an element of affordable provision will be sought by the 
Councils from a proposal. Whilst on-site provision is the preference when a site triggers the 
threshold requirement, if the scale of the scheme is below the level of a single affordable 
unit e.g. 6 units in a house price area of 10% would equate to 0.6 of a dwelling, then a pro-
rata contribution for the percentage of a new house will be required i.e. 60% in this example.   
 

6.4.107   Different house price areas have been identified in the viability study. The Table below 
identifies which House Price areas different settlements belong (Clusters not included since 
all development in Clusters will be for affordable housing). Plan monitoring work will re-
assess the average house prices noted in the Viability Study. This could impact upon the 
percentage of affordable houses sought in the different house price areas: 

 

Table 22: House price areas 

House Price Area 

Sub-Regional Centre, Urban & 
Local Service Centres & 

Service Villages 

Local, Rural, Coastal Villages 

Percentage of Affordable Housing Sought: 30% 

Gwynedd High Value Coastal Abersoch 
Llanbedrog, Llangian, 
Mynytho, Sarn Bach 

Rhosneigr Rhosneigr  

Beaumaris Beaumaris Llanddona, Llangoed 

Rural North West Cemaes 
Carreg-lefn, Llanfechell, 
Tregele 

Bridgehead 
Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, Menai 
Bridge 

Llandegfan 

Trearddur & Rhoscolyn No service centre in this area. 
Four Mile Bridge (part), 
Trearddur Bay 

South West Newborough Brynsiencyn, Dwyran 

North East Rural Benllech, Pentraeth Llanbedr-goch, Moelfre 

Larger Coastal Settlements 
Bethel (Gwynedd), Bontnewydd, 
Caernarfon, Criccieth, Pwllheli, 
Porthmadog, Tremadog 

Borth-y-Gest, Caeathro, 
Efailnewydd, Llanystumdwy, 
Morfa Bychan 

Page 217



 

47 
 

House Price Area 

Sub-Regional Centre, Urban & 
Local Service Centres & 

Service Villages 

Local, Rural, Coastal Villages 

Percentage of Affordable Housing Sought: 20% 

Rural Centres Area within the Park Corris  

Mid Rural Gaerwen, Llannerch-y-medd Llanddaniel-fab, Llangaffo 

Northern Coast & South Arfon Bangor, Penygroes 
Llandygai, Llanllyfni, Nantlle, 
Rhiwlas, Talysarn, Tregarth, Y 
Felinheli  

Rural West Bodedern, Gwalchmai, Valley Aberffraw,  Bethel (Anglesey), 
Bryngwran, Caergeiliog, Four 
Mile Bridge (part), 
Llanfachraeth, Llanfaelog, 
Llanfaethlu, Llanfihangel-yn-
Nhywyn, Llangristiolus, 
Llanrhuddlad, Malltraeth, 
Pencaernisiog, 

Percentage of Affordable Housing Sought: 10% 

Llangefni Llangefni Bodffordd, Talwrn  

Llŷn Botwnnog, Chwilog, Nefyn, Y Ffôr 

Aberdaron, Abererch, Clynnog 
Fawr, Dinas (Llanwnda) (part), 
Dinas Dinlle, Edern, 
Garndolbenmaen, 
Llanaelhaearn, Llandwrog, 
Llangybi, Llithfaen, Morfa 
Nefyn, Pentref Uchaf, 
Rhoshirwaun, Sarn Mellteyrn, 
Trefor, Tudweiliog, 

Western Coastal & Rural Arfon 
Abermaw, Deiniolen, 
Penrhyndeudraeth, Tywyn 

Brynrefail, Carmel, Dinas 
(Llanwnda) (part), Dolydd & 
Maen Coch, Fairbourne, 
Groeslon, Garreg-Llanfrothen, 
Penisarwaun, Rhosgadfan, 
Rhostryfan,  Y Fron  

Holyhead Holyhead  

Amlwch & Hinterland Amlwch Pen-y-Sarn, Rhos-y-bol 

The Mountains 
Bethesda, Llanberis, Llanrug, 
Rachub 

Cwm y Glo, Waunfawr  

Page 218



 

48 
 

House Price Area 

Sub-Regional Centre, Urban & 
Local Service Centres & 

Service Villages 

Local, Rural, Coastal Villages 

Eastern Gwynedd & National 
Park 

Area within the Park  

Blaenau Ffestiniog Blaenau Ffestiniog  

 

6.4.108  The tenure mix of affordable housing required with a particular scheme should reflect the 
findings of the latest LHMA or alternative Council or partner assessment, unless the 
applicant can satisfy the Local Authority that their proposed mix better satisfies an identified 
need.   

 
6.4.109 In line with national planning policy which seeks to restrict the amount of residential 

development in the open countryside, approvals for Rural Enterprise Dwellings will include 
a condition that supports their use as affordable housing when it can be demonstrated that 
there are no eligible occupiers for a rural enterprise dwelling.   

 

POLICY TAI 16:  EXCEPTION SITES 
 
Where it is demonstrated that there is a proven local need for affordable housing (as 
defined in the Glossary of Terms) that cannot reasonably be delivered within a 
reasonable timescale on a market site inside the development boundary that includes a 
requirement for affordable housing, as an exception, proposals for 100% affordable 
housing schemes on sites immediately adjacent to development boundaries that form 
a reasonable extension to the settlement will be granted. Proposals must be for a small 
scale development, which are proportionate to the size of the settlement, unless it can 
be clearly demonstrated that there is a demonstrable requirement for a larger site, with 
priority, where it is appropriate, given to suitable previously developed land.  

 
 

 

Explanation: 

 

6.4.110   Planning Policy Wales refers to affordable housing exception sites as small housing sites 
within or adjoining existing settlements for the provision of affordable housing to meet local 
needs. This is further clarified in TAN2, which states rural exception sites should be small (as 
locally defined in a plan), solely for affordable housing and on land within or adjoining 
existing rural settlements which would not otherwise be released for market housing.  

 

Page 219



 

49 
 

6.4.111   Due to the rural nature of the area, exception sites will be considered for all the settlements 
identified in the Plan. They should however be of a scale compatible to the role of the 
settlement. The only exception to this is if justification is provided to explain how a proposal 
serves a wider area than the settlement itself e.g. due to lack of opportunities in other 
settlements within the same area. Sites adjacent to the boundary should not form an 
unacceptable intrusion into the countryside or create a fragmented development pattern.  

 

 

TAI 6 ‘HOUSING IN CLUSTERS’ 

 

POLICY TAI 6:  HOUSING IN CLUSTERS 
 
In Clusters named in table 19, proposals for new housing units must conform to all the 
following criteria: 

 
1. The need for an affordable house for local need (in accordance with the Glossary of 

Terms) has been proven; 
2. The site is an infill site between buildings coloured on the relevant Inset Map, or is a 

site directly adjacent to the curtilage of a coloured building;  
3.     The development is of a scale that is consistent with the character of the settlement;  
4. The proposal will not create an intrusive feature in the countryside, and will not 

introduce a fragmented development pattern, nor create a ribbon development 
contrary to the general development pattern of the settlement;  

5. The size of the property reflects the specific need for an affordable dwelling in terms 
of the size of the house in general and the number of bedrooms; 

6. Because of the more sensitive rural location, the development must utilize the natural 
features of the site in the best way and retain any natural features present at the 
peripheries of the site or on its boundary that are worth retaining;  

7. That mechanisms restrict the occupancy of the dwelling both on first occupation and 
in perpetuity to those who have a need for an affordable dwelling.   

 
Development will be limited to the growth level noted in the table below for sub-areas within 
the Plan area (see table 19 in the Explanation to identify which Clusters are located within 
these sub-areas):   

 
Sub-area Indicative Provision1 

Anglesey 105 

Gwynedd – Arfon 60 

Gwynedd – Dwyfor 40 

Gwynedd – Meirionnydd  19 

                                                           
1 This figure includes commitments (land bank) (housing) and completed housing units – see Appendix 
5 and Glossary of Terms  

Page 220



 

50 
 

 
 

 

Explanation: 

6.4.31 Clusters are characterised by an extremely sensitive social character and environment as 
well as a limited level of services and facilities. In accordance with the intention of the Plan 
to maintain and strengthen local indigenous communities, this policy only permits affordable 
houses for local need (as defined in the Glossary of Terms) and only on suitable sites. By 
restricting the number of sites where planning permission could be granted the number of 
houses to be built is limited to ensure that the rate of construction will not detrimentally 
affect the sensitive character (environmental and social) of the Cluster.   

 

6.4.32 Over the Plan period there will be no allocation for development within the named Clusters. 
Local need affordable housing units will be permitted on infill or extension plots in 
acceptable and sustainable locations. 

 

6.4.33 In some circumstances, where terraced housing or semi-detached dwellings are common, 
two applicants could develop semi-detached houses jointly in order to save construction and 
services costs.  

 

6.4.34 The following table names the Clusters identified under this policy: 
 

Table 19 – List of Clusters 

 

Anglesey 

Bodorgan,  Bro Iarddur (Trearddur Bay),  Bryn Du,  Brynminceg (Old Llandegfan),  
Brynrefail,  Brynteg, Bryn y Mor (Valley),  Bwlch Gwyn,  Capel Coch,  Capel Mawr,  Carmel, 
Cerrig-mân,  Cichle,  Glan-yr-afon (Llangoed),  Glyn Garth,  Gaerwen Station,  Haulfre 
(Llangoed),  Hebron, Hendre Hywel (Pentraeth), Hermon, Llan-faes, Llangadwaladr,  
Llansadwrn,  Llanynghenedl,  Llynfaes,  Marian-glas,  Nebo,  Pen y Marian,  Penlon,  
Penmon,  Pentre Berw,  Pentre Canol (Holyhead),  Bull Bay,  Rhoscefnhir,  Rhos-meirch,  
Rhostrehwfa,  Rhyd-wyn,  Star,  Red Wharf Bay, Trefor,  Tyn Lôn (Glan yr Afon),  Tyn-y-
gongl 

 

Gwynedd - Arfon 

Aberpwll,  Bethesda Bach,  Penrhos (Caeathro),  Caerhun/Waen Wen,  Capel y Graig,  
Crawia,  Dinorwig,  Gallt y Foel,  Glasinfryn,  Groeslon Waunfawr,  Llanllechid,  Llanwnda,  
Minffordd (Bangor),  Mynydd Llandygai,  Nebo, Pentir,  Saron (Llanwnda),  Talybont,  Tan 
y Coed,  Treborth, Ty’n-lôn,  Ty’n y Lôn, Waun (Penisarwaun). 

Page 221



 

51 
 

  

Gwynedd – Dwyfor  

Aberdesach,  Bryncir,  Bryncroes,  Llanengan,  Llannor,  Llwyn Hudol,  Pantglas,  Penmorfa,  
Penrhos,  Pentrefelin,  Pistyll,  Pontllyfni,  Rhoslan,  Swan,  Tai’n Lôn.   

 

Gwynedd – Meirionnydd 

Aberllefenni, Corris Uchaf, Llanaber, Llandderfel, Llanfor, Minffordd, Talwaenydd.   

 

 

6.4.35 Inset plans are provided to identify the cohesive nature of each cluster with relevant 
buildings coloured to allow the assessment against the second criteria within the policy. 

 

 
TAI 8 ‘APPROPRIATE HOUSING MIX’ 
 
TYPE OF HOUSING 
 

Introduction 

 

6.4.42 A range of sizes and types of new housing is as important as the overall amount. A variety of 
housing types and tenures within individual Housing Market Areas, and on each housing site 
where that is possible, creates sustainable mixed communities and helps avoid 
concentrations of types of housing. High quality design and construction is vital to create 
visually attractive and sustainable new housing which will remain a desirable place to live 
well into the future.  
 

6.4.43 Given current and future circumstances, (e.g. possible effects of the so called bedroom tax, 
larger than expected household size, high affordability ratio) more concealed households 
are anticipated and for the foreseeable future at least, home ownership is only likely to be 
an option for those with high incomes and those with equity from other sources such as 
other family members or inheritance. So it is vital to maximise the supply of new affordable 
housing and Strategic Policy PS18 sets out the Councils’ approach.  

 

6.4.44 A high proportion of the forecasted increase in households in the Plan area will be people 
aged over 65. Many of these will want to remain in their existing homes, but some are likely 
to want to move to a property designed especially for older people. Enabling older 
households to ‘down-size’ can release larger properties for occupation by families. This 
points to a growing requirement for older peoples’ housing, delivered by a diverse range of 
providers in a variety of formats, recognising that the housing needs and desires of older 

Page 222



 

52 
 

people are as varied as those of the working population. Some of that housing may 
encompass varying levels of care provision including extra care.  

 

6.4.45 The provision of new student accommodation, if required, in appropriate locations in Bangor 
will release private housing which will thus become available to meet general housing needs.  

6.4.46 At this stage it is recognised that some of the new housing will only be possible if new/ 
upgraded infrastructure is provided. The Councils will work with infrastructure providers to 
remedy any shortfall in a timely manner.  

 
POLICY TAI 8:   APPROPRIATE HOUSING MIX 

 
The Councils will work with partners to promote sustainable mixed communities by 
ensuring that all new residential development contributes to improving the balance of 
housing and meets the identified needs of the whole community. Proposals should 
contribute to creating sustainable mixed communities by: 
 

1. Maximising the delivery of affordable housing (including for local need) 
across the Plan area in accordance with Strategic Policy PS 18; 

2. Contributing to redress an identified imbalance in a local housing 
market;  

3. Ensuring the sustainable use of housing land, ensuring an efficient 
density of development compatible with local amenity in line with Policy 
PCYFF 3;  

4. Ensuring the correct mix of housing unit types and tenures to meet the 
needs of the Plan area’s current and future communities;  

5. Making provision, as appropriate, for specific housing needs such as 
student accommodation, homes for the elderly, Gypsy & Travellers, 
supported accommodation, nursing, residential and extra care homes, 
needs of people with disabilities; 

6. Improving the quality and suitability of the existing housing stock;  
7. Ensuring high standards of design that create sustainable and inclusive 

communities in line with Policy PCYFF 3. 
 

 

Explanation: 

 

6.4.47 New housing development should include an appropriate balance and mix of house types 
and sizes, including where applicable affordable houses and for those who wish to self-build, 
to reflect identified demographic needs of the settlement or, in the case of Service Centres, 
the area they serve as well. It is also important to address any under provision which exists 
in the current range of housing stock in the settlement or area. Facilitating more balanced 
communities, comprising of a range of ages, household types and incomes may also help 
achieve wider social policy goals, such as maintaining and strengthening Welsh speaking 
communities. A Supplementary Planning Guidance will be published to provide further 
advice on the matter. 

Page 223



 

53 
 

   

6.4.48 The Councils will consider information from a variety of sources, which include Local Housing 
Market Assessment, Housing Needs Studies, Common Housing Register, Tai Teg Register, 
Elderly Persons’ Accommodation Strategy, 2011 Census and the 2011 Household Projections 
(this list isn’t exhaustive) to assess the suitability of the mix of housing in terms of both type 
and tenure proposed on development sites.    

 
  

Page 224



 

54 
 

APPENDIX 3 – Local Housing Market Assessment (LMHA) - Overview 
 
 
 
Below is a summary of the main findings for both the Isle of Anglesey LHMA (2016) and the 
Draft Gwynedd LHMA (2018): 
 
Isle of Anglesey LHMA Update (May 2016)  
 
The following provides a summary of key findings of the five themes of the LHMA: 
  
1) Socio-economic findings  
 
i) The Census indicates that in 2011 the population of the County was 69,751 and that 
since 2001 the population has increased by 4.4%. The size of the household population 
has increased at a faster rate between 2001 and 2011 by 7.7%.  
ii) The Isle of Anglesey contains a lower proportion of the population that are of working 
age than is found regionally and nationally. The Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic 
population of the Isle of Anglesey is just 1.8% of the total population.  
iii) There has been a notable growth in part-time employment in the Isle of Anglesey over 
the last ten years, whilst the number of people in full-time employment has risen more 
modestly.  
iv) In the Isle of Anglesey the proportion of economically active residents who are 
unemployed is currently 2.8% and this figure has fallen over the last 12 months.  
v) The Isle of Anglesey has a similar proportion of residents working in professional or 
technical jobs as is found nationally. The County also contains a lower than average 
level of working-age residents without any qualifications.  
vi) The median earned income for employees in the Isle of Anglesey in 2015 is £25,022, 
slightly lower than the national average (£25,189).  
vii) The recent Census indicates that in 2011 there were 34,183 dwellings in the Isle of 
Anglesey and that since 2001, the dwelling stock had increased by 10.1%. The most 
common property type in the County is detached houses, followed by terraced dwellings.  
viii) The 2011 Census indicates that 68.8% of households in the Isle of Anglesey are 
owner-occupiers, 14.6% reside in social rented accommodation and 14.1% rent 
privately. The private rented sector has grown by over 60% in the County between 2001 
and 2011. This substantial growth is similar to national trends.  
 
 
2) The cost and affordability of housing  
 
i) According to data from the Land Registry, the mean house price in the Isle of Anglesey 
in the first quarter of 2015 was £186,229, higher than the average for Wales as a whole. 
Data shows that whilst prices have remained largely static since the economic downturn, 
the number of property sales has fallen notably.  
ii) The cost of housing by size was assessed for all tenures across the County. Entry-
level prices in the Isle of Anglesey range from £80,000 for a two bedroom home in the 
Holyhead price market, up to £312,500 for a four bedroom property in the Menai Straits 
price market. Entry-level rents in the Isle of Anglesey range from £350 per month for a 
one bedroom home in Holyhead price market up to £675 per month for a four bedroom 
property in the Menai Straits price market.  
iii) Housing market gaps analysis shows the nature of the housing ladder in a particular 
locality. An analysis of the gaps between each tenure shows that there is a large income 
gap between the social rent and market entry.  

Page 225



 

55 
 

 
 
3) Improving market balance over the long-term  
 
i) The demographic projections for the Isle of Anglesey indicate significant increases in 
particular age cohorts of the population, including those aged 90 and over. Overall this 
scenario suggests that the household population will rise by 2,420 by 2026 and by 3,960 
by 2033, which equates to 220 households per year.  
ii) In terms of the accommodation required to provide housing market balance over the 
plan-period, the model, which is based on primary and secondary data, suggests that of 
the new housing required up to 2026, 70% should be market, 3% shared 
ownership/help-to-buy, 17% intermediate rent and 10% social rented. The new housing 
required by 2033 should be 73% market, 3% shared ownership/help-to-buy, 17% 
intermediate rent and 7% social rented.  
iii) The model also indicates that new market accommodation should principally be two, 
three and four bedroom homes with a range of dwelling sizes required in the affordable 
sector.  
 
4) Affordable housing need  
 
i) Following the stages of the housing needs assessment model specified by the LHMA 
Guide results in a net need estimate of 398 affordable dwellings per year in the Isle of 
Anglesey. Refining the model to reflect the local housing market, the net need figure 
becomes 182 affordable dwellings per year. 
ii) Help-to-buy, shared ownership and Intermediate Rent set at 80% and 70% of median 
market rates could all contribute towards meeting housing need.  
iii) A range of affordable accommodation sizes are required, but the need for four 
bedroom homes is particularly acute because of scarcity of supply.  
 
 
5) Requirements of specific groups  
 
Older Person Households  
 
i. Population projections indicate that the population aged 65 or over in the Isle of 
Anglesey is going to increase notably from 17,512 in 2015 to 20,947 in 2026, a rise of 
19.6%.  
ii. Using modelling techniques the following tenure split in types of general needs 
accommodation for pensioner households is indicated:  
 
86% should be market housing, 3% should be shared ownership / intermediate rental 
and 10% social rented. In terms of size 59% should be one or two bedrooms and 41% 
three or more bedrooms.  
iii. The stock of specialist accommodation (eg Extra Care) is insufficient to meet future 
need. Council are undertaking further work to establish the level of additional provision 
required.  
 
Households with specific needs  
 
i. 23.1 % of the resident population in Isle of Anglesey have a long-term health problem 
or a disability.  

Page 226



 

56 
 

ii. Using modelling techniques the following tenure and size split is indicated to provide 
suitable accommodation for those with support needs households in 2026: 
  
70% would require market housing, 5% would require intermediate housing, 25% would 
require social rented housing. In terms of size, 56 % should be one and two bedrooms 
and 44% three bedrooms or more.  
 
Families with children  
 
i. 33% of the household population on Anglesey are families with children which is lower 
than the national average of 36.6%.  
ii. Lone parents are notably more likely than non-family with children households to be in 
both private rented and social rented accommodation.  
iii. Families with children are more likely to be over-crowded and less likely to be 
underoccupying than other types of households.  
iv. Using modelling techniques the following tenure and size split is indicated to provide 
suitable accommodation for households with children in 2026  
 
74% would require market housing, 11% would require intermediate housing, 15% 
would require social rented housing. In terms of size 13 % should be two bedrooms, 
50% should be three bedrooms and 36% four or more bedrooms.  
 
The private rented sector  
 
i. There was a 60% increase in the private rented section in Anglesey between 2001 and 
2011. 16.8% of the population are currently estimated to live in the private rented sector.  
ii. The number of households in this sector supported by housing benefit on Anglesey is 
35%. This figure has remained consistent over the last four years.  
iii. Benefit supported households in the private rented sector are much more likely to 
contain pensioner households and lone parent households than the non-benefit-
supported sector.  
 

Draft Gwynedd LHMA (October 2018)  
 
The following provides a summary of key findings of the Draft Gwynedd LHMA: 
  
1) Socio-economic findings 

  
i) Gwynedd has a population of 121,900 in 52,450 households according to the 2011 

Census. It is the third least densely populated authority in Wales with 0.5 persons per 
hectare. Gwynedd’s population increased by 4.3% between 2001 and 2011. Welsh 
Government estimates this number will continue increasing. 

ii) Gwynedd’s working age population has increased since 2015, during the year to March 
2018, proportion of those economically active in Gwynedd was less than the regional 
percentage but greater than the national figures.  

iii) Economic activity of people aged between 16–64 is generally in an upward trend in 
Gwynedd with 76.7% active in March 2018. This figure does however fall below the North 
Wales (78.3%) average and only just exceeds the overall Welsh figure for economically 
active (76.5%) 

iv) The number of people in the workforce who are self-employed is estimated at about 12,000 
persons – around 21.8% of the workforce which is higher than the Welsh average at 
13.3%. 

Page 227



 

57 
 

v) The proportion of all recipients who live in the social rented sector is much higher than for 
Wales, and the proportion of recipients in the private sector is lower than in Wales.  

vi) The median household income for Gwynedd is slightly below the median income for 
Wales according to CACi paycheck figures for 2017.  

vii) The housing stock in Gwynedd is characterised mainly by detached properties (34.9%) 
or terraced housing (31.0%), with the proportions of these types of housing being higher 
in Gwynedd compared to national figures. 

viii) The majority of properties are owner occupied, with a significant proportion of these owned 
outright without a mortgage. The percentage of owner occupied housing in Gwynedd is 
2% lower compared with the rest of Wales. 

 
 
2)  The cost and affordability of housing  
 
i) 1,781 properties were sold in Gwynedd in 2017. The median house price in Gwynedd 

in 2017 was £150,000.  The detached properties have the highest median price of 
£230,000, whilst flats/maisonettes are the cheapest type with a median price of 
£107,000. 

ii) There is a shortfall of £4,781 between median incomes and the income needed to 
purchase lower quartile homes in Gwynedd. 

iii) There is a shortfall of £17,067 between median income and the income needed to 
purchase median homes in Gwynedd. 

iv) Affordability is a challenge for many households, with 59% priced out of the market in 
Gwynedd compared to 56% across Wales. 

 
 

3.  Improving market balance over the long-term  
 

i) Population projections for Gwynedd indicate that the total population will grow 
marginally over the next five years with an overall growth in the longer term to 2035. 
Projections also show that the number of children living in Gwynedd will steadily 
increase in the longer term. The working age population will decline over the next ten 
years, whereas the older population will grow significantly. These changes in the 
population will create new housing need, mainly from the formation of new households 
within the existing population. This new housing need adds to the existing pressure on 
the housing market.  

ii)  Drawing from the data available in the common housing register, it is also possible to 
identify the type of properties needed. This is 27% one bed units (shortfall 13%), 44% 
two bed units (shortfall 11%), 22% three bed units (overprovision 27%) and 6% four 
bed units (shortfall 2%).  Note that there can be duplication as applicants can choose 
one or more bedroom sizes. 

 
 
4)  Affordable housing need 
  
i) The final affordable housing need figure in the Draft Gwynedd LHMA are still to be 

confirmed at October 2018. However, the draft figures indicated an estimated need of 
approximately 500 affordable units per year. 

ii) Increase in housing need for smaller dwellings with one or two bedrooms, due to 
ageing population and smaller households.  

 
 
5)  Requirements of specific groups  
 

Older Person Households  

Page 228



 

58 
 

 
i) The increase in the older age group is expected to continue with people living longer 

and moving into the area. In 20 years it is expected that there will be an additional 60% 
of over 80s living in Gwynedd, but the increase in the populations aged between 16 
and 64 will only be 2%. 

ii) This data indicates that the greatest current need for housing is for smaller dwellings 
with one or two bedrooms. We can also see from the data that the need for smaller 
(1&2 person) and larger (5+ person) dwellings will increase. Meeting the need of both 
small and large households strengthens the case for developers to provide a greater 
mix of dwellings within their proposed developments. 

iii) It is important to plan for a mix of housing types across non specialist residential 
developments. This will ensure a range of housing options for older people and the 
general population who may not require specialist housing, but may need adaptations 
in the future. 
 
 
Households with specific needs 

  
i) Over 80s population is expected to grow and increase the need for suitable and 

accessible housing options. 
ii) Less than 10% of social housing stock has some form of adaptation. 
 
 

Families with children 
  
i) Impact of welfare reform, will see increases in families turning to the social housing 

sector as private rents become unsustainable and increase need for larger 
properties. 

ii) 71% of all applicants to the social housing register requested 1 or 2 bedroom 
accommodation. However 1 and 2 bedroomed accommodation accounts for 47% of 
the stock.  

iii) With welfare reform measures being introduced, families with 3 or more children, 
especially where there is a lone parent will feel the impact relatively acutely. 
Consequently families are and will be turning to the social housing sector as private 
rents become unsustainable. 
 
 
The private rented sector  
 

i) The 2011 Census confirms that there are 8,060 (15.4%) households living in private 
rented sector in Gwynedd; this is lower than the national figure for England and Wales 
of 16.7% but larger than the 14% of households that are living in the private rented 
sector in Wales. 

ii) Private sector rental is less affordable for households in 2017 as housing allowances 
across Gwynedd are on average £121 below private sector rents. 

iii) Over the past 3 years or so, rents have risen steadily driven by the increased demand 
for rented accommodation and the impact of the rent smart scheme (landlord 
registration) which has increased the quality of properties coming onto the market. 

 

 

Page 229



 

59 
 

APPENDIX 4 - Anticipated Price of Intermediate House for Sale (2018) 
 
 
 
Gwynedd 
 

LSOA 2011 
Code 

Lower Super Output  
Area (LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Household Income 3.5 x Household Income 

W01000047 
Gwynedd 011A 

Abererch  Y Ffor, Abererch, 
Llwyn Hudol 

£26,177 £91,621 

W01000048 
Gwynedd 016A 

Abermaw 1 Part of Abermaw, Llanaber £22,842 £79,946 

W01000049 
Gwynedd 016B 

Abermaw 2 Part of Abermaw  £22,086 £77,299 

W01000050 
Gwynedd 003A 

Arllechwedd   Part of Bangor, Llandygai, Llanllechid, 
Talybont 

£33,331 £116,659 

W01000051 
Gwynedd 015A 

Bala  No Settlement in the JLDP £21,867 £76,535 

W01000052 
Gwynedd 004A 

Bethel & Cwm-y-Glo 1 Bethel £33,162 £116,068 

W01000053 
Gwynedd 004B 

Bethel & Cwm-y-Glo 2 Cwm y Glo, Tan y Coed  £32,440 £113,540 

W01000054 
Gwynedd 007A 

Bontnewydd  Bontnewydd, Penrhos (Caeathro) £29,597 £103,589 

W01000056 
Gwynedd 009A 

Bowydd a Rhiw   Part of Blaenau Ffestiniog, Talwaenydd £19,316 £67,606 

W01000057 
Gwynedd 016C 

Brithdir a 
Llanfachreth/Ganllwyd/Llanelltyd  

 No Settlement in the JLDP £29,109 £101,880 

W0100005 
Gwynedd 006A 

Cadnant (Gwynedd)  Part of Caernarfon £19,617 £68,661 

W01000060 
Gwynedd 015B 

Corris/Mawddwy  Corris, Aberllefenni, Corris Uchaf £26,652 £93,282 

W01000061 
Gwynedd 011B 

Criccieth  Criccieth  £28,039 £98,138 

W01000062 
Gwynedd 001A 

Deiniol   Part of Bangor £19,393 £67,876 

P
age 230



 

60 
 

LSOA 2011 
Code 

Lower Super Output  
Area (LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Household Income 3.5 x Household Income 

W01000063 
Gwynedd 005A 

Deiniolen  Deiniolen, Dinorwig, Gallt Y Foel  £26,354 £92,238 

W01000064 
Gwynedd 002A 

Dewi   Part of Bangor £28,147 £98,513 

W01000065 
Gwynedd 009B 

Diffwys a Maenofferen  Part of Blaenau Ffestiniog £18,520 £64,820 

W01000066 
Gwynedd 010A 

Dolbenmaen  Garndolbenmaen, Pentrefelin, Bryncir, 
Penmorfa 

£26,925 £94,237 

W01000067 
Gwynedd 016D 

Gogledd Dolgellau North  No Settlement in the JLDP £27,077 £94,769 

W01000068 
Gwynedd 016E 

De Dolgellau South   No Settlement in the JLDP £23,985 £83,948 

W01000069 
Gwynedd 013A 

Dyffryn Ardudwy   No Settlement in the JLDP £24,921 £87,225 

W01000070 
Gwynedd 012A 

Efail-newydd/Buan  Pentreuchaf, Efailnewydd, Llannor £28,844 £100,956 

W01000071 
Gwynedd 003B 

Gerlan  Part of Bethesda, Rachub £26,682 £93,387 

W01000072 
Gwynedd 002B 

Glyder   Part of Bangor, Treborth £28,782 £100,738 

W01000073 
Gwynedd 008A 

Groeslon  Dinas Dinlle, Llandwrog, Groeslon, Bethesda 
Bach, Ty’n-Lon, Part of Dolydd a Maen 
Coch  

£30,464 £106,623 

W01000074 
Gwynedd 013B 

Harlech   No Settlement in the JLDP £27,228 £95,299 

W01000075 
Gwynedd 002C 

Hendre (Gwynedd)  Part of Bangor £20,707 £72,476 

W01000076 
Gwynedd 001B 

Hirael & Garth 1  Part of Bangor £22,999 £80,497 

W01000077 
Gwynedd 001C 

Hirael & Garth 2  Part of Bangor £18,580 £65,030 

W01000078 
Gwynedd 011C 

Llanaelhaearn  Llanaelhaearn, Llithfaen, Trefor, Pistyll £24,025 £84,088 

W01000079 
Gwynedd 013C 

Llanbedr   No Settlement in the JLDP £27,696 £96,936 

P
age 231



 

61 
 

LSOA 2011 
Code 

Lower Super Output  
Area (LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Household Income 3.5 x Household Income 

W01000080 
Gwynedd 014C 

Llanbedrog & Abersoch  Llanbedrog, Abersoch £30,266 £105,931 

W01000081 
Gwynedd 005B 

Llanberis  Llanberis  £26,233 £91,814 

W01000082 
Gwynedd 015C 

Llandderfel & Llanuwchllyn 1 Llandderfel 
Llanfor 

£27,515 £96,302 

W01000083 
Gwynedd 015D 

Llandderfel & Llanuwchllyn 2  No Settlement in the JLDP £26,812 £93,841 

W01000084 
Gwynedd 014D 

Llanengan  Sarn Bach, Llangian, Mynytho, Llanengan £29,127 £101,944 

W01000085 
Gwynedd 017C 

Llangelynin  Fairbourne  £25,544 £89,405 

W01000086 
Gwynedd 008B 

Llanllyfni & Clynnog Nantlle, Llanllyfni, Clynnog Fawr, 
Aberdesach, Pontllyfni, Nebo, Pantglas, 
Swan, Tai’n Lôn  

£25,938 £90,784 

W01000087 
Gwynedd 004C 

Llanrug  Llanrug  £30,393 £106,376 

W01000088 
Gwynedd 007B 

Llanwnda  Llanwnda, Dinas (Llanwnda), Rhostryfan, 
Rhosgadfan, Saron (Llanwnda) Part of 
Dolydd a Maen Coch  

£31,144 £109,005 

W01000089 
Gwynedd 011D 

Llanystumdwy  Chwilog, Llanystumdwy, Rhoslan, Llangybi £29,739 £104,088 

W01000090 
Gwynedd 002D 

Marchog 1 Part of Bangor £17,981 £62,933 

W01000091 
Gwynedd 001D 

Marchog 2 Part of Bangor £17,469 £61,140 

W01000092 
Gwynedd 001E 

Menai (Bangor)  Part of Bangor £24,802 £86,806 

W01000093 
Gwynedd 006B 

Menai (Caernarfon)  Part of Caernarfon £31,560 £110,461 

W01000094 
Gwynedd 012B 

Morfa Nefyn  Edern, Morfa Nefyn £28,380 £99,329 

W01000095 
Gwynedd 012C 

Nefyn  Nefyn  £25,760 £90,159 

W01000096 Ogwen 1 Part of Bethesda £23,464 £82,123 

P
age 232



 

62 
 

LSOA 2011 
Code 

Lower Super Output  
Area (LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Household Income 3.5 x Household Income 

Gwynedd 003C 

W01000097 
Gwynedd 003D 

Ogwen 2 Part of Bethesda  £24,582 £86,035 

W01000098 
Gwynedd 006C 

Peblig (Caernarfon)   Part of Caernarfon £18,352 £64,231 

W01000099 
Gwynedd 005C 

Penisarwaun  Penisarwaun, Brynrefail, Rhiwlas, Waun 
(Penisarwaun) 

£32,124 £112,435 

W01000100 
Gwynedd 010B 

Penrhyndeudraeth 1 Part of Penrhyndeudraeth 
Garreg-Llanfrothen 

£28,373 £99,307 

W01000101 
Gwynedd 013D 

Penrhyndeudraeth 2 Part of Penrhyndeudraeth, Minffordd £25,313 £88,597 

W01000102 
Gwynedd 002E 

Pentir 1  Part of Bangor £35,880 £125,580 

W01000103 
Gwynedd 005D 

Pentir 2  Part of Bangor, Caerhun/Waun Wen, 
Glasinfryn, Minffordd (Bangor), Pentir, Capel 
y Graig, Tŷ’n y Lon 

£33,028 £115,599 

W01000104 
Gwynedd 008C 

Penygroes (Gwynedd) Penygroes  £23,067 £80,735 

W01000105 
Gwynedd 010C 

Dwyrain Porthmadog East  Part of Porthmadog  £23,443 £82,051 

W01000106 
Gwynedd 010D 

Gorllewin Porthmadog West  Morfa Bychan, Borth y Gest, Part of 
Porthmadog, Part of Penrhyndeudraeth 

£28,622 £100,175 

W01000107 
Gwynedd 010E 

Porthmadog - Tremadog  Tremadog £26,800 £93,801 

W01000108 
Gwynedd 012D 

Gogledd Pwllheli North  Part of Pwllheli  £23,674 £82,857 

W01000109 
Gwynedd 012E 

De Pwllheli South  Part of Pwllheli £22,220 £77,770 

W01000110 
Gwynedd 006D 

Seiont 1  Part of Caernarfon £30,086 £105,300 

W01000111 
Gwynedd 007C 

Seiont 2  Part of Caernarfon £21,453 £75,087 

W01000112 
Gwynedd 008D 

Talysarn  Talysarn, Carmel, Y Fron  £22,213 £77,744 

W01000113 Teigl  Part of Blaenau Ffestiniog  £22,757 £79,650 

P
age 233



 

63 
 

LSOA 2011 
Code 

Lower Super Output  
Area (LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Household Income 3.5 x Household Income 

Gwynedd 009C 

W01000114 
Gwynedd 009D 

Trawsfynydd   No Settlement in the JLDP £22,507 £78,776 

W01000115 
Gwynedd 003E 

Tregarth & Mynydd Llandygai  Tregarth, Mynydd Llandygai  £33,747 £118,114 

W01000116 
Gwynedd 017D 

Tywyn 1 Part of Tywyn  £23,210 £81,234 

W01000117 
Gwynedd 017E 

Tywyn 2 Part of Tywyn  £19,775 £69,213 

W01000118 
Gwynedd 007D 

Waunfawr  Waunfawr, Caeathro, Groeslon Waunfawr £31,591 £110,567 

W01000119 
Gwynedd 004D 

Y Felinheli   Y Felinheli, Aberpwll £34,056 £119,197 

W01001932 
Gwynedd 014E 

Aberdaron / Botwnnog & 
Tudweiliog 

Tudweiliog, Sarn Mellteyrn, Botwnnog, 
Rhoshirwaun, Aberdaron, Bryncroes 

£26,423 £92,482 

W01001933 
Gwynedd 017F 

Aberdyfi / Bryn-
crug/Llanfihangel 

 No Settlement in the JLDP £29,689 £103,911 

 
Gwynedd   £25,790 £90,264 

 
 
 
 
 
Anglesey 
 

LSOA 2011 Code Lower Super 
Putput Area 
(LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Income 3.5 x Household Income 

W01000001 
Isle of Anglesey 007A 

Aberffraw & 
Rhosneigr 1 

Part of Rhosneigr £28,458 £99,603 

W01000002 
Isle of Anglesey 007B                   

Aberffraw a 
Rhosneigr 2 

 Part of Rhosneigr, Llanfaelog, Bryn Du, 
Pencarnisiog 

£30,113 £105,395 

W01000003 Porth Amlwch Part of Amlwch  £22,154 £77,540 

P
age 234



 

64 
 

LSOA 2011 Code Lower Super 
Putput Area 
(LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Income 3.5 x Household Income 

Isle of Anglesey 001A                   

W01000004 
Isle of Anglesey 001B                   

Amlwch Wledig  Part of Amlwch, Bull Bay £28,136 £98,475 

W01000005 
Isle of Anglesey 005A                   

Beaumaris  Beaumaris, Llanfaes 
 

£28,012 £98,041 

W01000006 
Isle of Anglesey 006A                   

Bodffordd Bodffordd, Llynfaes, Trefor, Ty’n Lôn (Glan yr Afon) £30,430 £106,505 

W01000007 
Isle of Anglesey 009A                   

Bodorgan  Malltraeth, Bethel, Llangristiolus 
Part of Llangefni, Bodorgan, Hermon, 
Llangadwaladr, Capel Mawr 

£31,755 £111,142 

W01000008 
Isle of Anglesey 008A                   

Braint  Part of Llanfair PG £34,274 £119,959 

W01000009 
Isle of Anglesey 007C                   

Bryngwran Gwalchmai, Bryngwran  £27,452 £96,081 

W01000010 
Isle of Anglesey 002A                   

Brynteg Part of Benllech, Tyn y gongl, Brynteg £29,097 £101,839 

W01000011 
Isle of Anglesey 008B                   

Cadnant (Ynys 
Môn) 

 Part of Menai Bridge £30,172 £105,602 

W01000012 
Isle of Anglesey 006B                   

Cefni Part of Llangefni  £29,946 £104,812 

W01000013 
Isle of Anglesey 005B                   

Cwm Cadnant Llandegfan, Llansadwrn, Cichle, Glyn Garth, 
Brynminceg (Old Llandegfan) 

£39,917 £139,708 

W01000014 
Isle of Anglesey 006C                   

Cyngar Part of Llangefni, Rhosmeirch £25,694 £89,928 

W01000015 
Isle of Anglesey 008C                   

Gwyngyll Part of Llanfair PG  £33,388 £116,856 

W01000016 
Isle of Anglesey 003A                   

Tref Caergybi Part of Holyhead £19,983 £69,941 

W01000017 
Isle of Anglesey 003B                   

Kingsland Part of Holyhead   £23,776 £83,216 

W01000018 
Isle of Anglesey 001C                   

Llanbadrig Cemaes, Tregele £27,665 £96,829 

W01000019 
Isle of Anglesey 005C                   

Llanbedr-goch Llanbedrgoch, Part of Benllech, Bwlch Gwyn, Red 
Wharf Bay 

£31,539 £110,385 

P
age 235



 

65 
 

LSOA 2011 Code Lower Super 
Putput Area 
(LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Income 3.5 x Household Income 

W01000020 
Isle of Anglesey 002B                   

Llanddyfnan Talwrn, Capel Coch, Hebron, Marian Glas £33,440 £117,041 

W01000021 
Isle of Anglesey 002C                   

Llaneilian Penysarn, Rhosybol, Cerrigman, Nebo £28,724 £100,535 

W01000022 
Isle of Anglesey 004A                   

Llanfaethlu Llanfachraeth, Llanfaethlu, Llanrhuddlad, Rhydwyn £30,629 £107,202 

W01000023 
Isle of Anglesey 007D                   

Llanfair-yn-
Neubwll 1 

Bodedern, Part of Caergeiliog  £25,291 £88,517 

W01000024 
Isle of Anglesey 007E                   

Llanfair-yn-
Neubwll 2 

Llanfihangel yn Nhowyn, Part of Caergeiliog  £31,613 £110,646 

W01000025 
Isle of Anglesey 009B                   

Llanfihangel 
Ysgeifiog 

Gaerwen, Pentre Berw, Star £28,923 £101,230 

W01000026 
Isle of Anglesey 005D                   

Llangoed  Llangoed, Glan-yr-Afon (Llangoed), Pen y Marian, 
Haulfre, Penmon 
 

£28,566 £99,980 

W01000027 
Isle of Anglesey 009C                   

Llanidan Llanddaniel Fab, Brynsiencyn, Gorsaf Gaerwen £29,632 £103,711 

W01000028 
Isle of Anglesey 001D                   

Llannerch-y-medd Llanerchymedd, Carmel £25,305 £88,568 

W01000029 
Isle of Anglesey 003C                   

London Road Part of Holyhead   £19,405 £67,918 

W01000030 
Isle of Anglesey 003D                   

Maeshyfryd Part of Holyhead   £19,981 £69,934 

W01000031 
Isle of Anglesey 001E                   

Mechell Llanfechell, Carreglefn £28,005 £98,018 

W01000032 
Isle of Anglesey 002D                   

Moelfre Moelfre, Brynrefail £30,007 £105,024 

W01000033 
Isle of Anglesey 003E                   

Morawelon Part of Holyhead   £17,844 £62,453 

W01000034 
Isle of Anglesey 004B                   

Parc a'r Mynydd Part of Holyhead , Pentre Canol £24,998 £87,492 

W01000035 
Isle of Anglesey 005E                   

Pentraeth Pentraeth , Llanddona, Hendre Hywel, Rhoscefnhir £31,870 £111,545 

W01000036 Porthyfelin 1 Part of Holyhead  £18,054 £63,190 

P
age 236



 

66 
 

LSOA 2011 Code Lower Super 
Putput Area 
(LSOA) 

Settlement in LSOA Median Income 3.5 x Household Income 

Isle of Anglesey 003F                   

W01000037 
Isle of Anglesey 003G                   

Porthyfelin 2 Part of Holyhead   £24,082 £84,289 

W01000038 
Isle of Anglesey 009D                   

Rhosyr Dwyran, Newborough, Llangaffo, Penlon £27,408 £95,927 

W01000039 
Isle of Anglesey 004C                   

Trearddur 1  Part of Trearddur, Part of Four Mile Bridge £35,211 £123,238 

W01000040 
Isle of Anglesey 004D                   

Trearddur 2 Part of Trearddur, Part of Holyhead, Bro Iarddur £36,517 £127,810 

W01000041 
Isle of Anglesey 006D                   

Tudur Part of Llangefni, Rhostrehwfa £16,002 £56,008 

W01000042 
Isle of Anglesey 008D                   

Tysilio  Part of Menai Bridge £30,153 £105,535 

W01000043 
Isle of Anglesey 004E                   

Fali 1 Part of Valley, Part of Four Mile Bridge, Bryn y Mor £26,443 £92,550 

W01000044 
Isle of Anglesey 004F        

Fali 2 Part of Valley, Llanynghenedl £33,386 £116,851 

 
Ynys Môn   £27,491 £96,217 

P
age 237



 

67 
 

APPENDIX 5 - Notional Floor Areas  
 
 
 
 

Unit Type Floor Area m2 
7 Person 4 Bed House 114 
6 Person 4 Bed House 110 
5 Person 3 Bed House 94 
4 Person 3 Bed House 88 
4 Person 2 Bed House 83 
3 Person 2 Bed Bungalow 58 
3 Person 2 Bed Flat – Walk Up 65 
3 Person 2 Bed Flat – Common Access 59 
2 Person 1 Bed Flat – Walk Up 51 
2 Person 1 Bed Flat – Common Access 46 
1 Person 1 Bed Bedsit 32 
5 Person 3 Bed Bungalow – Wheelchair 115 
4 Person 2 Bed Bungalow – Wheelchair 98 
3 Person 2 Bed Bungalow – Wheelchair 80 
2 Person 1 Bed Bungalow - Wheelchair  60 

 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
   
  

Page 238



 

68 
 

APPENDIX 6 – Viability Pro-Forma 
 

Site name\ Application number: ............................................................................................. 

1. Nature of Development (please provide information regarding each new residential unit 
separately) 

 
1.1 Open Market Units 

Type of unit Number of 
bedrooms 

Internal 
floor area 
(m2) 

Number of 
parking 
spaces 

Nature of 
tenure (sale / 
rent etc.) 

Projected Open 
Market Value 

     £ 
      
      
      

  
1.2 Affordable Units 

Type of unit Number of 
bedrooms 

Internal 
floor area 
(m2) 

Number of 
parking 
spaces 

Nature of 
tenure (sale / 
rent etc.) 

Projected 
Affordable Value 

     £ 
      
      
      

  

2. Development Costs 

Category Values Used in Calculation1 Overall Cost 
Build Costs 
Cost of development per 
m2 split down to: 
 Plot Costs (base 

construction); 
 External works costs; 
 Infrastructure. 

 

 
£ 

Other development costs % 
Professional fees (usually a 
% of the build cost). 
Supported with copies of 
the latest estimated costs 
on headed paper / official 
e-mails by the relevant 
companies. 
 

 £ 

Page 239



 

69 
 

Category Values Used in Calculation1 Overall Cost 
Internal overheads (usually 
a % of the build cost). 
Costs such as 
administrative within the 
development company, 
land buyers and planning 
all non-direct site 
associated costs. Split of 
these should be shown.  
 

 £ 

Market Finance (usually a 
% of the build cost). The 
costs of any loans 
associated with the 
development split 
between: 
 Finance for the land; 
 Finance of 

construction. 
 

 £ 

Marketing Fees (usually a 
% of the market value). 
Supported by quotes from 
Estate Agents. 
 

 £ 

Developer profit (only for 
the open market element 
of the proposal) (usually a 
% of the market value). 
 

 £ 

Contractor’s profit (only 
applies to the affordable 
housing element of a 
proposal) (usually a % of 
the market value) 

 £ 

Any Abnormal costs (please list these and provide justification and quotes for any 
abnormal costs identified) 
 
 

 £ 

 
 

  

 
 

  

1 This would show the price per m2 for development cost and the % figure for professional fees, 
marketing fees etc. in other development costs category. Dependent upon any abnormal costs 
claimed it may not be necessary to complete this column for this section. 

Page 240



 

70 
 

 

3. Other Planning Obligation Costs 

Description Overall Cost 
 £ 
  
  

 

4. Site Purchase Costs 

 
4.1 Cost of Site £ 

 
4.2 Actual Price Paid Yes   No   

 
4.3 If Yes to 4.2 Date site was purchased   
 
4.4 If No to 4.2 is the Cost an Estimate Yes  No   

 

 

  

Page 241



 

71 
 

APPENDIX 7 – Useful Contact Details 
 
 

Organisation Web-site E-mail Contact 
 
1] Local Authorities 
 

Anglesey & 
Gwynedd Joint 
Planning Policy 
Unit 
 

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/
Council/Strategies-and-
policies/Environment-and-
planning/Planning-policy/Planning-
Policy.aspx  

planningpolicy@gwyned
d.llyw.cymru 

Gwynedd 
Development 
Management 
 

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/
Residents/Planning-and-building-
control/Planning/Planning.aspx  

cynllunio@gwynedd.llyw
.cymru  

Anglesey 
Development 
Management 
 

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/planning-
and-waste/planning-
control?redirect=false  

planning@ynysmon.gov.
uk  

Anglesey 
Housing Service 
Strategy, 
Commissioning 
and Policy 
 

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/housing/  housingstrategy@ynysm
on.gov.uk  

Gwynedd 
Housing 
Strategy Unit 
 

https://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/en/
Residents/Housing/Affordable-
housing.aspx  

unedstrategoltai@gwyne
dd.llyw.cymru  

 
2] Registered Social Landlords operating in the plan area: 
 

Cartrefi 
Cymunedol 
Gwynedd 
 

http://www.ccgwynedd.org/Home  enquiries@ccgwynedd.o
rg.uk  

Grŵp Cynefin 
 

http://www.grwpcynefin.org/en/home  post@grwpcynefin.org  

North Wales 
Housing 
 

https://www.nwha.org.uk/  customerservices@nwha
.org.uk 

Pennaf 
 

http://www.pennaf.co.uk/  enquiries@pencartref.co.
uk  

 
3] Rural Housing Enabler 
 

North West 
Wales Rural 
Housing 
Enablers 

http://www.grwpcynefin.org/en/eich-
cymuned/rural-housing-enablers/  

Arfon.hughes@grwpcyn
efin.org  
 
Victoria.kelly@grwpcyne
fin.org  
 
Dylan.owen@grwpcynefi
n.org  

 
4] Tai Teg 
 

  

Tai Teg 
 

https://taiteg.org.uk/en/  info@taiteg.org.uk 

  

Page 242



 

72 
 

APPENDIX 8 –Supporting Statement Pro-forma to demonstrate local connection 
occupancy eligibility  
 
This information is collected in order to assess the eligibility of either: 

 an individual / individuals when the individual/ individuals that submit an 
application for an affordable dwelling in accordance with the requirements within 
Policies TAI 1 to TAI 6 inclusive, TAI 15 and TAI 16 propose to occupy the 
intermediate affordable housing in the first instance; or 

 an individual / individuals that propose to buy intermediate affordable housing 
post consent, i.e. to support the requirement of satisfying a covenant within a 
Section 106 agreement over their eligibility to occupy an affordable dwelling on a 
site (as the first occupiers or occupiers in the future).  

 
All the information that meets the definition of personal data in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act will be used in a strictly confidential manner and will not be shared outside 
the Council. The information will be kept on file for a period that conforms to the data 
protection policies of Gwynedd Council and the Isle of Anglesey County Council. For 
further information please refer to the Gwynedd Council and the Isle of Anglesey County 
Council websites. 
 
Step 1 – Location and Type of Development 
 
The location and type of the proposed development can mean different Local 
Connection requirements within different settlement types the tables below explains this: 
 
Table 1: Local connection Evidence based on Location of Development 
Location of the 
proposed Development 

Local Connection Evidence Required for: 
A site within the 
Development Boundary 

An Exception site (i.e. a 
site outside but 
immediately adjacent to 
the development 
boundary) 

Sub-Regional Centre 
(Policy TAI 1) 

5 year connection with the 
Authority of Gwynedd. 

5 year connection with the 
settlement of Bangor (or 
it’s Rural Hinterland). 

Urban Service Centre (TAI 
1) 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Authority where 
the application is located 
i.e. Gwynedd or Anglesey. 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Urban Service 
Centre (or it’s Rural 
Hinterland) where the 
application is located.  

Local Service Centre (TAI 
2) (Including the 3 Centres 
identified within Policy TAI 
5) 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Authority where 
the application is located 
i.e. Gwynedd or Anglesey. 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Local Service 
Centre (or it’s Rural 
Hinterland) where the 
application is located.  

Service Village (TAI 3) 5 year connection with the 
relevant Authority where 
the application is located 
i.e. Gwynedd or Anglesey. 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Service Village (or 
it’s Rural Hinterland) where 
the application is located.  

Local, Coastal or Rural 
Village (TAI 4) (Including 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Settlement (or it’s 

5 year connection with the 
relevant Local, Coastal or 
Rural Village (or it’s Rural 

Page 243



 

73 
 

Location of the 
proposed Development 

Local Connection Evidence Required for: 
A site within the 
Development Boundary 

An Exception site (i.e. a 
site outside but 
immediately adjacent to 
the development 
boundary) 

the 12 Villages identified in 
TAI 5)  

Rural Hinterland) where the 
application is located.  

Hinterland) where the 
application is located.  

Clusters (TAI 6) Since they do not have a development boundary all 
applicants will have to show a 5 year connection with the 
relevant Cluster (or it’s Rural Hinterland) where the 
application is located.    

Conversion of Traditional 
Buildings in the open 
Countryside 

Since they are not located within a development 
boundary all applicants will have to show a 5 year 
connection with the Rural Hinterland around where the 
traditional building is located.    

(see the JLDP Written Statement to identify which settlements fall within which the 
above mentioned Policies) 
 
For the avoidance of doubt the Rural Hinterland surrounding a settlement does not 
include any other settlement identified within Policies TAI 1 to TAI 6 in the JLDP. 
 
 
1] Address of the planning application site? 
 
…………………………………………………….. 

…………………………………………………….. 

…………………………………………………….. 

…………………………………………………….. 

…………………………………………………….. 

  
 
2] Location of Development, please tick the relevant box: 
 
Within a development boundary: 
 

 

 
 
On a site immediately adjacent to a development boundary (i.e. an Exception 
Site): 

 

 
 
In a Cluster:  
 

 

  
 
Involves the conversion of a Traditional Building in the Open Countryside: 
 

 

 

Page 244



 

74 
 

 
Other (Please specify): ………………………………………………………. 

…………………………………………………………………………………... 

…………………………………………………………………………………... 

 

 
 
 
 
Step 2 – What is your Local Connection 
 
 
3] Please briefly explain in line with the location of the proposed development 
how do you satisfy the relevant 5 year local connection requirement, as outlined 
in Table 1 above? (Please include all previous addresses for the 5 year 
connection period) 
 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
4] Do you have any evidence to support your local connection claims, e.g. bills 
at your current or previous address in the locality, details on the electoral 
register? Please outline what information you have available to support your 
claim and attach any relevant documents: 
 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Page 245



 

75 
 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 
 
Step 3 – Declaration 
 
 
I declare that the information provided above is a true reflection of at least one member 
of my household’s local connection to the settlement / area subject to the application site 
outlined in question 1 above. I am aware that the provision of false information by me 
and which wrongly leads to the grant of a planning permission based on local connection 
could result in enforcement or Court action by the Council against my or others’ 
occupation of a dwelling built under that planning permission. 
 
 
Signed:……………………………………………... 

 

Name in Print::……………………………………   

 

Dated: ……………………………………………...  

 
 

 

  

Page 246



 

76 
 

APPENDIX 9 – Glossary of Terms 
 
 

Term Description 
Affordable housing 
(In accordance 
with the definition 
of TAN 2) 

Housing provided to those whose needs are not met by the open 
market.  
 
Affordable housing should: 
• meet the needs of eligible households, including availability at 
low enough cost for them to afford, determined with regard to 
local incomes and local house prices; and 
• include provision for the home to remain affordable for future 
eligible households. 
 
This term breaks down into two sub-categories: 
• social rented housing - provided by local authorities and 
registered social landlords where rent levels have regard to the 
Welsh Government’s guideline rents and benchmark rents; and 
• intermediate housing - where prices or rents are above those of 
social rented housing but below market housing prices or rents. 
 
A planning mechanism e.g. a Section 106 agreement, is used to 
control the price and occupancy of the houses. 

 
Affordable Housing 
for Local Need 

(In Local, Coastal 
or Rural Villages, 
Clusters or in 
relation to the 
conversion of 
traditional buildings 
in the open 
countryside to 
residential use) 

The Affordable Housing element will be consistent with the 
definition of 'Affordable Housing (in accordance with the definition 
in TAN 2)' which is in this glossary of terms.  
Local Need in a Local, Coastal or Rural Village - people in need 
of an affordable house who have resided within the Village or in 
the surrounding rural area for a continuous period of 5 years or 
more, either immediately before submitting the application or in 
the past. 
 
Local Need in Clusters and the conversion of traditional buildings 
in the open countryside - people in need of an affordable house 
who have resided within the Cluster or in the surrounding rural 
area for a continuous period of 5 years or more, either 
immediately before submitting the application or in the past.  
 
This is to ensure that growth in these settlements will not draw 
people with no connection to the settlement out of Service 
Centres / Villages. 
 

Affordable Housing 
Viability Study (AHVS) 

A study that identifies the level of affordable housing that is viable 
to be provided on open market housing sites within different 
Housing Price Areas in the plan Area. 
 

Common Housing 
Register 

Provides a single point of access for all people interested in 
social housing in an area, including accessible housing for 
disabled people or older persons accommodation. 

Page 247



 

77 
 

Term Description 
 

Commuted Sum A sum of money paid by the applicant in lieu of providing 
affordable housing on site. 
 

Development 
Quality 
Requirements 
(DQR) 

Sets out the minimum quality requirements for new and 
rehabilitated housing developments funded from the Welsh 
Government’s Social Housing Grant. 
 

District Valuer 
Services 

Is the specialist property arm of the Valuation Office Agency 
(VOA). It provides independent, impartial, valuation and 
professional property advice across the entire public sector, and 
where public money or public functions are involved. 
 

Exception Site Small scale sites either within or immediately adjacent to the 
development boundary which provides 100% affordable housing. 

 
Housing Price Sub-
Areas 

Different house price areas within the plan area identified in the 
Affordable Housing Viability Study. 
 

Housing Market 
Areas 

The North West Wales Local Housing Market Assessment 
identified housing market areas within the sub-region based upon 
travel to work areas and local knowledge to be able to 
understand the levels of demand and need within these areas. 
 

Housing Need Refers to households lacking their own housing or living in 
housing which is judged to be inadequate or unsuitable, who are 
unlikely to be able to meet their needs in the housing market 
without some financial assistance.  
 

Housing Needs 
Study 

A survey of a particular area or settlement to support a 
reasonable mix and balance of house types and sizes so as to 
cater for a range of housing needs within the locality. 
 

Joint Housing Land 
Availability Study 
(JHLAS) 

Local planning authorities must ensure that sufficient land is 
genuinely available or will become available to provide a 5 year 
supply of land for housing, judged against the strategy contained 
in the development plan. The purpose of these studies is to: 
• monitor the provision of market housing and affordable housing; 
• provide an agreed statement of residential land availability for 
development planning and control purposes; and 
• identify the need for action in situations where an insufficient 
supply is identified. 
 

Local Housing 
Market 
Assessment 

A study that identifies evidence about housing need and demand 
in the area. 
 

Local Market Housing 
(in accordance with 
paragraph 9.2.4 

Housing units either to rent or that are for sale within the defined 
settlements listed in Policy TAI 5. A planning mechanism, e.g. a 
planning condition, is used to control the occupancy of a house to 

Page 248



 

78 
 

Term Description 
Planning Policy 
Wales) 

 

households that have a specific local connection but a 
mechanism is not used to control the price of the house. 
 

Low Cost Market 
Housing 

Historically considered as being housing that was affordable by 
design. However since they did not have any mechanisms to 
control their price TAN 2 states that Low Cost Market Housing is 
not considered to be ‘affordable housing’ for the purpose of the 
land use planning system. 
 

Lower Super 
Output Area 

Output areas are a set of areas of consistent size, whose 
boundaries would not change. Lower Layer Super Output 
Areas (LSOAs) are an aggregation of adjacent Output Areas 
with similar social characteristics, they typically contain 4 to 6 
Output Areas with a population of around 1500. 
 

Median Household 
Income 

Is the amount that divides the income distribution into two 
equal groups, half having income above that amount, and half 
having income below that amount.  
 

Occupancy 
cascade 

A mechanism to ensure that occupants who fulfil the occupancy 
criteria will always be found for affordable housing when such 
housing is vacated. This mechanism sets out the geographical 
areas and/or types of households that would be eligible for such 
housing. 
 

Open Market Housing 
(in accordance with 
the definition of TAN2) 
 

 

Housing for rent or sale where the price is set by the open 
market. Such units will meet the housing needs of those within 
the Plan area who are not eligible to live in affordable housing.  
A planning mechanism is not used to control the occupancy of 
the houses. 

 
Permitted 
Development Rights 

Certain types of minor changes can be made to your house or 
business without needing to apply for planning permission.  
 

Pro-rata payment Where the scale of a scheme mean the affordable requirement 
is below a single unit then a contribution based upon the 
percentage of a new house will be required. 
 

Redacted Copies A spare set of documents provided to/ by the Council where 
any personal or sensitive data is blocked out to allow the 
document to be placed upon the public register. 
 

Registered Social 
Landlord 

Independent societies, bodies of trustees or companies 
established for the purpose of providing low-cost social housing 
for people in housing need on a non-profit-making basis. Any 
trading surplus is used to maintain existing homes and to help 
finance new ones. 

 
Rural Enterprise 
Dwelling 

Qualifying rural enterprises comprise land related businesses 
including agriculture, forestry and other activities that obtain their 
primary inputs from the site. 

Page 249



 

79 
 

Term Description 
 

Rural Hinterland The area in the immediate vicinity of a settlement and 
excludes any other settlement identified within the JLDPs 
settlement hierarchy.  
 

Rural Housing 
Enabler 

A person independent of the Council and Housing 
Associations who works with local communities to identify 
housing need and provide guidance to communities on the 
development process. 
 

Section 106 
Agreement 

A legal agreement under section 106 of the 1990 Town & 
Country Planning Act. Section 106 agreements are legal 
agreements between a planning authority and a developer, or 
undertakings offered unilaterally by a developer, that ensure that 
certain extra works related to a development are undertaken. 

 
Tai Teg Tai Teg is a register of people in Gwynedd and Ynys Môn 

interested in homeownership who cannot currently afford to buy 
outright on the open market.  
 

 

Page 250


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: MAINTAINING AND CREATING DISTINCTIVE AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES – REVISED CONSULTATION DRAFT
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 2a
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	6 SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: AFFORDABLE HOUSING – CONSULTATION DRAFT
	Appendix 1


